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WHO WE ARE

TXUis a m‘ajor energy company with operations in North America and Australia. TXU manages
a diverse en“ergy portfolio with a strategic mix of over $31 billion of assets. TXU’s distinctive busi-
ness model for competitive markets integrates generation, portfolio management and retail into
one single business. The regulated electric and natural gas distribution and transmission busi-
nesses com;‘alement the competitive operations, using asset management skills developed over
more than 5100 years, to provide reliable energy delivery to consumers and earnings and cash flow
for stakeholders. In its primary market of Texas, TXU’s portfolio includes 19,000 megawatts of
generation and additional contracted capacity with a fuel mix of coal/lignite, natural gas/oil,
nuclear power and wind. TXU serves more than five million customers in North America and
Australia, i;ncluding 2.6 million competitive electric customers in Texas where it is the leading

energy retailer. Visit www.txucorp.com for more information about TXU.
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Our success in 2003 is a testament to the commitment
of the management team and dedication of employees.

Through decisive action and focused execution, TXU
made great progress in regaining its financial strength
and meeting the expectations of investors and creditors.

\

|

|
Last year, we executed on our
business plan, delivering diluted
earnings per share from continu-
ing operations before cumulative
effect of changes in accounting
principles of |$2.03 and generat-
ing cash from operations of
$2.8 billion. We strengthened
the balance sheet and enhanced
credit, reducing debt by more
than $1 8 billion and repaying
other obhgatlons We estab-
lished more-than- ample cash
and credit facility capacity,
which stood ‘at $3.4 billion.
Costs were reduced substan-
tially, reﬂectmg enormous
enterprise-wiide effort, and TXU
employees successfully defended
and heightened the company’s
market leade‘rship positions in
Texas and Australia.

\
Market Leade}rship. TXU’s out-
standing assets, diverse mix of
regulated and unregulated busi-
nesses and talented employees
position the company well in the
Texas and Australia markets.

TXU Energylis the No. 1 elec-
tricity retailer in Texas, which is
America’s largest competitive
energy market Texas has the
nation’s hlghest average con-
sumption of electr1c1ty, with

\

peak demand expected to grow
in excess of two percent a year.
TXU Energy demonstrated
success last year as more cus-
tomers chose it than any other
provider. The company is the
energy provider of choice for
2.6 million electric customers
and has continued to see
success in adding customers in
new Texas markets. TXU
Energy ended the year ahead of
plan in net customer retention.

A top-ten generator in the
nation, TXU Energy operates

a diverse, low-cost mix of
19,000 megawatts of genera-
tion, powered by natural gas,
lignite coal and nuclear fuel.
The fleet performed well again
in 2003, continuing to con-
tribute as a hedge against price
movements and provide flexi-
bility to support system
reliability in both normal and
severe weather conditions.
Among TXU Energy’s produc-
tion resources are contracts for
almost 600 megawatts of
environmentally clean wind
generation, making the company
the No. 1 contractor of wind
power in the Southwest and
the fourth-largest purchaser in
North America.

Oncor continues as the
premier energy delivery busi-
ness in Texas and a national
leader in cost efficiency.
Operating in a state with a
forward-looking regulatory
environment and highly diverse
economy, Oncor enjoyed
another solid year, as both the
electric and natural gas delivery
units achieved their goals for
safe, reliable, cost-efficient
service and stable earnings and
cash flow. Oncor led the
market in getting customer
data to the Electric Reliability
Council of Texas in a timely
and accurate manner. TXU
Gas, Oncor’s regulated gas
business, which serves almost
1.5 million customers, saw
improved results due to colder
weather in the first quarter,
organizational streamlining
and cost control. The system-
wide rate case pending at the
Railroad Commission of Texas
is expected to improve returns
from this business.

Operations in Australia also
produced improved returns, as
successful marketing and cus-
tomer service continued to drive
growth in one of the world’s
most resilient economies, which




has consistently grown at a rate
of three to four percent since
1990. Serving a million electric
and natural gas customers, TXU
Australia is one of Victoria’s
largest energy businesses and
has the state’s most recognizable
brand. Last year, TXU Australia
enjoyed strong growth in sales
volumes, partially as a result of
market entry into the state of
South Australia.

Deregulation Success. As TXU’s
businesses and markets prove,
competition is succeeding. Texas
is doing well after two years of
electric competition, and the
market framework provides a
successful model for the United
States. In Australia, Victoria is
also doing well, with two years
of full electric competition that
began with large customers in
1995 and over one year of full
natural gas competition. South
Australia opened its electricity
market fully in 2003, and com-
petition has been underway in
New South Wales for two years.

In Texas, deregulation and
system infrastructure go hand in
hand. Texas regulators have
seen the need for a strong trans-
mission system and have

established rules that encourage
investment in critical infra-
structure improvements and
expansion. Over the last several
years, Oncor has added signifi-
cant new transmission capacity
to avoid congestion and
improve reliability.

Sustaining Values. Even as TXU
has grown and changed across
more than 100 years of service,
one aspect of the company has
remained constant. TXU con-
tinues to be dedicated to
conducting business with the
highest standards of integrity,
propriety and accountability.
TXU’s core values of excellence,
intensity, ethical conduct, inno-
vation and respect provide a
strong moral compass during
good times and bad.

I am convinced that our values
guided us along the right path
during the difficulties we experi-
enced in late 2002, just as they
have over the decades. We
emerged with a reputation that
remains strong in the communi-
ties we serve. More than ever, we
recognize the worth of a good
reputation and have renewed
our intensity in safeguarding
and strengthening TXU’s.
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Throughout the process of
identifying a successor to my
role as chief executive, one
paramount priority has been to
ensure that TXU’s values will
be sustained. I am tremen-
dously pleased that C. John
Wilder has joined TXU as presi-
dent and chief executive. He
brings fresh ideas, industry
leadership and a remarkable
record of success that blend
well with our historic strengths.
I am confident he is the right
person to accelerate TXU’s
forward momentum and take a
good company to excellence as
we focus intensely on financial
and operating leadership.

Accelerating the Momentum.
Under John’s leadership, a “4+4
Program” will push TXU’s
performance to the next level.
The 4+4 Program will focus
each business on delivering
world-class execution in cost
leadership, operational excel-
lence, market leadership and
commercial excellence. Each
business will also be driven

to develop four distinctive
capabilities: performance man-
agement, customer excellence,
risk management and profitable
growth. Fortunately, TXU has

PAGE 3
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Delivering World-Class
Execution

|
\
|
[
\

Leveraging Struct‘urally
Advantaged Buswpesses

Building Distinctive
Capabilities

g

. Cost Leadership

- top-quartile/top-decile cost performance in solid fuels
- lowest SG&A cost per dollar of revenue

. Operational Excellence

- top-quartile delivery reliability
» top-quartile/top-decile solid fuel capacity factors

. Market Leadership

- minimal net share loss in residential retail
+ strong brand with high value/service perception

. Commercial Excellence

- lowest cost of fuel/power supply
- growing third-party business

. Performance Management

- clear targets and aligned incentives
- senior team ownership of priority initiatives

. Customer Excellence

« best-in-class management of customer life cycle
« effective stewardship of TXU brand

. Risk/Portfolio Management

» complete understanding of enterprise risk
- world-class control systems, prudent risk management

. Profitable Growth

4+4 PROGRAM

- "earn the right to grow” first
L - positioned to lead industry consolidation

\

| : :
a strong asset base, including
enviable generation, transmis-
sion and distribution positions;
a progresswe‘regulatory
environment; a loyal retail
customer base; growing
regional economies in Texas
and Australia; and a dedicated

and talented :Workforce.

|
Over the nexjt three years, we
will strive relentlessly to achieve
results that \N}ill deliver, on
average, double-digit earnings-
per-share gro}wth, strong free
cash flow from operations after
capital expenditures and divi-
dends, substantial increases in
return on invested capital,
improved credlt ratios and
additional reductlon in debt
and other obhgatxons of over
$4 billion. These efforts will
significantly énhance value and
lead to a much stronger and
more remhem company.

|

Honor to Serve. In February
2004, Dr. Margaret N. Maxey
and Jerry S. F‘arrmgton retired

PAGE 4 \

from the TXU board of directors
after serving with great distinc-
tion for many years. Margaret’s
particular gift to the board,
honed by her distinguished
teaching career at the University
of Texas, was her ability to
frame the ethical aspects of
energy policy. In his 47 years
with TXU, Jerry brought great
wisdom and leadership in roles
that included chief executive
and chairman of the board.
Both friends will be greatly
missed. Their replacements,
Dr. E. Gail de Planque and

John Wilder, are exceptional
additions. Gail is an interna-
tionally renowned nuclear
energy expert with an impressive
career that includes serving as a
commissioner on the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission. Her
experience in the industry and
as an advisor on environmental,
nuclear energy and organiza-
tional issues will be invaluable.

For 44 years, it has been my
great honor to be associated

with this company and to serve
with the TXU family of employ-
ees. Unquestionably, they are of
the highest caliber and are unsur-
passed in their skill, work ethic,
honesty, integrity and dedication
to the customers and communi-
ties TXU serves. In my new role,
I will greatly miss my interac-
tion with them. It will be my
privilege to remain as chairman
of the board and serve in indus-
try and community roles. We
are fortunate indeed to have
John Wilder lead our company.
I believe he will take us to the
highest level of financial and
operational performance, in a
fashion that will make us proud.

I remain grateful to you for
your support and friendship.

Erle Nye
Chairman of the Board
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John Wilder "I believe strongly in the potential

of TXU, and | love a business challenge. TXU is in
promising markets and is poised for real performance
improvement. We have a tremendously strong
foundation to build upon in attractive and rapidly

evolving markets. That spells opportunity — for me,

for our employees and for our shareholders.”

R I . N

(left to right)
ERLE NYE Chairman of the Board
C. JOHN WILDER President and Chief Executive
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MAJOR BUSINESSES

\

AT A GLANCE
|
l

TXU Energy’s distinctive portfolio business management model integrates retail
operations and production into a single energy business. TXU Energy is the No. 1
electricity retailer in Texas, serving 2.6 million customers, and is among the
largest generators in the U.S.

Oncor operates the largest, best-performing energy delivery company in
Texas, with outstanding efficiency and reliability. It delivers energy safely and
dependably, serving 2.9 million electric points of delivery and almost 1.5
million natural gas customers.

TXW's Australian business includes electricity and natural gas delivery and competitive
energy retail operations and production, with 1,280 megawatts of generation
and 1 million electricity and natural gas customers.

TXU AUSTRALIA

TXU has an attractive
portfolio of businesses
with world-class scale

| WER XU Energy
and SCOHC. T3 Oncor Energy Delivery

TXU Australia

REVENUES BY SEGMENT

PAGE 6
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2003 HIGHLIGHTS

BN d smail-business markets. Sustained low-co exiblie supply through oper-

g power piants at above-plan availability. Kept price-to-beat rates lowest

M the state. Reduced operating and SG&A expenses $200 million from 2002,
Bduding discontinved operatons. |

Exceeded financial expectations. Achieved cost reductions to offset cost pres-
pUres. Earned reguiated rate of return tn electric business. Restructured gas
r rebranding as TXU Gas; also filed 1st system-wide gas rate case.
Rchieved top-quartile reliability and satety performance.

Achieved strong customer and sales-volume growth. Achieved tinancial results
fubstantially above plan. Successtully refinanced senior debt. Negotiated
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2003 PROGRESS REPORT

One: We Delivered on Our 2003 Plan

\
‘ $2.50 ~  actual $2.03
! plan  $2.00
1 2.00 -
| .
1 1.50 -
|

1.00 -
1 0.50 I B onalyst estimate
‘ [ | actual
‘ 0.00 =
‘ o1 Q2 Q3 Q4

CUMULATIVE EARNINGS PER SHARE

$ per diluted share from continuing operations before cumulative effect
of changes in accounting principles

= Delivered diluted earnings per share from continuing operations
before cumulative ieffect of changes in accounting principles of $2.03
# Delivered cash from operations of $2.8 billion

% Increased production plant availability

# Maintained safe operations
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Two: We Strengthened the Balance Sheet and Enhanced Credit

2002 actual 75 %

| 2008 e 167%

DEBT TO CAPITAL

# Reduced total debt by $1.8 billion and repaid other obligations

# Strengthened credit and reduced financial risk

+ Maintained strong liquidity (cash and available credit facility capacity)
of $3.4 billion at year end '

# Managed capital expenditures

- Used free cash flow to reduce debt




TXU Annual Report 2003

PAGE 10

v
|
|

One: W@ Delivered on OQur 2003 Plan

We successfuﬂy executed on our 2003 plan, which was a key objective. Good, diverse operations
delivered earnings from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in accounting prin-

ciples, net of }‘preference stock dividends, of $2.03 per diluted share, meeting expectations.

All businesses exceeded expectations for cash flow. We increased our cash flow from operations to
$2.8 billion, vl‘vhich is significantly higher than the $1.3 billion generated in 2002. Included in that $2.8
billion was a $616 million tax refund.

These results }demonstrate the value of the diversity of our operations. Earnings contributions from
Oncor, Australia and corporate were better than planned. Results from TXU Energy were better than
in 2002 but were below plan.

TXU Energy ‘is positioned for much better results in 2004. It completed 2003 with strong customer
retention and|improved market share in the large-business market through contracting activities late in
the year. Building on those accomplishments, TXU Energy now has the ability to compete for small-
business customers in North Texas and expects continued solid production from its nuclear- and
lignite-power?d generating plants and higher customer retention in 2004.

|
Oncor Electric Delivery had another year of strong results, while TXU Gas, Oncor’s regulated natural
gas distribution utility, continued to improve, reflecting the effects of cold winter weather in early 2003,
cost control and organizational restructuring. TXU Australia also delivered above expectations due to
the strong Australian dollar and continued sound operating results. The sale of our telecommunica-
tions businessl TXU Communications, for $527 million is expected to close in the first half of this year.

Our achievements in 2003 give us confidence we can deliver even better earnings in 2004. We expect
reduced interqst expense, service territory growth in Texas of around two percent, improved results in
the large-business and wholesale markets, continued strong output from the baseload generating

plants and beri1eﬁts in the gas business from the system-wide rate case and other initiatives.

2002 actual  |RFIE]

J)

W
:{

3

v J $2.8
i

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS

$ billions ‘

NS

- 2007
L

¢
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Two: We Strengthened the Balance Sheet and Enhanced Credit

We made considerable progress during 2003 in strengthening the balance sheet and enhancing credit.
During the year, we reduced notes payable and long-term debt by $1.8 billion, inclusive of a $379
million increase due solely to the strength of the Australian dollar and a reduction of $644 million
due to giving exchangeable preferred securities in return for receipt of previously issued exchangeable
subordinated debt securities. Our aim through 2006 is to further reduce debt and other obligations by
more than $4 billion. ‘

Debt is defined as notes payable plus long-term debt, including long-term debt due currently. Net
debt treats trust preferred ($546 million) and equity-linked ($1.44 billion) securities as equity, excludes
securitization bonds ($500 million) and subtracts cash ($875 million) and restricted cash ($525
million) from debt. Other reductions in obligations in 2003 included the retirement of $400 million

of debt and equity for TXU Communications and the retirement of $98 million of preferred securities.

The net debt-to-capital ratio is important because we use it as a measure of our financial strength. As
we lower the ratio, we can demonstrate that we are strengthening credit and reducing financial risk.

Our liquidity level — $3.4 billion in available cash and credit lines at the end of 2003 - also increased

substantially and is more than ample for our business. There is no question that TXU’s credit quality
improved significantly in 2003. We are committed to demonstrating continued progress in strength-
ening our balance sheet,

2002 actual 58%

| 2003 setel 1 53%

NET DEBT TO CAPITAL
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Three: We Achieved Major Sustainable Cost Reductions

s1.476

! Bl | $1.327

RY

@)
o

TXU ENERGY OPERATING COSTS AND SG&A EXPENSES
$ billions

# Executed cost-reduhion initiatives, including cutting
TXU Energy operat‘ing costs; selling, general and
administrative, or SG&A, expenses; and related costs
of discontinued operations by $200 million

# Restructured and stjreamlined the company

= Continued control of medical and prescription costs

# Exited underperforming and non-core businesses
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Four: We Aggressively Defended and Built on Leadership
Positions in Texas and Australia
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TXU BRAND LEADERSHIP
Total percentage of customers selecting strongly agree or agree on a 7-point
scale in evaluation of the incumbent energy provider

# Achieved customer acquisi#ion and retention goals in # ldentified and implemented wholesale growth
our Texas markets, ending ;‘:the year with more than opportunities
95% net retention (losses of customers in our historical  * Enhanced management of commodity risk and fuel and
service territory and gains m new territories) since the purchased power costs
opening.of electricity competition # Enhanced productivity of mines and power plants

# Created attractive differentiated brand with TXU's customers # Continued providing reliable, safe energy delivery
# Achieved strong gains in Australian electricand gas # Led in responsible public policy in Texas and Australia

customers and sales volumes

' ’ Gasand gleetricity onone btk
Xy Oual fuol

PAGE 13




TXU Annual Report 2003

PAGE 14

Thr ee; We Achieved Major Sustainable Cost Reductions

We set an exq‘remely aggressive target of achieving $250 million in net reductions at TXU Energy, includ-
ing the sale or discontinuance of non-core activities. We accomplished a significant reduction of about
$200 millionl including $62 million in the discontinued strategic accounts business.

i

During 2003}, we also increased customer service staffing and made other enhancements to further
improve service levels and meet customer account and volume targets. Regrettably, significant
employee reductions were necessary last year as part of our cost-cutting initiative. We reduced staff in
North America by 10 percent, including a 32 percent reduction of officers. We also froze salaries,
restricted trayel, eliminated our fleet of company cars and battled rising health-care costs through
implementing new cost-control strategies in our medical and prescription drug plans.

\
|
\
i
\
|

Four: we Aggressively Defended and Built on Leadershi
| P
Positions in Texas and Australia

We are pleased with our market performance in Texas and Australia in 2003, as we built and defended
on our leadership positions in both regions. In the competitive electricity market in Texas, our existing
customers preferred TXU Energy, even as we implemented two price increases because of higher natural
gas costs. And in new markets, our customer count grew almost 50 percent.

i

!
As competition heated up in the second full year of electricity deregulation in our Texas markets,
TXU Energy/s customer counts declined just four percent from year-end 2002, which was better than

plan. While we did see a decrease in sales volumes to small businesses that was more than expected,
we are now able to compete for these customers in North Texas and expect better results in 2004.

S
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NORTH AMERICA EMPLOYEE TOTALS
;Excluding TXU Communications
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TXU’s reputation and brand continue to enjoy a leadership role in the marketplace. Consumers rate
the company high in key areas of reliability, innovation, trust, customer focus and preferred brand.
They regard TXU significantly more favorably than they do the company’s major competitors. And
in new markets, TXU’s brand recognition is second only to the incumbent retailer.

TXU Energy’s production plants performed well in 2003, bettering targeted availability rates. The
low-cost lignite fleet set several production records, and the Comanche Peak nuclear facility contin-
ued to be nationally regarded as a safe, reliable plant. These dependable baseload resources provided
59 terawatt-hours of electricity, or some 50 percent of sales-volume needs in 2003. The gas fleet, with
its low embedded costs, again provided the flexibility to respond quickly to meet demand.

Oncor continues to set the pace in reliability standards in Texas, as our energy delivery business per-
formed above target throughout 2003 on crucial reliability benchmarks, including the System
Average Interruption Duration Index. A key industry measure, SAIDI is the average minutes of inter-
ruptions per customer per year. The lower the total minutes, the better the reliability. Oncor also led the
market in providing customer data related to retail switches, move-ins, historical data and meter reads
on a timely basis to the Electric Reliability Council of Texas.

In Australia, TXU has become one of the most innovative, high-quality energy providers, with the
most recognized brand in Victoria. Total brand awareness among Victorians was more than 90
percent, and TXU remains the only company to be able to offer a single bill for gas and electricity.

In 2003, TXU competed strongly in South Australia in the recently opened electricity residential
customer segment, while retaining its position as the largest electricity retailer for large-business
customers in that state. TXU also offered gas to large customers in South Australia for the first time.
Sales of electricity to large-business customers also increased in New South Wales and Queensland.

Across the TXU businesses, we continued in 2003 to maintain and enhance beneficial relationships
with key stakeholders as we aggressively defended and built on our leadership positions.
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Minutes of interruptions
Achieved well below target of 106 minutes of interruptions per customer per year
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|
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!
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TXU has a longstanding commitment to good corporate governance
practices. A strong culture of corporate governance and ethical decision-

|
making is/fundamental to the way we do business. Many of our policies and

practices are included in the company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines,
|

which hav(e been adopted by the company’s board of directors. The guidelines,

|
together with the charters of the board’s committees, the articles of

. | . i
incorporation and the bylaws of the company, provide the framework for

managing and governing TXU. These documents and the company’s code of
| .
conduct are maintained on our Web site, www.txucorp.com, under Investor
|
\
- : :
Resources. Listed here is a summary of certain key corporate governance

practices and documents.

PAGE 16
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Independence of Directors. The board consists of a substantial majority of directors who satisfy the
independence requirements of the New York Stock Exchange.

Meetings of the Board. Meetings of the board are held at least quarterly. Non-management directors
meet separately from the board at least quarterly. In the event that non-management directors include
directors who are not independent, the independent directors will meet separately in executive session
at least once a year.

Committees of the Board. The standing committees of the board are Audit, Business Development,
Executive, Finance, Nominating and Governance, Nuclear, and Organization and Compensation. The
board has adopted a written charter for each of these committees other than the Executive Committee
(whose responsibility is to exercise the board’s authority in the intervals between board meetings).

Members of the Audit, Nominating and Governance, and Organization and Compensation
committees are independent, as defined by applicable laws and regulations.

Evaluation of the Board and Its Committees. The board and its committees will conduct annual self-
evaluations to determine whether the board and its committees are functioning effectively.

Officers’ and Directors’ Compensation. The Organization and Compensation Committee evaluates
director, chief executive and senior executive compensation. The committee’s report on executive
compensation can be found in the proxy statement on www.txucorp.com.

Corporate Governance Guidelines. The board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines that
outline key corporate governance policies and practices. The guidelines will be reviewed at least
annually by the board.

Code of Conduct. The company maintains a code of conduct for its employees, officers and directors.
Confidential Voting. The company has adopted a confidential voting policy. Accordingly, tabulation
of proxies and votes cast at meetings of shareholders is conducted by an independent agent, and

the votes of individual shareholders are kept private and not disclosed to the company except in
limited circumstances.
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CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

With more than 100 years of community involvement and environmental excellence, TXU is committed
to responsible corporate citizenship. We seek to practice sustainability, consistently and appropriately
balancing the environmental, economic and social needs of today without sacrificing the interests of
future generations.

|

\

|

Heritage of Giving. One way we practice social sustainability is through involvement in the communities

in which we have a presence, particularly through employee volunteerism. Among many efforts in

2003, TXU ejrnployees helped on the Columbia space shuttle recovery in Texas; celebrated a year as
the principal partner of Australia’s Reach Youth development; planted 7,000 seedlings at the TXU
Urban Tree Farm for the benefit of air quality in North Texas; and contributed to 44 United Way agen-

cies for comBined corporate and employee donations of almost $2.1 million.

Customer Ca re TXU continues as an industry leader in helping customers with special needs or
temporary frnanc1al difficulties pay their energy bills. In 2003, TXU’s Energy Aid program provided
over $1 mil 19n in customer and company contributions for payment of energy bills, bringing the
total over the program’s 24-year life to $24 million. Prolect Hap’n donated almost $200 000 to
natural gas customers for a total of over $1.1 million since that program’s inception.

Environmentél Stewardship. We are leaders in promoting environmentally friendly renewable
energy, with contracts that make us the fourth- largest purchaser of wind generation in North
America and a major purchaser of renewables in Australia. In many cases, our partnerships and
long-term contracts make renewable projects reality. In 2003, we purchased a total of 1,145,000

megawatt-hours of renewable energy.

|
While the debate on greenhouse-gas emissions continues, TXU is proud to be among those companies
that have already made significant reductions. Figures recently reported to the U.S. Department
of Energy for 2002 show TXU reduced, sequestered or avoided 22.8 million tons of greenhouse-gas
emissions, which is equivalent to avoiding the emissions from 3.7 million cars for an entire year. In
total, the TXU Climate Challenge Program has avoided, sequestered or reduced the equivalent of
nearly 225 rdillion tons of greenhouse gases since 1991, which is equivalent to eliminating the annual
emissions frdm more than 36 million cars.

\
TXU prepares an annual review of its environmental programs. Please see Shareholder Information
on the inside back cover of this report to obtain the TXU Environmental Review.




2003 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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2003 2002
Financial Data (in millions, except per-share amounts)
Operating revenues $ 11,008 $ 9,89
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss
and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles $ 737 $ 1824
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax effect $ (97) $ (4,258
Extraordinary loss, net of tax effect $ — $ (134)
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles,
net of tax benefit $ (58) $ —
Preference stock dividends $ 22 $ 22
Net income (loss) available for common stock $ 560 $  (4,232)
Common stock data (millions):
Diluted shares outstanding {average) 3790 278
Diluted earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary
loss and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles $ 2.03 $ 0.58
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax effect $ (0.26) $ (15.33)
Extraordinary loss, net of tax effect $ — $ (0.48)
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles,
net of tax benefit $ (0.15) $ —
Net income (loss) available for common stock $ 1.62 $  (15.23)
Dividends declared per share $ 0.50 § 1925
Total assets (end of year) $ 31,686 § 31,405
Property, plant and equipment — net (end of year) $ 20,920 $ 19,981
Capital expenditures $ 956 $ 1,003
Book value per share (end of year) $ 1734 $ 14.80
Operating Data
. Electricity sales in terawatt-hours to retail customers 88 97
Natural gas sales in billion cubic feet to retail customers 206 207
Retail Customers (end of year and in thousands)
Electricity 3,179 3,247
Natural gas 1,962 1,907
Employees (end of year) 14,235 14,600

{a) 2002 included after-tax charges related to the writedown of generation plant construction projects (8154 million), impasrment
and other charges related to the telecommunications business (8174 million) and regulatory-related retail clawback accruals

($120 million).

(b) 2002 included the writeoff of TXU Corp.’s investment in TXU Europe of $3.9 billion, which was recorded without tax benefits.

(c) Reflects assumed issuance of 57 million shares of TXU Corp. common stock under the exchange right of the exchangeable

preferred membership interests of TXU Energy.
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As of Feb. 19, 2004
In late February, Margaret N. Maxey and J.S. Farrington retired from the board;
they were replaced by E. Gail de Planque, president of Strategy Matters, Inc., and

- . _ John Wilder, president and chief executive of the company.

JACKE. LITTLEW\:\*:—:;h: KERNEY LADAY MARGARET N. MAXEY
Houston, Texas. T Dallas, Texas Austin, Texas
Retired President President of The Laday Company, Director Emeritus of the Chair
and Chief Executive Officer Management Consulting of Free Enterprise afid Professor
of Shell Oil Company and Business Development Emeritus, Biomedical Engineering
Program, College of Engineering
at the University of Texas at Austin
WILLIAM M. GRIFFIN ERLE NYE J.S. FARRINGTON
Hartford, Connecticut : Dallas, Texas Dallas, Texas
Principal, The WMG Company, Chairman of the Board Retired Chairman of the Board and

Investments ; of the Company Chief Executive of the Company




- Consultant, CSFB-Rrivate-Equity,
Private Equity Investments

HERBERT H. RICHARDSON '~
College Station, Texas...
Associate Vice Chancellor for
Engineering and Director,

Texas Transportation Institute,
The Texas A&M University System

J.E. OESTERREICHER
———— Dallas, Texas

Retired Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer of
J.C. Penney Company, Inc.

MICHAEL W. RANGER
New York, New York
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London, England
Non-Executive Chairman of
Imperial Tobacco Group PLC
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
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[\/] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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— OR—
[ 1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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is being included in its entirety in TXU Corp.’s 2003 annual report to shareholders in accordance with
Regulation 14A of the proxy rules. Copies of Appendix B and Appendix C will be provided upon written
request. :

é

Appendix C contains the audited financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 of
Pinnacle, a telecommunications joint venture in which, prior to May 2003, TXU Corp. had a 50% voting
interest. In May 2003, TXU Corp. acquired the interests it did not previously own from the joint venture
partner under a put/call agreement, which had been executed in late February 2003, and finalized a
formal plan to dispose of the telecommunications business by sale. (See Notes 3 and 17 to Financial
Statements.) For the year ended December 31, 2002, Pinnacle was an unconsolidated entity, the financial
statements of which are required to be filed pursuant to the provisions of Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X
because of the significance of financial results related to Pinnacle as compared to- TXU Corp.’s
consolidated financial results for the 2002 period.

Periodic reports on Form 10-K and Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K that contain financial
information of TXU Corp. are made available to the public, free of charge, on the TXU Corp. website at
http://www.txucorp.com, shortly after they have been filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. TXU Corp. will provide copies of current reports not posted on the website upon request.
In addition, in accordance with new corporate governance rules of the New York Stock Exchange, TXU
Corp. has provided, on the TXU Corp. website, (a) its corporate governance guidelines, (b) its code of
conduct for employees, officers and directors, and (c) charters of the Committees of the board of directors
including the Audit, Nominating and Governance and Organization and Compensation Committees.
Printed copies of corporate governance documents which are posted on the TXU Corp. website are also
available to any shareholder upon request to the Secretary of TXU Corp., 1601 Bryan Street, Dallas,
Texas 75201-3411.
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GLOSSARY

When the following terms and abbrev1at10ns appear in the text of this report they have the meanings indicated

below.

1999 Restructuring Legislation .......

2002 Form 8-K........ccocovinicn,

2002 Form 10-K..........ooovvvirecnne.
2003 Form 10-K....c...cooovveriinnnn

APB Opinion 30............cocovvvivrnenn.

Legislation that restructured the electric utility industry in Texas to
provide for competition

the Form 8-K of TXU Corp. filed September 23, 2003, reflecting the
impact of adopting SFAS 145 on the financial 1nformat10n reported in the
2002 Form 10-K

TXU Corp.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2002 »

TXU Corp s Annual Report on Form 10-X for the year ended December
31, 2003

Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Resuits of
Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events
and Transactions”

billion cubic feet
Public Utility Commission of Texas
Emerging Issues Task Force

EITF Issue No. 98-10, “Accounting for Contracts Involved in Energy
Trading and Risk Management Activities”

EITF Issue No. 01-8, “Determmmg Whether an Arrangement Contains a
Lease”

.. EITF Issue No. 02-3, “Issues Involved in Accounting for Derivative

Contracts Held for Trading Purposes and Contracts Involved in Energy-
Trading and Risk Management Activities”

EITF Issue No. 03-11, “Reporting Realized Gains and Losses on
Derivative Instruments That Are Subject to FASB Statement No. 133 and
Not ‘Held for Trading Purposes As Defined’ in EITF No. 02-3”

. Environmental Protection Agency -

Electric Reliability Council of Texas, the Independent System Operator
and the regional reliability coordinator of the various electrlclty systems
within Texas

Employee Retirement Income Security Act '

Financial Accounting Standards Board, the designated organization in the
private sector for estabhshmg standards for financial accounting and
reporting

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation

FIN No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for

) Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others ~ an

Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of
FIN No. 34"

FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”
Fitch Ratmgs, Ltd. .

FASB Staff Position (new mterpretanons of standards issued by the staff
of the FASB)

iii




GWh ... gigawatt-hours.

historical service territory ............... US Holdings’ historical service territory, largely in north Texas at the
time of entering competition on January 1, 2002

IRS e Internal Revenue Service

KV oo kilovolts .

Moody’s...‘ ........................................... Moody’s Investors Serviccs, Inc.

MW ..ot nnnen., TIEGAWALLS

NRC ... United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission

Oncor............ ettt refers to Oncor Electric Delivery Company, a subsidiary of US Holdings,

and/or its consolidated bankruptcy remote financing subsidiary, Oncor
Electric Delivery Transition Bond Company LLC, depending on context

Pinnacle........cccooveviivicinnieneecen Pinnacle One Partners, L.P., the holding company for the
telecommunications business and formerly a joint venture

POLR.......cooiiiiirrnree e provider of last resort of electricity to certain customers under the
Commission rules interpreting the 1999 Restructuring Legislation

Price-to-beat rate...........cccocecevcnennn residential and small business customer electricity rates established by the
Commission in the restructuring of the Texas market that are required to
be charged in a REP’s historical service territories until January 1, 2005 or
when 40% of the electricity consumed by such customer classes is
supplied by competing REPs, adjusted periodically for changes in fuel
costs, and required-to be available to those customers until January 1, 2007

REP......ooioiiieeseierseesne e T0RAID electric provider

RRC ..., Railroad Commission of Texas

SEP.....oeeeie e Standard & Poor’s, a division of the McGraw Hill Companies

Sarbanes-Oxley...........ccccvvurvruennnnn Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002

SEC ... it United States Securities and Exchange Commission

Settlement Plan..................c..c......... regulatory settlement plan that received final approval by the Commission

. in January 2003

SFAS e Statement of Financial Accounting Standards issued by the FASB

SFAS G SFAS No. 4, “Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt”

SFAS 34 .o SFAS No. 34, “Capitalization of Interest Cost”

SFAS 71 ..o SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effect of Certain Types of Regulation”

SFAS 87 ..ot SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” '

SFAS101....... S eeereennns SFAS No. 101, “Regulated Enterprises — Accounting for the
Discontinuance of the Application of FASB Statement No. 71"

SFAS106.......ooooiececre, : SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions”

SFAS109....... rreereesrennnae e SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”

SFAS 121 ... SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of”

SFAS123 ..., e SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” '

SFAS132...... e . Revised SFAS No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and
Postretirement Benefits”

SFAS133....... et aen s SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging

‘ ' Activities”

iv




SFAS140.......covviricccriee SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
: Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a replacement of FASB
Statement 125”

SFAS142 ... SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”

SFAS143.......cocooiviiinrereeenns SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”

SFAS144............. vt reeserens SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-

. Lived Assets”
SFAS 145 e SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64,
_ oo Amendment of FASB Statement 13, and Technical Corrections”

SFASI46......oovivee e SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities” .

SFAS I8 ..o, SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure”

SFAS 149 ... SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities”

SFAS 150 ..o SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity”

SG&A ... et et selling, general and administrative

SOP98-1......cccvvicrnnn, evesmmenens American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position

98-1, “Accounting for the Cost of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use”

TCEQ ... Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

TXU Aﬁstralia .................................. refers to TXU Australia Group Pty Ltd, a subsidiary of TXU Corp., and/or
its consolidated subsidiaries, depending on context ‘

TXU Business Services..................... TXU Business Services Company, a subsidiary of TXU Corp.

TXU Communications ..................... TXU Communications Ventures Company, a subsidiary of Pinnacle

TXU Corp. oo refers to TXU Corp., é holding company, and/or its consolidated
subsidiaries, depending on context

XU Energy ..... ... refers to TXU Energy Company LLC, a subsidiary of US Holdings, and/or
its consolidated subsidiaries, depending on context

TXU Europe.........cccoeevveeeeenenennns TXU Europe Limited, a former subsidiary of TXU Corp.

TXUFuel........oconmvriinicrrennienens TXU Fuel Company, a subsidiary of TXU Energy

TXU GaS....oooerrorrvececreesrseseesesen TXU Gas Company, a subsidiary of TXU Corp.

TXU Mining .......cccooovveverreererennnneennns TXU Mining Company LP, a subsidiary of TXU Energy

TXU Portfolio Management ............ TXU Portfolio Management Company LP, a subsidiary of TXU Energy

TXUSESCO ..o TXU SESCO Company, a subsidiary of TXU Energy, which serves as a
REP in ten counties in the eastern and central parts of Texas

UK oottt es et United Kingdom

US et United States of America

USGAAP ... accounting principles generally accepted in the US

US Holdings .......c.ococvevnrcneririnncnns TXU US Holdings Company, a subsidiary of TXU Corp.




PARTI
Items 1. and 2 BUSINESS and PROPERTIES

TXU CORP. AND SUBSI]DIARIES

TXU Corp., a Texas corporation, was formed in 1997 as a holding company and is the successor to TXU
Energy Industries Company (TEI), the holding company for the TXU Corp. system prior to the 1997 acquisition
of ENSERCH Corporation {now TXU Gas).. TEL, formerly known as Texas Utilities Coinpany, was organized in
1945.

"~ TXU Corp. engages in power production (electricity -generation), retail and wholesale sales of electricity
and natural gas, and the transmission and distribution of electricity ‘and natural gas. In the competitive energy
operations, TXU Corp. engages in hedging and risk management activities. TXU Corp. is one of the largest
energy services companies in the US and Australia with $11 billion in revenue and over $31 billion of assets as
of December 31, 2003. TXU Corp. owns or leases over 20,400 megawatts of power generation and for 2003
sold 128 terawatt hours of electricity and 206 billion cubic feet of natural gas. TXU Corp. delivers or sells
energy to over 5 million residential, commercial and industrial customers in the US and Austraha At December
31, 2003 XU Corp had approx1mately 14,235 full-time employees : -

TXU Corp.’s principal -US operations are conducted through US Holdings (formerly TXU E]ecmc
Company) and TXU Gas. US Holdings’. operations are conducted through TXU Energy and Oncor. TXU
Corp.’s prmc1pal international operations are conducted through TXU Australia. In 2002, TXU Corp. exited its
operations in Europe, which were conducted through TXU Europe See Note 3 to Fmancxal Statements for
information related to TXU Europe.

US Holdings, TXU Energy and Oncor — US Holdings is a holding company for TXU Energy and Oncor.
As aresult of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation, which set into motion the deregulation of the electric industry
in Texas, effective January 1, 2002, TXU Corp.’s integrated electric utility business was disaggregated and its
operations were transferred to TXU Energy and Oncor. TXU Energy serves 2.6 million retail electric customers
and owns, or leases and operates 19,140. megawatts of power generating capacity. Oncor owns and operates
98,286 miiles of electric distributionlines and 14,180 miles of electric transmission lines. -In addition, as of
January 1, .2002; certain other businesses within the TXU Corp. system were transferred to TXU Energy,
including TXU Gas’ hedging and risk management business and its unregulated retail commercial/industrial ’
(business) gas supply operation, as well as the fuel transportation arid coal mining subsidiaries of TXU Corp. that .
primarily service the generation operations. The operating assets of TXU Energy and Oncor are located
principally in the north-central, eastern and western parts of Texas.

US Holdmgs and its subsidiaries operate primarily w1th1n the ERCOT system ERCOT is an intrastate
network of investor-owned entities, cooperatives, public entities, non-utility generators and power marketers.
ERCOT is the regional reliability coordinating organization for member electricity systems in Texas, the
Independent System Operator of the interconnected transmission system of those systems, and is responsible for
ensurmg equal access to transmission service by all wholesale market partlclpants in the ERCOT region.

XU Gas is a 1a1ge1y regulated company engaged in the purchase transmission, dlsmbunon and sale of
natural gas in the nporth-central, eastern and western parts of Texas, and also provides utility asset management
services. TXU Gas serves more than 1.4 million retail gas customers and owns and operates 26,431 miles of gas
distribution mains, 6,162 miles of gas transportation and gathering pipelines and underground storage reservoirs
with 40 Bcf of capacity. TXU Gas also provides transportation services to gas dlstrlbutlon compames, electrxcny
generation plants, end-use industrial customers and through system shlppers

- Australia — TXU Austraha is a holdmg company for TXU Corp.’s Australian operations. Its principal
operating subsidiaries include TXU Electricity Limited, which purchases, distributes and sells electricity in
wholesale and retail markets in the State of Victoria and purchases and sells electricity and gas in wholesale and
retail markets in' the State of South Australia; TXU Networks (Gas) Pty. Ltd., which distributes natural gas
through 481,307 supply points in Victoria; and TXU Pty. Ltd., which sells natural gas to approximately 480,000
retail customers in Victoria, TXU Electricity Limited sells electricity to approximately 582,000 retail customers




and delivers electricity to 559,558 supply points, principally in the state of Victoria, including suburban
Melbourne, the second-largest city in Australia. TXU Australia also conducts portfolio management, which
includes hedging and risk management activities. TXU Australia owns the only underground natural gas storage
facility in Victoria and operates the 1280-megawatt Torrens Island generation plant in South Australia. TXU
Australia also owns a 33.3% interest in a joint venture that owns and operates a gas transmission pipeline in
Victoria and South Australia. ‘

TXU Corp. is considering various options with respect to the capitalization of TXU Australia to support its
continuing growth, including a local initial public offering of additional stock by TXU Australia. TXU Corp.
expects to retain a majority interest in TXU Australia after any such offering.

Other — TXU Business Services is a provider of certain financial, accounting, information technology,
environmental, procurement, personnel and other administrative services, at cost, to TXU Corp. and its other
subsidiaries. TXU Business Services acts as transfer agent, registrar and dividend paying agent with respect to
the common stock and preference stock of TXU Corp., and the preferred stock of US Holdings. TXU Business
Services also acts as dividend paying agent for the preferred stock of TXU Gas and as agent for participants
under TXU Corp.’s Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan.

In May 2003, TXU Corp. acquired the interests it did not already own in a telecommunications joint
venture (Pinnacle) that operates an established incumbent local exchange carrier serving residential and business
customers in East Texas and certain suburbs of Houston, Texas. The business provides local, long distance, dial-
up internet, digital subscriber line and network and data services, and has approximately 168,000 access lines. In
May 2003, TXU Corp. finalized a plan to dispose of the business by sale. Accordingly, activities of Pinnacle
since March 1, 2003 are reported as discontinued operations. (See Note 3 to Financial Statements for further
discussion.) In January 2004, TXU Corp. entered into an agreement to sell the telecommunications business for
$527 million. The sale is expected to be completed in the first half of 2004, pending regulatory approvals.

TEXAS ELECTRIC INDUSTRY RESTRUCTURING

RESTRUCTURING LEGISLATION

As a result of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation, on January 1, 2002, TXU Corp. disaggregated
(unbundled) its Texas electric utility business into a power generation company, a retail electric provider (REP)
and an electricity transmission and distribution (delivery) utility. Unbundled electricity delivery ut111t1es within
ERCOT, suchias Oncor, remam regulated by the Comm1ssmn

Effectlve January 1, 2002, REPs affiliated with electncnty delivery utlhtles are required to charge
residential and small business customers located in their historical service territories “price-to-beat” rates
established by the Commission. TXU Energy, as a REP affiliated with an electricity delivery utility, could not
charge prices to customers in either of these classes in the historical service territory that are different from the
price-to-beat rate, adjusted for fuel factor changes, until the earlier of January 1, 2005 or the date on which 40%
of the electricity consumed by customers in that class is supplied by competing REPs. Thereafter, TXU Energy
may offer rates different from the price-to-beat rate to customers in that class, but it must also.continue to make
the price-to-beat rate available for residential and small business customers until January 1, 2007. Twice a year,
affiliated REPs may request that the Commission adjust the fuel factor component of the price-to-beat rate based
on changes in the market pnce of natural gas.

In December 2003, the Comrmssmn found that TXU Energy had met the 40% requirement to be allowed to
offer alternatives to the price-to-beat rate for small business customers in the historical service territory.

Under amended Commission rules, effective. in April 2003, affiliated REPs of utilities are allowed to
petition the Commission for an increase in the fuel factor component of their price-to-beat rates if the average
price of natural gas futures increases more than 5% (10% if the petition is filed after November 15 of any year)
from the level used to set the existing price-to-beat fuel factor rate.

- — InJanuvary 2003, TXU Enefgy filed a request with the Comxﬁission under the prior rules to increase the
fuel factor component of its price-to-beat rates. This request was approved and became effective in
early March 2003. As a result, average monthly residential bills rose approximately 12%. Appeals of




the Commission’s order have been ﬁled and are currently pending in the Travis County, Texas DlStl'lCt
Court.

— On July 23, 2003, TXU Energy filed another request with the Commission to increase the fuel factor
component of its price-to-beat rates. This request was approved.and became effective in late August
2003. As a result, average monthly residential bills rose approximately 4%. Appeals of the
Commission’s order have been ﬁled and are currently pending in the Travis County, Texas District
Court.

Also, effective January 1, 2002, power generation companies affiliated with electricity delivery utilities
may charge unregulated prices in connection with ERCOT wholesale power transactions. "Estimated costs
associated with nuclear power plant decommissioning obligations continue to be recovered by Oncor as an
electricity delivery charge over the life of the plant.

REGULATORY SETTLEMENT PLAN

On December 31, 2001, US Holdings filed a Settlement Plan with the Commission. It resolved all major
pending issues related to US Holdings’ transition to competition pursuant to the 1999 Restructuring Legislation.
The Settlement Plan does not remove regulatory oversight of Oncor’s business nor does it eliminate TXU
Energy’s price-to-beat rates and related fuel adjustments. The Settlement Plan became final and non-appealable
in-January 2003. .

The major elements of the Settlement Plan are:

Excess Mitigation Credit — Over the two-year period ended December 31, 2003, Oncor implemented a
stranded cost excess mitigation credit in the amount of $389 million (originally estimated to be $350 million),
plus $26 million in interest, applied as a reduction to delivery rates charged to all REPs, including TXU Energy.
The credit was funded by TXU Energy.

Regulatory Asset Securitization — US Holdings received a financing order authorizing the issuance of
securitization bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to $1.3 billion to recover regulatory asset stranded
costs and other qualified costs. Accordingly, Oncor Electric Delivery Transition Bond Company LLC, a
bankruptcy remote financing subsidiary of Oncor, issued an initial $500 million of securitization bonds in 2003
and is expectéd to issue approximately $790 million in the first half of 2004. The principal and interest on the
bonds is recoverable through a delivery fee surcharge (transition charge) to ali REPs, including TXU Energy.

Retail Clawback Credit — A retail clawback credit related to residential customers was implemented in
January 2004. The amount of the credit is equal to the number of residential customers retained by TXU Energy
in the historical service territory on January 1, 2004, less the number of new residential customers TXU Energy
has added outside of the historical service territory as of January 1, 2004, multiplied by $90. The estimated
credit of $173 million will be applied to delivery rates charged by Oncor to all REPs, including TXU Energy,
over a two-year period. TXU Energy funds the credit provided by Oncor. As the amount of the credit will be
based on numbers of customers over the related two- -year period, the liability is subject to further adjustments.

Stranded Costs and Fuel Cost Recovery — TXU Energy’s stranded costs, not including regulatory assets,
are fixed at zero. US Holdings will not seek to recover its unrecovered fuel costs which existed at December 31,
2001. Also, it will not conduct a final fuel cost reconciliation, which would have covered the period from July
1998 until the begmnmg of competmon in January 2002.

PROVIDER OF LAST RESORT

Through 2002, TXU Energy was the POLR for residential and small business customers in those areas of
ERCOT where customer choice was available outside the historical service territory and was the POLR for large
business customers in the historical service territory. Under new POLR rules effective in September 2002,
instead of being transferred to the POLR, non-paying residential and small business customers served by
affiliated REPs are subject to disconnection. Non-paying residential and small business customers served by
non-affiliated REPs are transferred to the affiliated REP. Non-paying large business customers can be
disconnected by any REP if the customer’s contract does not preclude it. - Thus, within the new POLR
framework, the POLR provides electric service only to customers who request POLR service, whose selected
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REP goes out of business, or who are transferred to the POLR by other REPs for reasons other than non-
payment. No later than October 1, 2004, the Commission is expected to decide whether all REPs should be
permitted to disconnect non-paying customers.

Through a competitive bid process, the Commission selected a POLR to serve for a two-year term
beginning January 1, 2003, for several areas within Texas. In areas for which no bids were submitted, the
Commission selected the POLR by lottery. TXU Energy did not bid to be the POLR, but was designated POLR
through lottery: for residential and small business customers in certain West Texas service areas and for small
business customers in the Houston service area.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
TXU Corp.’s key strategic initiatives include:
o Capitalize on market leadership positions in Texas and Australia through deévelopment of sales,
marketing and customer service programs and initiatives designed to attract and retain business and
re51dent1al customers.

e Strengthen the balance sheet through aggressive management of cash flows and debt reduction.

¢ Refine portfolio management activities to more effectively manage effects of changes in energy prices
and imbalances in supply and demand.

¢ Pursue industry-leading cost competitiveness through operating efficiency enhancements and exiting of
marginal operations. :

OPERATING SEGMENTS

TXU Corp. has aligned its operations into three reportable segments: Energy, Energy Delivery and
Australia. (See Note 19 to Financial Statements for further information concerning reportable busmess
segments.) .

Energy — operations principally in the competitive Texas market involving power production, retail and
wholesale energy sales, and portfolio management, which includes hedging and risk management activities.

Energy Delivery — largely regulated operations in Texas involving the transmlsswn and distribution of
electricity and the purchase, transpoxtatlon, distribution and sale of natural gas.

Australia — operations principally in Victoria and South Australia involving power production, retail and
wholesale energy sales in largely ‘competitive markets, portfolio management including hedging and risk
management activities, and natural gas transportation and storage, as well as regulated electricity and natural gas
distribution.

ENERGY SEGMENT

The Energy segment was created as a result of the deregulation of the electric utility industry in Texas,
which became effective January 1, 2002. The Energy segment is an integrated operation that engages in power
production, retail and wholesale energy sales and portfolio management activities, primarily in the state of
Texas. The Energy segment’s operations are conducted principally through TXU Energy and its following
subsidiaries: TXU Generation Company LP, TXU Portfolio Management Company LP; TXU Energy Retail
Company LP: TXU Fuel Company; and two coal mining subsidiaries.

TXU Energy serves 2.6 million retail electric customers, of which 2.4 million are in the historical service
territory. This territory, which is located in the north-central, eastern and western parts of Texas, has an
estimated population in excess of 7 million, about one-third of the population of Texas, and comprises 92
counties and 370 incorporated municipalities, including Dallas/Fort Worth and surrounding suburbs, as well as
Waco, Wichita Falls, Odessa, Midland, Tyler and Killeen. The Dallas/Fort Worth area is a diversified
commercial and industrial center with substantial banking, insurance, tclecofmnunications, electronics, aerospace,




petrochemical and specialized 'steel manufacturing, and.automotive and aircraft assembly. The historical service
territory served includes major portions of the oil and gas fields in the Permian Basin and East Texas, as well as
substantial farming and ranching sections of the state. TXU Energy also provides retail electric service in other
areas of ERCOT now open to competition, including the Houston and Corpus Christi areas.

Texas is one of the fastest growing states in the nation and is considered by many to be one of the more
successful deregulated energy markets in the U.S. As a result, competition is expected to continue to increase.

POWER PRODUCTION

TXU Energy’s power generating facilities provide TXU Energy with the capability to supply a significant
portion of the wholesale power market demand in Texas, particularly in the North Texas market, at competitive
production costs. As part of TXU Energy’s integrated business portfolio, much of the low cost nuclear powered
and lignite/coal-fired (base load) generatxon is available to supply the power demands of its retail customers and
other competitive REPs. - :

The power fleet in Texas consists-of 22 owned or leased plants with generating capacity fueled as follows:
2,300 MW nuclear; 5,837 MW coalllignite; and 10,881 MW gas/oil. TXU Energy supplies its retail customer
base from its power fleet as well as through long-term power supply agreements and purchases in the wholesale
markets. The power generating plants and other important properties of TXU Energy are located primarily on
land owned in fee simple. TXU Energy has sold and may from time to time sell generation assets to reduce its
position in the Texas market-and provide funds for other investments or to reduce debt.

’ TXU Energy is one of the largest purchasers of wind-generated energy in Texas and the US. TXU Energy
currently purchases energy from over 579 MW of wind projects located in West Texas. TXU Energy expects to
continue to add addmonal wind generatlon to its portfollo as commermal opportumtles become avallable

Nuclear-Powered Productwn Assets — TXU Energy owns and operates two nuclear- fueled electricity
generation units at the Comanche Peak plant, each of which is designed for a capacity of 1,150 MW,

TXU Energy has on hand, or has contracted for, enrichment services through mid-2006 and fabrication
services through 2011 for its nuclear units. TXU Energy s finalizing supply contracts for the purchase of
uranium and conversion to meet its needs through mid-2006 and does not anticipate any problems in completing
the contracts. TXU Energy does not anticipate any difficulties procuring raw materials and setvices beyond
these dates.

TXU Enefgy’s onsite spent nuclear fuel storage capability is sufficient to accommodate the operation of
Comanche Peak through the year 2017, while maintaining the capability to off-load the core of one of the
nuclear-fueled generating units.

Under current regulatory licenses, nuclear decommissioning activities are projected to begin in 2030 for
Comanche Peak Unit 1 and 2033 for Unit 2 and common facilities. Since January 1, 2002, projected
decommissioning costs are being recovered from Oncor’s customers through a delivery charge based upon a
1997 site-specific study, adjusted for changes in the value of trust fund assets, through rates placed mto effect
under the 2001 Unbundled Cost of Service filing,

The Comanche Peak nuclear-powered generation units were originally estimated to have a useful life of 40
years, based on the life of the operating licenses granted by the NRC. Over the last several years, the NRC has
granted 20-year extensions to the initial 40-year terms for several commercial power reactors. Based on these
extensions and current expectations of industry practice, the useful life of the Comanche Peak nuclear-powered
generation units is now estimated to be 60 years. TXU' Corp. expects to file a license extension request in
accordance with timing and other provisions established by the NRC. (See Note 1 to Financial Statements under
Property, Plant and Equipment, for a discussion of the change in depreciable lives for accounting purposes).

Lignite/Coal ~Fired Production Assets — Lignite is used as the primary fuel for two units at the Big
Brown generating plant, three units at the Monticello generating plant, three units at the Martin Lake generating
plant, and one unit at the Sandow generating plant, having an aggregate capacity of 5,837 MW. TXU Energy’s
lignite units have been constructed adjacent to surface minable lignite reserves. TXU Energy owns in fee simple
or has under lease proven reserves dedicated to the Big Brown, Monticello and Martin Lake generating plants.
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TXU Energy utilizes owned and/or leased equipment to remove the overburden and recover the lignite.
Approximately 75% of the fuel used at TXU Energy’s lignite plants in 2003 was supplled from owned or leased
lignite.

TXU Energy supplements its lignite fuel at Big Brown, Monticello and Martin Lake with western coal from
the Powder River Basin in Wyoming. The coal is purchased from multiple suppliers under contracts of various
lengths and is transported from the Powder River Basin to TXU Energy’s generating plants by railcar.
Approximately 25% of the fuel used at TXU Energy’s lignite plants in 2003 was supplied from western coal
under these contracts. Based on its current usage, which includes the use of western coal to supplement its lignite
reserves, TXU Energy believes that it has sufficient lignite reserves and access to western coal resources for its
generating needs in the foreseeable future.

Gas/Oil-Fired Production Assets — TXU Energy has eighteen gas/oil-fueled plants, including a plant
located in Pedricktown, New Jersey, with an aggregate capacity of 11,003 MW. A significant portion of the
gas/oil generating plants have the ability to switch between gas and fuel oil. Gas/oil fuel requirements for 2003
were provided through a mix of contracts with producers at the wellhead and contracts with commercial
suppliers. Fuel oil can be stored at 15 of the principally gas-fueled generating plants. At January 1, 2004, TXU
Energy had fuel oil storage capacity sufficient to accommodate approximately 5.5 million barrels of oil and had
approximately one million barrels of oil in inventory.

Capacity Auction — To encourage competition in the- ERCOT region, each power generation company
owning 400 MW or more of installed generating capacity must annually offer to sell at auction entitlements to
15% of the output of its installed generating capacity. Such auction sales cannot be to an affiliated REP. The
obligation of TXU Energy to sell capacity entitlements at auction continues until the earlier of January 1, 2007 or
the date the Commission determines that 40% or more of the electric power consumed by residential and small
business customers within the affiliated delivery utility certificated service area before the onset of customer
choice is provided by non-affiliated REPs. The October 2002 auction offered one-year and monthly entitlements
for 2003 only. Not all of the entitlements offered in the October auction were sold; however, TXU Energy did
re-offer these unsold entitlements in subsequent auctions held in November 2002 and throughout 2003. In 2003,
TXU Energy held capacity auctions in March, July and August for 2003 capacity, and in September and
November for 2004 capacity. TXU Energy met its capacity auction obligations for 2003. The next auctions for
the remaining 2004 capacity obligations are scheduled for March and July 2004.

NATURAL GAS OPERATIONS

TXU Energy's natural gas operations in Texas include pipelines, storage facilities, well-head production
contracts, transportation agreements and storage leases. - Natural gas is purchased for internal use in the
generation of power, as well as for sale in wholesale markets and to large business customers. Transportation
services are provided to TXU Energy’s generation operations and third parties. Because of the correlation of
natural gas and power prices, TXU Energy’s natural gas operatlons provide opportunities to hedge its margms on
power sales.

TXU Energy owns and operates an intrastate natural gas pipeline system with approximately 1 ,900 miles of
pipeline facilities which extends from the gas-producing area of the Permian Basin in West Texas to the East
Texas gas fields and southward to the Gulf Coast area. The pipeline facilities were originally built solely to serve
US Holdings’ generating plants. In keeping with deregulation prmmples, this network now offers transportation
service to third parties at competitive prices.

TXU Energy also owns and operates two underground gas storage facilities with a usable capacity of 14.0
Bef. TXU Energy holds a portion of this storage capacity for use during periods of peak demand to meet
seasonal and other fluctuations or interruption of deliveries by gas suppliers. Under normal operating conditions,
up to 400 million cubic feet can be withdrawn each day for a ten-day period, with withdrawals at lower rates
thereafter.




RETAIL

Regulatory restructuring in Texas has resulted in competitive markets within the state, thus presenting
additional opportunities for growth accompanied by the introduction of competitive pressures. Texas is one of
the fastest growing states in the nation with a diverse and resilient economy and, as a result, has attracted a
number of competitors into the retail electricity market. TXU Energy, as an active participant in this competitive
market, is marketing its services in Texas to add new customers and to retain its existing customers.

Based on the latest'data provided by ERCOT (November 2003), approximately 14% of all customers in
ERCOT areas open to customer choice had elected to switch providers At the present time, 53 REPs are
certified to compete within the state of Texas.

TXU Energy believes that the scale derived from a large retail portfolio provides the. platform for a
profitable operation by, among other things, reducing the costs of service and billing per customer. TXU Energy
emphasizes its identification with the TXU brand and reputation. TXU Energy uses a value pricing approach by
customizing its products to each customer segment with service -enhancements that are known to be valued by
customers in those segments. - With its approach, TXU Energy intends to achieve substantially higher customer
loyalty and enhanced proﬁt maxgms, wh1le reducmg the costs assoc1ated with customers frequently switching
suppliers. . : ~

TXU Energy has invested in customer-related infrastructure and uses its customer relationships, technology
operating platforms, marketing, customer service operations and customer loyalty to actively compete to retain
its customer base and to add customers. :

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

Portfolio management refers to risk management and value creation activities undertaken to balance
customer demand for energy with the supply of energy in an economically efficient and effective manner. Retail
and wholesale demand is generally greater than volumes that can be supplied by TXU Energy’s base load
production. Portfolio management acts to provide additional supply balancing through TXU Energy’s gas/oil-
fired generation or purchases of power. The portfolio management operation manages the commodity volume
and price risks inherent in TXU Energy’s generation and sales operations through supply structuring, pricing and
risk management activities. Risk management activities include hedging both future power sales and purchases
of fuel supplies for the generation plants. The portfolio management operation also is responsible for the
efﬂc1ent dispatch of power from its generatlon plants.

In 1ts risk management actlvmes, TXU Energy enters into physical dehvery contracts, fmanmal contracts
that are traded on exchanges and “over-the-counter” and bilateral contracts with customers. Physical delivery
contracts relate to the purchase and sale of electricity and gas primarily in the wholesale markets in Texas and to
a limited extent in select Northeast markets in North America. TXU Energy’s risk management activities consist
largely of hedging transactions, with speculatlve trading representmg a small fractlon of such activity.

TXU Energy manages its exposure to pnce nsk W1thm established transactional pohcles and limits. TXU
Energy targets best practices in risk management and risk contrel by employing proven principles used by
financial institutions. These controls have been structured so.that they are practical in application and consistent
with stated business objectives. Portfolio management revalues TXU Energy’s exposures daily using integrated
energy-systems. to_capture value and mitigate risks. A risk management forum meets regularly to ensure that
transactional practices comply with its prior approval of commodities, instruments, exchanges and markets.
Transactional risks are monitored and limits are enforced to comply with established TXU Corp. policy
requirements. Risk assessment is segregated and operated separately from compliance and enforcement to
ensure independence, accountability and integrity of actions. TXU Corp. has a strict disciplinary program to
address any violations of its risk management policy requirements. TXU Energy also periodically reviews these
policies to ensure they are responsive to changing market and business conditions. These policies are designed to
protect earnings, cash flows and credit ratings. ‘




COMPETITIVE STRATEGY

TXU Energy s strategy is to defend and build its customer base in the competitive Texas market and to
accomplish this through the operation of a single, integrated energy business managing a portfolio of assets.
Achieving operational excellence, more cost efficient processes and enhanced credibility and reputation are all
critical elements for executing on that strategy. :

TXU Energy will continue to focus on sustaining its leading position in the Texas market and being in
position to move quickly toward capturing new opportunities outside of Texas as they arise.

One of TXU Energy’s key competitive strengths is its ability to produce electricity at low variable costs in
a market in which power prices are set by gas-fired generation. New gas-fired capacity, while generally. more
efficient to operate than existing gas/oil-fired capacity due to technological advances; is subject to the volatility
and increasing cost of natural gas fuel. On the other hand, base load nuclear and lignite/coal plants have lower
variable production costs than even new gas-fired plants at current average market gas prices. Another
competitive strength for TXU Energy is the diversity of its generation fleet. Due to the higher variable operating
and fuel costs of its gas/oil-fired units, as compared to its lignite/coal and nuclear units, production from TXU
Energy’s gas/oil units is more susceptible to being displaced by the more efficient units being constructed. This
positions TXU Energy’s gas/oil units to run during intermediate and peak load periods when prices are higher
and provides more opportunmes for hedging activities and increased market liquidity.

Retall competmon has remained steady in Texas with several large participants broadly extendmg their
marketing across all customer segments and all geographic areas of competition. TXU Energy has successfully
executed similar marketing programs while retaining the majority of its incumbent residential customer base.

TXU Energy believes that the ERCOT reglon presents.an attractive competmve electric service market due
to the following factors: ‘ :

e gas- ﬁred plants are expeeted to set the price. of generation during a éubstantial portion of the year,
providing an opportunity for TXU Energy to benefit from its nuclear and lignite/coal units” fuel cost
-advantages; o

. peak. demand is expected to grow at an-average rate of approximately 3% per year;

e it is a sizeable market with approximately 62 gigawatts (GW) of peak demand and approximately 35
GW of average demand; and , : : ‘

.o there is no mandatory power pool structure. -

Reserve margins for ERCOT, ‘based upon.existing capacity and planned capacity with interconnection
agreements, are expected to be 29% in 2004, 25% in 2005, 22% in 2006, 18% in 2007, and 15% in 2008.

‘Qutside Texas — Energy industry restructuring, although proceeding well in Texas, has not had similar
success in other parts of the U.S. As early as 2000, optimism for national legislation and increased opening of
competitive markets began to alter the strategy of many industry participants. The establishment of Regional
Transmission Organizations and open access for both wholesale and retail customers were on the horizon.
Together with increasing customer demand for lower priced electricity and other energy services, these measures
were expected. to have accelerated the mdustry s movement toward a more competitive pricing and cost
structure. :

Many states, faced with this increasing pressure from legislative bodies (federal and state) to become ‘more
competitive while adhering to certain continued regulatory requirements, along with changing economic
conditions and rapid technological changes, put forth deregulation plans that have since been deferred or
changed. The result is delayed restructuring. New entry by retailers as well as by merchant generators in states
‘other than Texas has been slowed. The continued uncertainty regarding many FERC policies as well as Federal
legislation have delayed the opening of new retail markets and decreased the economic viability for merchant
generation.




Customers — There are no md1v1dually significant customers upon whlch TXU Energy’s business or
results of operations are highly dependent.

REGULATION AND RATES

See Texas Elecmc Industry Restructuring above for a descrlptlon of the significant regulatory provxslons
relating to the deregulatlon of the Texas electric mdustry

TXU Corp. is a holding company as defined in the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935.
However, TXU Corp. and all of its subsidiary companies are exempt from the provisions of such Act, except
Section 9(a)(2) which relates to the acquisition -of securities of public utility companies and Section 33 which
relates to the acquisition of foreign (non-US) utility companies. :

TXU Energy is an exempt wholesale generator under the Federal Power Act and is subject to the
jurisdiction of the NRC with respect to its nuclear power plant. NRC regulations govern the granting of licenses
for the .construction and operation of nuclear power plants and subject such plants to contmumg review and
regulation. TXU Energy also holds a power marketer license from FERC.

See discussion at the end of this Item for environmental regulations and related matters.

ENERGY DELIVERY SEGMENT

The Energy Delivery segment consists primarily of the electricity transmission and distribution operations
of Oncor and the purchasing, transportation, distribution and retail -sales operations of TXU Gas. Energy
Delivery provides the essential service of delivering energy safely, reliably and economically to end-use
customers through its distribution systems. Operating assets of the segment are located prmc1pally in the north-
central, eastern and. western parts of Texas.

ELECTRICITY TRANSMISSI ON

Oncor s electr1c1ty transmission busmess is- responsible for the safe and rehable -operations of its
transmission network and substations. These responsibilities consist- of the construction and maintenance ‘of
transmission facilities and substations and the monitoring, controllmg and dispdtching of high- voltage electncny
over Oncor’s transmission facilities in coordination with ERCOT S

Oncor is a member of ERCOT, and the transmission business actively supports the operations of ERCOT
and market participants. The transmission business participates with ERCOT and other member utilities to plan,
design, construct and operate new transmission lines, with regulatory approval, necessary to maintain reliability,
increase bulk power transfer capability and.to minimize limitations and constraints on the ERCQOT transmission

grid.

Transmission revenues are provided under tariffs approved by either the Commission or, 10 a-small degree,
FERC. Network transmission revenues compensate Oncor for delivery of power over transmission facilities
operating at 60,000 volts and above. Transformation service revenues compensate Oncor for substation facilities
that transform power from high-voltage transmission to distribution voltages below 60,000 volts. Other services
offered by the transmission business include, but are not limited to: system impact studies, facilities studies and
maintenance of substations and transmission lines owned by other non-retail parties.

Oncor’s transmission facilities include 4,502 circuit miles of 345-kilovolt transmission lines and 9,678
circuit miles of 138- and 69-kV transmission lines. Also, 43 generating plants totaling 33,260 megawatts are
directly connected to Oncor’s transmission system, and 693 dlstrlbutlon substations are served from Oncor’s
transmission system ' : :

Oncor is connected by elght 345 kV lines to CenterPomt Energy, by four 345 kV (one of which is an
asynchronous high voltage direct current interconnection to American Electric Power Company in the Southwest
Power Pool), eight 138-kV and thirteen 69-kV lines to American Electric Power Company; by four 345-kV and
eighteen 138-kV lines and three 69-kV lines to the Lower Colorado River Authority; by seven 345-kV and nine
138-kV lines to the Texas Municipal Power Agency, and at several points with smaller systems operating wholly
within Texas. ‘ . . .




ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION

Oncor's electricity distribution business is responsible for the overall safe and efficient operation of
distribution facilities; including power delivery, power quality and system reliability. The Oncor distribution
system supplies electricity to over 2.9 million points of delivery. The electricity distribution business consists of
the ownership, management, construction, maintenance and operation of the distribution system within Oncor's
certificated service area. Over the past five years, the number of Oncor's dlstrlbutlon system premises served has
been growing an average of 2% per year.

Oncor’s distribution -syStem receives electricity from the transmission system through substations and
distributes electricity to end users and wholesale customers through 2,944 distribution feeders.

The Oncor distribution system consists of 55,472 miles of overhead primary conductors, 22,076 miles of
overhead. secondary and street light conductors, 12,936 miles of underground primary conductors and 7,802
miles of underground secondary and street light conductors. The majority of the distribution system operates at
25-kV and 12.5-kV. .

Most of Oncor’s power lines have been constructed over lands of others pursuant to easements or along
public highways, streets and right-of-ways as permitted by law.

CUSTOMERS — ELECTRICITY DELIVERY

.Oncor’s' transmission customers consist of municipalities, electric cooperatives and other distribution
companies. Oncor’s distribution customers consist of approximately 43 REPs in Oncor's certified service area,
including subsidiary REPs of TXU Energy. For the year ended December 31, 2003, delivery fee revenues from
TXU Energy represented approximately 71% of Oncor’s revenues. There are no individually significant
unaffiliated customers upon which Oncor's business or results are highly dependent.

Since January 1, 2002, the retail customers who purchase and consume electricity and are connected to
Oncor’s system have been free to choose their electricity supplier from REPs who compete for their business.
The changed character of electric service, however, does not mean that the safe and reliable delivery of
dependable power is any less critical to Oncor's success. Service quality, safety and reliability are of paramount
importance to REPs, electricity customers, and Oncor. Oncor intends to continue to build on itsinherited
tradition of low cost and high performance.

REGULATIDN AND RATES - ELECT RICITY DELIVERY

See Texas Electric Industry Restructuring above for a description of the significant regulatory provisions
relating to the deregulation of the Texas electric industry.

As its operations are wholly within Texas, Oncor believes that it is not a public utility as defined in the
Federal Power Act and has been advised by its counse] that it is not subject to general regulation under such Act.

The Commission has original jurisdiction over transmission rates and services and over distribution rates
and services :in unincorporated areas and in those municipalities that have ceded original jurisdiction to the
Commission land has exclusive -appellate jurisdiction to review the rate and service orders and ordinances of
municipalities. Generally, the Public Utility Regulatory Act (PURA) prohibits the collection of any rates or
charges by a publxc utility that do not have the prior approval of the Commission.

At the state level, PURA, as amended, requires owners or operators of transmission facilities to provide
open access wholesale transmission services to third parties at rates and terms that are non-discriminatory and
comparable to the rates and terms of the utility's own use of its system. The Commission has adopted rules
implementing the state open access requirements for utilities that are subject to the Commission's jurisdiction
over transmission services, such as Oncor.

Provisions of the 1999 Restructuring legislation allow Oncor to annually update its transmission rates to

reflect changes in invested capital. These provisions encourage investment in the transmission system to help
ensure reliability and efficiency by allowing for timely recovery of and return on new transmission investments.
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See discussioh at the end of this Item for environmental regulations and related matters. .
GAS DELIVER Y

Gas Transmzsswn — TXU Gas owns and operates interconnected natural gas transmission lines; ﬁve
underground storage reservoirs, 20 compressor stations and related properties, all within Texas. With a system
consisting of 6,162 miles of transmission and gathering lines in Texas, TXU Gas is one of the largest pipeline
operators in the US. Through these facilities, it transports natural gas to its distribution system and other
customers. Rates for transmission services are regulated by.the RRC. The gas transmission and distribution
lines of TXU Gas have been constructed over lands of others pursuant to easements or along public highways,
streets and rlghts of-way as permitted by law.

Gas Distribution ——»TXU Gas provxdes service through over 26,431 miles of distribution mains. TXU Gas
purchases, distributes and sells natural gas to over 1.4 million residential and business customers in
approximately 550 cities and towns, including the 1l-county Dallas/Ft. Worth metropolitan area. The
distribution service rates that TXU Gas charges its residential and business customers have been generally
established by the municipal governments of the cities and towns served, with the RRC having appellate, or in
some instances, primary jurisdiction.” The majority of TXU Gas’ residential and business customers use natural
gas for heating, and their needs are directly affected by the mildness or seventy of the heatmg season.

TXU Gas estimates its peak-day availability of natural gas supply from its long-term contracts, short-term
contracts and withdrawals from underground storage to be 2.2 Bef. Daily purchases on the spot market raise this
availability level to meet additional peak-day needs. TXU Gas’ peak-day demand in 2003 was on February 24,
2003, when sales to its customers reached approximately 1.9 Bcf. Durmg 2003, the average daily demand of
TXU Gas’ residential and business customers was 0.4 Bcf.

TXU Gas has historically maintained a contractual right to interrupt transportation load, which is designed
to.achieve the hlghest load factor possible in the use of the pipeline system while ensuring continuous and
uninterrupted service to residential and business customers.

Estimates of natural gas’ supplies and réserves are not necessarily indicative of TXU Gas’ ability to meet
current or anticipated market demands or immediate delivery requirements because of factors such as the
physical limitations of gathering, storage and transmission systems, the duration and severity of cold weather,
the availability of gas reserves from its suppliers, the ability to purchase additional supplies on a short-term basis
and actions by federal and state regulatory authorities. Curtailment rights provide TXU Gas flexibility to meet
the human-needs requirements of its customers on a firm basis. Priority allocations imposed by federal and state
regulatory agencies, as well as other factors beyond the control of TXU Gas, may affect its ability to meet the
demands of its customers.

- Gas Supply — TXU- Gas’ natural gas supply consists of contracts for the purchase of specific reserves,
contracts not related to specific reserves or fields, and natural gas in storage. The total planned natural gas supply
as of January 1, 2004 is 150 Bcf, which is approximately 1 percent more than TXU Gas’ actual supply during
2003. TXU Gas has approximately 17 Bef committed under contracts with specific reserves, 30 Bef in working
gas in storage and 41 Bef committed under gas supply contracts not related to specific reserves or fields. -In
2003, TXU Gas’- natural gas requirements ‘were purchased from approximately 76 independent . producers,
marketers and pipeline companies. . .

TXU Gas manages its storage working gas inventory and storage deliverability along with other purchased
gas to meet its peak-day requirements. - TXU Gas utilizes the services of five natural gas storage fields operated
within its pipeline system, all of which are located in Texas. These fields have a workmg gas capacity of more
than 38 Bef and a storage withdrawal deliverability of up to 1.2 Bef per day.

TXU Gas buys natural gas under long-term and short-term contracts, some of which require minimum
purchases of ‘gas. The estimated natural gas demand; which assumes normal weather conditions, significantly
exceeds the minimum purchase obligations of these contracts for the year 2004 and thereafter.

The TXU Gas distribution supply program is designed to contract-f.or new supplies of natural gas and to
recontract targeted expiring sources. In addition to being heavily concentrated in the established natural
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gas-producing areas of central, northern and eastern Texas, TXU Gas’ intrastate pipeline system also extends
into or near the major producing areas of the Texas Gulf Coast and the Delaware and Val Verde Basins of West
Texas. Nine basins located in Texas are estimated to contain a substantial portion of the nation’s remaining
onshore natural gas reserves. TXU Gas’ pipeline system provides access to all of these basins. TXU Gas is well
situated to receive large volumes into its pipeline system at the major hubs, such as Katy and Waha, as well as
from storage facilities where TXU Gas maintains high delivery capabilities.

Competition — Customer sensmvuy to energy prlces and the availability of competitively priced natural
gas continue to cause competition in the electricity generation and industrial user markets. Natural gas faces
varying degrees of competition from electricity, coal, natural gas liquids, oil and: other refined products
throughout the TXU Gas distribution service territory. Pipeline systems of other companies, both intrastate and
interstate, extend into or through the areas in which TXU Gas’ markets are located, creating competition from
other sellers and transporters of natural gas. TXU Gas intends to maintain its focus on customer satisfaction and
the creation of new value-added services for its customers in order to remain its customers’ supplier of choice.
TXU Gas provides services to its electricity generation and industrial customers under regulated tariffs and
responds to this competition by offering service under negotiated rates when a positive margin can be
maintained.

TXU Gas is the sole transporter of natural gas to its distribution system. TXU Gas competes with other
pipelines in Texas to transport natural gas to electricity generation and industrial user facilities as well as
off-system markets. These businesses are highly competitive.

Customers — There are no individually significant customers upon which TXU Gas’ business or results of
operations are highly dependent

Regulatwn and Rates — Gas Delivery

TXU Gas is wholly intrastate in character and performs distribution” utility operations and. pipeline
transportation services in the State of Texas subject to regulation, respectively, by municipalities in Texas and
the RRC. The RRC has original jurisdiction over the charge for the transportation of gas by TXU Gas to ‘its
distribution system for sale to TXU Gas’ residential and business consumers. TXU Gas owns no certificated
interstate transmission facilities subject to the jurisdiction of the FERC under the Natural Gas Act, has no sales
for resale under the rate jurisdiction of the FERC and does not perform any transportation service that is subject
to FERC Jurlsdlctxon under the Natural Gas Act.

The c1ty gate rate for the cost of natural gas TXU Gas ultxmately delivers to resxdenual and busmess
customers is established by the RRC and provides for full recovery of the actual cost of gas delivered. The cities
served by TXU Gas have original jurisdiction over the distribution rate TXU Gas charges its residential and
business customers, subject to appellate jurisdiction of the RRC.

©'TXU Gas employs a continuing program of rate review for all classes of customers in its regulatory
jurisdictions. In May 2003, TXU Gas filed, for the first time, a system-wide rate case for the distribution and
pipeline operations. The case was filed in all 437 incorporated cities served by the distribution operations, and at
the RRC for the pipeline business and for unincorporated areas served by the distribution operations. The TXU
Gas filing requested an annual revenue increase of $69.5 million or 7.24%. All 437 cities took action on the case
within their statutory time frame, and TXU Gas has appealed these actions to the RRC." Twelve parties have
intervened in'the case. Based on the current procedural schedule, TXU Gas expects a final order from the RRC
in the second quarter of 2004.

TXU Gas sells natural gas to industrial customers under standard regulated rate schedules that permit

automatic adjustment on a periodic basis for the full amount of increases or decreases in the cost of natural gas.
Transportation services to electricity generation and other industrial customers are provided under both regulated
tariffs and competitively negotiated contracts.
" TXU Gas has been an open access transporter under Section 311 of the Natural Gas.Policy Act of 1978
(NGPA) on its intrastate transmission facilities since July 1988. Such transportation is performed pursuant to
Section 311(a)(2) of the NGPA and is subject to an exemption from the jurisdiction of the FERC under the
Natural Gas Act, pursuant to Section 601 of the NGPA.
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See discussion at the end of this Item for environmental regulations and related matters.
ONCOR UTILITY SOLUTIONS

This operation ccnsists of wholly-owned subsidiaries of TXU Gas that offer unregulated utility asset
management services for cooperatives and municipally-owned and investor-owned utilities located in North
America. Electric, gas, water and wastewater utilities may choose from.Oncor Utility Solutions’ menu of
services ranging from a complete turnkey solution to selected services such as work management, resource
management, strategic planning, design, maintenance and construction. Oncor Utility Solutions leverages TXU
Corp.’s existing economies of scale, asset management processes, technologies and personnel to deliver cost
savings and reliability improvements to client network systems. \ \

" AUSTRALIA SEGMENT

TXU Australia provides its products and services primarily in the States of Victoria and South Australia
through its two main operating divisions: Energy Delivery Business and Energy Business.

There are no individually 31gn1ﬁcant customers upon which the segment’s business or results of operanons
are highly dependent.

COMPETITIVE STRATEGY

TXU Australia’s portfolio approach to growth has provided TXU Australia with a number of competitive
advantages associated with economies of scale, dual fuel benefits and risk diversification. TXU Australia is a
major provider of multiple energy solutions in the Victorian and South Australian energy markets.

Since 1995, TXU Australia has assembled its portfolio of assets and capabilities with a mix of regulated
earnings and assets in the Energy Delivery Business, and -a portfoho of phy51cal and contractual, upstream and
downstream capabxlmes in the Energy Business. -

The Australian energy market presents TXU Australia with significant opportunities for growth. Growth
opportunities in the- Energy Delivery Business will be pursued in the framework of building on TXU Australia’s
developed core skills and capabilities. Growth opportunities in the Energy Business will be pursued in the
framework of maintaining a mix of upstream and downstream physical and financial positions and managing the
risks of imbalances between these positions. - ‘

ENERGY DELIVERY BUSINESS

TXU Australia’s Energy Delivery Business engages principally in managing the distribution of electricity
to 559,558 connection points in the eastern suburbs of Melbourne and in rural areas in eastern Victoria, and the
distribution of natural gas to 481,307 supply points located in- the western suburbs of Melbourne and in rural
towns in western Victoria.

TXU Australia manages an electricity network of approximately 27,250 miles of distribution lines over an
area of approximately 50,000 square miles, and a gas network of approximately 5,100 miles of pipelines over
approximately 1,250 square miles in its territory.

The tariffs chargeable by TXU Australia for the distribution of- electricity and gas are regulated by the
Victorian Essential Services Commission. Electricity distribution tariffs were last determined in 2001 and are
due to be redetermined in 2006 for at least five more years. Gas distribution tariffs were last determined in 2003
and are due to be redetermined in 2008 for at least five more years. The gas distribution tariffs increased by
2.2% for 2003. Each subsequent year, the tariffs are to increase by 0.8% plus the Consumer Price Index increase.
The current regulatory framework, as-administered by the Essential Services Commission, has been in place
since 1995 for electricity and since 1998 for gas. TXU Australia expects that this regulatory framework will
continue to evolve. : ‘
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ENERGY BUSINESS

TXU Australia’s Energy Business comprises a portfolio of assets involved in the generation of electricity,
transportation and storage of gas, purchase of electricity and gas, and the sale of electricity and gas to wholesale
and retail customers, primarily in Victoria and South Australia. This portfolio enhances the ability of the Energy
Business to manage the risks normaily: associated with the stand-alone operation of a retail, generation or
wholesale energy business, including price fluctuation, supply shortage and overproduction risks, in order to
optimize performance.

TXU Australia manages its portfolio of wholesale contracts, physical generation capability and retail
positions to manage exposure to price risks. Its generation assets, gas storage capability and electricity hedging
contracts provide the ability to enhance price spike protection for TXU Australia’s retail customer base, and also
provide TXU Australia with an ability to offer risk management products to others in the market.

In May 2000, TXU Australia acquired the business of the South Australian electricity geuerator Optima
Energy Pty Ltd, which mcluded a 100-year prepaid lease of the Torrens Island Power Station (Torrens Island).

The Torrens Island site is located near Adelarde and offers room for plant expansion. The power station
consists of two plants with a total of eight gas-fired steam turbines with a combined capacity of 1,280 MW.
Torrens Islands has the potential to operate in each of the peaking, intermediate and base lodd markets in South
Australia.

TXU Australia has a 20-year option agreement, which began in 1999, with Ecogen Energy Pty. Ltd.
(Ecogen), which owns 966 MW of gas fired generation that is typically used during peak periods of demand for
electricity in Victoria. The agreement provides TXU Australia with the ability to enter into hedge contracts with
Ecogen, at TXU Australia’s option, that require the exchange of cash for the difference between the amount
specified in the contract and the then current spot price of electricity. TXU Australia also has an agreement to
supply gas to Ecogen until April 30, 2019. The option agreement provides a hedge against TXU Australia’s cost
of elecmcrty and also enables TXU Australia to offer price protection services to other electricity retailers.

XU Austraha owns an underground gas storage facility near Port Campbell in southwest Victoria. The
facility, which was commissioned in August 1999, has a storage capacity of approximately 11 Bcf and has a-
withdrawal capacity. of 0.3 Bcf per day. The underground gas storage facility is connected to the principal
Victorian gas transmission system and the SEA Gas pipeline effective January 2004.

The underground gas storage facility provides TXU Australia with the ability to manage its gas supply
requirements beyond the flexibility inherent under the gas supply contracts and to manage 1ts exposure to price
volauhty in the gas spot market. .

XU Austraha currently owns a 33.3% joint venture interest in SEA Gas. SEA Gas is a gas transmission
pipeline from the underground gas storage facility to Adelaide in South Australia. TXU Australia entered into a
15-year foundation shipper contract’ with SEA Gas to ship gas from the underground gas storage facxhty to
Torrens Island and the gas distribution system in South Australia.

Retail Electricity

TXU Australia’s primary retail electric markets at present are Victoria and South Australia. With the
introduction of full retail competition, customers in Victoria, South Australia and New South Wales now have
the right to choose their energy providers. TXU Australia has retailing licenses to sell electricity to competitive
customers in 'Victoria, New South Wales, Queensland, South Australia and the Australian Capital Territory.

Customer Base — 89% of TXU Australia’s retail electric customers are residential customers. The
remaining’ customer base is diverse and includes businesses in the mining, transportation and chemicals
industries. Approximately 85% of TXU Australia’s retail electric customers are connected to the distribution
network owned by the Energy Delivery Business.
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Regulation — As an original incumbent retailer in Victoria, TXU Australia can .publish new retail
electricity prices at any time in a government publication, with the new prices applying two months after their
publication. However, the Victorian Electricity Industry Act 2000 reserves power to the Victorian government
until December 2004 to cap the prices at which electricity is sold to low-volumeé Victorian customers (i.e., those
consuming less than 160 MWh per year) if it does not approve of the publlshed prices.

Retail electricity pnces, primarily in Vrctorla, 1ncreased 3.1% in 2003 compared to 2002. The increase
reflected a 4% decrease in the capped price that was more than offset by reduced government subsidies that are
passed on to customers through distribution fees. Further changes to the subsidies are under consideration by the
Victorian-government.

At the end of October 2003, TXU Australia published electricity price increases to apply to low- volume
customers beginning January 1, 2004. Following its review of these newly published prices, the government has
determined the allowed price increases for the next four years as follows: 2004, 1.5%; for subsequent years, the
rates will be based on CPI plus (or minus) a margin ranging from 1.5% to 0.5%.

Low-volume customers have the choice of being subject to regulated pricing or accepting a market-based
offer from TXU Australia or a.competing retailer.

Competition — At present, with the exception of Queensland, participants in the National Electric Market
have introduced full retail competition for electricity consumers. These participants are Victoria, New South
Wales, South Australia and Queensland.

Electrwzty Supply Arrangements — The National Electric Market isa wholesale. market for the sale of
electricity that is combined with an open access regime for the use of physrcal electricity networks within the
participating states of Australia. The National Electric Market currently operates a wholesale electrrcrty pool into
which all electricity output from generators within Victoria, New South Wales and South Australia is centrally
pooled and scheduled to meet the electricity demand of those states. Each electricity provider is required to
purchase electrrc1ty either through a pool or through another provrder that has purchased that electricity from a
pool. -

Retail VGas.

TXU Australia’s primary gas retail market at present is Victoria. It also has retail licenses to supply gas to
customers in South Australia, New South Wales and the Australian Capital Territory.

Customer Base — 96% of TXU Australia’s retail gas customers are residential customers and the
remaining 4% are business customers. The portfolio of business customers currently served by TXU Australia
includes food, manufacturing, chemicals, paper, health, hospitality and recreation.

Regulation — As with electricity, TXU Australia can publish new gas prices at any time in a government
publication, with the new prices applying two months after, their publication. However, the Victorian Gas
Industry Act 2001 reserves powers to the Victorian government until August 31, 2004, to cap the prices at which
gas is sold to low volume Victorian customers. '

In 2002, the Victorian government exercised its power in respect of low-volume gas customers for 2003.
TXU Australia was allowed to increase its prices by an average of 9% beginning January 4, 2003. Customers
have the choice of accepting either low-volume customer pricing or a market-based offer from TXU Australia or
a competmg retailer. : - ;

At the end of October 2003 TXU Austraha published gas price increases to apply to low volume
customers beginning January 1, 2004. Following its review of these newly published prices, the Victorian
government has determined the allowed price incréases as follows: 2004: 5%; for subsequent years: the
increases will equate to the Consumer Price Index.

Competition — At present, the Victorian and New South Wales gas retail markets are fully competitive.

South Australia’s business customers are also fully competitive and its residential customers are expected to
become competitive in mid-2004.
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Gas Supply Arrangements — Approximately 90% of Victoria's current gas requirements are sourced
predominantly from Esso/BHP.. This gas is supplied by Esso/BHP to Gascor Pty Ltd under a contract entered
into before privatization of the gas. industry in-Victoria and which runs until 2009. Upon privatization of the
Victorian gas industry, Gascor Pty Ltd's entitlements under the contract were allocated among the three new
retailers, including. TXU Australia. TXU Australia has entitlements to approximately 47 Bcf per year.. On
September 15, 2003, Gascor Pty Ltd was acquired by the three retaﬂers in equal shares, but this had no material
impact on the entltlement of the retailers to gas. :

' Gas requirements for Torrens Island are currently sourced from Victoria through the SEA Gas pipeline
from contracts primarily with Esso/BHP. Supply of gas to Torrens Island is supplemented by gas supply from
the Cooper Basin in South Australia under a contract with Terra Gas Trader Pty Ltd., which runs until 2011.

TXU Australia expects to conclude- negotrauons in 2004 for the. supply of approxrmatcly 853 Bef from
‘Esso/BHP to meet anticipated demand requirements.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Us

TXU Corp. is subject to extensive environmental regulation by governmental authorities. In operating its
facilities, TXU Corp. is required to comply with numerous environmental laws and regulations, and to obtain
numerous governmental permits and approvals. If TXU Corp. fails to comply with these requirements, it could
be subject to civil or criminal liability and fines. Existing environmental laws and regulations could be revised
or remterpreted and new laws and regulanons could be adopted or become applicable to TXU Corp or its
facrlmes, mcludmg potentlal regulatory and enforcernent developments related to air emissions.

TXU Corp. may not be able to obtain or maintain all required environmental regulatory approvals. If there
is a delay in obtaining any required environmental regulatory approvals or if TXU Corp. fails to obtain, maintain
or comply with the terms of any such approval, the operation of its facilities could be stopped or become subject
to additional costs. Further, at some of TXU Corp.'s older facilities, including base load lignite and coal plants,
it may be uneconomical for TXU Corp. to install the necessary compliance equipment, which may - cause TXU
Corp. to shut down those facilities. :

" In addition, TXU Corp. mdy be responsible for any on-site liabilities associated with the environmental
condition of facilities that it has acquired, developed, or which have been used by vendors regardless of when the
liabilities arose and whether they are known or unknown. In connection with acquisitions and sales of assets,
TXU Corp. may obtain, or be required to provide, indemnification against certain envrronmental liabilities.
Another party could fail to meet its 1ndemmﬁcauon obl1gatxons to TXU Corp.

Air — Under the Texas Clean Air Act, the TCEQ has jurisdiction over the permissible level of air
contaminant emissions from, and the requirements for issuing permits for, electricity generation, mining and gas
delivery facilities located within the State of Texas. The New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection
has’jurisdiction over the emissions from TXU Energy’s generation facility in New Jersey. In addition, the new
source performance standards of the EPA promulgated under the Federal Clean Air Act, as amended (Clean Air
Act), are being implemented by the TCEQ, and are applicable to certain electricity generation facilities and
ancillary equipment. TXU Energy’s genération plants‘and mining equipment and TXU Gas’ facilities operate in
cornpllance with apphcable regulatrons permits and emission standards promulgated pursuant to these acts.

The Clean Air Act includes provisions whrch among other things, place lrmlts on the sulfur dioxide (SO,)
and nitrogen loxides (NOx) emissions produced by certain generation plants. In addition to the new source
performance standards applicable to SO, and NOx, the Clean Air Act requires that fossil-fueled plants have
sufficient SO; emission allowances and meet certain NOx emission standards. TXU Energy’s generation plants
meet the SO, allowance requirements and NOx emission rates. In addition, the EPA recently proposed new
requirements calling for electricity generation facilities in 28 states and the District of Columbia to further
reduce emissions of NOx and SO;, with the first phase beginning January 1, 2010. TXU Corp. will be required
to make additional emissions- reduct1ons and incur assocrated costs under this’ proposal if it is finalized in its
current form. :

16




In January 2004, the EPA issued a proposed rulé to regulate mercury emissions from power plants with the .
expectation that a final rule will be issued by December 2004 with an implementation -date in 2008. Two
different regulatory approaches are considered in the announcement and the final form of the rule.is unknown. It
is likely that some costs, which could be material, will be incurred for 1nstallat10n of addmonal control
equlpment and for facility operatlons and maintenance. . ,

In addmon in 1999, the EPArpromulgated Natlonal Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants that
apply to certain TXU Gas facilities: The EPA has also issued rules for controlling regional haze; the impact of
these rules is unknown at this time because the TCEQ has not yet implemented the regional haze requirements.

The Bush Administration is addressing greenhouse gas emissions through its greenhouse gas emissions
intensity reduction Climate VISION program. The Bush Administration and EPA have proposed the Clear Skies
legislative initiative calling for reductions of SO,, NOx, and mercury from electricity generation facilities over a
15-year period. Some legislative proposals for additional regulation.of SO,, NOx, mercury and carbon dioxide
recently have been considered at the federal level and it is expected that additional similar proposals will be
made in the future. TXU Corp. continues to participate in a voluntary greenhouse .gas emission reduction
program and since 1995 has reported the results of its program annually to the U.S. Department of Energy. TXU
Corp. is also participating in a.new voluntary electric utility industry sector climate change initiative in
partnership with the Department of Energy. TXU Corp. continues to assess the financial and operational risks
posed by future regulatory or policy changes pertaining to greenhouse gas emissions;and multiple emissions, but.
because these proposals are in-the formative stages, TXU Corp. is unable to predict their future impacts on the
financial condition and operations of TXU Corp.

Major air pollution control provisions of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation required a 50% reduction in
NOx emissions and a 25% reduction in SO, emissions from:*‘grandfathered” electric utility generation plants.
The first compliance period is for the year:beginning May 1, 2003 through April 30, 2004. TXU Energy- has
obtained. all permits required for the -“grandfathered” plants by.the 1999 Restructuring Legislation and has
completed a construction program to install control equipment to achieve the required reductions. TXU. Corp.
anticipates that it will be in compliance with the requirements at the end of the first compliance period.

In 2001, the Texas Clean Air Act was amended to require that “grandfathered” facilities, other than electric
utility generation plants, apply.for permits. TXU Energy, TXU Gas and Oncor anticipate that the permits can be
obtained for almost all of their “grandfathered” facilities; without significant effects on the costs of operating
these facilities. It may be necessary at one TXU Gas facility to. spend approximately $6 million in the near
future to comply with this requlrement .

The TCEQ has also adopted revisions to its State Implementanon Plan (SIP) rules that require an 89%
reduction in NOx emissions from electricity generation plants in the Dallas-Fort Worth ozone non-attainment
area and a 51% reduction in NOx emissions from electricity generation plants in East-and Central Texas. Full
compliance is required by May 1, 2005. TXU Energy has already made significant NOx emissions reductions to
achieve the 51% reduction requirements of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation, but anticipates-that additional
reductions and/or modifications in plant operations will be required to achieve the 89% reductions called for in
the SIP rules. Additionally, the TCEQ is expected to propose new SIP rules in 2004 to deal with 1-hour and 8-
hour ozone standards. These rules. could require further NOx emissions reductions from certain TXU Energy
facilities. ‘ .

Water — The TCEQ, the EPA and the RRC have jurisdiction over water discharges (including storm
water) from all domestic facilities. Facilities of TXU Energy, TXU Gas and Oncor are presently in compliance
with applicable state and federal requirements relating to discharge of pollutants into the water. TXU Energy,
TXU Gas and Oncor hold all required. waste water discharge permits from the TCEQ and the RRC for facilities
in operation and have applied for or obtained necessary permits for facilities under construction. TXU Energy,
TXU Gas and Oncor believe they can satisfy the requirements necessary to obtain any required.permits or
renewals. Recent changes to federal rules pertaining to Spill Prevention, Control -and Countermeasure Plans for
oil-filled electrical equipment and bulk storage facilities for oil will require updating of certain facilities,” TXU
Gas and Oncor are unable to predict at this time the impact of these changes. Clean Water Act Section 316(b)
regulations pertaining to existing water intake structures are being developed by the EPA with publication
scheduled for early 2004. TXU Energy is unable to predict at this time the impacts of these regulations.
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Other — Diversion, impoundment and withdrawal of water for cooling and other purposes are subject to
the jurisdiction of the TCEQ. TXU Energy possesses all necessary permits for these activities from the TCEQ
for its present operations.

Treatment, storage and disposal of solid and hazardous waste are regulated at the state level under the
Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act and at the federal level under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of
1976, as amended, and the Toxic Substances Control Act. The EPA has issued regulations under the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 and the Toxic Substances Control Act, and the TCEQ and the RRC
have issued regulations under the Texas Solid Waste Disposal Act applicable to facilities of TXU Energy, TXU
Gas and Oncor. TXU Energy has registered solid waste dlsposal sites and has obtained or applied for such
permits as are required by such regulatlons

Under the federal Low-Level Radioactive Waste Policy Act of 1980, as amended, the State of Texas is
required to provide, either on its own or jointly with other states in a compact, for the disposal of all low-level
radioactive waste generated within the state. The State of Texas has agreed to a compact with the States of
Maine and Vermont for a disposal facility that would be located in Texas. That compact was. ratified by
Congress and signed by the President in 1998. The State of Texas had proposed to license a disposal site in
Hudspeth County, Texas, but in October 1998, the TCEQ denied that license application. In 2003, the State of.
Texas enacted legislation allowing a private entity to be licensed to accept low-level radiocactive waste for
disposal. TXU Energy intends to continue to ship low-level waste material off-site for as long as an alternative
disposal site is available. ‘Should existing off-site disposal become unavailable, the low-level waste material will
be stored on-site. TXU Energy’s on-site storage capacity is expected to be adequate until other off-site facilities
become available. (See Power Production — Nuclear Production Assets above,)

Environmental Capital Expendttures — Capltal expenditures for TXU Energy ] envxronmental projects
were $27 million in 2003 and are expected to be about $14 million in 2004. In 2003, Oncor’s capital
expenditures for envxronmental matters totaled $2 million and TXU.: Gas’ capital expenditures totaled $220
thousand. '

AUSTRALIA

TXU Australia is subject to ‘various Australian federal and state environmental regulations, the most
significant of which are the Victorian Environmental Protection Act of 1970 and the South Australian
Environment Protection Act of 1993. Both acts regulate, in particular, the discharge of waste into air, land and
water, site contamination, the emission of noise and waste management. Both acts also established their
respective state Environmental Protection Authorities (Australia EPA) and grant the Australia EPA a wide range
of powers to control and prevent environmental pollution.

The Tortens Island electricity generation plant in South Australia has a license to carry out activities of
environmental significance, including the discharge of warm cooling water into the marine environment, subject
to certain conditions. The conditions relate to temperature rise limit, temperature monitoring and reporting
obligations to'the Australia EPA. TXU-Australia has complied with its license conditions.

In Victoria, no licenses or works approvals from the Australia EPA are currently required for activities
undertaken by the electricity delivery operations. The gas storage operation has a license to carry out activities
of environmental significance including discharges to air and water subject to certain conditions. TXU Australia
has complied with its license conditions.

Through past acquisitions, TXU Australia holds certain properties that are contaminated. Liabilities
totaling -$10 million have been recorded for estimated costs of land reclamation and site restoration at these
properties. These costs may change if the extent of contamination is different than testing indicated at the time
of initial limited reviews. The Australia EPA has the power to order TXU Australia to incur such costs to
remedy the contamination of land. TXU Austraha also recorded a $7 million liability for land remediation costs
for its Torrens Island plant. -
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Legal Proceedings — On October 9, 2003, a lawsuit - was filed in the Supreme Court of the State of New
York,-County of New York, against TXU Corp., by purported beneficial owners of approximately 39% of
certain TXU Corp. equity-linked securities issued in October 2001. The common stock purchase contracts that
are a part of these securities require the holders to purchase TXU Corp. common stock on specified dates in 2004
and 2005 at-prices that are above the current market price of TXU Corp. common stock. The plaintiffs seek a
declaratory judgment that (a) a termination event has occurred under the common stock purchase contract as a
result of the administration of TXU Europe and, therefore, that plaintiffs are not required to purchase TXU Corp.
common stock pursuant to the contracts and (b) an event of default has occurred under the indenture for the
senior notes that constitute a part of these equity linked securities. Plaintiffs also seek an injunction requiring
TXU Corp. to give notice that a termination event under the common stock purchase contract has occurred.
TXU Corp. disputes plaintiffs’ allegations and-believes that plaintiffs’ interpretation of the common stock
purchase contract and indenture is inconsistent with the clear language of these agreements and is contrary to
applicable law. - Therefore, TXU Corp. believes the claims are completely without merit and intends to
vigorously defend the lawsuit. On November 13, 2003, TXU Corp. filed a motion to dismiss the action, and oral
argument was held on January 26, 2004. The court has not yet ruled on the motion, therefore, TXU Corp. is
unable to estimate any possible loss or predict the outcome of this action.

.On July 7, 2003, a lawsuit was filed by Texas Commercial Energy (TCE) in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division, against TXU Energy and certain of its
subsidiaries, as well as various other wholesale market participants doing business in ERCOT, claiming
generally that defendants engaged in market manipulation, in violation of antitrust and other laws, primarily
during the period of extreme weather conditions in late February 2003. An amended complaint was filed on
February 3, 2004 that joined additional, unaffiliated defendants. Three retail electric providers have filed
motions for leave to intervene in the action alleging claims substantially identical to TCE’s. In addition,
approximately 25. purported former, customers of TCE have filed.a motion to intervene in the action alleging
claims substantially identical to TCE’s, both on their own behalf and on behalf of a putative class of all former
customers of TCE. TXU Corp. believes that it has not committed any violation of the antitrust laws and the
Commission’s investigation of the market:conditions in late February 2003 has not resulted in any findings
adverse to TXU Energy. Accordingly, TXU Corp. believes that TCE’s and the interveners’ claims against TXU
Energy and its subsidiary companies are without merit and TXU Energy and its subsidiaries intend to vigorously
defend the lawsuit. TXU Corp. is unable to estimate any possible loss or predict the outcome of this action.

On’ April 28, 2003, -a lawsuit was filed by a former employee of TXU Portfolio Management in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division, against TXU Corp., TXU Energy and
TXU Portfolio Management. Plaintiff asserts claims under Section 806 of Sarbanes-Oxley arising from
plaintiff’s employment termination_and claims for breach of contract relating to payment of certain bonuses.
Plaintiff seeks back pay, payment of bonuses and alternatively, reinstatement or future compensation, including
bonuses. TXU Corp. believes the plaintiff’s claims are without merit. The plaintiff was terminated as the result
of a reduction in force, not as a reaction to any concerns the plaintiff had expressed, and plaintiff was not in a
position with TXU Portfolio Management such that he had knowledge or information that would qualify the
plaintiff to evaluate TXU Corp.’s financial statements or assess the adequacy of TXU Corp.’s financial
disclosures. Thus, " TXU Corp. does not believe that there is any merit to the plaintiff’s claims under Sarbanes-
Oxley. Accordingly, TXU Corp., TXU Energy and TXU Portfolio Management intend to vigorously defend the
litigation. While TXU Corp., TXU Energy and TXU Portfolio Management dispute the plaintiff’s claims, TXU
Corp. is unable to predict the outcome of this-litigation or the possible loss in the event of an adverse judgment.

In November 2002 and February and March 2003, three lawsuits were filed in the. United States District
Court for the Northern District of Texas asserting claims under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
(ERISA) on behalf of a putative class of participants in and beneficiaries of various employee benefit plans of
TXU Corp. These ERISA lawsuits have been consolidated, and a consolidated complaint was filed on February
3, 2004 against TXU Corp., the directors of TXU Corp., Erle Nye, Peter B. Tinkham, Kirk R. Oliver, Biggs C.
Porter, Diane J. Kubin, Barbara B. Curry and Richard Wistrand. The plaintiffs seek to represent a-class of
participants in such employee benefit plans during the period between April 26, 2001 and July 11, 2002. While
TXU Corp. believes the claims are without merit and intends to vigorously defend the lawsuit, it is unable to
estimate any possible loss or predict the outcome of this consolidated action.
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On March 10, 2003, a lawsuit was filed by Kimberly P. Killebrew in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of Texas, Lufkin Division, against TXU Corp. and TXU Portfolio Management, asserting
generally that defendants engaged in manipulation of the wholesale electric market, in violation of antitrust and
other laws. * This case has been transferred to the Beaumont Division of the Eastern District of Texas. This
action is brought by an individual; alleged to be a retail consumer of electricity, on behalf of herself and as a
proposed representative of a putative class of retail purchasers of electricity that are similarly situated. On
September 15; 2003, defendants filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit and a motion to transfer the case to the
Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division. TXU'Corp. believes that the plaintiff lacks standing to assert any
antitrust claims against TXU. Corp.-or TXU Portfolio Management, and that defendants have not violated
antitrust laws or other laws as claimed by the plaintiff. Therefore, TXU Corp. believes that plaintiff’s claims are
without merit and plans to vigorously defend the lawsult TXU Corp. is unable to estimate any possible loss or
predlct the outcome of this action. . :

- On October 23, 2002, a-derivative lawsuit was filed by a purported shareholder on behalf of TXU Corp. in
the 116" Judicial District Court of Dallas County, Texas, against TXU Corp., Erle Nye, Michael J. McNally,
David W. Biegler, J.S. Farrington, William M. Griffin, Kerney Laday, Jack E. Little, Margaret N. Maxey, J.E.
Oesterreicher, Charles R. Perry and Herbert H. Richardson. The plaintiff alleges breach of fiduciary duty, abuse
of control, mismanagement, waste of corporate assets, and breach of the duties of loyalty and good faith. The
named individual defendants are current or former officers and/or directors of TXU Corp. No amount of
damages has been specified. Furthermore, plaintiffs in such suit have failed to make a demand upon the
directors as isrequired by law, and this case is currently stayed. Therefore, TXU Corp. is unable to estimate any
possible loss or predict the outcome of this action. ‘

In October, November and December 2002 and January 2003, a number of lawsuits were filed in, removed
to or- transferred to the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas against TXU Corp., and
certain of its officers. These lawsuits have all been consolidated and lead plaintiffs have been appointed by the
Court. On July 21, 2003, the lead plaintiffs filed an amended consolidated complaint naming Erle Nye, Michael
J. McNally, V.J. Horgan and Brian N. Dickie and directors Derek C. Bonham, J.S. Farrington, William M.
Griffin, Kerney Laday, Jack E. Little, Margaret N. Maxey, J.E. Oesterreicher, Herbert H. Richardson and
Charles R. Perry, as defendants. The plaintiffs seek to represent classes of certain purchasers of TXU Corp.
common stock and equity-linked debt sécurities during a proposed class period from April 26, 2001 to October
11, 2002. Noclass or classes have been certified. The complaint alleges violations of the provisions of Sections
10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder,
and Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (Securities Act), relating to alleged materially
false and misleading statements, including statements in prospectuses related to the offering by TXU Corp. of its
equity-linked debt securities and common stock in May and June 2002. On September 24, 2003, TXU Corp. and
its officer and director defendants filed a motion to dismiss to plaintiffs’ Amended Complaint. The plaintiffs
have filed their response to the motion and the.defendants have filed their reply brief, however, the court has not
yet ruled on the motion to dismiss. The named individual defendants-are current or former officers and/or
directors of TXU Corp. While TXU Corp. believes the claims are without merit and intends to vigorously
defend this lawsuit, it is unable to estimate any possible loss or predict the outcome of this action.

Other Contingencies — In October 2003, the former directors and officers of TXU Europe Limited and
subsidiaries that are now in administration (collectively TXU Europe), who include current and former officers
of TXU Corp. and subsidiary companies, received notices from certain creditors and the administrators of TXU
Europe of various clairs or potential claims relating to losses incurred by creditors, including claims for alleged
omissions from a securities offering document and alleged breaches by directors of their English law duties as
directors of these companies in failing to minimize the potential losses to the creditors of TXU Europe. Under
the terms of the indemnification agreements and bylaw and charter provisions that provide for indemnification of
corporate officers and directors, TXU Corp. or one:of its subsidiaries will be obligated to indemnify these
persons from these and similar claims, unless it is determined that the corporate officer’s acts were committed in
bad faith, were the result of active and deliberate dishonesty.or that the corporate officer personally gained a
financial profit to which he was not legally entitled. Similar claims have been asserted directly against TXU
Corp., as well. TXU Corp. believes that these claims are w1thout merit and intends to vigorously defend any
such claims if they are ultimately asserted. :

General —In addition to the abovc, TXU Corp. is involved in various other legal and administrative
proceedings the ultimate resolution of which, in the opinion of TXU Corp., should not have a material effect,
upon its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF TXU CORP.
Positions and Offices Date First Elected to '
Presently Held . " Present Offices
(Current Term ) -+ (Current Term . .
Expires Expires Business Experience
Name of Officer Age on May 21, 2004) on May 21, 2004) (Preceding Five Years)
Erle Nye 66 Chairman of the Board - February 23, 2004 Chairman of the Board of TXU Corp.;
n . prior thereto, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive of TXU
Corp.
C. John Wilder 45 President and Chief February 23, 2004 President and Chief Executive of
Executive . TXU Corp; prior thereto,
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Entergy
) Corporation.

T. L. Baker 58 Executive Vice February 21, 2003 Executive Vice President of TXU
President Corp. and President and Chief
Executive of TXU Energy; prior
thereto, Executive Vice President
of TXU Corp. and President of
TXU Energy; prior thereto, Vice
Chairman of Oncor and TXU Gas;
prior thereto, President of Oncor
“and. TXU Gas; .prior thereto,
President of TXU. Electric
Company; prior thereto, President,
Electric Service Division of TXU
Electric Company and TXU Gas
Distribution Division of TXU Gas.
H. Dan Farell - "~ 54 Executive Vice ' - February 21, 2003 Executive Vice President and Chief
' . President and Chief Financial Officer of TXU Corp.;

Michael J. McNally

Eric H. Peterson:

Financial Officer

49 . Executive Vice - February 21, 2003
President
43 .- Executive Vice L - May 9, 2002
 President and General .
Counsel

There is.no family relationship between any of the above-named Executive Officers.
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prior thereto, President of TXU
Gas; prior thereto, President of
TXU Electric Company; = prior
thereto, Executive Vice President of
TXU Electric Company.

‘Executive Vice President of TXU
Corp.; prior thereto, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial

* Officer of TXU Corp.

Executive Vice President and General
Counsel of TXU Corp,; prior
thereto,” Senior Vice-President and
General Counsel for DTE Energy,;
prior thereto, partner in the law firm
of Worsham, Forsythe &
Wooldridge.




PART II

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

TXU Corp.’s common stock is listed on the New York, Chicago and Pacific stock exchanges (symbol:
TXU). The price range of the common stock of TXU Corp., as reported by Bloomberg, and the dividends paid
during each of the calendar quarters of 2003 and 2002 were as follows:

o . Price Range Dividends Paid
Quarter Ended 2003 : 2002 . 2003 2002
$2037  $15.00 $55.20 $46.27 $0.125 $ .60
June 30 2287 17.54 57.05 48.81 0.125 .60
. September 30 ........................................... 23.70 19.58 51.85 33.65 0.125 .60
December 31......ccccovenn et 23.96 20.87 40.99 10.10 0125 __60
$0.50 $2.40

Under Texas law, TXU Corp. may only declare dividends out of surplus, which is statutorily defined as
total shareholders’ equity less the book value of common stock (stated capital). The write-off of TXU Corp.’s
investment in: TXU Europe in 2002 (see Note 3 to Financial Statements) resulted in negative surplus. Texas law
permits, subject to the receipt of shareholder approval, the reclassification of stated capital into surplus. TXU
Corp. received such shareholder approval of this reclassification in a special meeting of shareholders held
~--February 14, 2003.- Accordingly, approximately $8.0 billion was reclassified from stated capital to additional

paid-in capital, resulting in an increase of surplus in the same amount. Surplus at December 31, 2003 was $5.6
billion.. :

: TXU Corp., or its predecessor TEI, have declared common stock dividends payable in cash in each year
. since TED’s incorporation in 1945. The Board of Directors of TXU.Corp., at its February 2004 meeting, declared
a quarterly dividend of $0.125 a share, payable April 1, 2004 to shareholders of record on March 5, 2004. Future
dividends may vary depending upon TXU Corp.’s profit levels, operating cash flow levels and capital
requirements'as well as financial and other business conditions existing at the time.

Dividends in 2003 were non-taxable distributions, or returns of capital.

The number of record holders of the common stock of TXU Corp. as of March 8, 2004 was 64,226.

Oncor’s mortgage restricts its payment of dividends to the amount of its retained earnings. Certain other
" debt instruments and preferred securities of TXU Corp.’s subsidiaries contain provisions that restrict payment of
dividends during any interest or distribution payment deferral period or while any payment default exists. At

December 31, 2003, there were no restrictions on the payment of dividends under these provisions.

Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information required hereunder for TXU Corp. is set forth under Selected Financial Data included in
Appendix A ‘to this report.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The information recjuired hereunder for TXU Corp. is set forth under Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in Appendix A to this report.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The information required hereunder for TXU Corp. is set forth in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in Appendix A to this report.

Item8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required hereunder for TXU Corp. is set forth under Statement of Responsibility,
Independent Auditors’ Report, Statements of Consolidated Income, Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive
Income, Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows, Consolidated Balance Sheets, Statements of Consolidated
Shareholders’ Equity and Notes to Financial Statements mcluded in Appendix A to this report.

Item9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None
Item9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

-An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of TXU Corp.’s
management, including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the disclosure controls and procedures in effect as of December 31, 2003. Based on the
evaluation performed, TXU Corp.’s management, including the principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, concluded that the disclosure controls-and procedures were effective.

There have been no significant changes in TXU Corp.’s internal controls over financial reporting for its
continuing operations that have occurred during the most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, TXU Corp.’s internal control over financial reporting.

. PART III
Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Information with respect to this item is found under the headings Election of Directors, Independence of
Directors, Meetings of the Board and Its Committees, Corporate Governance Documents and Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the definitive proxy statement to be filed by TXU Corp. with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on or about April 5, 2004. Additional information with respect to
Executive Officers of TXU Corp. is found at the end of Part L

Item11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Information with respeci to this item is found under the headings Election of 'Directors, Compensation of

Directors and Executive Compensation in the definitive proxy statement to be filed by TXU Corp: with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on or about April 5, 2004.
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Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table presents information concerning stock-based compensatlon plans as of December 31,
2003. (See Note 11 to Financial Statements )
©

Number of shares
: remaining available for
(a) (b) future issuance under
Number of shares to be Weighted-average equity compensation
issued upon exercise of _ exercise price of plans, excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a)
Stock compensation plans approved by :
. shareholders.........ccoocoermneniinciinnninns ‘ 23,674(1) $24.50 ) 6,768,437(2)
Stock compensation plans not approved ‘ :
by SharehOMErs ........comv.comvveeereveeeeronrene o - ‘ - __71.108(3)
TOAL.cevvececeermvcer s mnncessesscnone 23674 32450 6,839,545

(1). Amount relates exclusively to outsiandmg stock opﬁons assumed by TXU Corp. in connection with its 1997 merger with
ENSERCH Corporation {(now TXU Gas Company) that were exchanged for options for TXU Corp. common stock (TXU Gas
Optidn Plan).

(2) Represents shares under the TXU Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan. (See Note 11 to Fma.ncnal Statements for further
descriptions.)

(3) Represents shares under the TXU Australia Employee Share Plan described below.

TXU Gas Option Plan — As part of the acquisition of ENSERCH Corporation (now TXU Gas) by TXU
Corp., options to purchase shares of ENSERCH Corporation common stock that were granted under the
ENSERCH Corporation 1991 Stock Incentive Plan were converted into options to purchase shares of TXU Corp.
common stock. All options were granted on or before August 5, 1997, and expire on the tenth anmversary of
their grant date. No further options may be granted under this plan. TXU Corp. has reserved for issuance under
this plan a sufficient number of shares of common stock for dehvery upon exercise of the outstanding options.

The material features of each TXU Corp. stock based compcnsatxon plan that has not been approved by
shareholders are described below.

TXU Australia Employee Share Plan - TXU Australia has an Employee Share Plan, introduced in 2001,
which is available to Australia-based directors and employees of TXU Australia with at least three months of
service at the beginning of each six-month offering period starting on January 1 and July 1. Employees who
elect to participate in this plan enroll and re-enroll for six-month offer periods and purchase TXU Corp. common
stock at a 15% discount from the TXU Corp. stock price, based on the lower of the fair market value on the first
business day of the offering period or the fair market value on a nominated date just prior to final contributions
for the relevant offering period. Participants may elect between a tax exempt option or a tax deferred option. At
the end of each offering period, participants may elect to continue, change their contribution amounts or exit the
plan. As of December 31, 2003, participants were ehglble to.purchase 28,892 shares of TXU Corp. common
stock.

TXU Europe Sharesave Plan — With the exiting of the TXU Europe business, the rights of participants in
the TXU Europe Sharesave Plan to purchase TXU Corp. common stock expired in May 2003.

Summary — Other information with respect to this item is found under the heading Beneficial Ownership
of CommoniStock of the Company in the definitive proxy statement to be filed by TXU Corp. with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on or about April 5, 2004 .

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

None.
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Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information with respect to this item is found under the heading Selection of Auditors in the definitive
proxy statement to be filed by TXU Corp. with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about April S,
2004.

PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

Page
@ Documents filed as part of this Report:

Financial Statements (included in Appendix A to this report):
Selected FINancial Data ........c.covveruieioinninsieniireceenicersintese ettt sasavesesssseseseses A-2
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results Of OPETAtiONS ........cvveveriiecrcnieniieseeiitio e sesre st sttt sebetere e orenen A-4
Statement of Responsibility ...t A-62
Independent Auditors’ REPOTt.......ccoiviiiiiiiiniiiiirii i A-63
Statements of Consolidated Income for each of the three years in the

period ended December 31, 2003..........cooeviniinmvnenniciici e es A-64
Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income for each of the

Three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 ........ccocovivernincinicinccene A-65
Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows for each of the three years in

the period ended December 31, 2003 ... e, A-66
Consolidated Balance Sheets, December 31, 2003 and 2002 .......ovvvveinvvcnievieiineneenesiinnes A-67
Statements of Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity for each of the three years in

the period ended December 31,2003 ..o s A-68
Notes to Financial StAtemMEntS .......ccoevivieriieniiiiiiinenee et st enens A-70

The consolidated financial statement schedules are omitted because of the absence of the conditions
under which they are required or because the required information is included in the consolidated financial
statements or notes thereto.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K filed or furnished since September 30, 2003, are as follows:

Date ' Item

October 27, 2003 Item 12. Results of Operations and Financial Condition

November 5, 2003 Item 12. Results of Operations and Financial Condition
Regulation FD Disclosure

January 16, 2004 Item 5. Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure

February 12, 2004 Item 12. Results of Operations and Financial Condition

February 23, 2004 Item 5. Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure

February 25, 2004 Item 5. Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure

March 1, 2004 Item 9. Regulation FD Disclosure
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(c) Financial Statements of Significant Unconsolidated 50% or Less Owned Entity

The information required hereunder for Pinnacle One Partners, L.P. (Pinnacle) for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, is included in Appendix C to this report. For the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, Pinnacle was an unconsolidated entity, the financial statements of which
are required to be filed pursuant to the provisions of Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X, such requirement
arising because of the significance of financial results related to Pinnacle as compared to TXU Corp.’s
consolidated financial results for the 2002 period. For the year ended December 31, 2003, Pinnacle’s
financial results are included in TXU Corp.’s consolidated financial results as discontinued operations.

(d) Exhibits:
Included in Appendix B to this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, TXU Corp.
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TXU CORP.

Date: March 12, 2004

By: /s/ C. JOHN WILDER
(C. John Wilder, President and Chief Executive)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of TXU Corp. and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl C. JOHN WILDER Principal Executive
(C. John Wilder, President and Chief Executive) Officer and Director March 12, 2004
/s/ H. DAN FARELL Principal Financial Officer March 12, 2004

(H. Dan Farell, Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer)

Is/ DAVID H. ANDERSON Principal Accounting Officer ~ March 12, 2004
(David H. Anderson, Controller )

/s/ ERLE NYE Director March 12, 2004
(Erle Nye, Chairman of the Board) )

s/ DEREK C. BONHAM Director March 12, 2004
(Derek C. Bonham)

/s/ E. GAIL DE PLANQUE Director March 12, 2004
' (E. Gail de Planque)

/s/ WILLIAM M. GRIFFIN Director March 12, 2004
(William M. Griffin)
/s/ KERNEY LADAY ' Director March 12, 2004
(Kemey Laday)
/s/ JACK E. LITTLE Director ' March 12, 2004

(Jack E. Little)

/s! J. E. OESTERREICHER Director March 12, 2004
(J. E. Oesterreicher)

/s/ MICHAEL W. RANGER Director March 12, 2004
(Michael W. Ranger)

/s/ HERBERT H. RICHARDSON Director March 12, 2004
(Herbert H. Richardson)
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TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO FINANCIAL INFORMATION.
December 31, 2003 ‘
Page
Selected Financial Data - Consolidated Financial StALSHCS ...o.....ooo.coesoroeioroeeoeeooeesssers s A-2
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ..... A-4
Statement Of RESPONSIDINLY ........ovvervvvemiirnirriiieis it s ~A-62
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Financial Statements: N '
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’
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TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 _2000 1999
(Miilions of US Dollars, except ratios)
OPETAtING TEVENUES.......cvvvieriintnrie s srs s s s $11,008 $ 9,896 $ 9,890 $ 9,493 $ 7970
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles ...............co....... $ 737 $ 182 $ 569 $§ 673 $ 693
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect... $ @7 $(4,258) $ 165 $ 243 $ 292
Extraordinary loss, net of tax effect () .....ccooovvccmicernncnncrenenennecn: 3 - $ (134 $ D 5 — 5 —
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net
OF 12X DENEHL () .o vvveeriverirrriienrescionesensisesssssstesesstessotessssessssessesessionsas $ (58 $ - 5§ - 5 — $ —
Preference stock dividends...........cco.coerunrne. $ 22 $ 22 ‘s 22 $ 12 58 —
Net income (loss) available for common $tock...........coevvrcciivecciivnnenn, $ 560 $(4,232) $ 655 $ 904 3 985
Common stock data (millions):
Basic shares outstanding — average............cooeeererernnniceeeeeeenenenns 322 278 259 264 279
Diluted shares outstanding — average. 379 278 259 264 279
Shares outstanding — end of Year ............ccoooeveiviivinircierene s 324 322 265 258 276
Basic earnings per share: ) Co
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary ‘
loss and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles (a) ... $ 222 $ 058 $ 211 $ 251 $ 248
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect .............. $ (0.30) $(15.33) $ 063 $ 092 $ 105
Extraordinary loss, net of tax effect (@) ..c.coevrerrccrrrnivnssresneciaecnnns $ - “$ (0.48) $ (0.22) $ - $ -~
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net ‘
OFf taX BENETIL (2] ...oioveirerereiiicetee et ettt ettt $ (0.18) 38 - 3 - . 3 - $ -
Net income (loss) available for common stock....... eeeeer et nbe e ) $ 174 $(15.23) $ 252 $ 343 $ 353
Diluted eamings per share:
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary
loss and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles (a)..... $ 203 - $ 058 $ 21 $ 251 $ 248
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect . $ (0.26) $ (15.33) $ 063 $ 092 % 105
Extraordinary 1055, net o 1aX €ffeCt (2) ....uevvvrervrmrersveoemernonsssesssonsenes ‘ $ - $ (048 $ (022) §$ - $ -
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net ‘
Of taX DENEIIE () ..cvvrveeircriie et svee et e eavrr s e csnrenrosssreins $ (0.13) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Net income (loss) available for common stock . $ 162 $ (15.23) $ 252 $ 343 $ 353
Dividends declared per share..........ccoccoerrerreccnnne $ 050 $ 1925 $ 2400 $ 2400 $ 2325
Book value per share — end of year .................. $ 1734 $ 1480 $ 28.88 $ 28.97 $ 30.15
Return on average common stock equity (2) (b)...vvcercrvcnnenncennncnenes 14.6% 3.3% 7.8% 8.7% 8.4%
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges ..........ccocecevecnircnrecinncnnncsenee 1.98 1.28 1.75 1.86 1.94
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges
and preference dividends............cccooinevnennie s 1.93 1.24 1.70 1.83 1.94

See notes on page A-3.
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TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (CONT.)

Year Ended December 31,
v 2003 2002 .. 2001 2000 1999
e " -(Millions of US Dollars, except ratios)

Total assets — end Of Year.........c..vecviviieniin e $31,686 $31,405 $42,598 $45,377 $41,259

Property, plant & equipment — net — end of year........c..c...ccoevevevvonincns 20,920 19,981 19,662 19,396 19,466
Capital eXpenditures .............ccovierinricerionreieeinrenee e cnsennne 956 1,003 1,243 1,032 998
Capitalization ~ end of year o - . T -
Equity-linked debt SeCUrities ...........ccovierveniorinrineecneenns $ 1,440 $ 1,440 $ 1,350 ~$ 700 $ 700
Exchangeable subordinated notes (C).........c eceireamimnniacnnes - 639 — - —_
Long-term debt held by subsidiary trusts (d) y R . 546 cr 546 . 547 1,423 1,423
All other long-term debt, less amounts due currently .................... . 10,884 9,514 9,570 7,883 8,611
Exchangeable preferred membership interest (c) 646 . — L— - . -
Preferred stock of subsidiaries: . R : C : -
Not subject to mandatory redemption...... ... cerrcnecen. - 113 190 ) 190 190 190
Subject to mandatory redemption............... e - . 21 , 21 21 21
Common stock repurchasable under equity forward contracts....... - - - 150 —
Preference Stock.........oceienpievnrvne s s essenesas . 300 300 ) 300 300 . —
Comumon stock equity , , . 8619 T _4766 _16% _1476 8334
Tl e e 819548 $17.416 $i9,634 $18.183 $19.279
Capitalization ratios — end of year : } .
Equity-linked debt SECUIHES ..............vv..vvvrrvovrroerocoe oo 7.4% 83% 69%  39% 3.6%
Exchangeable subordinated notes........ - — 37 — — -
Long-term debt held by subsidiary trusts..........coco.coosevrrvrrercernnrens 28 C31 28 78 74
All other long-term debt, less amounts due currently ....... I 55.7 546 487 433 447
Exchangeable preferred membership interests.......................co.... ' ‘ . 33 = — — —
Preferred stock of subsidiaries................... e o 6 12 1l 12 ol
Common stock repurchasable under equity forward contracts ...... e — — ' 1.0 -
PrEference SLOCK ..ouvuvverevnierneriaresansscssssessssnntsssssssisssssssssnssassssanns 1.5 17 1.5 1.7 -
287 27.4 390 41.1 43.2

=100.0% -100.0% ~100.0% ~100.0% =100.0%

Notes payable......cc.ococrrecrnrene, $ 97 $2,324 $1914 $2379 $2,596
Long-term debt due currently ' : ' 677 © 958 866 1,844 877
Embedded interest cost on long-term debt — end of year (e)................. 6.5% 6.9% 6.2% 7.5% 6.9%
Embedded interest cost on Jong-term debt held by subsidiary-trusts ...: ' 6.4% 7.8% 7.8% " 9.8% 8.1%
Embedded dividend cost on preferred stock of subsidiaries —

end of year (£) ..o e 9.7% 6.5% 6.5% 7.0% 7.0%

3

(a) See Results of Operations in MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION-AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS. Amounts for 2002 and 2001 reflect reclassifications in accordance with the implementation of SFAS 145. See Note 1 to Financial
Statements.

(b) Based on results from continuing operations. a

(c) Exchanged for preferred membership interest in 2003. Amount is presented net of discount,

(d) The subsidiary financing trusts were deconsolidated in accordance with FIN 46. Amounts are subordinated to other long-term debt. (See Note 10 to
Financial Statements.)

(e) Represents the annual interest using year-end rate for variable rate debt and reflecting effects of interest rate swaps and amortization of any
discounts, premiums, issuance costs and any deferred gains/losses on reacquisitions divided by the carrving value of the debt plus or minus the
unamortized balance of any discounts, premiums, issuance costs and gains/losses on reacquisitions at the end of the year.

(f) Includes the unamortized balance of the loss on reacquired preferred stock and associated amortization. The embedded dividend cost excluding
the effects of the loss on reacquired preferred stock is 6.0% for 2002, 6.0% for 2001, 6.2% for 2000 and 6.2% for 1999.

Certain previously reported financial statistics have been reclassified to conform to current classifications.
Prior year periods have been restated to reflect certain operations as discontinued operations. (See Note 3 to Financial Statements.)

See Note 2 to Financial Statements for proforma amounts relating to adoption of SFAS 143,




MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

BUSINESS

Use of thejterm “TXU Corp.,” unless otherwise noted, refers to TXU Corp., a holding company, and/or its
consolidated subsidiaries.

TXU Corp. engages in power production (electricity generation), retail and wholesale sales of electricity
-and natural gas, and the transmission and distribution of electricity and natural gas. In the competitive energy
operations, TXU Corp. engages in hedging and risk management activities. TXU Corp. is a holding company
that conducts its US operations through US Holdings and TXU Gas. US Holdings is also a holding company that
conducts its principal operations through TXU Energy and Oncor. TXU Corp.’s principal international
operations are conducted through TXU Australia. ‘

- TXU Corp. has three reportable segments: Energy, Energy Delivery and Australia. (See Note 19 to -
Financial Statements for further information concermng reportable business segments.) '

Changes in Business

Discontinued Businesses — Prior to October 2002, TXU Corp. conducted international operations through
" 'TXU Europe. At that time, a substantial portion of the business was sold. In 2002, TXU Corp. recorded a $4.2
billion charge principally to write off its investment in TXU Europe. The write-off was recorded without tax
benefit. A tax benefit to earnings of up to $983 million could be recognized if uncertainties regarding the
deductibility of the write-off are favorably resolved. See Note 3 to Financial Statements for additional
discussion. :

In January 2004, TXU Corp. entered into an agreement to sell its telecommunications business for $527
million. The business was formerly a joint venture and has been consolidated since March 1, 2003.

In December 2003, TXU Energy finalized a formal plan to sell its strategic retail services business, which
is engaged principally in providing energy management services.

In January 2004, TXU Corp. sold its majority interest in a small natural gas distribution business in Mexico
for $11 million.

The consolidated financial statements for all years presented reflect the reclassification of the results of
these businesses (for the periods they were consolidated) as discontinued operations.

See Note 3 to Financial Statements for more detailed information about discontinued operations.
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Exchange Rates

The following exchange rates have been used to convert foreign currency denominated amounts into US
dollars, unless they were determmed usmg exchange rates on the date.of a specrﬁc event:
. Income Statement

Balance Sheet - C . - (average for year
(at December 31,) ended December 31,)
2003 2002 ‘ 2003 2002 2001
Australian dollars (A$) ........ccoerveiilivene © o $0.7495 $0.5650 © $0.6525 $0.5441 $0.5182

All dollar amounts in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and the tables therein, except per share amounts, are stated in millions of US dollars unless:
otherwise indicated. .

MANAGEMENT’S CHALLENGES AND INITIATIVES

Management Change

On February 23, 2004, C. John Wilder was named president and chief executive of TXU Corp. Mr. Wilder
was formerly executive vice president and chief financial officer of Entergy Corporation. Mr. Wilder is in the
process of reviewing the operations of TXU Corp. and formulating strategic initiatives. This review is expected
to take up to six months. Upon completion, TXU Corp. expécts to fully describe the results of the review and
subsequent actlons intended to 1mprove the financial performance of its operations.

Areas to be reviewed include:

Performance in competitive markets, including profitability in new markets
Cost structure, including organizational ahgnmems and headcount
Management of natural gas price risk

+ Non-core business activities

If any new strategic initiatives are undertaken, TXU Corp.’s financial results could be materially affected.

Competitive Markets

In the Texas market, 2003 was the second full year of competitivé activity, and that activity has impacted
customer counts and sales volumes. The area representing the historical service territory prior to deregulation,
largely in north Texas, consisted of approximately 2.8 million consumers (measured by meter counts) as of year-
end of 2003. TXU Energy currently has approximately 2.4 million customers in that territory and has acquired
approximately 200,000 customers in other competitive areas in' Texas. Total customer counts declined 4% in
2003 and 0.5% in 2002. Retail sales volumes declined 12% in 2003 and 9% in 2002, reflecting: competitive
activity in the business market segment and to a lesser extent in the residential market. While wholesale sales
volumes have increased significantly, gross margins have been compressed by the loss -of the higher-margin
retail volumes. TXU Energy intends to aggressively compete, in terms of price and customer service, in all
segments of the retail market, both within and outside the historical service territory. ' In particular, TXU Energy
anticipates regaining volumes in the large business market, reflecting contracting activity in late 2003. Because
of the customer service and marketing costs associated with entering markets outside of the historical service
territory, TXU Corp. has experienced operating losses in these new markets. TXU Corp. expects to be profitable
in these markets as the customer base grows and economies of scale are achieved, but uncertamnes remain and
objectives may not be achieved.
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Effect of Natural Gas Prices

Wholesale electricity prices in the Texas market generally move with the price of natural gas because
marginal demand is met with gas-fired generation plants. Natural gas prices increased significantly in 2003, but
historically the' price has moved up and down due to the effects of weather, industrial demand, supply
availability and other economic factors. Consequently, sales price management and hedging activities are
critical in achieving targeted gross margins. TXU Energy continues to have price flexibility in the large business
market and effective January 1, 2004, has price flexibility in the small business market, including the historical
service territory. With respect to residential customers in the historical service territory, TXU Energy is subject
to regulated “price-to-beat” rates, but such rates can be adjusted up or down twice a year at TXU Energy’s
option, subject to approval by the Commission, based on changes in natural gas prices. . The challenge in
adjusting these rates is determining the appropriate timing, considering past and projected movements in natural
gas prices, such that targeted margins can be achieved while remaining competitive with other retailers who have
price flexibility. TXU Energy increased the price-to-beat rates twice in 2003, and these actions combined with
unregulated price increases and hedgmg activities essentially offset higher costs of energy sold as compared to
2002.

In its portfolic management activities, TXU Energy enters into physical and financial energy-related
(power and natural gas) contracts to hedge gross margins. TXU Energy hedges prices of anticipated power sales
against falling matural gas prices and, to a lesser extent; hedges costs of energy sold against rising natural gas
prices. The results of hedging and risk management activities can vary significantly from one reporting period to
the next as a result of market price movements on the values of hedging instruments. Such activity represents an
effective management tool to reduce cash gross margin risk over time. ‘The challenge, among others, with these
activities is managing the portfolio of positions in a market in which prices can move sharply in a short period of
time.

One of TXU Energy’s cost advantages, particularly in a time of rising natural gas prices, is its nuclear-
powered and coal/lignite-fired generation assets. Variable costs of this “base load” generation, which provided
approximately 50% of sales volumes in 2003, have in recent history been, -and are expected to be, less than the
costs of gas-fired generation. Consequently, maintaining the efficiency and reliability of the base load assets is
of critical importance in managing gross margin risk. Completing scheduled maintenance outages at the nuclear-
powered facility on a timely basis, for example, is a critical management process. Because of the correlation of
power and natural gas prices in the Texas market, structural decreases or increases in natural gas prices that are
sustained over a multi-year period result in a correspondingly lower or higher value of TXU Corp.’s base load
generation assets. ' '

OQA erating Costs and SG&A Expenses

With the transition from a fully regulated environment to competition in the retail and wholesale electricity
markets, TXU Corp. continues to seek opportunities to enhance productivity, reduce complexity and improve the
effectiveness of its operating processes. -Such efforts are balanced against the need to maintain the reliability,
efficiency, and security of its electricity and gas delivery. infrastructure and: generation fleet. Cost reduction
initiatives have resulted in lower headcounts,-the exiting- of marginal business activities and reduced
discretionary spending. Total operating costs and SG&A expenses in TXU Energy’s continuing operations
declined $149 million, or 10%, in 2003. These costs include TXU Corp. corporate expenses allocated to TXU
Energy. While upward cost pressures are expected for competitive sales and marketing initiatives, customer care
and support activities, and employee and retiree benefits, mcreasmg productivity levels will continue to be a
management priority. -

In the regulatéd Us eleétﬁcity and gas- delivery businesses, upward cost pressures; such as risirig employee

benefits expenses, have been mitigated by efficiency enhancements. Reported operating cost increases in those
businesses were largely offset by revenues specific to those cost drivers.
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Regulated Businesses

TXU Corp.’s electricity and gas delivery businesses in the US are subject to regulation by Texas
authorities. ' The Oncor electricity delivery business provides delivery services to REPs who sell electricity to
retail customers; consequeritly, Oncor has no commodity supply or price risk. Oncor operates in a favorable
regulatory environment, as evidenced by a regulatory provision that allows Oncor to annually update its
transmission rates to reflect changes in. invested capital. This provision encourages investment in the
transmission system to help ensure reliability and efficiency by allowing for timely recovery and return on new
transmission investments. Oncor has only one transmission-related rate case pending. -

The substantial majority of TXU Gas’ business is subject to regulated transmission and distribution rates.
Gas costs are passed through to customers; therefore, margins are driven by the delivery service rates and
volumes sold. Results of the business are seasonal and significantly impacted by weather. A key initiative
therefore is to establish service rates that are adequate to ensure a' reasonable return and meet growing demands
for gas services. In May 2003, TXU Gas, for the first time, filed a system-wide distribution rate case for all 437
cities served. If successful, the rate case would result in an annual increase in revenues of approximately $70
million. A final regulatory order is expected in the second quarter of 2004. TXU Gas also expects to utilize new
legislative prov151ons that permn tlmely recovery of i mvestments in mfrastructure

TXU Australia

The Australian operations represented approximately 10% of TXU Corp.’s revenues and 14% of ongoing
- earnings (before extraordinary items and discontinued operations) in 2003. Australia’s reported results in 2003
benefited from the translation effect of the stronger Australian dollar as well as growth on a local currency basis.
Similar to the US operations, the Australian business includes a mix of competitive and regulated operations
involving electricity generation, retail sales and delivery as well as natural gas retail sales, delivery and storage,
all largely in the states of Victoria and South Australia. Retail electricity markets have recently become
competitive, and TXU Australia has been successful in driving volume growth, particularly in the business
segment. Wholesale electricity prices have declined due to mild weather and increased generation capacity, and
the ultimate effect of a sustained reduction is uncertain. However, in 2003, the effect of such lower prices
resulted in improved profitability in retail operations that more than offset a decline in the' wholesale business.
TXU Corp. is considering various options with respect to its investment in TXU Australia, one of which is a
possible local initial public’ offermg of addmonal common stock by TXU Austraha to support growth
opportumtxes

Liguidigx and Capital Structur '

TXU Corp. believes that it has adequate liquidity, as }epresented by $2.5 billion in undrawn credit facility
availability and $875 million in cash on hand as of year-end 2003. The ma_|or1ty of the fac111t1es expire in 2005
but are expected to be renewed

With its large retail sales base, TXU Corp. generates operating cash flows antlcxpated to approximate $1.7
to $2.0 billion annually in the near:term. Working capital management is critical in maintaining these cash flows.
In the transition to competition during 2002, TXU Corp. experienced unfavorable working capital changes as

- data compilation and reconciliation issues among ERCOT and the market participants impacted the timeliness of
billings and, as a result, slowed cash collections. These issues have lessened in significance, but refinements in
credit and collection policies and processes remain a priority. The operating cash flows exceéd capital
expenditure needs and dividend payments and therefore allow for the reduction of debt.

The net reduction in short-term borrowings, preferred securities of subsidiaries and long-term debt totaled
$2.2 billion” in 2003." This amount includes repayments of $250 million in'debt of the telecommunications
holding company. A portion of this reduction was funded by cash on hand, which declined $698 million to
$875 million at year-end 2003. Redemption of the remaining $560 million of debt in 2004 related to the
telecommunications business is expected to be largely funded by proceeds from the sale of the business
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anticipated to be completed in the first half of 2004. Other debt repayments in 2004 are expected to total
approximately $1.0 billion., Oncor issued $500 million of securitization bonds in 2003 and expects: to issue
approximately $790 million in additional such bonds in the first half of 2004. These bonds relate to regulatory
asset stranded costs and were issued under regulatory order. Proceeds from the bonds were, and will be, used to
retire debt. Because the bond principal and interest payments are secured by the collection of rate surcharges by
Oncor, the debt is excluded from TXU Corp.’s capitalization by credit rating: agencies. . -Total debt to
capitalization, including short-term debt and securitization bonds, was 67% and 74% at year end 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Reducing debt and strengthemng the balance sheet remams a management prlorlty

(1) For purposes of this calculation, debt balances are reduced by ﬁnancmg—related restncted cash of $525 million and $210 million
at year-end 2003 and 2002, respectively, and the increase in debt in 2003 due to currency translation of $379 million.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

TXU Corp.’s significant accounting policies are detailed in Note 1 to Financial Statements. TXU Corp.
follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In applying these accounting
policies in the preparation of TXU Corp.’s consolidated financial statements, management is required to make
estimates and assumptions about future events that affect the reporting and disclosure of assets and liabilities at
the balance sheet dates and revenue and expense during the periods covered. The following is a summary of
certain critical accounting policies of TXU Corp. that are impacted by judgments and uncertainties and for
which different amounts might be reported under a different set of conditions or using different assumptions.

Financial Instruments and Mark-to-Market Accounting — TXU Corp. enters into financial instruments,
mcludmg options, swaps, futures, forwaxds and other contractual commitments primarily to hedge market risks
related to changes in commodity prices as well as changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange Tates.
These financial instruments are accounted for in accordance with. SFAS 133 as well as, prior to October 26,
2002, EITF 98-10. The majority of financial instruments entered into by TXU Corp. and used in hedging
activities are derivatives as defined in SFAS 133. . ‘

SFAS 133 requires the recognition of derivatives in the balance sheet, the measurement of those
instruments at fair value and the recognition in earnings of changes in the fair value of derivatives. This
recognition is referred to as “mark-to-market” -accounting. SFAS 133 prov1des exceptions to this accounting if
(a) the derivative is deemed to represent a transaction in the normal course of purchasing from a supplier and
selling to a customer, or (b) the derivative is deemed to be a cash flow or fair value hedge. In accounting for
cash flow hedges, derivative assets and liabilities are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value with an offset in
other comprehensive income. Amounts are reclassified from other comprehensive income to earnings as the
underlying transactions occur and realized gains and losses are recognized in earnings. Fair value hedges are
recorded as derivative assets or liabilities with an offset to the carrying value of the related asset or llablllty Any
hedge ineffectiveness related to cash flow and fair value hedges is recorded in earnings.

TXU Corp. documents designated commodity, debt-related and other hedging relationships, including the
strategy and objectives for entering into such hedge transactions and the related specific firm commitments or
forecasted transactions. ' TXU Corp. applies hedge accounting in accordance with SFAS 133 for these non-
trading transactions, providing the underlymg transactions remain probable of occurring. Effectiveness is
assessed based on changes in cash flows of the hedges as compared to changes in cash flows of the hedged
items. In its risk management activities, TXU Corp. hedges future electricity revenues using natural gas
instruments; such cross-commodity hedges are subject to ineffectiveness calculatlons that can result in mark-to-
market gains and losses.

Pursuant to SFAS 133, the normal purchase or sale exception and the cash flow hedge designation are
elections that can be made by management if certain strict criteria are met and documented.  As these elections
can reduce the volatility in earnings resulting from fluctuations in fair value, results of operations.could be
materially affected by such elections.

»
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. Interest rate-and currency swaps entered into in connection with indebtedness to manage interest rate and
foreign currency exchange rate risks are accounted for as cash flow hedges if the swap converts rates from
vanable to fixed and are accounted for as fair value hedges if the swap converts rates from fixed to vanable

- EITF 98 10 requxred mark-to-market accounting for energy- related contracts, ‘whether or not derxvatlves
under SFAS 133, that were deemed to be entered into for trading purposes as defined by that rule. The majority
of commodity contracts and energy-related financial instruments entered into by TXU Corp. to manage
commodity price risk represented. trading activities as defined by EITF 98-10 and were therefore marked-to-
market. . On October 25, 2002, the EITF rescinded EITF 98-10. Pursuant to ‘this rescission, only financial
instruments that are derivatives under SEFAS 133 are subject to mark-to-market accounting.

In June 2002 in connection with the EITF’s consensus on ]EITF 02-3 addmonal guidance on recognizing
gains and losses at the inception of a trading contract was provided. In November 2002, this guidance was
extended to all derivatives. AS a result, effective in 2003, TXU Corp. discontinued recording mark-to-market
gains on inception of energy contracts. -See discussion below in Results of Operatlons “Commodity Contracts
and Mark-to-Market Activities.” :

Mark- to market accountmg recogmzes changes in the value of ﬁnancml instruments as reflected by market
price fluctuations. In the energy market, the availability of quoted. market prices is dependent on the type of
commodity (e.g., natural gas, electricity, etc.), time period specified and location of delivery. In computing the
mark-to-market valuations, each market segment is split into liquid and illiquid periods. The liquid period varies
by region and commodity. Generally, the liquid period is supported by broker quotes.and frequent trading
activity. - In illiquid periods, little or no market mformauon may exist, and the fair Value is estimated through
market modelmg techniques. -

For those periods where quoted market prices are not available, forward price curves.are developed based
on the available information or through the use of industry accepted modeling techniques and practices based on
market fundamentals (e.g., supply/demand, replacement cost, etc.). TXU Corp. does not recogmze mcome or
loss from the illiquid perlods unless credible pnce discovery exists. :

TXU Corp. recorded net unrealized losses arising from mark-to-market accounting, including hedge
ineffectiveness, of $128 million and $108 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The 2003 amount excludes
the cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles discussed in Note 2 to Financial Statements.

~ Revenue Recognition — TXU Corp. records revenue for retdil and wholesale: energy sales under the
accrual method. Retail electric’and gas revenues aré recognized when the commodity is provided to customers
on the basis of periodic cycle meter readings and include an estimated accrual for the value of the commodity

. consumed from the meter reading date to the end of the period. The unbilled revenue is calculated at the end of

the period based on estimated daily consumption after the meter read date to the end of the period. Estimated
daily consumption is derived using historical customer profiles adjusted for weather and other measurable
factors affecting consumption. Electricity delivery revenues are recognized when delivery services are provided
to customers on the basis of periodic cycle meter readings and include an estimated accrual for the delivery fee
value of electricity provided from the meteérréading date to the end of the period. Unbilled revenues-reflected in
accounts receivable totaled $612 million and $644 million at Decemiber 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Realized and unrealized gains and losses from transacting in energy-related contracts, principally for the
purpose of hedging margins on sales of energy, are reported as a component of revenues. As discussed above
under “Financial Instruments and Mark-to-Market Accounting,” recognition of unrealized gains and losses

involves a number of assumptions and estimates that could have a significant effect on reported revenues and
carnmgs

Accounting for Contmgenczes — The ﬂnanmal results of TXU Corp. may be affécted by judgments and

estimates related to loss contingencies. Accruals for loss conungenmes are recorded when management
determines that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and that such
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economic loss can be reasonably estimated. Such determinations are subject to interpretations of current facts
and cxrcumstances, forecasts of future events and estimates of the financial impacts of such events.

A 51gn1ﬁcant contmgency that TXU Corp. accounts for is the loss associated with uncollectible trade
accounts receivable. The determination of such bad debts expense is based on factors such as historical write-off
experience, agings of accounts receivable balances, changes in operating practices, regulatory rulings, general
economic conditions and customers’ behaviors.- With the opening of the Texas electricity market to competition,
many historical measures used to estimate bad debt experience may be less reliable.. The changing environment,
including recent regulatory changes that allow REPs in their historical service territories to disconnect non-
paying customers, and customer churn due to competitor actions has added a level of complexity to the
estimation process. Bad debt expense totaled $133 rmlhon $171 Imlhon and $84 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectxvely

In connection with the opening of the Texas market.to competition, the Texas Legislature established a
retail clawback provision intended to incent affiliated REPs of utilities to actively compete for customers outside
their historical service territories. A retail clawback liability arises unless 40% of the electricity consumed by
residential and small business customers in the historical service territory is supplied by competing REPs after
the first two years of competition. This threshold was reached for small business customers in 2003, but.not for
residential customers. The amount of the liability is equal to the number of such customers retained by TXU
Energy as of January 1, 2004, less the number of new customers from outside the historical service territory,
multiplied by $90. The credit, which will be funded by TXU Energy, will be applied to delivery fees charged by
Oncor to REPs, including TXU Energy, over a two-year period beginning January 1, 2004. In 2002, TXU
Energy recorded a charge to cost of energy sold and delivery fees of $185 million ($120 million after-tax) to
accrue #h estimated retail clawback liability. In 2003, TXU Energy reduced the liability to $173 million, with a
credit to cost of energy sold and delivery fees of $12 million ($8 million after-tax), to reflect the calculation of
the estimated liability applicable only to residential customers in accordance with the Settlement Plan.

In 2002, TXU Corp.’s telecommunications business, then an unconsolidated joint venture, recorded
impairments of long-lived assets and goodwill (see discussion below under "Impairment of Long-Lived Assets"
and "Goodwill and Intangible Assets"). Consequently, TXU Corp. evaluated its potential obligations related to
the partnership arrangement. TXU Corp. determined that it was probable, in light of the decline in value of the
business, that an economic loss had occurred, and accordmgly recorded a charge of $150 million (without tax
benefit) in 2002, reported in other deducuons

ERCOT Settlements - ERCOT'’s responsibilities include the balancing and settlement of electricity
volumes and related ancillary services among the various participants in the deregulated Texas market. ERCOT
settles balancing energy with market participants through a load and resource imbalance charge or credit for any
differences between actual and scheduled volumes. Ancillary services and various fees are allocated to market
participants based on each participant’s load.

Settlcment information is due from ERCOT within two months after the operating day, and true-up
settlements are due from ERCOT within twelve months after the operating day. The ERCOT settlement process
has been delayed several times to address operational data. management problems between ERCOT, the
transmission and distribution service providers and the REPs. These operational data management issues are
related to new processes and systems associated with opening the ERCOT market to competition, which have
continued to improve. True-up settlements have been received for 2002, but true-up settlements for the year
2003 are currently scheduled to start on June 1, 2004. All periods continue to be subject to a dispute resolutlon
process.

As a result of the delay in the ERCOT settlements and the normal time lags described above, TXU
Energy’s operating revenues and costs of energy sold contain estimates for load and resource imbalance charges
or. credits with ERCOT and for ancillary services and related fees that are subject to change and may result in
charges or credits impacting future reported. results of operations. The amounts recorded represent the best
estimate of these settlements based on available information. During 2003, TXU Energy recorded a net expense
of $20 million to adjust amounts previously recorded for 2002 and 2001 ERCOT settlements.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — TXU Corp. -evaluates long-lived assets for impairment whenever
indications of impairment exist, in accordance with the requirement of SFAS 144, One of those indications is a
current expectation that “more likely than not” a long-lived asset will be sold or otherwise disposed of
significantly*before the end of its previously estimated useful life. The determination of the existence of this and
other indications of impairment involves judgments that are subjective in nature and in some cases requires the
use of estimates in forecasting future results and cash flows related-to an asset or group of assets. Further, the
unique nature of TXU Corp.’s property, plant and equipment, which includes a fleet of generation assets using
different fuels and individual plants that have varying utilization rates, requires the use of significant Judgments
in determining the existence of impairment indications and grouping assets for impairment testing.

In 2002, TXU Corp. recorded an impairment charge of $237 million ($154 million after-tax) for the
writedown of two generation plant construction projects as a result of weaker wholesale electricity market
conditions and reduced planned developmental capital spending.. Fair value was determined based on appraisals
of property and equlpment The charge is reported in other deductions.

Also, in 2002, TXU Corp.’s telecommumcatlons business, then an unconsohdated joint venture, recorded
impairments of long-lived assets, of which TXU Corp. recogmzed its share, $28 million ($18 million after-tax)
The charge is reported in other deductions as part of equ1ty in losses of unconsolidated entmes

Goodwill and Intangible Assets — TXU Corp. evaluates goodwill for impairment at least annually (as of
October 1) in accordance with SFAS 142. The impairment tests performed are based on discounted cash flow
analyses.  Such analyses require a significant ‘number of estimates and assumptions regarding future earnings,
working capital requirements, capital expenditures, discount rate, terminal year growth factor and ‘other
modeling factors. No- goodwill impairment has been recogmzed for consolrdated reportmg units reﬂected in
results from conunumg operatlons ‘

In 2002, TXU Corp.’s telecommunications business, then an unconsolidated joint venture, recorded a
goodwill impairment charge, of which TXU Corp. recognized its share, $9 million ($6 million after-tax). The
charge was reported in other deductlons as part of equity in losses of unconsolrdated entities.

Regulatory Assefs and Ltabzlme‘s — The financial statements of TXU Corp.’s regulated businesses,
primarily its Texas electricity and gas delivery operations, reflect regulatory assets and liabilities under cost-
based rate regulation in accordance with SFAS 71. As a result of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation, application
of SFAS 71 to the generation operations was discontinued in 1999. The assumptions and judgments used by
regulatory authorities continue to have an impact on thé recovery of costs, the rate earned on invested capital and
the timing and amount of assets to be recovered by rates.- (See discussion in Note 1 to Financial Statements
under “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.”) = : : ‘ :

Approximately $1.8 billion in regulatory asset stranded costs arising prior to the 1999 Restructuring
Legislation became subject to recovery through issuance of transition (securitization) bonds in accordance with
the Settlement Plan with the Commission as described in Note 16 to Findncial Statements. As a result of the
final approval of the Settlement Plan in January 2003, TXU Corp. recorded an extraordinary loss of $134 million
(net of income tax benefit of $72 million) in the fourth quarter of 2002 principally to write down this regulatory
asset. The carrying value of the regulatory asset after the write down represented the estimated future cash flows
to be recovered from REPs, through a delivery fee surcharge, to service the principal and interest of the bonds:
The carrying value of the regulatory asset is subject to further adjustment, which would be recorded as an
extraordinary item, as'the remaining portion (approximately $790 million) of the securitization bonds will be
issued in 2004. -

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans — TXU Corp. offers pension
benefits through various defined benefit pension plans and also offers certain health care and life insurance
benefits to eligible employees and their eligible dependents upon the retirement of such employees from TXU
Corp. Reported costs of providing non-contributory defined pension benefits and other postretirement benefits
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are dependent upon numerous factors, assumptions and estimates. (See Note 13 to Financial Statements for
information regarding retirement plans and other postretirement benefits.)

‘These costs are impacted by actual employee demographics (including age, compensation levels and
employment periods), the level of contributions made to retiree plans and earnings on plan assets. TXU Corp.’s
retiree plan assets are primarily made up of equity and fixed income investments. Changes made to the
provisions of the plans may also impact current and future benefit costs. Fluctuations in actual equity market
returns as well as changes in general interest rates may result in increased or decreased benefit costs in future
periods. Benefit costs may also be significantly affected by changes in key actuarial assumptions, including
anticipated rates of return on plan assets and the discount rates used in determining the projected benefit
obhgatlon

In accordance w1th accounting rules, changes in benefit obhgatlons associated with these factors may not
be 1mmed1ate1y recognized as costs on the income statement, but are recognized in future years over the
remaining average service period of plan participants. As such, significant portions of benefit costs recorded in
any period may not reflect the actual level of cash benefits provided to plan participants. TXU Corp. recorded
pension expense of $49 million and $8 million and income of $11 million for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 87. Other postretirement benefit
expense recorded in accordance with SFAS 106 totaled $100 million, $84 million and $68 million for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

During 2003 key assumptions of the US pension and other postretirement benefit plans were revised,
including decreasing the assumed discount rate in 2003 from 6.75% to 6.25% to reflect current interest rates.
The expected rate of return on pension plan assets remained at 8.5%, but declined to 8.01% from 8.26% for the
other postretirement benefit plan assets. In selecting assumed discount rates, TXU Corp. considered fixed
income security yield rates for AA rated portfolios as reported by Moody’s. In selecting an assumed rate of

_return on plan assets, TXU Corp. considers past performance and economic forecasts for the types of
investments held by the plan. (See Note 13 to Financial Statements.) Total asset values for the pension and
other postretirement benefit plans increased $358 million in 2003 and declined $221 million and $84 million in
2002 and 2001, respectively. The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003
(the Medicare Act) was enacted in December 2003. TXU Corp. elected to begin recognition of the federal
subsidy under the Medicare Act, which resulted in a $2 million reduction of benefit expense in 2003.
Accounting rules. currently allow for such recognition, but specific guidance for the federal subsidy is pending,
and may result in deferral of the effect of the subsidy. :

_ Reported pension and other postretirement benefit costs for US plans are expected to increase in 2004 by
approximately $16 million. This projected expense increase is net of an estimated benefit of $23 million related
to the Medicare Act. The total benefit obligations of the pension and other postretirement benefit plans
increased by :$199 million as a result of the change in the discount rate. Further, based on the current
assumptions and available information, funding requirements related to the US pension and other postretirement
plans are expected to increase approximately $24 million to $115 million in 2004. Benefit costs and cash
funding requirements could increase in future-years.

As a result of the pension plan asset return experience, at December 31, 2002, TXU Corp. recognized a
minimum pension liability as prescribed by SFAS 87.. The liability, which totaled $128 million ($83 million
after-tax), was recorded as a reduction to shareholders’ equity through a charge to Other Comprehensive Income.
At December 31, 2003, the minimum pension liability reflects a reduction of $82 million ($54 million after-tax)
as a result of improved returns on the plan assets. The changes in the minimum pension liability do not affect
net income.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The results of operations and the related management’s discussion of those results for all periods presented
reflect the discontinuance of certain operations of TXU Corp. (see Note 3 to Financial Statements regarding
discontinued operations) and the reclassifications of losses in 2002 and 2001 on early extinguishments of debt
from extraordinary loss to other deductions in accordance with SFAS 145. (See Note 1 to Financial Statements.)

Accounting Changes — In October 2002, the EITF, through EITF 02-3, rescinded EITF 98-10, which
required mark-to-market accounting for all trading activities. Pursuant to this rescission, only financial
instruments that are-derivatives under SFAS 133 are subject to mark-to-market accounting. Effective January 1,
2003, non-derivative energy contracts were required to be accounted for on a settlement basis. SFAS 143,
regarding asset retirement obligations, became effective on January 1, 2003. As a result of the implementation
of these two accounting standards, TXU Corp. recorded a cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles
as of January 1, 2003 of a net charge of $58 million. (See Note 2 for a discussion of the impacts of these two
accounting standards.) ‘

See Note 1 to Financial Statements for discussion of other changés in accounting standards.
TXU Corp. Consolidated

2003 cbmgared to 2002

Reference is made to comparisons of results by business segment following the discussion of consolidated
results. The business segment comparisons provide additional detail and quantification of items affecting
financial results. , ' : '

TXU Corp.’s operating revenues increased $1.1 billion, or 11%, to $11.0 billion in 2003. Revenues in the
Energy Delivery segment rose by $456 million, or 15%, to $3.4 billion driven by higher gas costs passed on to
customers and increased electricity transmission and distribution tariffs. Operating revenues rose $304 million,
or 4%, to $8.0 billion in the Energy segment reflecting higher retail and wholesale pricing, partially offset by the
effect of a mix shift to lower-price wholesale sales and lower sales volumes. Revenues in the Australia segment
increased $243 million, or 28%, to $1.1 billion driven by the translation effect of the stronger Australian dollar
($185 million) and higher retail electricity and gas volumes. Consolidated revenue growth also reflected a $111
million reduction in the intercompany sales elimination, primarily reflecting lower sales by Oncor to TXU
Energy as sales to nonaffiliated REPs increased. ‘ \

Net gains from hedging and risk management activities, which are reported in revenues and include both
realized and unrealized gains and losses, declined $189 million to $60 million in 2003. Changes in these results
reflect market price movements on commodity contracts entered into to hedge gross margin; the comparison to
2002 .also reflects a decline in .US activities in markets outside Texas and a 2002 contract termination gain in
Australia. , Results from these activities include net unrealized losses arising from mark-to-market accounting of
$128 million in 2003 and $108 million in 2002. :

Gross Margin‘
Year Ended December 31,
: %of . %of

2003 Revenue 2002 Revenue
Operating revenues .......... e et b en s . $11,008 100% - % 9.89% 100%
Costs and expenses: -~ ., : o . CoL i :
Cost of energy sold and delivery fees .......co.cccoeccmcicnccnninenns . 4,947 . 45% 4,087 41%
OPETAHNG COSIS ....oveviieveiiiesseesesesereems e ees bt sesan s nansas 1,665 15% 1,592 16%
Depreciation and amortization related to operating assets............ 806 1% 9 - 8%
GIOSS IMATZIN «.eevvvverevrcerieens et et sene s sseseens s tebessnsstaresaarseneres $_3,590 33% $ 3426 ____35%
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Gross margin is considered a key operating metric as it measures the effect of changes in sales volumes and
pricing versus the variable and fixed costs of energy sold, whether generated or purchased, as well as the costs to
deliver energy.

The depreciation and amortization expense included in gross margin excludes $80 million and $77 million
of such expense for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, related to assets that are not
directly used in-the generation and delivery of energy. ‘ ‘

Gross margin increased $164 million, or 5%, to $3.6 billion in 2003. An increase in the Australia
segment’s margin of $85 million, or 27%, to $401 million reflected the stronger Australian dollar, the effect of
higher retail electricity sales volumes and lower purchased power costs. The Energy Delivery segment’s gross
margin increased $78 million, or 6%, to $1.4 billion reflecting higher electricity and gas delivery rates and the
effect of increased gas prices on revenue-based taxes. The Energy segment’s gross margin increased $12
million, or 1%, to $1.8 billion. The gross margin comparison was favorably impacted by $197 million due to
regulatory-related retail clawback accrual adjustments (a $185 million charge, $120 million after-tax, in 2002
and a $12 million credit in 2003). The balance of the Energy segment’s gross margin.change reflected a 12%
decline in retail sales volumes, partially offset by lower depreciation expense as described immediately below.

Depreciation and amortization (including amounts shown in the gross margin table above) increased $18
million, or 2%, to $886 million in 2003, reflecting investments in delivery facilities to support growth and
normal replacements of equipment and the start of amortization of regulatory assets associated with
securitization bonds issued in 2003. These effects were partially offset by a $37 million impact of lower
depreciation related to TXU Energy’s generation fleet due primarily to an extension of the estimated depreciable
life.of the nuclear generation facility to better reflect its useful life.

SG&A expense decreased $105 million, or 9%, to $1.1 billion in 2003. This decrease was driven by the
Energy segment and reflected lower staffing and related administrative expenses arising from cost reduction and
productivity enhancing initiatives and a focus on activities in the Texas market. .

‘Franchise and revenue-based taxes decreased $22 nulhon, or 5%, to $456 million in 2003, due pnmarlly to
lower retail revenues on which gross recelpts taxes are based.

Other income increased $31 million to $82 Imlhon in 2003 Net gains on sales of businesses and properties
totaled $46 million in 2003 and $35 million in 2002.  The 2003 period also includes $23 of unrealized foreign
exchange gains on an Australian dollar denominated note receivable. See Note 20 to Financial Statements under
Other Income and Deductions for additional detail.

Other deductions decreased $531 million to $46 million in 2003. The 2002 period includes a $237 million
($154 million after-tax) writedown: of an investment in generation plant construction projects and $187 million
(3174 million after-tax) in charges related to the telecommunications business, then an unconsolidated joint
venture (Pinnacle). The charges related to Pinnacle include $37 million ($24 million after-tax) for TXU Corp.’s
share of the joint venture’s impairments of long-lived assets and goodwill and a $150 million charge (without tax
benefit) to record TXU Corp.’s obligations under the partnership agreement arising from the decline in value of
the business. Ongoing equity losses (excluding impairment charges in 2002) related to Pinnacle, also reported in
other deductions, were $17 million in 2003 and $67 million in 2002. The decline primarily reflected the
consolidation of the business effective March 2003. (See Notes 3 and 17 to Financial Statements.) Other
deductions in 2002 included $63 million ($41 million after-tax) in losses on retirement of debt. See Note 20 to
Financial Statements under Other Income and Deductions for additional detail.

Interest income rose $13 million, or 42%, to $44 million in 2003. The increase primarily reflected interest
income on higher cash balances due to actions taken in late 2002 to ensure ample liquidity, as well as interest
received on restricted cash balances held as collateral for a US credit facxhty and to support funding of
construction of a natural gas pipeline in Austraha by a joint venture.
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Interest expense and related charges increased $93 million, or 11%, to $975 million in 2003, reflecting an
$81 million increase due to higher average interest rates resulting in part from the replacement of short-term
borrowings with higher rate long-term debt, a $4 million increase due to higher average borrowings and a $8
million increase due to the full-year effect of the amortization of the discount on the TXU Energy exchangeable
subordinated notes issued in 2002. (The notes were subsequently exchanged by TXU Energy for exchangeable
preferred membershrp 1nterests) - ;o

The effective income tax rate on income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles was 29.9% in 2003 and 35.2% in 2002. The decrease
reflected the absence of tax benefit on a portion of the 2002 charge related to the Pinnacle joint venture, partially -
offset by the effect of comparable tax benefit amounts of depletion allowances and amortization of investment
- tax credits on a higher income ‘base in 2003 (See Note 12 to Financial -Statements for an analysis of the
effective tax rate.) : : :

,Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles increased $555 million-to $737 million in 2003. This performance reflected an'increase.of
$174 million, or 55%, to $493 million in the Energy segment, reflecting impairment charges in 2002 related to
generation plant construction projects ($154 million) and accrual of the retail clawback credit ($120 million),
lower gross margin and higher interest expense, partially offset by reduced SG&A expenses. Earnings in the
Energy Delivery segment increased $71 million, or 31%, to $299 million driven by higher gross margin and the
effect of a $23 million debt extinguishment loss in 2002 in the gas business. Earnings in the Australia segment
rose $28 million, or 38%, to $102 million reflecting the translation benefit of a stronger Australian dollar ($16
million) and improved gross margin. Corporate and other expenses declined $282 million, reflecting a charge in
2002 of $174 million related to the Pinnacle joint veriture and $50 million in lower. ongoing equity losses related
to Pinnacle; the balance of the decrease reflected lower interest expense on lower debt levels and the effect of an
$18 million loss on retirement of debt in 2002, Net pension and postretirement benefit costs reduced income
from continuing operations by $80 million in 2003 and $51 million in 2002.

. Loss from discontinued operations was $97 million in 2003, primarily reflecting the telecommunications
and the strategic retail services businesses, and $4.3 billion in 2002, primarily reflecting the write-off of the
investment of the Europe business in 2002. (See Note 3 to Financial Statements.)

An extraordinary loss of $134 million (net of income tax benefit of $72 million) in 2002 principally
represents the writedown of the regulatory assets subject to recovery through the issuance of securitization
bonds. (See Note 4 to Fmaneral Statements.)

- A cumulative effect of ehanges in accéuntrng principles, representing an after-tax charge of $58 million in
2003, reflects the impact on commodity contract mark-to-market accounting from rescission of EITF 98-10 and
the recording of asset retrrement “obligations under SFAS 143, (See Note 2 to Fmancnal Statcments )

Diluted earnings per share available to common shareholders from continuing operatiohs before
extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles increased $1.45 to $2.03 per share
in 2003. Basic average common shares outstanding increased 16% to 322 million reflecting new issuances of 35
million shares in December 2002 and 11.8 Jnillion shares in June 2002. An additional 8.4 million shares were
issued in August 2002 related to equity- linked debt securities originally issued in 1998. A total of 57 million
dilutive shares relate to the $750 million exchangeable preferred membership interests originally issued as
subordinated notes in November 2002. For the diluted earnings per share calculation, $53 rmllron in after-tax
distributions and discount amomzatlon related to these securmes 1s added back to net mcome




TXU Corp. Consolidated

2002 compared to 2001

TXU Corp.’s operating revenues were essentially even at $9.9 billion in both years. .Revenues in the
Energy Delivery segment fell by $569 million or 16%, reflecting declines in both the electricity and gas delivery
businesses of $320 million and $249 million, respectively. The electricity delivery decline was dueé primarily to
allocations of business activity in unbundling the former electric utility business (as required by the opening of
* the Texas market to competition). Certain revenues allocated to electric delivery operations in 2001 are reflected
in the Energy segment’s revenues in 2002, reflecting changes in responsibility for activities associated with the
revenues. The decline in gas delivery revenue reflected lower gas prices. Revenues in the Energy segment
increased by $287 million, or 4%, due primarily to significantly higher wholesale sales volumes and the effects
of unbundling allocations, partially offset by the effect of a 9% decline in retail electricity sales ‘volumes,
reflecting the opening of the Texas market to competition. Operating revenues rose $160 million in the Australia
segment reflecting increased retail electricity sales volumes in the business market, higher pricing and the effect
of changes in. foreign currency translation rates ($40 million). Consolidated revenues also reflected a $131
million reduction in the intercompany sales elimination, prlmarlly reflecting lower sales by Oncor to TXU
Energy as sales to nonaffiliated REPs increased. .

Net gains from hedging and risk management activities, which are reported in revenues and include both
realized and unrealized gains and losses, declined $203 million to $249 million in 2002. Changes in these results
reflect market price movements on commodity contracts entered into to hedge gross margin. Results from these
activities included net unrealized losses of $108 million in 2002 and net unreahzed gams of $323 million in 2001
arising from mark-to-market’ accountmg

Gross Margin
Year Ended December 31,
. . % of o % of
2002 ‘Revenue 2001 Revenue -

OPETAUNG TEVENUES ......ccovuiinnreconarararresesseneeeeeresneeconsesesessernsasssessrsrnnes $ 9,896 100% $ 9,890 100%
Costs and expenses: ' ’ . S

Cost of energy sold and delivery fees ......cccoouctvmrmiincvcniviniccnne .. 4,087 41% - 4,134 - 42%

OPErating COSIS.......covoviverrernccemverecriernesssssseesssesnecenes 1,592 . 16% 1,490 15%

Depreciation and amortization related to operating assets... 791 8% 749 8%
GIOSS MATZIM ..ottt b et $ 3426 35% $ 3517 - 33%

The depreciation and amortization e'xpéhse included in gross margin excludes $77 million and $32 million
of such expense for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, related to assets that are not
directly used in the generation and delivery of energy.

Gross margin decreased $91 million, or 3%, to $3.4 billion in 2002. This declme reflected a $185 million
($120 million after-tax) accrual for regulatory-related retail clawback and higher operatmg costs, partially offset
by the net favorable effect of lower average costs of energy sold, higher retail pncmg and lower results from
hedging and risk management activities.

SG&A cxpenSe increased $273 million, or 29%, to $1.2 billion in 2002. The increase was driven by
higher staffing and other administrative expenses associated with éxpanded retail sales and wholesale portfolio
management ‘operations, as well as higher bad debt expense, all due largely to the opening of the Texas
electricity market to competition. With the completion of the transition to competition in Texas, the industry-
wide decline in portfolio management activities, the exit of the business in Europe and the expected deferral of
deregulation of energy markets in other states, TXU Corp. initiated several cost savings actions in 2002. Such
actions resulted in $31 million ($21 million after-tax) in severance charges in 2002, which contributed to the
increase in SG&A expense.
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Franchise and revenue-based taxes decreased $51 million, or 10%, to $478 million in 2002. This decline
was due to the effect of lower retail revenues on which state and local gross receipts taxes are assessed.

Other income increased $5 million to $51 million in 2002 The 2002 period includes $35 million of gains
on disposition of property. The 2001 period includes $18 million from a settlement of a gas purchase contract,
$9 million of gains on disposition of property and $4 million of earnings from investments in unconsolidated
subsidiaries.

Other deductions increased $246 million to $577 million in 2002. The 2002 period includes a $237 million
($154 million after-tax) writedown of an investment in generation plant construction projects and $187 million
($174 million after-tax) in charges related to the Pinnacle telecommunications joint venture. These charges
include $37 million ($24 million after-tax) for TXU Corp.’s share-of the joint venture’s impairments of long-
lived assets and goodwill. TXU Corp. also recorded a $150 million charge (without tax benefit) related to the
decline in value of the business. Other deductions in 2002 also included $67 million in ongoing equity losses
(excluding impairment charges) from the joint venture and $63 million ($41 million after-tax) in losses on the
early extinguishment of debt. - The 2001 period includes $149 million in losses on the early extinguishment of
debt under the debt restructuring and refinancing plan pursuant to the requirements. of the 1999 Restructuring
Legislation, a recoverable charge of $73 million related to the regulatory restructuring of the Texas electricity
market, a $22 million nonrecoverable regulatory asset write-off pursuant to a regulatory order and losses on sales
of properties of $12 million. The 2001 period also includes $53 million in equity losses from the Pinnacle joint
venture. In accordance with the Pinnacle agreement and in consideration of cumulative losses of the joint
venture since its formation, in 2002 TXU Corp. began to absorb 100%, rather than its 50% share, of losses of the
venture, which accounts for the $14 million increase in ongoing equity losses in 2002,

Interest income declined $51 million, or 62%, to $31 million in 2002, due largely to the recovery of under-
collected fuel revenue on which interest income had been accrued under regulation in Texas in 2001.

Interest expense and other charges decreased $83 million, or 9%, to $882 million in 2002, reflecting a $100
million decrease due to lower interest rates, an $11 million i increase due to hrgher debt levels and an $8 million
increase due to lower capitalized interest.

Goodwill amortization of $43 million in 2001 ceased in 2002, reﬂectmg the discontinuance of goodwill
amortization pursuant to the adoption of SFAS 142.

The effective income tax rate on income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss was 35.2%
in 2002 compared to 29.3% in 2001. The increase reflected the absence of tax benefit on a portion of the charge
related to the Pinnacle joint venture, partially offset by the effect of comparable tax benefit amounts of depletion
allowances and amortization of investment tax credits on.a lower income base in 2002.

- Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles decreased $387 million, or 68%, to $182 million in 2002. -This performance reflected a
decline of $258 million in the Energy segment, reflecting the writedown of generation projects of $154 million,
the accrual of regulatory-related retail clawback of $120 million and the severance charges of $21 million.
Corporate and other activities declined by $187 million, reflecting charges of $174 million related to the decline
in value of the telecommunications joint venture. These declines were partially offset by growth of $55 million
in the Australia segment and $3 million in the Energy Delivery segment. Net pension and postretirement beneﬁt
costs reduced net income by $51 million in 2002 and $28 million in 2001.

Basic and diluted earnings per share available to common shareholders from continuing operations before
extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles decreased $1.53, or 73%, to $0.58
per share in 2002. As discussed above, net income performance in 2002 benefited from the absence of goodwill
amortization ($43 million, or $0.16 per share, in 2001). Basic and diluted average common shares outstanding
increased 7% to 278 million reflecting new issuances of 35 million shares in December 2002 and 11.8 million
shares in June 2002 as well as 8.4 million shares issued in August 2002 related to equity-linked debt securities
originally issued in 1998.
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The loss from discontinued operations primarily reflected thie-$3.9 billion write-off of the investment in
TXU Europe.’ Discontinued operations also reflected the operating results of TXU Europe as well as the
strategic retail services and Mexico operations. (See Note 3 to Financial Statements.) Also included is a charge
of $15 mllhon (net of income tax benefit of $8 million) in 2002 to write-down the investment in the Mexico
operations.

Extraordinary loss in 2002 reflected a $134 million (net of income tax benefit of $72 million) charge,
principally to write down regulatory assets related to securitization bonds to be issued in accordance with the
Settlement Plan. The extraordinary loss in 2001 of $57 million (net of $63 million income tax benefit) consisted
of net charges related to the Settlement Plan to resolve all major open issues related to the transition to
deregulation. (See Note 4 to Financial Statements).

Commodity Contracts and Mark-to-Market Activities

The table below summarizes the changes in commodity contract assets and liabilities for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. The net changes in these assets and liabilities, excluding “cumulative effect
of change in accounting principle” and “other activity” as described below, represent the net effect of recording
unrealized gains/(losses) under mark-to-market accounting for positions in the commodity contract portfolio.
These positions consist largely of economlc hedge transactions, with speculatlve trading representing a small
fraction of the'activity.

2003 2002 2001

Balance of net commodity contract assets at beginning of year ................... - $297 3511 $170
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ) T o (75) - - -
Settlements-of positions included in the opening balance (2)........cooovcnviennnnens . L (143) . (233) (53)
Unrealized mark to-market valuatioris of positions held at end of period (3) ....... ' . 21) 166. 372
Other acuv;ty () et et et et r ettt ens _ 32 147 22
Baiaqce of net commodity contract assets at end Of YEar ......ccoocccoremvrrrvvreeeen - ' $ 90 $297 $511

(1) Represents a portion of the pre-tax cumulative effect of the rescission of EITF 98-10 (see Note 2 to Financial Statements).

(2) Represents unrealized mark-to-market valuations of these positions recognized in eamings as of the beginning. of the
period.

(3) A change in valuation techmquc in the Australia business resulted in an unrealized gain of $6 million i in 2003. Includes
$14 million in origination gains recognized in 2002 related to nonderivative wholesale contracts.

(4) Includes initial values of positions involving the receipt or payment of cash or other consideration, such as option
premiums, amortization of such values, the exit of certain retail gas activities in 2003 and the impact of currency
translation. Also includes $71 million of contract-related Liabilities to Enron Corporation reclassified to other current
liabilities in 2002. These activities have no effect on unrealized mark-to-market valuations. '

In addition to the net effect of recording untealized mark-to-market gains and losses that are reflected ir
changes in commodity contract assets and liabilities, similar effects arise in the recording of unrealized
ineffectiveness mark-to-market gains and losses ‘associated with commodity-related cash flow hedges that are
reflected in changes in cash flow hedges and other derivative assets and liabilities. The total net effect of
recording unrealized gains and losses under mark-to-market accounting is summarized as follows (excludes
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle):
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2003 2002 2001

Unrealized gains/(losses) in commodity contract portfolio ........c..o.ccecveevierricnnnie $(164) $(67)‘ $319
Ineffectiveness gains/(losses) related to cash flow hedges .......c.oocevviccnnicniicnn 36 (41) 4
Total unrealized gaiNS/(10SSES) ...c..evrvevrrevrirniererirnsinsrisresereeansrenion ST $(128) $(108) $323

These amounts are included in the “hedging and risk management activities” component of revenues as
presented in the TXU Energy and TXU Australia segment data. . « S

As a result of guidance provided in EITF 02-3, TXU Corp. has not recognized origination gains on energy
contracts in 2003. TXU Corp. recognized origination gains on retail sales contracts of $40 million in 2002 and
$88 million in 2001. Because of the short-term nature of these contracts, a portion of these gains would have
been recognized on a settlement basis in the year the origination gain was recorded.

Maturity Table — Of the net commodity contract asset balance above at December 31, 2003, the amount
representing unrealized mark-to-market net gains that have been recognized in current and prior years’ earnings
is $139 million. The offsetting net liability of $49 million included in the December 31, 2003 balance sheet is
comprised principally of amounts representing current and prior years’ net receipts of cash or other
consideration, including option premiums, associated with contract positions, net of any amortization. The
following table presents the unrealized mark-to-market balance at December 31, 2003, scheduled by contractual
settlement dates of the underlying positions. :

Maturity dates of unrealized net mark-to-market balances at December 31, 2003

Maturity less Maturity in -
than Maturity of Maturity of Excess of

Source of fair value 1 vear 1-3 vears 4-5 years . .5 vears - Total
Prices actively’ quoted.........ooorvvvviooirerenns $ 36 $12 $ (2 : 3 - "% 46
Prices provided by other ‘ )

external SOUICES .....convicuiann.. e 716 "5 1 @ 66
Prices based on models ... 2 5 , 1 23 27
(e D $ 50 $68 $= “$21 . §139
Percentage of total fairvalue......c.o.cco.e 36% 49% —% 15% ‘ 100%

As the above table indicates, approximately 85% of the unrealized mark-to-market valuations at December
31, 2003 mature within three years. This is reflective of the terms of the positions and the methodologies
employed in valuing positions for periods where there is less market liquidity and visibility. The “prices actively
quoted” category reflects only exchange traded contracts with active quotes available. through 2008 in the US.
The “prices provided by. other external sources” category represents forward commodity positions at locations
for which over-the-counter broker quotes are available. Over-the-counter quotes for power and natural gas
generally extend through 2005 and 2010, respectively, in the US. The “prices based on models” category
contains the value of all non-exchange traded options, valued using industry accepted option pricing models. In
addition, this category contains other contractual arrangements which may have both forward and option
components. In many instances, these contracts can be broken down into their component parts and modeled as
simple forwards and options based on prices actively quoted. As the modeled value is ultimately the result of a
combination of prices from two or more different instruments, it has been included in this category.
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Energy

Financial Results
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001*

OPEIatiNg FEVEIUES .....c.oveeeerrreesseerivirsmiesartresstrisassissssiessssssssssesssansssens $ 7995 $ 7.691 7.404
Costs and expenses:

Cost of energy sold and delivery fees ... - e - | 5,124 4,783 4,800

OPEIALNE COSLS .ervvnrennreriirerecireniais st sbssss s 691 701 671

Depreciation and amortization, other than goodwill ....................... 409 450 395

Selliﬁg, general and administrative EXPEenses..........ovvveevivimnerenes 636 775 311

Franchis'e and revenue-based taxes ... 124 120 14

Other iNCOME .....cvvvviiniiincimiirre s s (48) 33) )

Other deductions ...........covevnne. e e 22 254 196

INEETESE INCOME. ..evrvverrvnrersiereireereensseciaseseensssons ST ®) 10) (38)

Interest expense and other charges ... 323 215 - 224

Goodwill amortization......,...............,.,,..: ....................................... : - — _14

' Total costs and EXPENSES .........ccerveeiiiiririniinererisesensens ~ 71,273 7.255 _ 6,585
Income from continuing operations before income taxes, extraordinary

loss and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles ...... 722 436 819
INCOME [3X EXPENSE....oecerrvrreucrinrivicrnriscimsesiesessnsitess et 229 117 242
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and

cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles................... 3493 3 319 § 577

The Energy segment includes the electricity generation, wholesale and retail energy sales, and hedging and risk management operations
of TXU Energy, operating principally in the competitive Texas market.

* Data for 2001 is included above for the purpose of providing historical financial information about the Energy segment after giving
effect to the restructuring transactions and unbundling allocations described in Note 19 to Financial Statements. Allocations reflected in
2001 data did not necessarily result in amounts reported in individual line items that are'comparable to actual results in 2002 and 2003.
Had the Energy segment existed as a separate segment in 2001, its results of operations and financial position could have differed
materially from those reflected above. :
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Energy

Operating Data

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001(a)(b)
Operating statistics - volumes:
Retail electricity (GWh) R . : .
Residential.............. SN 35,981 37,692
Small business (c) ‘ 12,986 15,907 ‘
Large busingss and other ............cocvovevverrren. et . 30,955 36,982
Total retail leCtriCity ...........covvvwvimvvreriesise e ~19.922 20.581 22,151
Wholesale electricity (GWh) ' 37362 25.649 6409
Production and purchased power (GWh):
Nuclear and lignite/coal (base load) .. 59,028 54,738 57.828
Gas/oil and purchased POWET...........oovemvvciiiiin i - 63,319 70321 52,925
- Total production and purchased POWEL ...........commrvrrrrireresiinnnnssnnenes © 122347 125,059 110,753
Customer counts:
Retail electricity customers (end of period & in thousands - based on
number of meters): . '
RESIAENHAL. .....cocrvviiicmriirini et aonb s berens 2,207 2,302
Small business..........c....... ettt bt e e . 321 . 333
Large business and other ............cocoeveevricinirinicniinni e inicoesnisinens 69 78
Total retail electricity CUStOmMERS.........coivoieiiciiieii e, e 2,597 L2713 2,728
Operating revenues (millions of dollars):
Retail electricity revenues: , .
Residential.............. $ 3311 $3108 . §$3255
Business and other .................... OO OO 3173 3415 3,837 °
Total retail €leCtriCity TEVENUES .........cco.ivevivirriiciiiice e 6,484 6,523 7,092
Wholesale electricity TeVEnues ...t 1,274 857 96
Hedging and risk management aCHVItES .......cccoovreeoreriornieemnieenenirrrennscennens 18 142 358
Other revenues.........cooccvvnrenincsrencans et 219 169 142
Total operating TEVEIIUES.........ccccoorores s essecesessoeesseesseersreeseeeseereseon $ 7995 $ 7.691 $7.404
Weather (average for service territory) (d)
Percent of normal: ~ ‘
Cooling degree days........cococevieiierecne st e 103.1% 99.8% 100.5%
HEAtNgG AEZIEe ABYS......oovvvevooevecerieereessseerecesseeseseemeesseesresesseessmseene 94.0% 102.0% 97.5%

(a) See footnote on previous page.

{(b) Retail volume and customer count data for 2001 not available by class.

(c) Customers with demand of less than | MW annually.

(d) Weather data is obtained from Meteorlogix, an independent company that collects weather data from reporting stations of the
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (a federal agency under the US Department of Commerce).
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Energy

2003 compared to 2002

Effective with reporting for 2003, results for the Energy segment exclude expenses incurred by the US
Holdings parent company in order to present the segment on the same basis as the results of the business are
evaluated by management. Prior year amounts are presented on this revised basis.

Operating revenues increased $304 million, or 4%, to $8.0 billion in 2003. Total retail and wholesale
electricity revenues rose $378 million, or 5%, to $7.8 billion. This growth reflected higher retail and wholesale
pricing, partially offset by the effects of a mix shift to lower-price wholesale sales and a 2% decline in total sales
volumes. Retail electricity revenues decreased $39 million, or 1%, to $6.5 billion reflecting a $768 million
decline attributable to a 12% drop in sales volumes, driven by the effect of competitive activity in the business
market, largely offset by a $730 million increase due to higher pricing. Higher prices reflected increased price-
to-beat rates, ‘due to approved fuel factor increases, and higher contract pricing in the competitive large business
market, both resulting from higher natural gas prices. Retail electricity customer counts declined 4% from year-
end 2002. Wholesale electricity revenues grew $417 million, or 49%, to $1.3 billion reflecting a $223 million
increase attributable to a 26% rise in sales volumes and a $194 million increase due to the effect of increased
natural gas prices on wholesale prices. Higher wholesale electricity sales volumes reflected a partial shift in the
customer base from retail to wholesale services, particularly in the business market.

Net gains from hedging and risk management activities, which are reported in revenues and include both
realized and unrealized gains and losses, declined $124 million to $18 million in 2003. Changes in these results
reflect market price movements on commodity contracts entered into to hedge gross margin; the comparison to
2002 also reflects a decline in activities in markets outside of Texas. Because the hedging activities are intended
to mitigate the risk of commeodity price movements on revenues and cost of energy sold, the changes in such
results should not be viewed in isolation, but rather taken together with the effects of pricing and cost changes on
gross margin. Results from these activities include net unrealized losses arising from mark-to-market accounting
of $100 million in 2003 and $113 million in 2002. The majority of TXU Energy’s natural gas physical sales and
purchases are in the wholesale markets and essentially represent hedging activities. These activities are
accounted for on a net basis with the exception of retail sales to business customers, which effective October 1,
2003 are reported gross in accordance with new accounting rules and totaled $39 million in revenues since that
date. The increase in other revenues of $50 million to $219 million in 2003 was driven by this change.

Gross Margin
Year Ended December 31 :
' % of ‘ % of

2003 Revenue 2002 Revenue
OPRIALING TEVETIUES ....ooovitieereerereerresenierecsb et sicasssesnetsserenssseanecsans $ 7,995 100% $ 7,691 100%

Costs and expenses: ‘ ‘ .
Cost of energy sold and delivery fees .........c.cooccooiinvenivinnicnnee 5,124 64% 4,783 62%
OPEIALNGICOSES ..o veveevsvscerrieesossecesas s rss s rssssssasseines 691 9% 701 9%
Depreciation and amortization related to generation assets.......... 370 4% <409 5%
GroSS MAIIN ....ovoviiiiomiimisereiee e ebesessseas .8 1810 - 23% $ 1798 24%

The depreciation and amortization expense reported in the gross margin amounts above excludes $39
million and $41 million of such expense for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, related
to assets that are not directly used in the generation of electricity.

Gross margin increased $12 million, or 1%, to $1.8 billion in 2003. The gross margin comparison was
favorably impacted by $197 million due to regulatory-related retail clawback accrual adjustments (a $185
million charge, $120 million after-tax, in 2002 and a $12 million credit in 2003), as described in Note 16 to
Financial Statements, and $49 million in lower operating costs and depreciation and amortization. Adjusting for
these effects, margin declined $234 million, driven by the effect of lower retail sales volumes. The combined
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effect of higher costs of energy sold and lower results from hedging and risk management activities was
essentially offset by higher sales prices. Higher costs of energy sold were driven by higher natural gas prices,
but were mitigated by increased sourcing of retail and wholesale sales demand from TXU Energy’s base load
(nuclear-powered and coal-fired) generation plants. Base load supply of sales demand increased by four
percentage points to 50% in 2003. The balance of sales demand in 2003 was met with gas-ﬁred generation and
purchased povwer. ' :

Operating costs decreased $10 million, or 1%, to $691 million in 2003. The decline reflected $20 million
due to one scheduled outage for nuclear generation unit refueling and maintenance in 2003 compared to two in
2002 and $15 million from various cost reduction initiatives, partially offset by $27 million in higher employee
benefits and insurance costs: Depreciation and amortization related to generation assets decreased $39 million,
or 10%, to $370 million. Of this decline, $37 million represented the effect of adjusted depreciation rates related
to.the generation fleet effective April 2003. The adjusted rates reflect an extension in the estimated average
depreciable life of the nuclear generation facility’s assets of approximately 11 years (to 2041) to better reflect its
useful life, partially offset by higher depreciation rates for lignite and gas facilities to reflect investments in
emissions equipment made in recent years. :

A decrease in depreciation and amortization (including amounts shown in the gross margin table above) of
$41 million, or 9%, to $409 million in 2003 was driven by the adjusted depreciation rates related to the
gcneratlon fleet as discussed above. -

SG&A expenses declined. $139 million, or 18%, to $636 million in 2003. Lower staffing and related
administrative expenses contributed approximately $95 million to the decrease, reflecting cost reduction and
productivity enhancing initiatives and a focus on activities in the Texas market. Lower SG&A expenses also
reflected a $40 million decline in bad debt expense. In the retail electricity business, the effect of enhanced credit
and collection activities was largely offset by increased write-offs arising from disconnections now allowed
under new regulatory rules. and increased churn of non-paying customers. The decrease in bad debt expense
prlmanly reflected the wind down of retail gas (busmess customer supply) activities outside of Texas and the
recordmg of related reserves in 2002 : ‘

Other income increased $15 million to $48 millioh in 2003'. Other income in both periods. included
approximately $30 million of amortization of a gain on the sale of two generation plants in 2002. The 2003
period also included a $9 million gain on the sale of contracts related to retail gas activities outside of Texas.

Other deductions decreased $232 mil.lion to $22 million in 2003, reflecting a $237 million ($154 million
after-tax) writedown in 2002 of an investment in two generation plant construction projects. In addition, both
periods include several individually immaterial items.

Interest expense and related charges increased $108 million, or 50%, to $323 million in 2003. The increase
reflects $108 million due to higher average interest rates as short-term borrowings were replaced with higher-rate
long-term financing. An $11 million full-year effect of the amortization of the discount on the exchangeable
subordinated notes issued in 2002 (subsequently exchanged by TXU Energy for exchangeable preferred
membership interests), was largely offset by the effect of lower average short-term debt levels.

The effective income tax rate increased to 31. 7% in 2003 from 26.8% in 2002. The increase was driven by
the effect of comparable (to 2002) tax benefit amounts of depletion allowances and amortization of investment
tax credits on a higher income base in 2003. (See Note 12 for analysis of the effective tax rate.)

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of changes in
accountmg principles increased $174 million, or 55%, to $493 million in 2003. Results in 2002 included
impairment charges related to generation plant construction projects and an accrual for retail clawback of $154
million after-tax and $120 million after-tax, respectively. Excluding these items, earnings declined on gross
margin compression due to lower retail sales volumes as well as higher interest expense, partially offset by lower
- SG&A expenses. Net pension and postretirement benefit costs reduced net income by $36 million in 2003 and
by $21 million in 2002.
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Energy
2002 compared to 2001

The Energy segment’s operating revenues increased $287 million, or 4%, to $7.7 billion in 2002. Total
retail and wholesale electricity revenues rose $192 million, or 3%, to $7.4 billion driven by higher wholesale
volumes. Wholesale electric revenues increased $761 million to $857 million, reflecting the substantial increase
in wholesale sales volumes due to the opening of the Texas market to competition. Retail electric revenues
declined $569 million, or 8%, to $6.5 billion, reflecting a $613 million reduction due to lower volumes partially
offset by a $44 million increase due to higher average pricing. The price variance reflects a shift in customer
mix, partially offset by the effect of lower rates. A 9% decline in overall retail electric sales volumes was
primarily due to the effects of increased competitive activity in the small business and large business market.
Year-end residential electricity customer counts, reflecting losses in the historical service territory and gains in
new territories due to competition, were about even with the prior year. The increase in revenues also reflects
certain revenues and related retail and generation expenses that were the responsibility of the Energy Delivery
segment in 2001, but are included in Energy revenues in 2002.

Net gains from hedging and risk management actwmes, which are reported in revenues and include both
realized and unrealized gains and losses, declined $216 million to $142 million in 2002. Changes in these results
reflect market price movements on commodity contracts entered into to hedge gross margin Resutts from these
activities included net unrealized losses of $113 million in 2002 and net unreahzed gains of $318 million in 2001
arising from mark-to-market accounting.

Gross Margin
Year Ended December 31,
% of ‘ . % of

2002 Revenue 2001 Revenue
OPErating FEVENUES ........cooverrieeirvrsinsraes e ceneniesnaeesscaneneneesersosessneonn $ 7,691 100% $ 7404 100%

Costs and expenses:: ) ) . .
Cost of energy sold and dehvery fEeS oot 4,783 62% 4,800 ‘ 65%
OPEIAtNG COSIS.....ovoemiiiiriiiercrriirees st bcias 701 9% 671 9%
Depreciation and amortization related to generation assets......... 409 5% 391 5%
GrOSS MATIN ....cvvniimcrn e s _ $_1.798 24% $ 1.542 21%

The depreciation and amortization expense included in gross margin excludes $41 million and $4 million
of such expense for 2002 and 2001, respectively, related to assets that are not directly used in the generation of
electricity. Inaddition, the 2001 period had goodwill amortization of $14 million.

Gross margin increased $256 million, or 17%, to $1.8 billion in 2002. The increase was driven by the net
favorable effect of lower average costs of energy sold, higher retail pricing and lower results from hedging and
risk management activities. Higher gross margin also reflected significant growth in wholesale electricity sales
volumes in the newly deregulated ERCOT, largely offset by the effect of lower retail electricity volumes. Gross
margin in 2002 was negatively affected by the accrual of $185 million ($120 million after-tax) for regulatory-
related retail clawback, which is reported in cost of energy sold and delivery fees. Operating costs rose $30
million, or 4%, to $701 million prlmanly due to the costs of refueling two units, compared to one in 2001, at the
nuclear-powered generatlon plant.

An increase in depreciation and amortization, other than goodwill (including amounts shown in the gross
margin table above), of $55 million, or 14%, to $450 million was prlmarlly due to investments in computer
systems required to operate in the newly dere, gulated market and expans:on of office facilities.

An increase in SG&A expenses of $464 million, or 149%, to $775 million reflected the effect of retail

customer support costs and bad debt expense of approximately $150 million that were the responsibility of the
Energy Delivery segment in 2001. The increase in SG&A expenses also reflected $199 million in higher
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staffing and other administrative costs, related to expanded retail sales operations and hedging activities, and -
higher bad debt expense of $90 million, all due largely to the opening of the Texas electricity market to
competition. With the completion of the transition to competition in Texas, the industry-wide decline in
portfolio management activities, and the expected deferral of deregulation of energy markets in other states,
TXU Energy initiated several cost savings initiatives in 2002. Such actions resulted in $31 million in severance
charges in 2002, which-contributed to the increase in SG& A expense.

Franchlse and revenue-based taxes rose $106 million to $120 million due to state gross receipts taxes that
were the responsibility of the Energy Dehvery segment in 2001. Effective in 2002, state gross receipts taxes
related to electricity revenues are an expense of the Energy segment, while local gross receipts taxes. are an
expense of the Energy Delivery segment.

Other income increased by $31 million to $33 million, reflecting amortization of $30 million of a gain on
the sale in 2002 of two generation plants.

Other deductions increased by $58 million to $254 million, reflecting a $237 million ($154 million after-
tax) writedown in 2002 of an investment in two generation plant construction projects. Amounts in 2001
included $149 million ($97 million after-tax) in losses on the early extinguishment of debt under the debt
restructuring and refinancing plan pursuant to the requirements of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation, a $22
million regulatory asset write-off pursuant to a regulatory order and $18 million in various asset writedowns.

Interest income declined by $28 million, or 74%, to $10 million primarily due to the recovery of under-
collected fuel revenue on which interest income had been accrued under regulation in 2001.

Interest expense and other charges decreased $9 million, or 4%, to $215 million reﬂectmg lower average
debt levels, partially offset by higher rates and a decrease in capitalized interest.

The effective income t'ax rate decreased to 26.8% in 2002 from 29.5% in 2001. The decrease was driven
by the effect of comparable (to 2001) tax benefit amounts of depletlon allowances and amortization of
investment tax credits on a lower income base in 2002,

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles decreased $258 million, or 45%, to $319 million in 2002. The decline was driven by an
increase in-SG&A- expenses and higher franchise and revenue-based taxes, partially offset by the improved gross
margin (net of the $120 million effect of the retail clawback accrual). The $154 million effect of the generation
plant construction project writedown was partially offset by the $97 million effect of losses on early
extinguishment of debt in 2001. Net pension and postreurement benefit costs reduced net mcome by $20 million
in 2002 and $12 million in 2001. :
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Energy Delivery

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001*
Operating rgv'enue‘s ......................................... .............. - 3.42 $ 2973 $ 3,542
Costs and‘ expeﬁsc;; ‘ '
Cost of gas sold.................. et 791 502 : 764
OPCIALNE COSES ...eveovvvecrereeeeressoesemesmessssees e eesssesssessessessessseseesnsesscensos 880 829 757
Depreciation and amortization, other than goodwill............ccccovvvriincrennee 372 ‘ 332 303
Selling, genéra\ly and administrative expenses ................... 345 348 494
- Frénchise and revenue-based taxes ......... rvvevereeeenenne ettt e enerans 316 322 495
Other HICOME ..ttt Coany @ (35)
Other dedUCONS ... .....coceovcrviirerccrnn ettt ees st e cssnin - 40 76
IOEIESH ACOME ... vt S (5% “8) L (19)
Interest expense and related charges ... . 346 ) 331 347
Goodwiil amjortization ........................................... s peeeenens o — - — 10
Total cqsts and EXPENSES ...vvveeriieriaiicrereicne e R _ 2984 __ 2635 _ 319
Income before income taxes and extraordinary-10ss.........ccovvnvcirnciviarernenrcens 445 o 338 : 350
[NCOME taX EXPEMSE.....coiviiiriiiiriiiicieii et bt et . __14_6 . 110 ‘ 125
Income before e)'(traordina‘ryﬂloss........‘.....H...‘....f .................................. e o829 $ 228 $_225 '

The Energy Delivery segment includes the electricity transmission and distribution business of Oncor and the natural gas pipeline and

" distribution business of TXU Gas, both of which are subject to regulation by Texas authorities.

*  Data for 2001 is included above for the purpose of providing historical financial information about the Energy Delivery segment after
giving effect:to the restructuring transactions and allocations described in Note 19 to Financial Statements. Allocations reflected in 2001
data did not necessarily result in amounts reported in individual line items that are comparable to actual results in 2002 and 2003. Had
the Energy Delivery segment existed as a separate segment in 2001, its results of operations and financial position could have differed

materially from those reflected above.
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Energy Delivery

Operating Data

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001(a)
Operating statistics — volumes: i ) . S A
Electric energy delivered (GWh) (B)...ie.ccoeeniin ot R 101,810 102,481 99,139
Retail gas distribution (Bcf): . . . ) ]
RESIAENHAL ......co.vierieicr e 83 . 86 84
' ' : ‘ 58 58 . 60
141 144 144
Pipeline wanspOrtation (BOf)......-r.cveromsisrsosresssstossprerssssirsosssso T __360 437 386
Retail gas distribution customers and electrlclty pomts of delivery (end of
penod and in thousands)
Retail gas distribUtion CUSIOIMES ........c.ooeuireereierneimnennnrietcenniecsnirersssnsnseseres 1,482 1,470 1,447
Electricity distribution points of delivery (based on number of meters)(c) ...... 2,932 2,909 2,844
Operating revenues (millions of dollars):
Electricity transmission and distribution:
* Affiliated (TXU ENBIZY).......coerriveessonrriaerscoesismeiessesisssessssesssesereseesnsscsoseneon $1,489 3 1,586
Non-affiliated.........ccooccrvvrmrinriieee e, et g r e e 598 408
LT O e e e 2,087 1,994 $ 2314
Retail gas distribution: . -
Residential ......ccoviiicec e 770 563 710
Business and other ... enieneoncienicneennne e terer e e e ra s ane e o 485 ' 313 435
Total ............ e ST corerrens e 1,225 . 876 . 1,145
Pipeline tranSPOrtation .....c...c.cceeiovicrieinescerrirer i sssssasssrsasse s asbes s 57 53 59
Other revenues, net of eliminations .................. s SR .60 .50 24
Total retail gas distribution and pipeline.transportation 1342 . 9719 1228
TOtal OPErALNG TEVEMUES........covirevitieeriaensiensscrensicarrccnicasiennsses s santaas s sarsssaresansissnsa MQ $29713 $ 3542

(a) See footnote on previous page.

(b) 2002 data revised -

(¢) Includes lighting sites, primarily guard lights, for which TXU Energy is the REP but are not included in TXU Energy’s customer count
Such sites totaled 100,901 in 2003, 105,987 in 2002 and 124,916 in- 2001,
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Energy Delivery

2003 compared to 2002

Operating revenues for the Energy Delivery segment increased $456 million, or 15%, to $3.4 billion in
2003. Gas delivery revenues increased $363 million, or 37%, to $1.3 billion, reflecting $338 million due to the
effects of higher gas costs passed on to customers, approximately $16 million from higher base distribution rates
and $15 million from increased activity in the utility asset management services business, partially offset by $16
million from lower sales volumes. The average cost of gas rose 57%, while volumes decreased 3% due to milder
winter weather. Electricity delivery revenues increased $93 million, or 5%, to $2.1 billion. Higher tariffs
provided $56 million of this increase, reflecting transmission rate increases approved in 2003 ($37 million) and
delivery fee surcharges associated with the issuance of securitization bonds in August 2003 ($19 million). (See
Note 16 to Financial Statements.) The balance of the revenue growth reflected $26 million in increased
disconnect/reconnect fees, reflecting disconnections initiated by TXU Energy under new regulatory rules and
increased consumer switching due to competitive activity, and $10 million from increased pricing to certain
business consumers due to higher peak demands in 2003. Delivered electricity volumes were about even with
2002.

Gross Margin
Year Ended December 31,
% of . . % of
2003 Revenue 2002 Revenue
OPEIAtiNG FEVENUES ......coveieiiieriitcteres et tst ettt asse s et eseseserenss $ 3,429 100% $ 2973 100%
Costs and expenses: : :
Co8t 0f gaS SOIA.......cevirirercnne e 791 23% 502 17%
OPEIAING COBES ... ivericiriicinreierets e stcaererets s n et s e reesane . . 880 26% . . 829 : 28%
Depreciation and amortization related to delivery assets ............. 359 10% 321 11%
GTOSS IMALZII o.vcviiinnrien et ecen s e nneenereean e erreensacassesamsecesracnnans § 1399 41% $ 1321 — 4%

The depreciation and amortization expense included in gross margin excludes $13 million and $11 miltion
of such expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectlvely, related to assets that are not
directly used in the delivery of energy.

Gross margin increased $78 million, or 6%, to $1.4 billion in 2003. The increase reflected the benefit of
higher electricity and gas delivery tariffs and fees. The gross margin growth also reflected the effect of higher
gas prices on revenues, as certain costs directly related to the revenues, principally gross receipts taxes, are
reported below gross margin. The increase in operating costs of $51 million, or 6%, to $880 million was driven
by $22 million in higher electricity transmission costs paid to other utilities, a $16 million increase on greater
activity in the utility asset management services business and $12 million in higher pension and other
postretirement benefit costs.

Depreciation and amortization (including amounts shown in the gross margin table above), increased $40
million, or 12%, to $372 million in 2003. The increase reflected higher depreciation of $14 million due to
investments .in delivery facilities to support growth and normal replacements of equipment and $19 million in
amortization of regulatory assets associated with the issuance of securitization bonds in August 2003. The effect
on revenues of the delivery fee surcharges associated with the issuance of securitization bonds is offset by the
related amortization expense.

SG&A expenses decreased by $3 million, or 1%, to $345 million in 2003 due primarily to lower outside
services and consulting expenses arising from electricity delivery cost reduction initiatives implemented in late
2002. :
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Franchise and revenue-based taxes decreased $6 million, or 2%, to $316 million in 2003 reflecting a $22
million.decline due to the full implementation of. a regulatory change in the basis for the calculation of local
gross receipts taxes from revenue dollars to kilowatt-hours, partially offset by a $16 million increase in gross
receipts taxes due to higher gas delivery revenues on which these taxes are based.

Other income decreased $9 million to $12 million in 2003. Other income included capitalized allowance
for funds used during construction of $4 million in 2003 and $3 million in 2002, as well as a $7 million gain in
2002 on disposition of property.

Other deductions of $40 million in 2002 included the $35 million ($23 million after-tax) loss on e:irly
extinguishment of debt in the gas business. '

Interest income increased $6 million, or 13%, to $54 million in 2003. An increase in the electricity
delivery business reflected higher interest reimbursements from TXU Energy of $15 million due to higher
carrying costs on regulatory assets and $3 million in higher investment income, partially offset by $15.million
less interest on the excess mitigation credit note receivable from TXU Energy due to principal repayments (See
Note 16 to Financial Statements). Higher interest income also reflected $3 million due to increased
undercollected gas costs.

Interest expense and related charges rose by $15 million, or 5%, to $346 million in 2003. The increase
reflected a $41 million impact of higher average interest rates, partially offset by a $12 million impact of lower
average borrowings and $15 million less interest credited to REPs related to the excess mitigation credit. The
change in average interest rates reflected the refinancing -of affiliate borrowings in the electricity delivery
business with higher rate long-term debt issuances. ‘

. The effective income tax rate was 32.8% in 2003 and 32.5%.in 2002. There were no significant unusual
items impacting the effective rates.

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and- changes in accounting principles
increased $71 million, or 31%, to $299 million in 2003, reflecting improved results of $57 million in the gas
delivery business and $14 million in the electricity delivery business. The performance in the gas delivery
business reflected the $23 million loss on debt extinguishment in 2002, higher base distribution rates and lower

_interest expense. Higher gas prices benefited. the current period as related higher gross receipts taxes will be
incurred in 2004. The increase in the electricity delivery business reflected higher revenues, partially offset by
higher operating expenses and higher interest expense. Net pension and postretirement benefit costs reduced net
income by $28 million in 2003 and $18 million in 2002.

Energy Delivery

2002 compared to 2001

Operating revenues for the Energy Delivery segment decreased $569 million, or 16%, to $3.0 billion in
2002. Electricity delivery revenues decreased $320 million, or 14%, to $2.0 billion. .Revenues in 2001 included
amounts associated with generation and retail expenses that were the responsibility of electric delivery, but in
2002 such revenues and expenses were the responsibility of the Energy segment. Excluding the impact of such
revenues in 2001, electric delivery revenues rose 3% on a 6% increase in electricity volumes delivered. Because
the fees to REPs for their large business customers are fixed for specified ranges of volumes, changes in
distribution volumes do not necessarily result in comparable changes in reported revenues. Gas delivery

revenues declined $249 million, or 20%, to $1.0 billion, due to reduced costs of gas, as sales volumes were about
even. . , S
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Gross Margin -

Year Ended December 31,
% of % of

2002 Revenue 2001 Revenue
OPEIating TEVEMIES ...0..cvrciiiieenerecrniiaeereseenssvcesnesessonsiessesorsssseessesens $ 2973 100% $ 3,542 100%

Costs and expenses: . Co . )
Cost of 828 SOId.......oviiiviriiiciicrcccecne s - 502 17% . 764 - 22%
OPEratiNg COSLS ......covivivniiriririnsiir et 829 28% 757 21%
~ Depreciation and amortization related to delivery assets ............. 321 11% 302 8%
GrOSS MATZIN «...oocvvveiinicrercincte s st s $_1.321 44% £ 1,719 49%

The depreciation and amortization expense included in gross margin excludes $11 million and $1 million
of such expense for 2002 and 2001, respectlvely, related to assets that are not directly used in the delivery of
energy.

Gross margin decreased $398 million, or 23%, to $1.3 billion in 2002. The decrease reflects the impact of
revenues allocated to electricity delivery operations in 2001, as discussed above, and higher operating costs in
2002, partially offset by lower cost of gas sold. The increase in operating costs of $72 million, or 10%, to $829
million primarily reflects costs associated with a consumer energy efficiency program, mandated by the
Commission; and higher transmission costs paid to other utilities.

~ Depreciation and amortization, other than goodwill (including amounts shown in the gross margin table
above), increased $29 million, or 10%, to $332 million. The increase reflected investments in computer systems
to support the restructuring of the Texas electricity’ market, as well as normal growth and replacements of
delivery facilities.

SG&A expenses decreased by $146 million, or 30%, to $348 milliori due primarily to lower bad debt
expense and customer support costs of approximately $150 million, as the retail sales function is reflected in the
* Energy segment in 2002. In addition, information technology costs were higher in 2001 due to system changes
made in preparation of unbundling the delivery business from the generation and retail operations.

Franchise and revenue-based taxes decreased $173 million, or 35%, to $322 million in 2002 due to state
gross receipts taxes that are reported in the Energy segment in 2002. Effective in 2002, local gross receipts taxes
related to electricity revenue are an expense of Oncor while state gross receipts taxes are an expense of TXU .
Energy. The decline also reflected the impact of lower gas dehvery revenues.

Other income declined $14 million to $21 rnillion in 2002, The 2002 period includes a $7 million gain on
sale of property. The 2001 period included $18 million from a favorable settlement of legal proceedings related
to a gas purchase contract. Other income also reflects capitalized allowance for funds used during construction
of $3 million in 2002 and $4 million in 2001, as well as several other individually immaterial items in both
periods.

Other deductions decreased by $36 million to $40 million in 2002. The 2002 period includes a $35 million
loss on early extinguishment of debt. The 2001 period reflects a recoverable charge .of $73 million related to
regulatory restructuring of the Texas electricity market

Interest income increased $29 million to $48 million due primarily to relmbursement from TXU Energy for
carrying costs on regulatory assets.

Interest expense and other charges declined by $16 million, or 5%, to $331 million. Of the change, $51
million wasidue to lower average debt levels, partially offset by $33 million due to higher average rates and a $2
million decrease in capitalized interest. .

Goodwill amortization of $10 million in 2001 ceased, reflecting the discontinuance of goodw111
amortization pursuant to the adoption of SFAS 142,
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The effective income tax rate was 32.5% in 2002 compared to 35.7% in 2001. The decline reflected the
cessation of nondeductible goodwill amortization and nonrecurring regulatory-driven adjustments recorded in
2001 relating to prior years. '

Income beforev extrac;r'dinary loss incfeased $3 million, or 1%, to $228 million, driven by the declines in
SG&A expenses and franchise and revenue-based taxes, partially offset by lower gross margin. Net pension and
postretirement benefit costs reduced nét income by $18 million in 2002 and $6 million in 2001.

Australia
Financial Results
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Operating revenues e ............. s u,m $ 860 $ 700
Costs and expensés: ‘
© Cost of energy sold and delIVery fees .........irnnnec e 527 400 333
OPETatiNg COSIS ....ovvamvieriniimsietstesssnier e e ans s 98 83 74
Depreciation and amortization, other than goodwill ............occevin ' 86 67 60
Selling, general and adMiniStrative eXPenses .........ococvvrsvrirensins : 113 87 63
Other INCOME .....oovviieriiicicr e et e et as s e 48} 2) (3{)
Other deductions............cc.ccevecrecrns rerssanes I 4 ‘A 4 6
* Interest iNCOME «...oo.vcvvvvvvreereeres .................................. ‘ ) e} -
Interest expense and other charges ...........ccoooviien i , 151 129 126
Goodwill amortization ............... s s e e - - 19
Total cOSts and EXPENSES .....cc..covviieniiinrinmie i 973 767 678
Income before income taxes ................ e SRR 130 93 22
Income tax expense (benefit) ... 28 19 - 3
Netincome ..o e e s 1@ s 24 $ 19
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Australia

Operating Data

2003 2002 2001
Operat{ng statistics— volumes: . . ) o ;
Retail electricity $ales (GWh) ........ooccccoerrseserrorsisosrsssoessssrsssessnninss 8,406 6,883 5351
Delivered electridity (GWR) .......oooovoovovceeoorscreeesesesessseesesveseesesesessmseeserees 2,486 2,106 1,843
Retail gas sales (BC) oo e e secaseeserennns 65 63 67
Retail gas distribution (Bef) ..o UTRORO [ 39 35 35
Wholesale electrfcity SA1ES (GWh)...cvvivieieieerecieriere st e ns v e 2,274 3,132 3,826
Retail customers and points of delivery (end of period
and in thousands):
EleCtricCity CUSIOMIETS ..oueuiiiiiiiiiicriiiierere et s conaees 582 - 534 533
GBS CUSTOIMIETS....Luereeiaene vt v ettt b st bbb ) 480 437 427
TOtAl. . Lot e 1.062 971 960
Electricity pointsi0f deliVETY. .. ... ecnieneniens ) 560 549 535
Gas distribution points of dElVETY........covocvrvieiiiciiinice 481 466 453
‘ TOtAL.....ooooe e smoss oo 1041 1,015 988
Operating revenues (millions of dollars):
Retail ¢lectricityisales: .
RESIAENLAL ........covor vt $ 287 $ 212 $ 172
BUSINESS AN OhET ..o svecerrescesrensscesonessesssrsesessnnesenonee 325 225 142
TOtAL et e e bbb e 612 4371 314
Electricity dElIVELY «.o.vovieeiiiiicc et 59 37 31
Retail gas sales: . '
Residential .........occonieriiiiiiii i 207 93 71
Business and Other ............ccovioeriecrniromieinneiesieesreesennscesesssss s anes 93 88 97
TOAL. oo e 300 181 168
Retail gas diStriBUON ......oovieiieneticrrercei et saseserisaeae 43 ' 33 32
Wholesale electriCity TEVENMUES.........covvecrmivrerriirmeenrrienroicarerersecenisnesresseens 47 65 61
Hedging and risk management activities and other revenues ...........cc...co.v... 42 107 94
Total OPErating IEVENUES .........c.ccivvrmriemriricenrceemecrereenasremsecennsceareaces $ 1103 $__860 $__ 700
Australia

2003 comgarfzd to 2002

,

Operating revenues increased $243 million, or 28%, to $1.1 billion in 2003. Of this increase, $185 million
represented the foreign currency translation effect of the stronger Australian dollar. The balance of the growth
was driven by an increase in retail electricity revenues of $71 million, or 16%, and higher retail gas revenues of
$66 million, or 37%, partially offset by lower results from hedging and risk management activities of $60 million
(all on a constant currency exchange rate basis).

The retail electricity revenue growth reflected a 22% increase in sales volumes, driven by customer gains,
particularly in the large business segment, in areas that have now been open to a full year of competition.
Partially offsetting this benefit was the effect of lower average sales prices due to competitive prices offered to
business customers as well as a 4% regulated rate reduction for residential customers effective April 2003 in the
state of Victoria. Retail gas revenue growth in 2003 included a $36 million effect of certain service fee based
customers converting from an agency arrangement to direct customers in October of 2002, resulting in an
increase in revenues and cost of energy sold. The balance of the retail gas revenue growth primarily reflected a
33% increase in residential sales volumes, driven by an increase in customer accounts and the impact of a colder
winter. The effect of a 9% rate increase in residential gas prices effective April 2003 in Victoria was largely
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offset by lower gas volumes in the lower-price business market. Results from hedging and risk management
activities include unrealized net losses arising from mark-to-market accounting of $28 million in 2003 and net
gains of $5 million in 2002. The decline in results from these activities reflected the impact of a $30 million
gain in 2002 on the termination of a wholesale power contract and the effects of lower wholesale prices and
decreased price volatility. Wholesale power prices have declined 25% from 2002 levels due to a combination of
mild weather in the first quarter of 2003- that depressed summer demand and increasing supply due to new
available generation capac1ty A-Network Tariff Rebate (a regulatory subsidy introduced in-April 2003) drove
an $11 million increase in electncxty dlstrlbutxon revenues but this was more than offset by lower prices in the
wholesale business. -

. . . - . . .
v .

Gross Margin’m '~~~ S e o " : -
Year Ended December 31,
% of i % of
2003 Revenue 2002 Revenue

OPErating TeVenUEs .....".......o oo oo et $ 1,103 100% $ 860 100%
Costs and expenses:

Cost of energy sold and dellvery fEeS .ol e s 527 48% 400 46%

OPEIAtNG COSES ..cvvivmiiiiiemmices et csensecmeeenrasen s esmscones ’ 98 9% 83 10%

Depreciation and amortization related to operating assets............ ' 71 1% 61 ' 1%
Gross margin ............ DTSR S DT UOOUUPRUIUOTS SYPTRRSORRION $§ 401 36% 3316 371%

- The depreciation and amortization expense included in gross margin excludes $9 million and $6 million of
such expense for 2003 and 2002 respectively, related to assets that are not directly used in the generation and
delwery of energy

Gross margin 1mproved $85 million, or 27% to- $401 million in 2003. On a local currency basis, margins
increased 5%. Excluding the gain in 2002 on the wholesale power contract termination, gross margin on a local
currency basis rose 11%. This increase reflected increased retail electricity sales volume, lower purchased
power costs that exceeded the effect of lower retail electricity pricing and lower results from hedging and risk
management activities. The lower purchased power costs reflected the decrease in wholesale power prices
discussed above. On a local currency basis, operating costs were flat. Depreciation and amortization related to
operating assets increased 5% on a local currency bas:s, reflecting expendxtures for electricity delivery and
production assets to support growth,

SG&A expenses rose $26 million, or 30%, to $113 million in 2003. On a local currency basis, SG&A
expenses increased 6% due primarily to increased employee-related and marketing expenses largely to support
retail activities in newly competitive markets. These increases were partially offset by’ the effect of start-up
expenses incurred in 2002 related to the Australia segment s involvement in a joint venture to construct a gas
plpelme

Interest expense and related ch'arges increased $22 million, or 17%, to $151 million in 2003." On a local
currency basis, interest expense and related charges were unchanged although debt levels were slightly higher.

The effective income tax rate was 21.5% in 2003 compared to 20.4% in 2002. The rates in both years
reflect nonrecurring benefits. The 2003 effective-income tax rate reflects a $5 million deferred tax adjustment
relating to prior years and the utilization of a capital loss carryforward.” The 2002 rate reflects the non-taxable
nature of the contract termination gain discussed above.

Net income rose $28 million, or 38%, to $102 million in 2003. This increase reflected a $16 million
favorable effect of the stronger Australian dollar. - Improved retail gross margins were partially offset by the $30
million (pre and after-tax) effect of the contract termination gain-in 2002. On a local currency basis and
excluding the effect of the contract termination gain, Australia’s net income rose 41%. Net pension and
postretirement benefit costs reduced net income by $2 million in 2003 and 2002,
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2002 compared to 2001

Operating revenues increased $160 million, or 23%, to $860 million in 2002. The effects of changes in
foreign currency translation rates contributed $40 million to the increase. The balance of the growth reflected
$84 million from increased retail electricity volumes and $26 million from increased retail electricity pricing.
* Electricity volumes increased 29%, driven primarily by the addition of new business accounts. Results from
hedging and risk management activities in 2002 included a $30 million gain (pre and after-tax) on the
termination of a wholesale power contract and net unrealized gains arising from mark-to-market accounting of
$5 million in both years.

Gross Margin
Year Ended December 31,
% of ' © % of
2002 Revenue 2001 Revenue

Operating revenues $ 860 - 100% "8 700 _100%
Costs and expenses: ) o ’

Cost of energy sold and delivery fees .........coocovvvncniiiicnens 400 46% 333 47%

OPEIating COSLS .....vvveeiviemrcmssiinsrircemsisssresssisisssinirsassisssnsesesas 83 10% 74 11%

Depreciation and amortization related to operating assets............ __6l1 1% 36 8%
GroSS MArgin «....o.eceerrvsrerne evrer e e st SRS ben $ 3i6

—37% $ 237 C34%

The depreciation and amortization expense included in gross margin excludes $6 million and $4 million of
such expense for 2002 and 2001 respectively, related to assets that are not directly used in the generation and
delivery of energy. ‘

Gross margin improved $79 million, or 33%, to $316 million in 2002. . On a local currency basis, margins
improved 25%, reflecting higher retail electricity prices and volumes, .partially offset by lower wholesale
electricity margins as wholesale pool prices decreased in 2002. Operating costs rose $9 million, or 6%, on a
local currency basis, due primarily to higher compensation costs and headcount. Depreciation and amortization
related to operating assets increased $5 million, or 4% on a local currency basis, reflecting expenditures for
infrastructure expansion in the electricity delivery business. -

SG&A expenses rose $24 million, or 23%, on a local currency. basis, reflecting increased promotional and
staffing expenses to support retail competition activities in newly opened markets.

The effective income tax rate was 20.4% in 2002 versus 13.6% in 2001. The 2002 rate reflects the non-
taxable nature of the contact termination gain. The 2001 rate reflects nonrecurring adjustments to the tax basis
of certain assets, partially offset by the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. -

Net income rose $55 million to $74 million in 2002. Australia’s results were driven by higher gross
margin, including the $30 million contract termination gain, and the discontinuance of goodwill amortization
($19 million with no tax effect), partially offset by increased SG&A costs. Net pension and postretirement
benefit cost reduced net income by $2 million in 2002 and 2001.
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - Continuing Operations

Cash flow hedge activity reported in other comprehensive income from continuing operations included:

.Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Cash flow hedge activity (net of tax): )
Net change in fair value of hedges gams/(]osses) ) . )
Commodities............. OSSOSO YOOI ’ $ (152) $ D $ 1
" Financing — interest rate and CUITENCY SWaps......... et bbb eeres (116) (169 (80)
(268) 260) (79)
Losses realized in earnings (net of tax):
COMMOBITES ...vvvvoor oo evessssereesssreesie SRR 166 27 T2
Fmancmg interest rate and CUITENCY SWAPS .......vvrvvirrvieesinmsinsianennirenens : 158 - 85 60
324 112 C62
. Net income (loss) effect of cash flow hedges reported in other
comprehcnswe IRCOME. .o s $ 56 $ (148 $ 4D

TXU Corp. has historically used, and expects to continue to use, derivative financial instruments that are
highly effective in offsetting future cash flow volatility in interest rates, energy commodity prices, and currency
exchange rates. The amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive income are expected to offset the
impact of rate or price changes on forecasted transactions. Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive
income include (i) the value of the cash flow hedges (for the effective portion), based on current market
conditions, and (ii) the value of dedesignated and terminated cash flow hedges at the time of such dedesignation,
less amortization, providing the transaction that was hedged is still probable. The effects of the hedge will be
recorded in the statement of i income as the hedged transactions are actually settled.

Other comprehensive income also included adjustments related to foreign currency translation and
minimum pension liabilities.

Foreign currency translati.on adjustments were gains of $302 million and $76 million in 2003 and 2002,
respectively, and a loss of $61 million in 2001. These adjustments reflected the movement in exchange rates
between the US dollar and the Australian dollar and have no tax effects.

Minimum pension liability adjustments were a gain of $82 million ($54 million after-tax) in 2003 and
losses of $128 million ($83 million after-tax) and $9 million ($6 million after-tax) in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The gain in 2003 reflected the impact of improved returns on plan assets. The minimum pension
liability represents the difference between the excess of the accumulated benefit obligation over the plans’ assets
and the liability reflected in the balance sheet. The recording of the liability did not affect TXU Corp.’s ﬁnanmal
covenants in any of its credit agreements.

TXU Corp. adopted SFAS 133 effective January 1, 2001, and recorded a $37 million ($25 million after-
tax) charge to other comprehensive income to reflect the fair value of derivatives effective as cash flow hedges at
transition.

See also Note 15 1o Financial Statements.
FINANCIAL CONDITION
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows — Cash flows provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 were
$2.8 billion compared to $1.3 billion and $1.9 billion for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,

respectively. The principal drivers of the $1.5 billion increase in 2003 were improved working capital (accounts
receivable, accounts payable and inventories) of $683 million, which primarily reflects the effect of billing and
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collection delays in 2002 associated with the transition to competition and includes $129 million in increased
funding under the accounts receivable sale program, as well as the receipt of an income tax refund of $616
million, primarily related to tax benefits associated with the write-off of the investment in Europe. A portion of
the working capital benefit is due to the effect of timing of activities (estimated to be under $200 million), which
is expected to affect comparisons of 2004 operating cash flows to 2003 results. Operating cash flows in 2004 are
expected to approximate $1.8 billion.”

The decrease in cash flows in 2002 from 2001 of $522 million was driven by lower cash earnings (net
income adjusted for the significant noncash items identified in the statement of cash flows) of $142 million and
the effect of a return in 2001 of $227 million in margin deposits related to hedging and risk management
activities (in exchange for letters.of credit). The net unfavorable change in working capital of $388 million in
2002 was comparable to 2001. '

Cash flows used in financing activities were $1.8 billion in 2003 compared to cash flows provided by
financing activities of $1.5 billion in 2002. The activity in 2003 reflected use of operating cash flows and cash
on hand to reduce short and long-term borrowings. Net cash used in issuances and repayments of borrowings
totaled $1.6 billion in 2003 compared to cash provided of $878 million in 2002. Net retirements of equity
securities, reflecting retirement of preferred equity securities, totaled $75 million in 2003 while issuances of
equity securities totaled $1.3 billion in 2002. Cash flows used in financing activities were $516 million in 2001,
driven by dividend payments. Common stock dividends paid totaled $160 million, $652 million and $621
million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Cash flows used in investing activities totaled $1.6 billion, $851 million and $1.2 billion during 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively. Capital expenditures, including nuclear fuel, were $1.0 billion in 2003, $1.1 billion in
2002 and $1.3 billion in 2001. Capital expenditures are expected to total $1.1 billion in 2004, Investment in a
collateral trust associated with a new credit facility totdled $525 million in 2003. ‘The buyout of the joint venture
partner’s interests in Pinnacle in 2003 totaled $150 million. Proceeds from asset sales in 2003 included $15
million from the sale of retail gas activities outside of Texas. Proceeds from assets sales in 2002 of $449 million
included the sale of two generation plants in Texas. Other investing activities in 2002 included $147 million for
terminations of out-of-the-money cash flow hedges, primarily reflecting the effect of the decline in interest rates
on financing-related hedges, and a $30 million investment in an Australian gas pipeline joint venture.

Depreciation and amortization expense reported in the statement of cash flows exceeds the amount reported
in the statement of income by $73 million for 2003. This difference represents amortization of nuclear fuel,
which is reported as cost of energy sold in the statement of income consistent with industry practice, and
amortization of certain regulatory assets, which is reported as operating costs in the statement of income.

Financing Activities

Over the next twelve months, TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries will need to fund ongoing working capital
requirements and maturities of debt. TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries have funded or intend to fund these
requirements through cash on hand, cash flows from operations, the sale of assets, short-term credit facilities and
the issuance of long-term debt or other securities. ’
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Long-Term Debt Activity — Dunng the year ended December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. and its subs1d1arles
issued, redeemed, reacquired or made scheduled principal payments on long-term debt as follows:

Issuances Retirements

TXU Corp.:

Convertible SEnior NOES ................c.coiovvirerivnn. et $ 525 5 -

Senior notes . . - 323

Other long-term debt ) - 97
Oncor: .

First mortgage bonds .......c.c.coovevrenricniiicoennnnesreeererenienne - 663

Medium term notes..... - 15

Transition bonds .........c.cecveeiiinicvricie e 500 .-
TXU Gas:

SERIOT NOES ......oveviricaansiimestesestreeersrtees st sse et srensssene e ene s reiesens - - 125
TXU Energy:

Fixed rate SENIOr NOLES .....oveviviverirreieinrere s etere e eressisreresecesnnns 1,250 72

Pollution control revenue bonds.... 568 638

Other long-term debt...........ccccoovcinenrcnrinnins s, 3 -
US Holdings:

Other long-term debt..........cccco. i : - .4
Pinnacle telecommunications holding company:

 SENIOT MOLES oottt e - 250

TXU Australia: .

Long-term debt ........cccovviiiiieiiii e 399 549

TOtAl. ..o e e e $3.245 $2.736

See Notes 7, 8, 9 and 11 to Financial Statements for further detail of debt issuance and retirements,
financing arrangements, debt held by unconsolidated subsidiary trusts and capitalization.

Convertible Senior Notes — In July 2003, TXU Corp. issued $525 million of floating rate convertible
senior notes due 2033 in a private placement with registration rights. The notes bear regular interest at an annual
floating rate equal to 3-month LIBOR, determined quarterly, plus 150 basis points, and are-payable in arrears
quarterly commencing October 15, 2003. The notes have an initial conversion rate of 28.9289 shares of TXU
Corp. common stock per $1,000 principal amount of notes, which equates to an initial conversion price of
$34.5675 per share. The conversion rate is subject to adjustments in certain circumstances, including a change in
the amount of quarterly cash dividends per share on TXU Corp. common stock from the current rate of $0.125
per share. The notes are convertible at the conversion rate, as adjusted, until maturity if (1) during any fiscal
quarter the market price of TXU Corp. common stock is above $41.481 per share for a specified peried; (2) TXU
Corp. calls the notes for redemption; (3) the trading price of the notes falls below 95% of the conversion value of
the notes for a specified period; or (4) certain specified corporate transactions occur. Should the holders elect to
convert the notes, TXU Corp. has the option to settle the conversion in cash, common stock or a combination of
both. TXU Corp. intends to settle any conversion in cash See Note 8 to.Financial Statements for further
information.

Equity-Linked Debt Securities — In 2002 and 2001, TXU Corp. issued equity-linked debt securities with
aggregate stated amounts of $440 million and $1.0 billion, respectively. Equity-linked debt securities are units
that consist of (i) TXU Corp. senior notes and (ii) a stock purchase contract that requires the holder to purchase
TXU Corp. common stock. in the future. The number of shares issuable upon settlement of stock purchase
contracts represents the stated value of the notes divided by an average market price of TXU Corp. common
stock immediately preceding the settlement date. The calculation of shares issuable is subject to a minimum
price that typically represents the price of the common stock at the time of the initial issuance of the equity-
linked debt securities, and a maximum price that includes a premium over the minimum price, and is negotiated
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in connection with the pricing of the offering.. The reference price and the threshold appreciation price for each
series of TXU Corp.’s equity-linked debt securities are based on market conditions at the time the securities
were issued.

To the extent the market price of TXU Corp. common stock is below the minimum price on the applicable
settlement date, holders of equity-linked debt securities would be required to purchase TXU Corp. common
stock at a price higher than the market price at that time. The market price of TXU Corp.’s common stock is

“currently below the minimum price for both currently outstanding series of TXU Corp.’s equity-linked debt
securities. TXU Corp.’s stock price affects the market price of the equity-linked debt securities, but does not
have any effecti on the provisions of the equity-linked debt securities other than the impact on the settlement
rate, as discussed above.

Under the terms of the purchase contracts, TXU Corp. expects to issue between 24,953,600 and
30,514,000 shates of its common stock upon settlement. A total of 30,514,000 shares have been reserved for
issuance. Based on the current market price of TXU Corp. common stock, TXU Corp. expects to issue
approximately 11 million common shares in November 2004 in connection with $500 million of its equity-
linked debt securities.

Regulatory Asset Securitization — The Settlement Plan approved by the Commission provides Oncor
with a financing order authorizing the issuance of securitization bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up
to $1.3 billion to recover regulatory asset stranded costs. Oncor issued $500 million of the bonds in August of
2003. In addition, approximately $790 million is expected to be issued in the first half of 2004, The proceeds
will be used to retire debt. Because the bond principal and interest payments are secured by the collection of
delivery fee surcharges by Oncor, the $1.3 billion in debt is excluded from TXU Corp.’s and Oncor’s
capitalization by credit rating agencies. :

Credit Facilities — At December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. had US credit facilities totaling $2.8 billion and
expiring in 2005 and 2008, of which $2.3 billion was unused, and Australian facilities totaling $992 million of
which $237 million was unused. These credit facilities support issuances of letters of credit and are available for
borrowings. See Note 7 to Financial Statements for details of the arrangements.

Exchangeable Preferred Membership Interests of TXU Energy — In July 2003, TXU Energy exercised its
right, in a noncash transaction, to exchange its $750 million 9% Exchangeable Subordinated Notes due
November22, 2012 for exchangeable preferréed membership interests with identical economic and other terms.
These securities are exchangeable for TXU Corp. common stock at an exchange price of $13.1242 per share.
The market price of TXU Corp. common stock on December 31, 2003 was $23.72. Any exchange of these
securities into common stock would result in a proportionate write-off of the related unamortized discount as a
charge to earnings. If all the securities had been exchanged into common stock on December 31, 2003, the pre-
tax charge would have been $104 million. These securities are considered not to be mandatorily redeemable
under SFAS 150 because of the exchangeability provision.

Registered Financing Arrangements — TXU Corp., US Holdings, TXU Gas and other subsidiaries of
TXU Corp. may issue and sell additional debt and equity securities as needed, including: (i) issuances by US
Holdings of up to $25 million of cumulative preferred stock and up to an aggregate of $924 million of additional
cumnulative preferred stock, debt securities and/or preferred securities of subsidiary trusts and (ii) issuances by
TXU Gas of up to an aggregate of $400 million of debt securities and/or preferred securities of subsidiary trusts,
all of which are currently registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission for offering pursuant to Rule
415 under the Securities Act of 1933. TXU Corp. expects to file a new shelf registration for up to $1.0 billion of
debt and/or equity securities. ‘ ‘ ‘

Equity — In December 2002, TXU Corp. issued 35 million common shares in a public offering. In June
2002, TXU Corp. issued 11.8 million common shares in a public offering. ‘Net proceeds of $1.1 billion from
these offerings were used for general corporate purposes, including the repayment of commercial paper and to
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provide advances to subsidiaries. In August 2002, TXU Corp issued 8.4 million shares related to $350 million
of equity-linked debt .

In April 2001 TXU Corp. repurchased 1.3 mllhon shares of its common stock for $44 million under one of
two.existing equity purchase agreements with certain financial institutions. Following that purchase, TXU Corp.
terminated both agreements without purchasing additional shares. Settlement of these agreements had no effect
on earnings. No additional repurchases were made and none are planned for 2004,

In October 2002, TXU Corp. declared a common stock dividend of $O 125 per share, payable on January 2,
2003, which represented an 80% reduction from the previous dividend rate. The decrease was in response to
capital market concerns regarding TXU Corp.’s liquidity and the general state of the electricity industry. (See
Note 3 to Financial Statements regarding events related to TXU Europe). TXU Corp. paid quarterly dividends of
$0.60 a share in January 2002 April 2002, July 2002 and October 2002

- TXU Corp. or its predecessor has declared common stock dividends payable in cash in each year since
incorporation in 1945, The Board of Directors of TXU Corp., at its February 2004 meeting, declared a quarterly
dividend of $0.125 a share, payable April 1, 2004, to shareholders of record on March 5, 2004. TXU Corp. paid
quarterly dividends of $0.125 a share throughout 2003. Future dividends may vary and are subject to
consideration of TXU Corp.’s operating cash flow levels and capltal requirements as well as financial and other
business conditions existing at the time. .

-Under- Texas'law, TXU Corp. may only declare dividends out of surplus, which is statutorily defined as
total shareholders’ equity less the book value of common stock (stated capital). The write-off of TXU Corp.’s
investment in TXU Europe resulted in negative surplus. Texas law permits, subject to the receipt of shareholder
approval, the reclassification of stated capital into surplus. TXU Corp. received such shareholder approval of
this reclassification in a special meeting of shareholders held February 14, 2003. Accordingly, approximately
$8.0 billion was reclassified from stated capital to additional paid in capital, resulting in an increase of surplus in
the same amount. Surplus at December 31, 2003 was $5.6 billion.

The mortgage of Oncor restricts its payment of dividends to the amount of its retamed earnings. Certain
other debt instruments and preferred securities of TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries contain provisions that restrict
payment of dividends during any interest or-distribution payment deferral period or while any payment default
exists. At December 31, 2003, there were no restrictions on the payment of dividends under these provisions.

Other Capital Transactions — Since August 2001, TXU Corp.’s requirements under its Direct Stock
Purchase and Dividend. Reinvestment Plan have been met -through additional issuances by TXU Corp. of
common stock. Issuances under this plan totaled 508,379, 1,069,264 and 260,243 shares in 2003, 2002 and
2001 respectively. Shares for the Thrift Plan are purchased on the open market or from the LESOP trustee.

Capitalization — The cap1tahzat10n ratios of TXU Corp at December 31, 2003, con51sted of 2.8% long-
term debt held by subsidiary trusts, 7.4% equity-linked debt securities, 55.7% other long-term debt, less
amounts due currently, 3.3% exchangeable preferred membership. interests, 1.5% preference stock, 0.6%
preferred stock of subsidiaries and 28.7% common stock equity. Total debt to capitalization, including short-
term debt, was 67% and 74% at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. . »

Short-term Borrowings — At December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. had outstanding. short-termn borrowings
consisting of bank borrowings of approximately $58 million and commercial paper of $39 miilion (all in
Australia). At December 31, 2002, TXU Corp. had outstanding'short-term borrowings consisting of bank
borrowings of approximately $2.3 billion (predominantly in the US) at a werghted average interest rate of 2.6%
and commercral paper of $18 million (m Australia). \

Sale of Recezvables — TXU Corp. has established an accounts recervable securitization program. The-
activity under this program is accounted for as a sale of accounts receivable in accordance with SFAS 140.
Under the program, US subsidiaries of TXU Corp. (originators) sell trade accounts receivable to TXU
Receivables Company, a consolidated wholly-owned bankruptcy remote direct subsidiary of TXU Corp., which
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sells undivided interests in the purchased accounts receivable for.cash to special purpose entities established by
financial institutions. All new trade receivables under the program generated by the originators are continuously
purchased by TXU Receivables Company with the proceeds from collections of receivables previously
purchased. Funding under the program in 2003 totaled $600 million, which is the maximum amount available,
and $471 million in 2002. The increase of $129 million primarily reflects billing and collection delays in 2002
due to data compilation and reconciliation issues among ERCOT and the market participants in the newly
deregulated market. See Note 7 to Financial Statements for a more complete description of the program
including the financial impact on earnings and cash flows for the periods presented and the cont1ngenc1es that
could result in \termmatlon of the progTam ,

" Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash on hand totaled $875 million and $1 6 billion at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The decline reﬂects repayments of borrowings. 4 .

Restricted Cash — Restricted cash at December 31, 2003 1ncludes $525 million related to a $500 million
credit facility established in 2003. The restricted cash represents collateral for letters. of credit or loans issued
under the facﬂlty See Note .7 to Financial Statements Restricted cash of $210. million at December 31, 2002
was used to repay debt in 2003. » :

"Leases — In February 2002, TXU Corp. sold its interest in its headquarters building in Dallas, Texas for
$145 million. Simultaneously with the sale of the property, TXU Corp. entered into a twenty-year lease
obligation for the property. At the end of the initial twenty-year term of the lease, TXU Corp. has the right, but
not the obligation, to renew the lease for three ten-year renewal terms under which rents will be paid based on
then-existing market conditions. The sale was accounted for as'a financing and the obligation is reflected in
long-term debt : '

Credzt Ratmgs of TXU Corp. and its US and Australian Subsidiaries — The current credit ratlngs for
TXU Corp. and certain of its US and Australian subs1d1ar1es are presented below: -

TXU Corp. US Holdings Oncor TXU Energy TXU Gas TXU Australia

(Senior Unsecured) (Senior Unsecured) (Secured) (Semor Unsecured) (Senior Unsecured)  (Senior Unsecured)
- BBB- ’ BBB . BBB BBB 'BBB
" Baa3 Baal - Baa2 : Baa3 Baa2

BBB- . BBB+ BBB BBB- ‘BBB-

Moody’s currently maintains a negative outlook for TXU Corp., TXU Gas and TXU Australia, and a stable
outlook for US Holdings, TXU Energy and Oncor. Fitch currently maintains a positive outlook for TXU
Australia and: a stable outlook for the remaining entities. S&P currently maintains a negative outlook for each
such entity. : : ‘

These ratings are investment grade, except for Moody ] ratmg of TXU Corp.’s senior unsecured debt,
which is one notch below investment grade ‘ :

A rating reﬂects only the view of a rating agency, and is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities. Any rating can be revised upward or downward at any time by a rating agency if such rating agency
decides that circumstances warrant such a change.

Financial Covenants, Credit Rating Provisions and Cross Default Provisions — The terms of certain
financing arrangements of TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries contain financial covenants that require maintenance
of specified fixed charge coverage ratios, shareholders’ equity to total capitalization ratios and leverage ratios
and/or contain minimum net worth covenants. TXU Energy’s exchangeablie preferred membership interests aiso
limit its incurrence of additional indebtedness unless a leverage ratio and interest coverage test are met on a pro
forma basis. As of December 31, 2003 TXU Corp and its sub51dxa:1es were in comphance with all such
applicable covenants.
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Certain financing and other arrangements of TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries contain provisions that are
specifically affected by changes in credit ratings and also include cross default provisions. The material credit
rating and cross default provisions are described below.

Other agreements of TXU Corp.; including some of the credit facilities discussed above, contain terms
pursuant to which the interest rates charged under-the agreements may be adjusted depending on the credlt
ratings of TXU Corp. or its subsidiaries.

Credit Rating Cavenants .

“ In'the event of a declme ‘in the credrt rating for TXU Corp.'s unsectred,.senior long -term obllgatrons to two’
notches below investment grade (i.e., to or below 'BB' by S&P or Fitch or 'Ba2' by Moody's), coupled with a
decline in the market price of TXU Corp. common stock below $21.93 per share for ten consecutive trading
days, TXU Corp. would be required to sell equity: or otherwise raise cash proceeds sufficient to repay Pinnacle's
senior secured notes ($560 million outstanding -at December 31, 2003).. The rmarket price of TXU Corp.’s
common stock was above the stated-level as of December 31, 2003.: TXU. Corp. has notified holders of the
Pinnacle senior notes that it intends to redeem all of the notes outstanding on March 18, 2004. Upon completing
the redemption, the credit ratmg covenants mentioned above will be eliminated. .. ~

XU Energy has prov1ded a guarantee of the obhgatlons under TXU Corp.’s lease (approximately $130
million at December 31, 2003) for .its headquarters building. In-the event of a downgrade of TXU Energy’s
credit rating to below investment grade, a letter of credit would need to be provided within 30 days of any such
ratings decline.

TXU Energy has entered.into certain commodity contracts and lease arrangements that in some instances
give the other party the right, but not the obligation, to.request TXU Energy to- post collateral in the event that its
credit rating falls below investment grade. - '

Based on its current commodity contract positions, if TXU Energy were downgraded below investment
grade by any specified rating agency, counterparties would ‘have the option to request TXU Energy to post
additional collateral of approximately- $145 million. : 4

In addition,' TXU Energy has a number of other contractual -arranigements where the counterparties would
have the right to request TXU Energy post collateral if its credit rating was downgraded below investment.grade
by all three rating agencies. The amount TXU Energy would post under these transactions depends in part on
the -value of the ‘contracts at that time.. As of December 31, 2003, based on current market conditions, the
maximum TXU Energy would post for these transactions is $247 rmlhon Of this amount, $228 million relates
to one specific counterparty : : ‘

TXU Energy is also the obligor on leases aggregatmg $161 million. Under the terms of those leases, if
TXU Energy’s credit rating were downgraded to below investment grade by any specified rating agency, TXU
Energy could be required to sell the assets, assrgn the leases to a new obl1gor that is investment grade, post a
letter of credit or defease the- leases '

ERCOT also has rules in place to assure adequate credit worthiness for parties that schedule power on the
ERCOT System. Under those rules, if TXU Energy’s credit rating were downgraded to below investment grade
by any specified rating agency, TXU Energy could be requrred to post collateral of approx1mately $32 rrulhon

In the event that TXU Australia’s credit rating was downgraded to below investment grade there are Cross
currency swaps and intereSt rate swaps in effect with banks who have the right to terminate the swaps. These
contracts are currently out of the money by $11 million on a net-basis.

TXU" Australia has several contracts ‘that may require additional guarantees or cash collateral totaling

approximately $58 million if its credit rating was downgraded to below investment grade, or 1f there was a
material adverse change in its financial condition. - R
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Cross Default Provisions

Certain financing arrangements of TXU Corp. contain provisions that would result in an event of default if
there were a failure under other financing arrangements to meet payment terms or to observe other covenants
that would result in an acceleration of payments due. Such provisions are referred to as “cross default”
provisions.

A default by US Holdings or any subsidiary thereof on financing arrangements of $50 million or more
would result in a cross default under the $1.4 billion US Holdings five-year revolving credit facility, the $400
million US Holdings credit facility and $30 million of TXU Mining senior notes (which have a $1 million cross
default threshold).

A default by TXU Energy or Oncor or any subsidiary thereof in respect of indebtedness in a principal
amount in excess of $50 million would result in a cross default for such party under the TXU Energy/Oncor
$450 million revolving credit facility. Under this credit facility, a default by TXU Energy or any subsidiary
thereof would cause the maturity of outstanding balances under such facility to be accelerated as to TXU Energy,
but not as to Oncor. Also, under this credit facility, adefault by Oncor or any subsidiary thereof would cause the
maturity of outstanding balances under such facility to be accelerated as to Oncor, but not as to TXU Energy.

A default by TXU Corp. on indebtedness of $50 million or more would result in a cross default under the
new $500 million five-year revolving credit facility.

A default or similar event under the terms of the TXU Energy exchangeable preferred membership interests
that results in the acceleration (or other mandatory repayment prior to the mandatory redemption date) of such
security or the failure to pay such security at the mandatory redemption date would result in a default under TXU
Energy’s $1.25 billion senior unsecured notes. :

TXU Corp.’s Notes due 2004, which are held by Pinnacle in a trust, and Pinnacle’s 8.83% Senior Secured
Notes due 2004, contain cross default provisions relating to a failure to pay principal or interest on indebtedness
of TXU Corp. or TXU Comimunications (in the case of the 8.83% Senior Secured Notes due 2004) in a principal
amount of $50 million or above. TXU Corp. has notified holders of the Pinnacle senior notes that it intends to
redeem all of the notes outstanding on March 18, 2004. - Upon completing the redemption, the cross default
covenants mentioned above will be eliminated. -

TXU Energy. has entered into certain mining and equipment leasing arrangements aggregating $118 million
that would terminate upon the default of any other obligations of TXU Energy owed to the lessor. In the event
of a default by TXU Mining, a subsidiary of TXU Energy, on indebtedness in excess of $1 million, a cross
default would result under the $31 million TXU Mining leveraged lease and the lease could terminate.

The accounts receivable program also contains a cross default provision with a threshold of $50 million
applicable .to each of the originators under the program. TXU Receivables Company and TXU Business
-Services each have a cross default threshold of $50,000. If either an originator, TXU Business Services or TXU
Receivables Company defaults on indebtedness of the applicable threshold, the facility could terminate.

TXU Energy enters into energy-related contracts, the master forms of which contain provisions whereby an
event of default would occur if TXU Energy were to default under an obligation in respect of borrowings in
excess of thresholds stated in the contracts, which thresholds vary.

A default by TXU Gas or any of its material subsidiaries on indebtedness of $25 million or more would
result in a cross default under TXU Gas’ senior notes. :

Defaults by TXU Australia or its subsidiaries on financing arrangements and interest rate, currency and

commodity derivatives would result in cross-defaults under other financing arrangements (including senior bank
facilities and senior debt) and interest rate, currency and commodity derivatives of TXU Australia and its
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subsidiaries. The cross-default provisions in these instruments vary in terms of which entities can cause cross-
defaults and the thresholds at which defaults would result in cross-defaults. Defaults by TXU Australia-or its
subsidiaries would not result in cross-defauits under material financing arrangements of TXU Corp. and its other
subsidiaries and defaults by TXU Corp. or its other. subsidiaries would not result in cross- defaults under material
ﬁnancmg arrangements of TXU Australia and its subsidiaries.

TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries have' other arrangemems, including interest rate swap agreemehts and
leases with cross default provisions, the triggering of which would not result in a significant effect on liquidity. -

Long-term Contractual Obligations and Commttments — The followmg table summarizes the contractual
cash obligations of TXU Corp. under specified contractual obligations in effect as of December 31, 2003 (see
Notes 7 and 18 to Financial Statements for additional disclosures regarding terms of these obligations.) Because
of new disclosure requirements, this table includes commitment amounts not previously disclosed..

Contractual Cash Obligations ‘ o ‘ More
) “Less -  Oneto Three to Than
Than. - . Three - Five Five
_ OneYear  Years Years Years
Long-term debt and preferred membership interest - ) . .
principal and interest/dividends ... $1,888° -~ $2961 - $2,207 $15,574
Operating leases and capital lease obhgatxons () I 104 190 172 510

Purchase obligations (b) .........ccceceeveiviniecnncniesnin e 2,926 2,078 - 1,185 3,043
Other liabilities on the balance sheet - i : ’ -
Pension and other postretirement liabilities — US plan o . :
CONLLDULONS (€) vvvvverrerriremrereerniisssersseemsicasssensorenesenns 115 243 233 115
Total contractual cash obligations $5.033 35472 $3.797 $19.242

(a) Includes short term noncancelable leases

(b) Includes capacity payments, gas take or pay contracts, coal contracts, and other purchase obligations. Amounts presented for variable
priced contracts assumed the year-end 2003 price remamed in effect for all periods except where contractual price adjustments or
index-based prices were specified.

(c) Projections of cash contributions to US qualified pension and other postretirement benefit plans for the years 2004-2009.

The following contractual obllgatlons were excluded from the purchase obligations disclosure in the table
above: -

(1) contracts between afﬁhated entities.

(2) individual contracts that have an annual cash requirement of less than $1 nulhon (However, multiple
contracts with one counterparty that are individually less than $1 million have been aggregated.)

(3) contracts that are cancelable without payment of a substantial cancellatlon penalty.

(4) employment contracts with management :

Guarantees — See Note 18 to Financial Statements for details of guarantees:

Investing Activities

In April 2002, TXU Energy acquired a cogeneration and wholesale energy production business in New
Jersey for $36 million in cash. The acquisition included a 122 megawatt (MW) combined-cycle power
production facility and various contracts, including electric supply and gas transportation agreements. The
acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business combination, and its results of operations are reflected in
the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

In May 2002, TXU Energy acquired a 260 MW combined-cycle power generation facility in northwest
Texas through a settlement agreement which dismissed a lawsuit previously filed related to the plant, and
included a nominal cash payment. TXU Energy previously purchased all of the electrical output of this plant
under a long-term contract.
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In April 2002, TXU Energy completed the sale of two electricity generation plants in the Dallas-Fort Worth
area with total capacity of 2,334 MW for $443 million in cash. Concurrent with the sale, TXU Energy entered
into a tolling agreement to purchase power-during the summer months through 2006. The terms of the tolling
agreement include above-market pricing, representing a fair value liability of $190 million. A pretax gain on the
sale of $146 million, net of the effects of the tolling agreement, was deferred and is being recognized in other
income during summer months: over the five-year term of the tolling agreement. Both the value of the tolling
agreement and the deferred gain are reported in other liabilities in the balance sheet. The amount of the gain
recognized in other income in 2003 was approximately $30 million.

TXU Corp. may pursue potential investment opportunities if it concludes that such investments are
consistent with its business strategies-and will dispose of nonstrategic assets to allow redeployment of resources
into faster growing opportunities in an effort to enhance the long-term return to its shareholders.

Future Capital Expenditures-— Capital expenditures are estimated at $1.1 billion for 2004, substantially
all of which are for maintenance and organic growth of existing operations, and are expected to be funded by
cash flows from operations. Approximately 59% is planned for the Energy Delivery segment, 30% for the
Energy segment, 10% for Australia and 1% for other activities.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

With the acquisition of the other partner’s interest in the Pinnacle telecommunications joint venture in May
2003, the only remaining significant off balance sheet arrangement consists of the sale of receivables program.
See discussion above under Sale of Receivables and in Note 7 to Financial Statements.

See Note 17 to Financial Statements for a discussion of the investment in the telecommunications business’
and contingencies related to potential equity security issuances under the original joint venture arrangement.

Under Rule 309 va Regulation S-X, TXU Corp. filed separate audited financial statements of Pinnacle by
an amendment to its December 31, 2002 Form 10-K. Those financial statements are included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K as Appendix C.-

- TXU Corp. has equity ownership interests in entities that are not consolidated. These include operating
businesses such as the Australia SEA Gas pipeline joint venture as well as financing trusts not consolidated
under FIN 46. See Notes 5 and 10 for disclosures related to these interests. There are no material contingencies
related to these interests.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Consistent with industry practices, TXU Energy has decided to replace the four steam generators in one of
the two generation units of the Comanche Peak nuclear plant in order to maintain the operating efficiency of the
unit. An agreement for the manufacture and delivery of the equipment was completed in October 2003, and
delivery is scheduled for late 2006. Estimated project capital requirements, inciuding purchase and installation,
are $175 million to $225 million. Cash outflows are expected to occur in 2004 through 2007, with the significant
majority after:2004.

See Note 18 to Financial Statements for a discussion of other commitments and contingencies, including
guarantees. : .
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REGULATION AND RATES

Information Request From CFTC — In October 2003, TXU Corp. received an informal request for
information from the US Commodity Futures Trading Commission (CFTC) seeking voluntary production of
information concerning disclosure of price and volume information furnished by TXU Portfolio Management
Company LP to energy industry publications. The request seeks information for the period from January 1, 1999
to the present. TXU Corp. has cooperated with the CFTC, and is in the process of completing its response to
such information request. . TXU Corp. believes that TXU Portfolio Management Company LP was not engaged
in any reporting of price or volume information that would in any way justify any action by the CFTC.

1999 Restructuring Legislation and Settlement Plan — On December 31, 2001, US Holdings filed the
Settlement Plan with the Commission. It resolved all major pending issues related to US Holdings’ transition to
electricity competition pursuant to the 1999 Restructuring Legislation. The Settlement Plan does.not remove
regulatory oversight of Oncor’s business nor does it eliminate TXU Energy’s price-to-beat rates and related fuel
adjustments. The Settlement Plan became final and non-appealable in January 2003. See Note 16 to Financial
Statements for the major elements of the Settlement Plan, the most significant of which on a go-forward basis are.
the retail clawback credit and the issuance of securitization bonds to recover regulatory asset stranded costs.

Price-to-Beat Rates — Under the 1999 Restructuring Legislation, TXU Energy is required to continue to
charge a “price-to-beat” rate established by the Commission to residential customers (and to offer, along with
other -pricing alternatives, this rate to small business customers) in the historical service territory. The rate can
be adjusted upward or downward twice a year, subject to approval by the Commission, for changes in the market
price of natural gas. TXU Energy increased its price-to-beat rate in March and August of 2003.

Wholesale market design — In August 2003, the Commission adopted a rule that, if fully implemented,

would alter the wholesale market design in ERCOT. The rule requires. ERCOT:

e to use a stakeholder process to develop a new wholesale market model;
to operate a voluntary day-ahead energy market;
to directly assign all congestion rents to the resources that caused the congestion;
to use nodal energy prices for resources;
to provide information for energy trading hubs by aggreganng nodes;
to use zonal prices for loads; and :
to provide congestion revenue rights (but not physical rights).

Under the rule, the proposed market design and associated cost-benefit analysis is to be filed with the
Commission by November 1, 2004 and is to be implemented by October 1, 2006. TXU Energy is currently
unable to predict the cost or impact of implementing any proposed change to the current wholesale market
design.

Transmission Rates — In May 2003, the Commission approved an increase in Oncor’s wholesale
transmission tariffs (rates) charged to distribution utilities that became effective immediately. In March and
August 2003 and March 2004, the Commission approved increases in the transmission cost recovery component
of Oncor’s distribution rates charged to REPs. The combined effect of these four increases in both the
transmission and distribution rates is an estimated $62 million of incremental revenues to Oncor on an
annualized basis. With respect to the impact on TXU Corp.’s consolidated results, the higher distribution rates
result in reduced margin on TXU Energy’s sales to those retail customers with pncmg that does not provide for
recovery of higher dehvery fees, principally price-to-beat customers.

On March 3, 2004, Oncor filed an annual request for interim u'pdét'e of its wholesale transmission rates.
Oncor requested a total annualized revenue increase of $14 million effective April 7, 2004,

Gas Distribution Rates — In May 2003, TXU Gas filed, for the first time, a system-wide rate case for the

distribution and pipeline operations. The case was filed in all 437 incorporated cities served by the distribution
operations, and at the RRC for the pipeline business and for unincorporated areas served by the distribution
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operations. The TXU Gas filing requested an annual revenue increase of $69.5 million or 7.24%. All 437 cities
took action on the case within their statutory time frame, and TXU Gas has appealed these actions to the RRC.
Based on the current procedural schedule, TXU Gas expects a final order from the RRC in the second quarter of
2004. ' .

Australia — The distribution tariffs for electricity until December 31, 2003, and for gas until December
31, 2007, are determined by the Essential Services Commission. The gas distribution tariffs were increased by
2.2% for 2003, and for each subsequent year, the tariffs are to increase by 0.8% plus the Consumer Price Index
(CPI) increase. The electricity distribution tariffs are to increase by the CPI less 1% each year

In Vrctorra and New South Wales, the re51dent1al electrlcrty markets have both become competltrve since
January 2002, and the residential gas markets have become competitive in New South Wales from January 2002
and in Victoria from October 2002. The residential and small business energy prices are still subject to oversight
(through price'caps) by the government bodies of the respective States of Vlctorxa and New South Wales. "

In South Australia, the residential clectrlcrty market has been competitive since January 2003, although the
residential and small business energy prices offered by incumbent retailers are still regulated and determined by
the South Australian government. TXU Australia entered into this market in March 2003.

Summary — Although TXU Corp. cannot predict future regulatory or legislative actions or any changes in
economic and securities market conditions, no changes are expected in trends or commitments, other.than those
discussed in this report which might significantly alter its basic ﬁnancral position, results of operations or cash
flows. :

QUAN TITATIV E AND QUALITATIV E DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that TXU Corp. may experience a loss in value as a result of changes in market
conditions such as commodity prices, interest rates or foreign currency exchange rates, which TXU Corp. is
exposed to in the ordinary course of business. TXU Corp.’s exposure to market risk is affected by a number of
factors, including the size, duration and composition of its energy and financial portfolio, as well as volatility
and liquidity of markets. TXU Corp. enters into financial instruments such as interest and currency rate swaps
to manage interest rate risks and foreign currency exchange rate risks related to its indebtedness, as well as
exchange traded, over the counter contracts and other contractual commitments to manage commodlty price risk
in its portfolio management activities. o

RISK OVERSIGHT

TXU Corp.’s portfolio management operation manages the market, credit and operational risk of the
unregulated energy business within limitations established by senior management and in accordance with TXU
Corp.’s overall risk management policies. Market risks are monitored daily by risk management groups that

operate and report independently of the portfolio management operations, utilizing industry accepted practices
and analytical methodologies. These techniques measure the risk and change in value of the portfoho of
contracts and the hypothetical effect on this value from changes in market conditions and inctude, but are not
limited to, Value at Risk (VaR) methodologres

 TXU Corp. has a corporate risk management organization that is headed by a chief risk officer. The chief
risk officer, through his designees, enforces the VaR limits by region, including the respective policies and
procedures to ensure compliance with such limits and evaluates the risks inherent in the various businesses of
TXU Corp. and their associated transactions. Key risk control activities include, but are not limited to, credit
review and approval, operational and market risk measurement, validation of transactions, portfolio valuation
and daily portfolio reporting, including mark-to-market vatuation, VaR and other risk measurement metrics.
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In connection with Mr. Wilder’s review of operations, as discussed above under Management Change,
TXU Corp. has engaged a consulting firm to review its portfolio management activities. The review, which
- commenced in March 2004, will cover governance and risk policies, the control environment and management
processes. The purpose of the review is prlmanly to 1dcnt1fy opportumtles if any, to improve the effectiveness
of portfolio management operations.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

TXU Corp. is subject to the inherent risks of market fluctuations in the price of electricity, natural gas and
other energy-related products marketed and purchased. TXU Corp. actively manages its portfolio of owned
generation assets, fuel supply and retail sales load to mitigate the near-term impacts of these risks on its results
of operations. TXU Corp., as well as any participant in the market, cannot manage the long-term value impact
of structural declines or increases in natural gas, power and oil prices and spark spreads (differences between the
market price of electricity and its cost of production).

In managing energy price risk, TXU Corp. enters into short- and long-term physical contracts, financial
contracts that are traded on exchanges and over-the-counter, and bilateral contracts with customers. Speculative
trading activities represent a small fraction of the portfolio management process. The portfolio management
operation continuously monitors the valuation of identified risks ‘and adjusts the portfolio based on current
market conditions. Valuation adjustments or reserves are established in recognition that certain risks exist until
full delivery of energy has occurred, counterparties have fulfilled thelr ﬁnanc1a1 commitments- and related
ﬁnanc1al instruments have either matured or are closed out

‘TXU Corp. strives to use consistent assumptions regarding forward market price curves in evaluating and’
recording the effects of commodity price risk.

One measure of commodity price risk is the effect of a change in natural gas prices on operating results.
For every $0.50 per million British thermal units (Btu) reduction in natural gas prices in the US, there would be a
$250 million reduction in annual pre-tax earnings assuming sales prices of electricity declined accordingly, no
hedges were in place and other non-price conditions were unchanged. This effect would be mitigated in the near-
term by the impact of regulatory mechanisms that affect the timing and frequency of price-to-beat rate changes,
as well as the contractual nature of revenues related to large business customers. Further, hedging positions in
place would partially offset the near-term effect of a decline in natural gas prices. The near-term and longer-term
effects of lower gas prices would also depend on competitors’ pricing actions and TXU Corp.’s actions to reduce
operating and SG&A costs.” TXU Corp.’s base load power production costs would be largely unaffected by a
decline in gas prices. A $0.50 move in gas prices represents a change of approximately 10% in the current
forward price. : ‘

To supplement the discussion of sensitivities of commodity price risk, VaR and related measures are
presented below. The value of TXU Corp.’s long-term asset portfolio cannot be easily extrapolated under
conventional VaR methodologies. Because of the correlation’ of power and natural gas prices in the Texas
market, structural decreases or incréases in natural gas prices that are sustained over a multi-year period result in
a correspondingly lower or higher value of TXU Corp.’s base load generation assets.

VaR Methodology — A VaR methodology is used to measure the amount of market risk that exists within
the portfolio under a variety of market conditions. The resultant VaR produces an estimate of a portfolio’s
potential for loss given a specified confidence level and considers among other things, market movements
utilizing standard statistical techniques given historical and projected market prices and volatilities. Stress
testing of market variables-is also conducted to simulate and address abnormal market conditions.

The use of this method requires a number of key assumptions, such as use of (i) an assumed confidence

level; (ii) an assumed holding period (i.e. the time necessary for management action, such as to liquidate
positions); and (iii) historical estimates of volatility and correlation data.
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VaR for Energy Contracts Subject to Mark-to-Market Accounting — This measurement estimates the
potential loss in value, due to changes in market conditions, of all energy-related contracts subject to.mark-to-
market accounting, based on a specific confidence level and an assumed holding period. Assumptions in
" determining this VaR. include using a 95% confidence level and a five-day holding period. A probabilistic .
simulation methodology is used to calculate- VaR, and is considered by management to be the most effective way
to estimate changes in a portfolio’s value based on assumed market conditions for liquid markets. TXU
Australia uses a variance—covariance methodology in deriving its VaR calculation, due to the differences in its
market as compared to that of TXU Energy. \

December 31, December 31,

2003 2002
Period-end MtM VaR: ‘
TXU BRETZY w.vovvvivivrnienasiessessssssssrssssssssasssesssssessssssnssens $15 $23
TXU Australia ............cnu..... e s bae et e $12 $13
Average Month-end MtM VaR:
TXU Energy ....ccovveeeve. SO SOOI OO TRTUR PSRRI $25 $38
TXU AUSEAHA ...ocevreccrcenie e, e $16 $15

Portfolio VaR — Represents the estimated potential loss in value, due to changes in market conditions, of
the entire energy portfolio, including owned generation assets, estimates of retail sales load and all contractual
positions (the portfolio assets). The Portfolio VaR calculations for TXU Energy and Australia represent a ten
year and five year view, respectively, of owned assets based on the nature of their particular markets. If the life
of an asset extends beyond the ten or five year duration period, the VaR calculation does not measure the
associated risk inherent in the asset over its full life. The Portfolio VaR for TXU Australia does not include the
gas commodity portfolio due to a relatively illiquid gas market which does not lend itself to reliable statistical
measure. Assumptions in determining the total Portfolio VaR include using a 95% confidence level and a five-
day holding period and includes both mark-to-market and accrual positions.

December 31,  December 31,

Period-end Portfolio VaR: -

TXUEREIZY cocveiverii i reieereassanesessentsssssasassssssesssasscsnens $199 $144
TXU Australia ....o....... et $23 $22
Average Month-end Portfolio VaR: | ‘

TXU Energy (a)....ccoeoevvereernes reer ettt e r ettt bennas $181 N/A

TXU AUSIAlIa ..oioviiivie i ereeians 822 $ 23

(a) Comparable informétion on an average VaR basis is not available for the full year 2002.

Other Risk Measures — The metrics appe‘aring below provide information regarding the effect of changes
in energy market conditions on earnings and cash flow of TXU Energy Similar metrics for TXU Australia are
not available. - ‘ -

Earnings at Risk (EaR) — EaR measures the estimated potential loss of expected pretax earnings for the
year presented due-to changes in market conditions. EaR metrics include the owned generation assets, estimates
of retail load 'and all contractual positions except for accrual positions expected to be settled beyond the fiscal
year. Assumptions include using a 95% conﬁdence level over a five-day holdmg period under normal market

conditions.
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Cash Flow at Risk (CFaR) — CFaR measures the estimated potential loss of expected cash flow over the
next six months, due to changes in market conditions. CFaR metrics include all owned generation assets,

estimates of retail load and all contractual .positions that impact cash flow during the -next six months.
Assumptions include using a 99% confidence level over a six-month holding period under normal market

conditions.

December 31, -+ December 31,

2003 - 2002
00N - S $15 = $ 28
6] 0 - S $67  $178
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INTEREST RATE RISK

" -“The table below provides information concerning TXW Corp.’s financial i_nstrufnents as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, that are sensitive to changes in interest rates, which include debt obligations, interest rate swaps
and preferred securities subject to-mandatory redemption. TXU Corp. has entered into interest rate swaps under
which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed-rate and variable-rate interest amounts calculated
with reference to specified notional principal amounts at dates that generally coincide with interest payments.
For long-term debt -held by unconsolidated subsidiary trusts (see Note 5 to Financial Statements), the table
presents cash flows based on December 31, 2003 book value and the related weighted average rate by expected
redemption date. The weighted average rate is based on the rate in effect at the reporting date. Capital leases and
the effects of unamortized premiums and discounts and fair value hedges are excluded from the table. See Note
8 to Financial Statements for a discussion of changes in debt obligations.

Expected Maturity Date
2003 2002
There- 2003 . Fair 2002 Fair
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 After Total Value Total Value
Equity linked debt
Fixed rate — — $ 500" $ 500 $ 440 — $1,440 $ 990 $ 1440 $ 825
Average interest rate — — 475% 545% 5.80% — 531% — 5.31% —

Long-term debt held by

subsidiary trusts :

Fixed rate — — — - - $391 $ 391 $ 399 $ 391 § 369
Average interest rate — — — — — 7.82% 7.82% —_ 7.82% —

Variable rate — — — — — $ 155 $ 155 $ 155 $ 155 § 155
Average interest rate — — — — — 2.51% 2.51% — 3.16% —

All other long-term debt

Fixed rate (a) $ 677 $ 473 $ 853 $ 264 $ 630 $6,397 $9294 310958 $ 8593 § 8,577
Average interest rate 6.49% 6.69% 625% S5.14% 6.23% @ 6.64% 6.52% — 6.43% —
Variable rate — — $ 250 $ 206 — $1,771 $2227 $2292 $ 1,754 § 1,800
Average interest rate — — 609 593% —  417% 4.54% — 4.68% —

Preferred stock of

subsidiaries .
Fixed rate — — — —_ — — — — 3 21§ 15
Average interest rate —_ — — — — —_ —_ —_ 6.69% —

Exchangeable preferred

membership interest (b)
Fixed rate — —_ — — — % 750 $ 750 $1,580 § 750 $ 1,076
Average interest rate — - — — —  9.00% 9.00% — 9.00% —

Interest rate swaps

Variable to fixed $ 93 $ 356 % 682 $ 540 $ 75 $ 247 $1992 $ (8 $ 1,800 $ (5T
Average pay rate 6.48% 6.34% 6.15% 577% 586% 6.19%  6.09% — 6.10% —
Average receive rate 564% 543% 521% 551% 493% 535% 5.36% —_ 4.68% —

Fixed to variable — — § 250 — — § 600 S 80 § 54 § 594 § 57
Average pay rate — —  117% — — 2.96% 2.43% —_ 2.80% —_
Average receive rate — —  6.75% — — 7.04% 6.96% — 6.47% —

(a) Reflects the maturity date and not the remarketing date for certain debt which is subject to mandatory tender for remarketing prior to

maturity. See Note 8 to Financial Statements for details concerning long-term debt subject to mandatory tender for remarketing.
(b) Amounts for 2002 were included in long-term debt as exchangeable debt.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

TXU Corp. has exposure to foreign currency risks, primarily associated with the Australian operations.
TXU Australia has accessed the US capital markets- and issued dollar denominated obligations. TXU Corp.
enters into currency swaps, options and forwards, where appropriate, to manage foreign currency exposure. The
following table summarizes notional amounts at the contract exchange rates, weighted-average contractual.
exchange rates and estimated fair value by contract maturity for open contracts at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Expected Maturity Date

(Millions of dollars, except exchange' rates)’ 2003. T 2002
There- 2003 Fair Fair
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 after Total Value Value
Australian dollar — —  $2% — —  $400  $650 $(17) 0§ 95
Average exchange rate — — $069 — - $0.75 $073 — —

TXU Corp. enters into average rate options to hedge a significant portion of the currency exposure related
to the reported earnings of TXU Australia. These hedges are marked-to-market and establish a floor to minimize
any unfavorable exchange rate movements, while still allowing for full participation in favorable movements.
. There. were no mark-to-market effects recorded in 2003, as the exchange rate movements were favorable. There
were no.options in place at December 31, 2003 and 2002. In early 2004, TXU Corp. entered into such options to
hedge the currency exposure related to reported 2004 earnings.

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk relates to the risk of loss associated with non-performance by counterparties.

Gross Credit Exposure — TXU Corp.’s regional gross exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2003, is
as follows: '

Region ) Credit Eg osure
US oot 2274
AUSLEAlA ..cvecerieir e e ‘ 539
Consolidated...........c..c.cocevvverierinenne 32,813

TXU Corp.’s gross exposure to credit risk represents trade accounts receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts receivable of $60 million), as well as .commodity contract assets and other derivative
assets that arise primarily from hedging activities. Credit is coordinated between regions to reduce exposure on
a consolidated basis, to provide transparency between regions with respect to economic, regulatory, weather and
other conditions, and to communicate objectives and processes through various risk committees and forums.

A large share of gross assets subject to credit risk represents accounts receivable from the retail sale of
electricity and gas to residential and small business customers. The risk of material loss (after consideration of
allowances) from non-performance by these customers is unlikely based upon historical experience. Allowances
for uncollectible accounts receivable are established for the potential loss from non-payment by these customers

“based on historical experience and market or operational conditions. In addition, Oncor has exposure to credit
risk as a result of non-performance by nonaffiliated REPs.

Most of the remaining trade accounts receivable are with large - business customers and hedging

counterparties. These counterparties include major energy companies, financial institutions, gas and electric
utilities, independent power producers, oil and gas producers and energy trading companies.
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Concentration of Credit Risk — The exposure to credit risk from these customers and counterparties,
excluding credit collateral, as of December 31, 2003, is $1.3 billion net of standardized master netting contracts
and agreements that provide the right of offset of positive and negative credit exposures with individual
customers and counterparties. When considering collateral currently held by TXU Corp. (cash, letters of credit
and other security interests), the net credit exposure is $1.0 billion. Of this amount, approximately 87% of the
associated exposure is with investment grade customers and counterparties, as determined using publicly
available information including major rating agencies’ published ratings and TXU Corp.’s internal credit
evaluation process. Those customers and counterparties without an S&P rating of at least BBB- or similar rating
from another major rating agency are rated using internal credit methodologies and credit scoring models to
estimate an S&P equivalent rating. TXU Corp. routinely monitors and manages its credit exposure to these
customers and counterparties on this basis.

The folfowing table presents the distribution of credit exposure as of December 31, 2003, for trade accounts
receivable from large business customers, commodity contract assets and other derivative assets that arise
primarily from hedging activities, by investment grade and noninvestment grade, credit quality and maturity.

Exposure by Maturity
Exposure )
before Greater
Credit - Credit Net 2yearsor  Between than 5 »
Collateral Collateral Exposure less 2-5 years years Total
Investment grade $ 1,016 $118 $898 $591 $174 $133 $ 898
Noninvestment grade 250 112 138 106 18 14 138
Totals $1,266 $230 $ 1,036 $ 697 $192 $ 147 $1,036
Investment grade 80% 51% ' 87%
Noninvestment. grade” 20% 49% 13%

TXU Corp. had no exposure to any one customer or counterparty greater than 10% of the net exposure of
$1.0 billion at December 31, 2003. Additionally, approximately 67% of the credit exposure, net of collateral
held, has a maturity date of two years or less. TXU Corp. does not anticipate any material adverse effect on its
financial position or results of operations as a result of non-performance by any customer or counterparty.

RISK FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

The following risk factors are being presented in consideration of industry practice with respect to
disclosure of such information in filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Some important factors, in addition to others "specifically addressed in this MANAGEMENT’S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ‘OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS, that
could have a material impact on TXU Corp.’s operations, financial results and financial condition, and could
cause TXU Corp.’s actual results or outcomes to differ materially from any projected outcome contained in any
forward-looking statement in this report, include:

ERCOT is the independent system operator that is responsible for maintaining reliable operation of the
bulk electric power supply system in the ERCOT region. Its responsibilities include the clearing and settlement
of electricity volumes and related ancillary services among the various participants in the deregulated Texas
market. Because of new processes and systems associated with the opening of the market to competition, which
continue to be improved, there have been delays in finalizing these settlements. As a result, TXU Corp. is
subject to settlement adjustments from ERCOT related to prior penods which may result in charges or credits
impacting future reported results of operations.
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TXU Corp.’s businesses operate in changing market environments influenced by various legislative and
regulatory initiatives regarding deregulation, regulation or restructuring of the energy industry, including
deregulation of the production and sale of electricity. TXU Corp will need to adapt to these changes and may
face increasing competmve pressure.

TXU Corp s US businesses are subject to changes in laws (including the Texas Pubhc Utility Regulatory
Act, as amended, the Texas Gas Utility Regulatory Act, as amended, the Federal Power Act, as amended, the
Atomic Energy Act, as amended, the Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act of 1978, as amended, the Natural
Gas Act, as amended, the Natural Gas Policy Act, as amended, and the Public Utility Holding Company Act of
1935, as amended) and changing governmental policy and regulatory actions (including those of the
Commission, the RRC, the FERC and the NRC) with respect to, matters including, but not limited to, operation
of nuclear power facilities, construction and operation of other power generation facilities, construction and
operation of transmission facilities, acquisition, disposal, depreciation, and amortization of regulated assets and
facilities, recovery of purchased gas costs, decommissioning costs, and return on invested capital for TXU
Corp.’s regulated businesses, and present or prospective wholesale and retail competition.

TXU Corp. believes that the electricity market in ERCOT is workably competitive. TXU Corp. is the
largest owner of generation and has the largest retail position in ERCOT, and, along with other market
participants, is subject to oversight by the Commission. In that connection, TXU Corp. and other market
participants may be subject to various competition-related rules and regulations, including but not limited to
possible price-mitigation rules, as well as rules related to market behavxor

TXU Australia is currently subject to multiple federal and state regulators and regulations in the
distribution and retail sectors that impose limitations on the energy retail prices it can charge and returns on its
distribution assets, impose substantial costs on-its business and seek to promote competition in its markets. In
addition, federal competition regulations and Victorian state restrictions of cross-ownership of power generation,
energy distribution and energy retail operatlons could 1mpede acquisitions by TXU Australia and other business
strategies.

Exxstmg laws and regulations governing the market structure in Texas and Australia could be recon51dered
revised or reinterpreted, or new laws or regulatlons could be adopted. -

TXU Corp. is not guaranteed any rate of return on its capital investments in unregulated businesses. TXU
Corp. markets and trades power, including power from its own production facilities, as part of its wholesale
energy sales business and portfolio management operation. TXU Corp.’s results of operations are likely to
depend, in large part, upon prevailing retail rates, which are set, in part, by regulatory authorities, and market
prices for electricity, gas and coal in its regional market and other competitive markets. Market prices may
fluctuate substantially over relatively short periods of time. Demand for electricity can fluctuate dramatically,
creating periods of substantial under- or over-supply. During periods of over-supply, prices might be depressed.
Also, at times there may be political pressure, or pressure from regulatory authorities with jurisdiction over
wholesale and retail energy commodity and transportation rates, to impose price llrmtanons, bidding rules and
other mechanisms to address volatility and other issues in these markets.

TXU Corp.’s US regulated businesses are subject to cost-of-service regulation and annual earnings
oversight. This regulatory treatment does not provide any assurance as to achievement of earnings levels.
Oncor’s rates are regulated by the Commission based on an analysis of Oncor’s costs, as reviewed and approved
in a regulatory proceeding. While rate regulation is premised on the full recovery of prudently incurred costs
and a reasonable rate of return on invested capital, there can be no assurance that the Commission will judge all
of TXU Corp.’s costs to have been prudently incurred or that the regulatory process in which rates are
determined will always result in rates that will produce full recovery of TXU Corp.’s costs and the return on
invested capital allowed by the Commission.

Some of the fuel for TXU Corp.’s power production facilities is purchased under short-term contracts or on

the spot market. Prices of fuel, including natural gas, may. also be volatile, and the price TXU Corp. can obtain
for power sales may not change at the same rate as changes in fuel costs. In addition, TXU Corp. markets and
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trades natural gas and other energy related commodities, and volatlhty in these markets may affect TXU Corp.’s
costs incurred in meeting its obligations.

If TXU Australia is unable to secure long-term supply arrangements for all of its gas supply needs in
- Australia on ,commercially acceptable terms or if its suppliers fail to perform under those agreements, it may be
required to purchase gas on the wholesale spot market at potentially: higher prices. In addition, if TXU
Australia’s gas needs are less than TXU Australia’s gas take-or-pay commitments and if TXU Australia is
unable to make up this shortfall in future contract years, TXU Australia may incur losses as a result of its gas
take-or-pay arrangements 4

Volatility in market prices for fuel and electricity may result from:

severe or unexpected weather conditions,

seasonality,

changes in electricity usage,

illiquidity in the wholesale power or other markets,

transmission or transportation constraints, inoperability or inefficiencies,

availability of competitively priced alternative energy sources,

changcs in supply and demand for energy commodmes

changes in power production capacity,

outages at TXU Corp.’s power production facilities or those of its competitors,

changes in production and storage levels of natural gas, lignite, coal and crude oil and refired products,
natural disasters, wars, sabotage, terrorist acts, embargoes and other catastrophic events, and
federal, state, local and foreign energy, environmental and other regulation and legislation.

All but one of TXU Corp.’s facilities for power production in the US are located in the ERCOT region, a
market with limited interconnections to other markets. Electricity prices in the ERCOT region are related to gas
prices because gas-fired plant is the marginal cost unit during the majority of the year in the ERCOT region.
Accordingly; the contribution to earnings and the value of TXU Corp.’s base load power production is dependent
in significant part upon the price of gas. TXU Corp. cannot fully hedge the risk associated with dependency on
gas because of the expected useful life of TXU Corp s power production assets and the size of its posmon
relative to market liquidity.

To manage its near-term financial exposure related to commodity price fluctuations, TXU Corp. routinely
enters into contracts to hedge portions of its purchase and sale commitments, weather positions, fuel
requirements and inventories of natural gas, lignite, coal, crude oil and refined products, and other commodities,
within established risk management guidelines. As part of this strategy, TXU Corp. routinely utilizes fixed-price
forward physical purchase and sales contracts, futures, financial swaps and option contracts traded in the over-
the-counter markets or on exchanges. ‘However, TXU Corp. can normally cover only a small portion of the
exposure of ‘its assets and positions to market price volatility, and the coverage will vary over time. To the
extent TXU Corp. has unhedged positions, fluctuating commodity prices can materially impact TXU Corp.’s
results of operations and financial position, either favorably or unfavorably.

Although TXU Corp. devotes a considerable amount of management time and effort to the establishment of
risk management procedures as well as the ongoing review of the implementation of these procedures, the
procedures it has in place may not always be followed or may not always function as planned and cannot
eliminate allthe risks associated with these activities. ' :
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-TXU:Corp. or one' of its subsidian'es.has guarauree‘d or indemnified the performance -of a portion of the
obligations of certain subsidiaries, including those involved in hedging and risk management activities. TXU
Corp. or its subsidiary, as the case may be, might not be able to satlsfy all of these guarantees and

mdemmﬁcatlon obhgatxons if they were to come due at the. same time.

TXU Corp s hedgmg and nsk management actlvmes areé exposed to the risk that counterpartles that owe
TXU Corp. money, energy.or other commodities as:a result of market transactions will not perform their
obligations. The likelihood that certain counterparties may fail to perform their obligations has increased due to
financial difficulties, ‘brought-.on by. various factors including ‘improper: or illegal accounting and business
practices, affecting some participants in the industry. Some of these financial difficulties have been.so severe
that certain industry participants have filed for bankruptcy protection or are facing the possibility of doing so.
Should ‘the, counterparties to. these arrangements fail to-perform, TXU Corp. might be forced to acquire
alternative hedging arrangéments -or honor the underlying commitment at then-current market prices. In such
event, TXU Corp.; might incur losses in addition to amounts, if any; already.paid to the counterparties.  ERCOT
market . participants are also"exposed to risks that-another ERCOT market participant may default in its
obligations to-pay ERCOT for power taken in the-ancillary services market, in which case such costs, to the
extent not offset by posted sécurity and other protectlons available to ERCOT, may be allocated to various non-
defaulting ERCOT market participants. , el ‘ .

~ The current credit ratings for TXU Corp:’s and its subsidiaries’ long-term debt are investment grade, except
for Moody’s credit rating for long-term- debt of TXU Corp. (the holding company), which is one notch below
investment grade. A rating reflects only the.view of a rating agency, and it.is not a recommendation to buy, sell
or hold securities. Any rating can be revised upward or downward at any time by a rating agency if such rating
agency decides that circumstances warrant such a.change. If S&P, Moody’s or Fitch were to downgrade TXU
Corp.’s and/or its subsidiaries’ long-term ratings, particularly below investment grade, borrowing costs would
increase and.the potential pool of investors and funding sources would likely decrease. ' If the downgrade were
below investment grade, liquidity demands would be tnggered by the.terms of a number of commodity contracts,
leases and other agreements. - :

Most of TXU Corp s large customers suppllers and counterpartles requ1re sufﬁcxent credxtworthmess in
order to enter into transactions. If TXU Corp.’s subsidiaries’ ratings were to decline to below investment grade,
costs to operate the power and gas businesses would increase because counterparties may require the posting of
collateral in the form of cash- related instruments,-or counterpames may decline to do business with TXU Corp.’s
subsidiaries. ; S :

In addition, as discussed elsewhere in this report, the terms of certain financing and other arrangements of
TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries -contain provisions that are specifically affected by changes in credit ratings and
could require the posting of collateral, the repayment of indebtedness or the payment of other amounts. . ...

The operation of power production and energy transportation facilities involves many risks, including start
up. risks, breakdown or failure of facilities, lack of sufficient capital to maintain the facilities, the dependence on
a,specific fuel source or the-impact of unusual or. adverse weather conditions or. other natural events, as well as
the risk of performance below -expected levels of output or efﬁcxency, the occurrence of any of which could
result in lost revenues and/or increased expenses. A significant portion of TXU Corp.’s facilities was
constructed many years ago. ,In partlcular, older generating equipment, even if malntamed in accordance with
good engineering practices, may require significant capital expendltures to keep it operating at peak efficiency.
The risk of increased maintenance and capital expenditures arises from () increased starting and stopping of
generation equipment due to the volatility of the competitive. market, (b) any unexpected failure to produce
power, including failure caused by .breakdown or forced outage, and (c) repairing damage to facilities due to
storms, natural disasters, wars, . terrorist acts and other catastrophic events. Further, TXU Corp.’s ability to
successfully and timely complete capital improvements.to existing facilities or other capltal projects is
contingent upon many variables and subject to substantial risks. Should any such efforts be unsuccessful, TXU
Corp. could be subject to additional costs and/or the write-off of its investment in the project or improvement.
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Insurance, warranties or performance guarantees may not cover all or any of the lost revenues or increased
expenses, including the cost of replacement power. Likewise, TXU Corp.’s ability to obtain insurance, and the
cost of and coverage provided by such insurance, could be affected by events outside its control.

The ownership and operation of nuclear facilities, including TXU Corp.’s ownership and operation of the
Comanche Peak generation plant, involve certain risks. These risks include: mechanical or structural problems;
inadequacy or lapses in maintenance protocols; the impairment of reactor operation and safety systems due to
human error; the costs of storage, handling and disposal of nuclear materials; limitations on the amounts and
types of insurance coverage commercially available; and uncertainties with respect to the technological and
financial aspects of decommissioning nuclear facilities at the end of their useful lives. The following are among
the more significant of these risks:’ :

‘e QOperational Risk — Operations at any nuclear power production plant could degrade to the point where
the plant would have to be shut down. If this were to happen, the process of identifying and correcting
the causes of the operational downgrade to return the plant to operation could require significant time
and ‘expense, resulting in both lost revenue and increased fuel and purchased power expense to meet
supply commitments. Rather than incurring substantial costs to restart the plant, the plant may be shut
down. Furthermore, a shut-down or failure at any other nuclear plant could cause regulators to requlre a

. shut-down or reduced availability at Comanche Peak.

. Regulatory Risk - The NRC may modify, suspend or revoke licenses and impose civil penalties for
failure to comply with the Atomic Energy Act, the regulations under it or the terms of the licenses of
nuclear facilities. Unless extended, the NRC operating licenses for Comanche Peak Unit 1 and Unit 2
will expire in 2030 and 2033, respectively. Changes in regulations by the NRC could require a
-substantial increase in capital expenditures or result in increased operating or decommissioning costs.

e  Nuclear Accident Risk — Although the safety record of Comanche Peak and other nuclear reactors
" generally has been very good, accidents and ‘other unforeseen problems have occurred both in the US
and elsewhere. The consequences of an accident can be severe and include loss of life and property
damage. Any resulting habllrty from a nuclear accident could cxceed TXU Corp s resources, including
1nsurance coverage.

' TXU-Corp. is subject to extensive environmental regulation by governmental authorities. In operating its
facilities, TXU Corp: is required to comply with numerous environmental laws and regulations, and to obtain
numerous governmental permits. TXU Corp. may incur significant additional costs to comply with these
requirements: If TXU Corp. fails to comply with these requirements, it could be subject to civil or criminal
liability and fines. Existing environmental regulations could be revised or reinterpreted, new laws and
regulations could be adopted or become applicable to TXU Corp. or its facilities, and future changes in
environmental laws and regulations could occur, including potential regulatory and enforcement developments
related to air emissions.

TXU Corp. may not be able to obtain or maintain all required environmental regulatory approvals. If there
is a delay in obtaining-any required environmental regulatory apptovals or if TXU Corp. fails to obtain, maintain
or comply with any such approval, the operation of its facilities could be stopped or become subject to additional
costs. Further, at some of TXU Corp.’s older facilities, including base load lignite and coal plants, it may be
uneconomical for TXU Corp. to mstall the necessary equipment, which may cause TXU Corp. to shut down
those facrlmes

In addition, TXU Corp. may be responsible for any on-site liabilities associated with the environmental
condition of facilities that it has acquired or developed, regardless of when the liabilities arose and whether they
are known ori unknown. In connection with certain acquisitions and sales of assets, TXU Corp. may obtain, or be
required to provide, indemnification against certain environmental liabilities. Another party could fail to meet its
mdemmﬁcatlon obhgatrons to TXU Corp.
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TXU Corp. is obligated to offer the price-to-beat rate to requesting residential and small commercial
customers in-the historical-service territory of its incumbent utility through January 1, 2007. TXU Corp. is not
permitted to offer electricity to the residential customers in the historical service territory at a price other than the -
price-to-beat rate until January- 1, 2005, unless before that date the Commission determines that 40% or more of
the amount of electric power consumed by residential customers in that area is committed to be served by REPs
other than TXU Corp. Because TXU Corp. will not have the same level of residential customer price flexibility
as competitors in the historical service territory, TXU Corp. could lose a significant number of these customers
to other providers. In addition, at times, during this period, if the market price of power is lower than TXU
Corp:’s cost to produce power, TXU Corp. would have a limited .ability to mitigate the loss of margin caused by
its loss of customers by selling power from its power production facilities.

The initial price-to-beat rates for the affiliated REPs, including TXU Corp.’s, were established by the
Commission on December 7, 2001. Pursuant to Commission regulations, the initial price-to-beat rate for each
affiliated REP was 6% less than the average rates.in effect for its'incumbent utility on January 1, 1999 adjusted
to take into account a new fuel factor as of December 31, 2001.

Other REPs are allowed to offer electricity to TXU Corp.’s residential customers at any price. The margin
or “headroom” available in the price-to-beat rate for any REP equals the difference between the. price-to-beat
rate and the sum of delivery charges and the price that REP pays for power. Headroom may be a positive'or a
negative number. The higher the amount of positive headroom for competitive REPs in a given market, the
more incentive-those REPs would have to compete in providing retail electric services-in that market, which may
resuitin TXU Corp. losing customers to competitive REPs. '

_The results of TXU Corp.’s retail electric operations in the historical service territory is largely dependent
upon the amount of headroom available to TXU Corp. and the competitive REPs in TXU Corp.’s price-to-beat
rate. Since headroom is dependent, in part, on power production and purchase costs, TXU Corp. does not know
nor can it estimate the amount of headroom that it or. other REPs will have in TXU Corp.’s price-to-beat rate or
in the price-to-beat rate for the affiliated REP in each of the other Texas retail electric markets.

There is no assurance that future adjustments to TXU Corp.’s price-to-beat rate will be adequate to cover
future increases in its costs of electricity to serve its price-to-beat rate customers or that TXU Corp.'s price-to-
beat rate will not result in negative headroom in the future

In most retail electric markets outside the historical service territory, TXU Corp.’s principal competitor
may be the retail affiliate of the local incumbent utility company. The incumbent retail affiliates have the
advantage of long-standing relationships with their customers. In addition to competition from the incumbent
utilities and their affiliates, TXU Corp. may face competition from a number of other energy service providers,
or other energy industry participants, who may develop businesses that will compete with TXU Corp. and
nationally branded providers of consumer products and services. Some of these competitors or potential
competitors may be larger and better capitalized than TXU Corp. If there is inadequate margm in these retail
electric markets, it may not be proﬁtable for TXU Corp. to enter these markets.

A number of energy. utrhtlcs in states other than Vrctorla and South Australia continue to be owned by state
governments. ‘The privatization of any of these ‘utilities could result in new, more commercially-focused
competitors in TXU Australia’s markets, some of which may have-larger capital bases and other competitive
advantages compared to TXU Australia. In addition, as the regulatory developments in TXU Australia’s markets
continue to unfold, energy companies and other utilities that have not previously been competitors may enter -
TXU Australia’s markets. The Australian energy industry has also been recently experiencing a degree of
consolidation activity. If this consolidation activity continues, it may. result in a smaller number of stronger
competitors in the markets in which TXU Australia operates.

TXU Corp. depends on transmission and distribution facilities owned and operated by other utilitiés, as
well as its own such facilities, to deliver the electricity it produces and sells to consumers, as well as to other
REPs. If transmission capacity is inadequate, TXU Corp.’s ability to sell and deliver electricity may be
hindered, it may have to forgo sales or it may have to buy more expensive wholesale electricity that is available
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in the capacity-constrained area. In particular, during some periods transmission access is constrained to some
areas of the Dallas-Fort Worth metroplex. TXU Corp. expects to have a significant number of customers inside
" these constrained areas. The cost to provide service to these customers may exceed the cost to provide service to
other customers, resulting in lower headroom. In addition, any infrastructure failure that interrupts or impairs
delivery of electricity to TXU Corp.’s customers could negatively impact the satisfaction of its customers with
its service.

TXU Corp. offers its customers a bundle of services that include, at a minimum, the electric commodity
itself plus transmission, distribution and related services. The prices TXU Corp. charges for this bundle of
services or for the various components of the bundle, either of which may be fixed by contract with the customer
for a period of time, could differ from TXU Corp.’s underlying cost to obtain the commodities or services.

. The information systems and processes necessary to support risk management, sales, customer service and
energy procurement and supply in competitive retail markets in Texas and elsewhere are new, complex and
extensive. TXU Corp. is refining these systems and processes, and they may prove more expensive to refine
than planned and may not work as planned.

Researchi and development activities are ongoing to improve existing and alternative technologies to
produce electricity, including. gas turbines, fuel cells, microturbines and photovoltaic (solar) cells. It is possible
that advances in these or other alternative technologies will reduce the costs of electricity production from these
technologies to a level that will enable these technologies to compete effectively with electricity production from
traditional power plants like TXU Corp.’s. While demand for electric energy services is generally increasing
throughout the: US, the rate of construction and development of new, more efficient power production facilities
may .exceed increases in demand in some regional electric markets. The commencement of commercial
operation of new facilities in the regional markets where TXU Corp. has facilities will likely increase the
competitiveness of the wholesale power market in those. regions. In addition, the market value of TXU Corp.’s
power production and/or energy transportation facilities may be significantly reduced. Also, electricity demand
could be reduced by increased conservation efforts and advances in technology, which could likewise
significantly reduce the value of TXU Corp.’s facilities. Changes in technology could also alter the channels
through which retail electric customers buy electricity.

TXU Corp. is a holding company and conducts its operations primarily through. wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Substantially all of TXU Corp.’s consolidated assets are held by these subsidiaries. Accordingly, TXU Corp.’s
cash flows and ability to meet its obligations and to pay dividends are largely dependent upon the earnings of its
subsidiaries and the distribution or other payment of such earnings to TXU Corp. in the form of distributions,
lIoans or advances, and repayment of loans or advances from TXU Corp. The subsidiaries are separate and
distinct legal entities and have no obligation to provide TXU Corp. w1th funds for its payment obligations,
whether by d1v1dends distributions, loans or otherwise. : ‘

Because TXU Corp. is a holding company, its obligations to its creditors are structurally subordinated to all
existing and future liabilities and existing and future preferred stock of its subsidiaries. Therefore, TXU Corp.’s
rights and the rights of its creditors to participate in the assets of any subsidiary in the event that such a
subsidiary is liquidated or reorganized are subject to the prior claims of such subsidiary’s creditors and holders
of its preferred stock. To the extent that TXU Corp. may be a creditor with recognized claims against any such
subsidiary, its claims would still be subject to the prior claims of such sub51d1ary s creditors to the extent that
they are secured or senior to those held by TXU Corp
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The inability to raise capital on favorable terms, particularly during times of uncertainty in the financial
markets, could impact TXU Corp.’s ability to sustain and grow its businesses, which are capital intensive, and
would increase its capital costs.. TXU Corp. relies on access to financial markets as a significant source of
liquidity for capital requirements not satisfied by cash on hand or operating cash flows. TXU Corp.’s access to
the financial markets could be adversely impacted by various factors, such as:

¢ changes in credit markets that reduce available credit or the ability to renew existing liquidity facilities
on acceptable terms;

e inability to access commercial paper markets;

o a deterioration of TXU Corp.’s credit or a reduction in TXU Corp s credit ratmgs or the credit ratings
of its subsidiaries; »

e extreme volatility in TXU Corp.’s markets that increases margin or crcdlt requirements;

e a material breakdown in TXU Corp.’s risk management procedures;

* prolonged delays in billing and payment resulting from delays in switching customers from one REP to
another; and ' ‘

e the occurrence of material adverse changes in TXU Corp.’s businesses that restrict TXU Corp.’s ability
to access 1ts liquidity facilities.

A lack of necessary capital and cash reserves could adversely impact the evaluation of TXU Corp.’s credit
worthiness by counterparties and rating agencies. Further, concerns on the part of counterparties regarding TXU
Corp.’s liquidity and credit could limit its portfolio management activities.

As a result of the energy crisis in California during 2001, the recent volatility of natural gas prices in North
America, the bankruptcy filing by Enron Corporation, accounting irregularities of public companies, and
investigations by governmental authorities into energy trading activities, companies in the regulated and non-
regulated utility businesses have been under a generally increased amount of public and regulatory scrutiny.
Accounting irregularities at certain companies in the industry have caused regulators and legislators to review
current accounting practices and financial disclosures. The capital markets and ratings agencies also have
increased their level of scrutmy Additionally, allegations against various energy trading companies of “round
trip” or “wash” transactions, Wthh involve the simultaneous buying and selling of the same amount of power at
the same price and provide no true economic benefit, power market manipulation and inaccurate power and
commodity pricé reporting have had a negative effect on the industry. TXU Corp. believes that it is complying
with all applicable laws, but it is difficult or impossible to predict or control what effect these events may have
on TXU Corp.’s financial condition or access to the capital markets. Additionally, it is unclear what laws and
regulations may develop, and TXU Corp. cannot predict the ultimate impact of any future changes in accounting
regulations or practices in general with respect to public compames the energy industry or its operations
specifically.

TXU Corp. is subject to costs and other effects of legal and administrative proceedings, settlements,
investigations and claims. Since October 2002, a number of lawsuits have been filed in federal and state courts
in Texas against TXU Corp. and various of its officers, directors and underwriters. In addition, TXU Corp.’s
decision to exit all of its operations in Europe, as well as the administration proceeding, have resulted in notices
~ of various claims or potential claims and might result in lawsuits by the creditors of or others associated with
TXU Europe. Such current and potential legal. proccedmgs could result in payments of judgment or settlement
amounts.
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The market price of TXU Corp.’s common stock has been volatile in the past, and a variety of factors could
cause the price to fluctuate in the future. ‘ In addition to the matters discussed above and in TXU Corp.’s other
filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended the following could 1mpact the market price for
TXU Corp.’s common stock: .

developments related to TXU Corp.’s businesses;

fluctuations in TXU Corp.’s results of operations;

the level of dividends;

TXU Corp.’s debt to equity ratios and other leverage ratios;

effect of significant events relating to the energy sector in general;

sales of TXU Corp. securities into the marketplace;

general conditions in the industry and the energy markets in wh1ch XU Corp is a participant;
the worldwide economy;

an outbreak of war or hostilities;

a shortfall in revenues or earnings compared to securities analysts’ expectations;
changes in analysts’ recommendations or projéctions; and

actions by credit rating agencies.

Fluctuations in the market price of TXU Corp.’s common stock may be unrelated to TXU Corp.’s
performance. ' General market declines or market volatility could adversely affect the price of TXU Corp.’s
common stock and the current market price may not be indicative of future market prices.

The issues and associated risks and uncertaintieé described above are not the only ones TXU Corp. may
face. Additional issues may arise or become material as the energy industry evolves.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

~ This report and other presentations made by TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries (collectively, TXU Corp.)
contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended. - Although TXU Corp. believes that in making any such statement its expectations are based on
reasonable assumptions, any such statement involves uncertainties and is qualified in its entirety by reference to
the risks discussed above under “RISK FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS” and the
following important factors, among others, that could cause the actual results of TXU Corp. to differ materially
from those projected in such forward-looking statements:

e prevailing governmental policies and regulatory actions, including those of the FERC, the
Commission, the RRC and the NRC, with respect to:

allowed rates of return;

industry, market and rate structure;

purchased power and recovery of investments;

operations of nuclear generating facilities;

acquisitions and disposal of assets and facilities;

operation and construction of plant facilities;

decommissioning costs;

present or prospective wholesale and retail competition;

changes in tax laws and policies; and

changes in and compliance with environmental and safety laws and policies;

e & & ¢ 6 & ¢ o6 o o

continued implementation of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation;
legal and administrative proceedings and settlements;

general industry trends;

power costs and availability;
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weather conditions and other natural phenomena, and acts of sabotage, wars or terrarist activities;
unanticipated populatxon growth or decline, and changes in market demand and demographic
patterns;

changes in business strategy, development plans or vendor relationships;

competition for retail and wholesale customers;

access to adequate transmission facilities to meet changing demands;

pricing and transportation of crude oil, natural gas and other commodities;

unanticipated changes in interest rates, commodlty prices, rates of inflation or forelgn exchange
rates;

unant1c1pated changes in operatmg expenses, hquldxty needs and capnal expendxtures

commercial bank market and capital market condmons,

competition for new energy development and other business opportunmes

inability of various counterpames to meet their obligations with respect to TXU Corp.’s financial
instruments; A

changes in technology used by and services offered by TXU Corp.;

significant changes in TXU Corp.’s relationship with its employees, including the availability of
qualified personnel, and the potential adverse effects if labor disputes or grievances were to occur;
significant changes in critical accounting policies material to TXU Corp.; and ’

actions by credit rating agencies. '

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made, and TXU Corp.
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the
date on which it is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to
time, and it is not possible for TXU Corp. to predict all of them; nor can TXU Corp. assess the impact of each
such factor or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause results to differ materially
from those contained in-any forward-looking statement. :
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TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The management of TXU Corp. is responsible for the preparation, integrity and objectivity of the
consolidated financial statements of TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries and other information included in this
report. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. As appropriate, the statements include amounts based on
informed estimates and judgments of management. '

The management of TXU Corp. is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal
control which includes the internal controls and procedures for financial reporting, that is designed to provide
reasonable assurance, on a cost-effective basis, that assets are safeguarded, transactions are executed in
accordance with management's authorization and financial records are reliable for preparing consolidated
financial statements. Management believes that the system of control provides reasonable assurance that errors
or irregularities that could be material to the consolidated financial statements are prevented or would be
detected within a timely period. Key elements in this system include the effective communication of established
written policies and procedures, selection and training of qualified personnel and organizational arrangements
that provide an appropriate division of responsibility. This system of control is augmented by an ongoing
internal audit program designed to evaluate its adequacy and effectiveness. Management considers the
recommendations of the internal auditors and independent auditors concerning TXU Corp.'s system of internal
control and takes appropriate actions which are cost-effective in the circumstances. Management believes that,
as of December 31, 2003, TXU Corp.'s system of internal control was adequate to accomplish the objectives
discussed herein.

The Board of Directors of TXU Corp. addresses its oversight responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements through its Audit Committee, which is composed of directors who are not employees of TXU Corp.
The Audit Committee meets regularly with TXU Corp.'s management, internal auditors and independent
auditors to review matters relating to financial reporting, auditing and internal control. To ensure auditor
independence, both the internal auditors and independent auditors have full and free access to the Audit
Committee. ‘

The independent auditing firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP is engaged to audit, in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the consolidated financial statements of TXU
Corp. and its subsidiaries and to issue their report thereon.

s/ C. JOHN WILDER /s/ M.S. GREENE

C. John Wilder, President and M. S. Greene, Oncor
Chief Executive Group President
/s/ T.L. BAKER /s/ H. DAN FARFLI
.T.L. Baker, TXU Energy H. Dan Farell, Executive Vice President
Group President and Chief Financial Officer

{s/ DAVID H. ANDERSON
David H. Anderson, Vice President
and Controller
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TXU Corp.:-~

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of TXU Corp. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December

31, 2003 and 2002 and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and

shareholders’ equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. These financial

statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
. these financial statements based on our audits. ‘

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of TXU Corp. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the resuits of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the Notes to Financial Statements, TXU Corp. changed its method of accounting for
certain contracts with the rescission of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 98-10, “Accounting for Contracts
Involved in Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities.”

As discussed in Note 6 to the Notes to Financial Statements, TXU Corp. changed its method of accounting for
goodwill amortization in 2002 in connection with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 11, 2004
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TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME

OPEIALNE TEVEIUES ......cuceriiiiniierenieiitas et aicmaceresess et s eaesssrne s snsaerebsasnes

Costs and expenses:

Cost of energy sold and delivery fees.............ccoonians e
OPETAtNE COSLS ...conevremrvaersiicirerecescaecssmscrniseesecians
Depreciation and amortization, other than goodwill..
Selling, general and administrative €XPEnSes ........cc.ocvveerivceriinrenieriennes
Franchise and revenue-based taxes ...
Other income......cocvviieniiiionies
Other deductions ...
Interest incore......
Interest expense and related charges .
Goodwill amortization .................

Total COStS AN EXPENSES ....cvvnirrrimrermrianiiscirerinmrississenivenesesssenessrenees

Income from continuing operations before income taxes, extraordinary
loss and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles .................

INCOIME 1AX EXPEMSE ..cvoviviiiiiniiitinnie sttt iten e sttt masea b aan

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles ............cooooveeninn,

Income (loss) fiom discontinued operations, net of tax effect ...
Extraordinary 10ss, net of tax effect ...
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of tax benefit .....
Net income (loss) before preference stock dividends........c.cooveeviirvinnneines
Preference stock GivIdends ...........ccoovcoiviivercninciicceieeneennie e
Net income (loss) available for common stOcK .......c.coiovvveviciiiieiieie e
Average shares of common stock outstanding (millions):

Basic ......... OO OO RO OO PPOSURUOURRROOIR

DHIBIEA ..ot erent s e r s se e e esbesebs e s s ssesaesenssereennann
Per share of cammon stock— Basic:

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and

cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles ...
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect..
Extraordinary loss, net of tax effect ..o,

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of tax benefit .
Net income (loss) available for common stock ..o

Per share of common stock— Diluted:
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect..
Extraordinary loss, net of tax effect ........c.coccovvereiinicncicnniiens
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of tax benefit .
Net income (loss) available for common StOcK ..........coovcoeriinieeeecniiecnnn
Dividends declared ...

See Notes to Financial Statements,
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Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

(millions of dollars, except per share amounts)
11,008 $ 9.896 $ 9,890
4,947 4,087 4,134
1,665 1,592 1,490
886 868 781
1,108 1,213 940
456 478 529
(82) (51 (46)

46 577 331
(44) - Gn (82)
975 882 965

— - 43
9,957 9615 9,085
1,051 281 805
314 99 236
737 182 569
o7 (4,258) 165
- (134) (57)
—(58) - -
582 4,210) 677
22 22 22
322 278 259
379 278 259
$ 222 $ 058 $ 211
$ (30 $(15.33) $ 063
$ - $ (0.48) 3 0.22)
$ (0.18) 3 - $ -
$ 174 $(15.23) $ 252
$ 203 $ 058 $ 211
3 (206) $(15.33) § .63
$ - $ (0.48) $ (0.22)
$ (0.15) $ - 5 -
$ 162 $(15.23) $ 252
$ 050 $ 1925 $ 240




‘ 'TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(millions of dollars)
Components related to continuing operations:
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and , :
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles .......cooooeivceccnine. $ 737 -3 182 3 569

Other comprehensive income (loss) —
Net change during period, net of tax effects:
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment .........coouevvirrverenearnonas 302 76 61
Investments classified as available for sale:
Reclassification of net gain realized on sale of investments to

other deductions {net of tax benefit of $1) ..o . - ) - )
Minimum pension liability adjustments (net of tax (expense) benefit of )
(831), 845and $3) oo 58 ‘ (83) 6)
Cash flow hedges:
Cumulative transition adjustment as of January 1, 2001
(net of tax benefit 0f $12) .....ccovvvivviniiiiiiniieiece e - - : (25)
Net change in fair value of derivatives (net of tax benefit of $137, ‘
$136 and $34) ..o (268) T 260) 7%
Amounts realized in eamnirigs during the year (net of tax expense of
$165, $55 and $25) ...cocirviiice e 324 112 62
TOAL oot et 416 (155) (11
Comprehensive income from continuing OPEIAtONS .........cc.vvvsvecerveceereesnenas ' 1.153 27 458

Components related to discontinued operations:

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect..........ccooocneuue. 9N (4.258) - 165
Minimum pension liability adjustments (net of tax benefit of $2).....cc..eovenn.. @) Co—- -
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment.............covveveersrnnnnsicos - . 253 (88)

Investments classified as available for sale (net of tax expense of

B24Y s e s - - 55
Reclassification of net gain realized on sale of investments to other deductions
(net of tax BEnefit Of $21).eriveeriieireicece e - - ‘ (50)
Cash flow hedges: )
Cumulative transition adjustment as of January 1, 2001 ‘
(net of tax benefit of $46) .....ccoiiiiiiiiicec e - —_ (107)
Net change in fair value of derivatives (net of tax benefit of _ ‘ ‘
FI18 ARA $37) ittt - 41) (86)
Amounts realized in earnings during the year (net of tax expense of
$37aNd $57) oo - 87 131
TOAL . eeecerverececomceens i eserecns e e reans s cesecs s s ssnsss s @ 299 145
Comprehensive income (loss) from discontinued Operations...........c.co.....vee (101) (3,959) 20
Extraordinary 1oss, net of tax effect ... ‘ - (134) 57
Cumnlative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of tax benefit....... ‘ (58) ot -
Comprehensive MCOME (I0SS).......rrvecrureumeriiessreemnreenseemsreerecessenssesisssssnsossrees ' 5954 $(4.066) . § 421

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

Cash flows — operating activities
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and cumulative
effect of changes in accounting prinCiples ..o e
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations before extraordinary
loss and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles to cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortiZation. ... neieseeeecsseerenes
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits — net........ccoccerrvcovrneccnricennreas
Losses on early extinguishment of debt.......c..ccocomriiiiniiicciene
Net gains from sale 0f a8SeLS .....cccovviverriimiriiiirisnescenseeenneee s
Reduction of revenues for earnings in excess of regulatory earnings cap...
Net effect of unrealized mark-to-market valuations of commodity contracts ............
Net equity loss from unconsolidated affiliates and joint ventures...........ccoecurvcerrcnne
Asset impairments Charge.........c.ccorvvcrieimncinincieisinrae
Retail clawback accrual increase (decrease)...
Reduction in regulatory Hability ..........ccoccoiviiciiicnienmiecrn e e essesees s
Over/(under) recovery of §as COSIS ..ttt csnese s
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable — trade ......c.coverimiericcier e et
INVENLOTIES ...c.ovorvereecnntenemie s sttt sesesass b sen e b e s saesssanssteresnns
Accounts payable — trade ... e
Commodity contract assets and liabilities
Margin deposits ........covreeiimniinninannnns
Other assets .......
Othier liabilities ......c..cooevivnannn
Cash provided by operating aCtiVities...........ccccovvirirnienriceienseieseenen,s
Cash flows — financing activities i
Issuances of securities:
Equity-linked debt securities ..........ccooocevnaimnnrinniniisis
Exchangeable subordinated notes ...
Other long-term debt.................... s
COmMMON SEOCK ... viver it e
Retirements/repurchases of securities:
Long-term debt ..ot BRSO O
Preferred securities of subsidianies................. ‘
Securities of unconsolidated subsidiary trusts
COIMMON SIOCK ... vrvereriemiecnriesririsinr st saeesrsneeressines
Change in notes payable: ‘
COmMMETCIAl PAPET ...coviverriviiriiiimecri s e

Cash dividends paid:
COIMIMON SEOCK......eevrreirrsisieiseresie ettt st ebecen et et essa s s enescerrecanans
Preference StocK .........ccvccvniiivinniieiinnn,

Redemption deposits applied to debt retirements
Debt premium, discount, financing and 1eacquisition EXPEnSes..........oo.vcerveerecirrererrereres

Cash provided by (used in) financing activiies .........c.ocovvrievvecrenrieinenn, e
Cash flows — investing activities

Capital EXPENGITUIES ........ovveireriiiire bt st e

Acquisition of businesses... :

Proceeds: from sale of assets...

Nuclear fuel ...,

Investment in collateral trust..

Cash used in investing activities ...........cecoeencee
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ..
Cash provided (used by) discontinued operations..................
Net change in cash and cash equivalents .............
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning balance.
Cash and cash equivalents — ending balance............coccoiiiiiiniincccn e

See Notes to Financial Statements.

A-66

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2001
(millions of dollars)
737 $ 569
959. 1,022
10 (88%)
- 149
(43) (1)
- 40
128 (323
17 53
(12) ~
(132) -
52 551
367 489
67) 49)
(5) (835)
25 (eX))]
25 227
382 79
355 14
2,798 1,870
- 1,000
3,245 4,954
23 354
(2,736) (4,648)
(98) -
- (837)
- 44)
13 (1,035)
(2,252) 615
(160) (621)
(22) (22)
210 -
4 (232)
(1.81%) (516)
(956) (1,243)
(150) -
24 26
(44) (38)
(525) -
2 58
(1,649) 1,197)
’ 8 2
7)) 8
: (698) 167
1,573 49




TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENIS ...ttt
Restricted cash........c.occeveennnn
Accounts receivable — trade ..
Income taxes receivable.......
Inventories ............. e e bR ARt
Commodity CONLIACE ASSELS ...vvvveverceiisiiverienriiaiiasrennnis
Assets of telecommunications holdings company (Note 3).
Other current assels..........oocoeonemrcrereniennss FE TSSOV TUSOUOPUO PRSPPI
Total CUFent assetS........ocovvv e, OSSOSO USSR PSSO
Investments
RESIACIEA CASN.....oceiiei et b et st b bbb
Oher INVESHIMENTS ..ottt ettt ettt a st be e
Property, plant and equipment — net...
GOOAWIIL ...ttt ettt st ea et e bbb eh ekt ae bt e b e s b et en ket essans e et
Regulatory assets — Nt .....c.coovecrercenniiinnniiinecennns O OO PO P OO SO PO P USRI RO PRPO
Commodity CONtract assets .........c...coovvievevvenne
Cash flow hedges and other derivative assets ..
Other NONCUTTENT ASSELS...... ... vcverrrecerrrereeee
Assets held for sale (Note 3)

TOLAL @SSELS ....cvurerrerierireeiecrrereertecen e cersreabecae s ares b e rabeass et essaaans b e s raaessennsbeabn s aases ereeerreriaesanerne

December 31,
2003 2002

(millions of doliars)
$ 875 $ 1.573
12 210
1,369 1,670
- 488
599 545
959 1,298
110 -
333 348
4257 6.132
582 96
705 724
20,920 19,981
1,829 1,588
1,837 1,634
362 657
123 150
411 328
660 95
$31.686 $31.405

LIABILITIES, PREFERRED SECURITIES OF .SUBSIDIARIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities
Notes payable
Commercial paper........

Long-term debt due currently.
Accounts payable — trade.........
Commodity contract Habilities.........cc.coovcnnncnecceinncnnn,
Liabilities of telecommunications holding company (INOte 3)......coccevireniieiieiiniieinivscnec
Other current Habilities ............ccovvriiiiiiii e e
Total current liabilities
Accumulated deferred INCOME TAXES .......covvrvurirerrirecnieconirenrieniier e rersr et e s cessie e renrassreenrens
INVEStMENt taX CTEAIS ...coviviiceiiice e b e

Cash flow hedges and other derivative liabilities
Long-term debt held by subsidiary trusts (NOte 10).......coccovivieiiminiiierrrecsicecnicce s

All other long-term debt, less amounts due currently

Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits ........occoovvireinriiiceici e

Liabilities held for sale (Note 3)
Total liabilities

Preferred securities of subsidiaries (INOLE D) ......covoiuierriciieiicneicn et e e

Contingencies (Note 18) :

Shareholders’ equity (INOE 11) ..o e st nac s eb e renis
Total liabilities, preferred securities of subsidiaries and shareholders’ equity ........c.occoeevvenencee

See Notes to Financial Statements.

A-67

$ 39
58
677
1,042
913
603
1339
4671
3939
430
318
267
546
12,324
2,370
143

25,008

759

$ 18
2,306
958
1,029
1,138

1,293
6742
3,607
453
520
220
546
11,593
2,400

26,128
211




. TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

(millions of dollars)

Preference stock:

. Balance at end ofyear .................. $ 300 $ 300 $_300

Common stock without par value — authorized shares — 1,000,000,000
Balance at bEginning Of YEar.......cc........ecoomroesvrrsrsorrrn e 7995 . 6,560 6,360
New public offering (2002 — 46,800,000 shares)..............cccevvrerrerrernennee . - 1,084 -

Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan

2003 - 508,379 shares; 2002 — 1,069,264 shares;

and 2001 — 260,243 SKATES)...........orvecomsrmserseriesr ssesssionnseessermmisiessseen 10 40 12
Issuance of stock purchase contracts related to equity-linked debt securities.. - (48) (142)
Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (2003— 1,400,713 shares, '

2002 599,516 shares; and 2001 — 535,052 shares) ..........ccouceevrvveriennn. 19 3) 4
Common stock repurchased and retired (2001 — 1,252,500 shares).............. - - (30)
Treasury stock — Long-Term Compensation Plan Trusts - 1 4)
»Issuance related to purchase contracts under 1998 equity-linked debt
securities (2002 — 8,365,133 shares and 2001 —7,488,395 shares) .......... - 349 35t
Special allocation to Thrift Plan by LESOP HUSLEE................oonecermmsrermreerereonn T4 8 9
Reclassification of stated capital to additional paid in capital ............cccccccoo... (7,986) - -
OHDEE L.t 6 4 -
Balance at end of year ( 2003 — 323,883,092 shares; 2002 — 321,974,000
shares; and 2001 — 265,140,087 ShAIES) ......cc.ccovevivvrrenriierenneiiensiaereremeennes 48 1.995 6,560
Additional paid iin capital:
Balance atlbeginning of Year..........cccvccniiirniciicncne e 111 — —_
Change |dUrNg the YEAL ........cccviviereemreiuintreeseeat s ssesses s sssseessraensae __7.986 111 —
Balance atiend Of YEar............cocoviiiieiiieeieice et __8.097 ‘ 111 —
Common stock repurchasable under equity forward contracts:
Balance at/beginning of Year............cocccoviinimicinncni s : — ‘ .- (190)
Change during the YEar ........c..cocovvcennrreemncnccnieceminnirecesernseecenrisennes I _— 190

Balance atend of year..........coocciinciinin e e, — — —

Retained eamings:

Balance at bEgnming Of YEaL......c.occvrorrrroreoesssoeseereseserns et (2,900) 1,863 1,817

NEt INCOME (LOSSY .....vviviviiverieiericcetrieiees ettt ere et asresenb ot sansteansesnens 582 4,210y 677
Dividends declared on common stock ($.50, $1.925 and $2.40 per share)...... A (160) (533) (625)
Common stock repurchased and retired........c.coccceiieviiieocnineninee e - — (14)
Dividends on preference stock ($7,240, $7,240 and $7,240 per share)............ (22) (22) 22)
Equity forward contract Settlements .............coececvveaievinernnneeniecereeaenenee . - — 21
LESOP dividend deduction tax benefit and other..........c...ccovecrienniiiireccnnins 2 2 9

Balance at end of Year.........coooiviiiii e _(2.498) (2.900) _1.863
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TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES ‘
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONT.)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
. . ({millions of dollars)
Accumulated otﬁer comprehensive loss, net of tax effects:
Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Balance at beginning of year......................... e (157) (654) (505)
Change during the vear ............... 302 329 (149)
Write-off of discontinued OPEIALONS ...oovvvvvniimscnsncieienisrennsnncens . } - 168 —

Balance atend of year..........cccoccmiennn, e 145 (157 (654)

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on investments:
" Balance at beginning of year........... S —_ — 3)
Change dﬁﬂxig the year .................................................... ——— — 3
Balance at end Of YEAL c.ciiivcieterc e e e v ——— — —
Minimum pension liability adjustments: )

Balance at beginning of year ................................................................ 92) ) 3)
Change during the YEar.........covorcinriinincnser e eesseienecenens - (83) ()

Balance at end of YEar ........coveeevverrvvninrionsiniineessesnsssissensoae e (38 (92) 9)

Cash flow hedges (SFAS 133): '

‘Balance at beginning of year .......... ......................... 191) (104) —_
Change during the Year ..o ene s 56 (102) (104)
Write-off of discontinued operations .................. e s -~ 15 —

Balance at end ofyear ......................................................... 135 a9y (104

Total accumulated other comprehensive 108s.............ccov il (28 (440) . a67
Total common stock equity.... _ 5619 4766 7.656
Shareholders’ equity ............ $.5919 $_5.066 $ 7,936

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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TXU CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BUSINESS

Description of Business — TXU Corp. engages in power production {electricity generation), retail and
wholesale sales of electricity and natural gas, and the transmission and distribution of electricity and natural gas.
In the competitive energy operations, TXU Corp. engages in hedging and risk management activities. TXU
Corp. is a holding company that conducts its US operations through US Holdings and TXU Gas. US Holdings is
also a holding ‘company that conducts its principal operations through TXU Energy and Oncor. TXU Corp.’s
principal international operations are conducted through TXU Australia.

TXU Corp. has three reportable segments: Energy, Energy Delivery and Australia. (See Note 19 for
further information concerning reportable business segments.) :

Discontinued Businesses — Prior to October 2002, TXU Corp. conducted international operations through
TXU Europe. At that time, a substantial portion of the business was sold. In 2002, TXU Corp. recorded a $4.2
billion charge principally to write off its investment in TXU Europe. The write-off was recorded without tax
benefit. A tax benefit to earnings of up to $983 million could be recognized if uncertainties regarding the
deductibility of the write-off are favorably resolved. See Note 3 to Financial Statements for additional
discussion.

In January 2004, TXU Corp. entered into an agreement to sell its telecommunications business for $527
million. The business was formerly a joint venture and has been consolidated since March 1, 2003.

In December 2003, TXU Energy finalized a formal plan to sell its strategic retail services business, which is -
engaged principally in providing energy management services. -

In January 2004, TXU Corp. sold its small natural gas distribution business in Mexico for $11 million.

The consolidated financial statements for all years presented reflect the reclassification of the results of
these businesses (for the periods they were consolidated) as discontinued operations.

See Note 3 for more detailed information about discontinued operations.

Business Restructuring — The 1999 Restructuring Legislation restructured the electric utility industry in
Texas and provided for a transition to competition in the generation and retail sale of electricity. TXU Corp.
disaggregated its electric utility business, as required by the legislation, and restructured certain of its US
businesses asjof January 1, 2002 resulting in two new business operations:

¢ Oncor - a utility regulated by the Commission that holds electricity transmission and distribution assets
and engages in electricity delivery services.

e TXU Energy - a competitive business that holds the power generation assets and engages in wholesale
and retail energy sales and hedging/risk management activities.

The relationships of these entities and their rights and obligations with respect to their collective assets and
liabilities are contractually described in a master separation agreement executed in December 2001.

A settlement of outstanding issues and other proceedings related to implementation of the 1999

Restructuring Legislation received final approval by the Commission in January 2003. See Note 16 for further
discussion.
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Other Business Changes — In April 2002, TXU Energy acquired a cogeneration and wholesale energy
production business in New Jersey for $36 million in cash. The acquisition included a 122 megawatt (MW)
combined-cycle power production facility and various contracts, including electric supply and gas transportation
agreements. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business combination, and its results of operations
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

In May 2002, TXU Energy acquired a 260 MW combined-cycle power generation facility in northwest
Texas through a settlement agreement which dismissed a lawsuit previously filed related to the plant, and
included a nominal cash payment. TXU Energy prev1ously purchased all of the electrical output of this plant
under a long-term contract. .

In April 2002, TXU Energy completed the sale of two electricity generation plants in the Dallas-Fort Worth
area with total capacity of 2,334 MW for $443 million in cash. Concurrent with the sale, TXU Energy entered
into a tolling agreement to purchase power during the summer months through 2006. The ternis of the tolling
agreement include above-market pricing, representing a fair value liability of $190 million. A pretax gain on the
sale of $146 million, net of the effects of the tolling agreement, was deferred and is being recognized in other
income during summer months over the five-year term of the tollmg agréement. Both the value of the tollmg
agreement and the deferred gain are reported in other liabilities in the balance sheet. The amount of the gain
recognized in other income in 2003 was approximately $30 million.

Basis of Presentation — The consolidated financial statements of TXU Corp. have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the US and, except for the discontinuance of certain
businesses and the adoption of EITF 02-3 and SFAS 143, as discussed in Note 2, and FIN 46, as discussed
immediately below, on the same basis as the audited financial statements included in its 2002 Form 8-K. In the
opinion of management, all other adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair
presentation of the results of operations and financial position have been included therein. Certain classifications
have been made to conform to current period presentation. All intercompany items and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. All dollar amounts in the financial statements and tables in the notes, except per
share amounts, are stated in millions of US dollars unless otherwise indicated.

FIN 46, which was issued in January 2003, provides guidance related to identifying variable interest
entities and determining whether such entities should be consolidated. On October 8, 2003, the FASB decided to
defer implementation of FIN 46. until the fourth quarter of 2003. This deferral only applied to variable interest
entities that existed prior to February 1, 2003. ‘As a result of the implementation of FIN 46 in the fourth quarter
of 2003, TXU Corp. deconsolidated its subsidiary ﬁnancmg trusts (see Note 10) Prior year financial statements
have been restated to reflect the deconsolidation. =

The following information regarding the 1mpact of adoptmg SFAS 145 was previously prov1ded in the
2002 Form 8-K. :

Losses on Extinguishments of Debt — As a result of the adoption of SFAS 145 as of January 1, 2003, any
gain or loss on the early extinguishment of debt that was classified as an extraordinary item-in prior periods in

accordance with SFAS 4 is required to be reclassified if it does not meet the criteria of an extraordinary item as
defined by APB Opinion 30.

TXU Corp. recorded losses on the early extinguishment of debt of $41 million after-tax in 2002. In
October 2002, TXU Corp. recorded losses of $23 million (net of income tax benefit of $12 million) for the cash
premiums paid on the early redemption of $200 million aggregate principal amount of Putable Asset Term
Securities (PATS notes). TXU Corp: redeemed other long-term debt prior to maturity including $114 million of
senior notes in the ﬁrst quarter of 2002 resultmg in losses of $18 million (net of income tax benefit of $10

million). :
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As a result of US Holdings’ debt restructuring and refinancings in the fourth quarter of 2001, TXU Corp.
recorded a loss on the early extinguishment of debt of $97 million (net of income tax benefit of $52 million).

In accordance with SFAS 145, the income statements for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001
reflect the classification of these losses, previously reported as extraordinary, as shown below:

Segment

) Energy Corporate
Energy Delivery & Other Total
2002: o
‘ Extraordinary loss, met of tax — as reported...........ccovvvevnniimnciiinns $ — $ (146) $ (29) $ (175)

Reclassifications to: .

Other dedUCHONS .......corvverriiiinrrenrire et renneneens — 36 27 63

INCOME tAX EXPERSE ...vvvviererevrerrenienrerrerrieimrerissseesseseasrennrsesseneen — 13) 9) (22)
Extraordinary loss; net of tax — as adjusted.........coovverervecrrmarerrarerees B . 8123 £ an $ (134
2001:
Extraordinary loss, net of tax — as reported......c..ocovvevvcnivcniicnnnns $ (153) $ — $ @) $ (154)
Reclassifications to:

Other deductions ..... e 149 S = — 149

Income tax eXpense. .........coeurrrrerueecnc (52) — — (52)
Extraordinary loss, net of tax — as adjusted.............cooveniiiirinnnnn. $ (56 $ _— $_ M £ 6D

The reclassifications had no effect on net income. The discussion of extraordinary loss in Note 4, income
tax information in Note 12, segment information in Note 19 and regulated versus unregulated operations,
quarterly results.and components of other deductions in Note 20 reflect the reclassifications. This reclassification
decreases basic and fully diluted income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss per share by $0.15
for 2002 and $0.38 for 2001, respectively, and decreases the extraordinary loss, per share, by the same amounts.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of TXU Corp.’s financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events that affect the reporting and disclosure of assets and liabilities at
the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts of revenue and expense, including mark-to-market valuation
adjustments. In the event estimates and/or assumptions prove to be different from actual amounts, adjustments
are made in subsequent periods to reflect more current information. No material adjustments, other than those
disclosed elsewhere herein, were made as a result of changes in previous estimates or assumptions during the
current year.

Financial Instruments and Mark-to-Market Accounting — TXU Corp. enters into financial instruments,
including options, swaps, futures, forwards and other contractual commitments primarily to manage energy price
risk and interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate risks. These financial instruments are accounted for in
accordance with SFAS 133 as well as, prior to October 26, 2002, EITF 98-10. See Note 2 for the effects of EITF
02-3, under which only financial instruments that are derivatives are subject to mark-to-market accounting.

SFAS 133 requires the recognition of derivatives in the balance sheet, the measurement of those
instruments at fair value and the recognition in earnings of changes in the fair value of derivatives. This
recognition is referred to as “mark-to-market” accounting. SFAS 133 provides exceptions to this accounting if
(a) the derivative is deemed to represent. a transaction in the normal course of purchasing from a supplier and
selling to a customer, or (b) the derivative is deemed to be a cash flow or fair value hedge. In accounting for
cash flow hedges, derivative assets and liabilities are recorded -on the balance sheet at fair value with an offset in
other comprehensive income. Amounts are reclassified from other comprehensive income to earnings as the
underlying transactions occur and realized gains and losses are recognized in earnings. Fair value hedges are
recorded as derivative assets or liabilities with an offset to the carrying value of the related asset or liability. Any
hedge ineffectiveness related to cash flow and fair value hedges is recorded in earnings.
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Interest rate and currency swaps entered into in connection with indebtedness to manage interest rate and
foreign currency exchange rate risks are accounted for as cash flow hedges if the swap converts rates from
variable to fixed and are accounted for as fair value hedges if the swap converts rates from fixed to variable.

TXU Corp. documents designated commodity, debt-related and other hedging relationships, including the
strategy and objectives for entering into such hedge transactions and the related specific firm commitments or
forecasted transactions. TXU Corp. applies hedge accounting in accordance with SFAS 133 for these non-
trading transactions, providing the underlying transactions remain probable of occurring.. Effectiveness is
assessed based on changes in cash flows of the hedges as compared to changes in cash flows of the hedged
items. In its risk management activities, TXU Corp. hedges future electricity revenues using natural gas
instruments; such cross-commodity hedges are subject to ineffectiveness calculations that can result in mark-to-
market gains and losses.

Revenue Recognition — TXU Corp. records revenue for retail and wholesale énergy sales under the
accrual method. Retail electric and gas revenues are recognized when the commodity is provided to customers
on the basis of periodic cycle meter readings and include an estimated accrual for the value of the commodity
consumed from the meter reading date to the end of the period. The unbilled revenue is estimated at the end of
the period based on estimated daily consumption after the meter read date to the end of the period. Estimated
daily consumption is derived using historical customer profiles adjusted for weather and other measurable
factors affecting consumption. Electricity delivery revenues are recognized when delivery services are provided
to customers on the basis of periodic cycle meter readings and include an estimated accrual for the delivery fee
value of electricity provided from the meter reading date to the end of the period.

Realized and unrealized gains and losses (including hedge ineffectiveness) from transacting in energy-
related contracts, principally for the purpose of hedging margins on sales of energy, are reported as a component
of revenues.

The historical financial statements for 2001 included adjustments made to revenues for over/under
recovered fuel costs. To the extent fuel costs incurred exceeded regulated. fuel factor amounts included in
customer billings, TXU Corp. recorded revenues on the basis of its ability and intent to obtain regulatory
approval for rate surcharges on future customer billings to recover such amounts. Conversely, to the extent fuel
costs incurred were less than amounts included in customer billings, revenues were reduced. Following
deregulation of the Texas market on January 1, 2002, any changes to the fuel factor component of the price-to-
beat rates are recognized in revenues when power is provided to customers.

In the regulated gas delivery operations, revenue adjustments are recorded for over or under-collected gas
costs similar to the electricity business prior to deregulation as discussed immediately above.

Other than the purchase of fuel for gas-fired generation, the significant majority of TXU Energy’s physical
natural gas purchases and sales represent economic hedging activities; consequently, such transactions have been
reported net as a component of revenues. As a result of the issuance of EITF 03-11, sales of natural gas to retail
business customers are reported gross effective October 1, 2003.

Accounting for Contingencies — The financial results of TXU Corp. may be affected by judgments and
estimates related to loss contingencies. Accruals for loss contingencies are recorded when management
determines that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and that such
economic loss can be reasonably estimated. These determinations are based on management’s interpretations of
current facts and circumstances, forecasts of future events and estimates of the financial impacts of such events.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities — The financial statements of TXU Corp.’s regulated businesses,
primarily its Texas electricity and gas delivery operations, reflect regulatory assets and liabilities under cost-
based rate regulation in accordance with SFAS 71. As a result of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation, application
of SFAS 71 to the generation operations was discontinued in 1999. The assumptions and judgments used by
regulatory authorities continue to have an impact on the recovery of costs, the rate earned on invested capital and
the timing and amount of assets to be recovered by rates. (See discussion in Note 16.)
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As a result of the Settlement Plan becoming final and non-appealable, in 2002 TXU Corp. recorded an
extraordinarycharge to write down regulatory assets subject to securitization. See Note 4 for further discussion.

Investments — Deposits in a nuclear decommissioning trust fund are carried at fair value in the balance
sheet, with the cumulative increase in fair value recorded as a liability to reflect the statutory nature of the trust.
Investments in unconsolidated business entities over which TXU Corp. has significant influence but does not
maintain effective control, generally representing ownership of at least 20% and not more than 50% of common
equity, are accounted for under the equity method. Assets related to employee benefit plans are held to satisfy
deferred compensation liabilities and are recorded at market value. (See Note 5 — Investments.) Investments in
subsidiary financing trusts, which are 100% owned but now deconsolidated as a-result of the implementation of
FIN 46, are also accounted for under the equity method.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Properties are stated at original cost. The cost of electricity and gas
delivery property additions (and generation property additions prior to July 1, 1999) includes labor and materials,
applicable overhead and payroll-related costs and an allowance for funds used during construction. US
generation property additions subsequent to July 1, 1999 and other property are stated at cost.

Depreciation of TXU Corp.’s property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated service lives of the properties. Depreciation also includes an amount for decommissioning costs for
the nuclear-powered electricity generation plant (Comanche Peak), which is being accrued over the lives of the
units. Consolidated depreciation as a percent of average depreciable property for TXU Corp. approximated
2.6% for 2003, 2.8% for 2002 and 2.7% for 2001. See discussion below under Changes in Accounting
Standards regarding SFAS 143.

Effective April 1, 2003, the estimates of the depreciable lives of the Comanche Peak nuclear generating
plant and several gas generation plants were extended to better reflect the useful lives of the assets. At the same
time, depreciation rates were increased on lignite and gas generation facilities to reflect investments in emissions
control equipment. The net 1mpact of these changes was a reduction in depreciation expense of $37 million (pre-
tax) and an increase in net income of $24 million ($0.06 per diluted share) for the year ended December 31,
2003.

TXU Corp. capitalizes computer software costs in accordance with SOP 98-1. These costs are being
amortized over periods ranging from three to ten years. (See Note 6 under Intangible Assets for more
information.) '

Interest|Capitalized and Allowance For Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) — AFUDC is a cost
accounting procedure whereby amounts based upon interest charges on borrowed funds and a return on equity
capital used to finance construction are added to utility plant and equipment being constructed. Prior to July 1,
1999, AFUDC was capitalized for all expenditures for ongoing construction work in progress and nuclear fuel in
process not otherwise included in rate base by regulatory authorities. As a result of the 1999 Restructuring
Legislation, only interest is capitalized during any generation construction since 1999. Interest and AFUDC
related to debt for businesses that still apply SFAS 71 are capitalized as a component of projects under
construction. Interest on qualifying projects for businesses that no longer apply SFAS 71 is capitalizc:! in
accordance with SFAS 34. See Note 20 for detail of amounts.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — TXU Corp. evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets to be
held and used when events and circumstances warrant such a review. The carrying value of long-lived assets
would be considered impaired when the projected undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying value. In
that event, a loss would be recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value.
Fair value is determined primarily by available market valuations or, if applicable, discounted cash flows.

A-74




- In 2002, TXU Corp. recorded an impairment charge of $237 million ($154 million after-tax) for the
writedown of two generation plant construction projects as a result of weaker wholesale electricity market
conditions and reduced planned developmental capital spending. Fair value was determined based on appralsals
of property and equ1pment The charge is reported in other deductions.

. Also, in 2002, TXU Corp.’s telecommunications business, then an unconsolidated joint venture, recorded
impairments of long-lived assets, of which TXU Corp. recognized its share, $28 million ($18 million after-tax).
The charge is reported in other deductions as part of equity in losses of unconsolidated entities.

TXU Corp. has recorded additional long-lived asset 1mpa1rments that are reported in results of discontinued
operations, as described in Note 3.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets — TXU Corp. evaluates goodwill for impairment at least annually (as of
October 1) in accordance with SFAS 142. The impairment tests performed are based on discounted cash flow
analyses. Such analyses require a significant number of estimates and assumptions regarding future earnings,
working capital requirements, capital expenditures, discount rate, terminal year growth factor and other
modeling factors. No goodwill impairment has been recognlzed for consolidated reporting units reflected in-
results from continuing operations. :

In 2002, TXU Corp.’s telecommunications joint venture recorded a goodwill impairment charge, of which
TXU Corp. recognized its share, $9 million ($6 million after-tax). The charge is reported in other deductions in
the statement of income. See Note 17 for further discussion.

TXU Corp. has recorded additional goodwill impairments that are reported in results of discontinued
operations, as described in Note 3.

Foreign Currency Translation — The assets and liabilities of non-US operations denominated in local
currencies are translated at rates in effect at year end. Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates for
the applicable periods. Local currencies are considered to be the functional currency, and adjustments resultmg
from such translation are included in other comprehensive income (loss).

Major Maintenance — Major maintenance outage costs related to nuclear fuel reloads, as well as other
major maintenance programs, are charged to expense as incurred.

" Amortization of Nuclear Fuel — The amortization of nuclear fuel in the reactors is calculated on the units-
of-production method and is included in cost of energy sold.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans — TXU Corp. offers pension
benefits through' various defined benefit pension plans and also offers certain health care and life insurance
benefits to eligible employees and their eligible dependents upon the retirement of such employees from TXU
Corp. Reported costs of providing non-contributory defined pension benefits and other postretirement benefits
are dependent upon numerous factors, assumptions and estimates. (Seée Note 13 for information regarding
retirement plans and other postretirement benefits.)

Franchise and Revenue-Based Taxes — Franchise and revenue-based taxes such as gross receipts taxes
are not a "pass through" item such as sales and excise taxes. Gross receipts taxes are assessed to TXU Corp. and
its subsidiaries by state and local governmental bodies, based on revenues, as a cost of doing business. TXU
Corp. records gross receipts tax as an expense. Rates charged to customers by TXU Corp. are intended to
recover the taxes, but TXU Corp. is not acting as an agent to collect the taxes from customers.

Income Taxes — TXU Corp. and its US subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return, and .
federal income taxes are allocated to subsidiaries based upon their respective taxable income or loss. Investment
tax credits are amortized to income over the estimated service lives of the properties. Deferred income taxes are
provided for temporary differences between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities. Certain provisions of
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SFAS 109 provide that regulated enterprises are permitted to recognize deferred taxes as regulatory tax assets or
tax liabilities if it is probable that such amounts will be recovered from, or returned to, customers in future rates.

Income Taxes on Undistributed Earnings of Non-US Subsidiaries — TXU Corp. intends to reinvest the
earnings of its non-US subsidiaries into those businesses. Accordingly, no provision has been made for taxes
which would be payable if such earnings were to be repatriated. Upon distribution of these earnings in the form
of dividends or otherwise, TXU Corp. may be subject to US income taxes and foreign -withholding taxes. It is
not practicable, however, to estimate the amount of taxes that may be payable on the eventual remittance of these
earnings.

Earnings Per Share — Basic earnings per share applicable to common stock are based on the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share include the effect of
all potential issuances of common shares under certain debt securities and other arrangements. For 2003, the
$750 million -of 9% Exchangeable Preferred Membership Interests in TXU Energy (originally issued as
subordinated notes in November 2002) were dilutive and were included in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share. For 2002, these securities were anti-dilutive and not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation.
Assuming these securities were exchanged for TXU Corp. common stock at the beginning of the 2003 period at
the exchange price of $13.1242 per share, 57.1 million more shares would have been issued and net income
would have increased by $53 million for 2003 representmg primarily the after-tax interest savings on the
preferred membershrp interests in TXU Energy.

In July 2003, TXU Corp. issued $525 million of floating rate senior notes convertible into 15.2 million
shares of TXU Corp. common stock (see Note 8). For 2003, these notes had no effect on the calculation of
earnings per share as the market price of TXU Corp common stock was below the $41.48 per share trigger price
for the year. ‘

Additional dilution of earnings per share would result from approximately 7.0 million shares and 18.0 -
million shares of common stock issuable in connection with equity-linked debt securities issued in 2002 and
2001, respectively, if the average of the closing price per share of TXU Corp. common stock on each of the
twenty consecutive trading days ending on the third day immediately preceding the end of a reporting period is
above the strike price of $62.91 and $55.68 per share, for the respective issuances.

Cash Equivalents — For purposes of reporting cash and cash equivalents, temporary cash investments
purchased with a remaining maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

Changes in Accounting Standards — In October 2002, the EITF, through EITF 02-3, rescinded EITF 98-
10, which required mark-to-market accounting for all trading activities. SFAS 143, regarding asset retirement
obligations, bécame effective on January 1, 2003. As a result of the implementation of these two accounting
standards, TXU Corp. recorded a cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles as of January 1, 2003.
(See Note 2 for a discussion of the impacts-of these two accounting standards.) '

As a result of guidance provided in EITF 02-3, in 2003 TXU Corp. discontinued recognizing origination
gains on energy contracts. For 2002 and 2001, TXU Corp. recognized $40 million and $88 million in origination
gains on retail sales contracts, respectively. Because of the short-term nature of these contracts, a portion of
these gains would have been recognized on a settlement basis in the year the origination gain was recorded.

SFAS 146 became effective on January 1, 2003. SFAS 146 requires that a liability for costs associated
with an exit or disposal activity be recognized only when the liability is incurred and measured initially at fair
value. The adoption of SFAS 146 did not materially impact results of operations for 2003.

SFAS 148 was issued in December 2002. TXU Corp. adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS 148
effective December 31, 2002. This statement provides transition alternatives when companies adopt fair value
accounting for stock-based compensation. TXU Corp. accounts for stock-based compensation plans, including
stock options, using the intrinsic value method. TXU Corp. does not currently issue stock options, and only
23,674 previously issued options remain outstanding at December 31, 2003. Had compensation expense for
these stock-based compensation plans been determined based upon the fair value methodology prescribed under
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SFAS. 123, TXU Corp.’s net income and per share amounts would not have been materially different from
reported amounts.

FIN 45 was issued in November 2002 and requires recording the fair value of guarantees upon issuance or
modification after December 31, 2002. The interpretation also requires expanded disclosures of guarantees (see
Note 18 under Guarantees). The adoption of FIN 45 did not materially impact results of operations for 2003.

SFAS 149 was issued in April 2003 and became effective for contracts entered into or modified after June
30, 2003. SFAS 149 clarifies what contracts may be eligible for the normal purchase and sale exception, the
definition of a derivative and the treatment.in the statement of cash flows when a derivative contains a financing
component, Also, EITF 03-11 was issued in July 2003 and became effective October 1, 2003 and, among other
things, discussed the nature of certain power contracts. As a result of the issuance of SFAS 149 and EITF 03-11,
certain commodity contract hedges were replaced with another type of hedge that is subject to effectiveness
testing. The adoption of these changes did not materially impact results of operations for 2003.

EITF 03-11 also addressed the presentation in.the income statement of physically settled commodity
derivatives, providing guidance as to whether such transactions should be reported on a net or gross (sales and
cost of sales) basis. Effective October 1, 2003, TXU Corp. began reporting certain retail sales of natural gas to
business customers on a gross basis. The effect of this change was an increase in revenues and cost of energy
sold of $34 million for the period since that date. Net income was unaffected by the change.

EITF 01-8 was issued in May 2003 and is effective prospectively for arrangements that are new, modified
or committed to beginning July 1, 2003. This guidance requires that certain types of arrangements be accounted
for as leases, including tolling and power supply contracts, take-or-pay contracts and service contracts involving
the use of specific property and equipment. The adoption of this change did not materially impact results of
operations for 2003.

SFAS 132 was revised in December 2003 and, effective immediately, requires additional disclosures
regarding pension plan assets, benefit obligations, cash flows, benefit costs and related information. See Note 13
for these required disclosures.

In November 2003, the EITF reached a consensus on Issue 03-1 that certain disclosures should be required
for debt and marketable equity securities classified as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity that are temporarily
impaired at the balance sheet date. See Note 5 under Analysis of Certain Investments with Unrealized Losses,
for the required disclosures.

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Medicare Act) was
enacted in December 2003. FASB Staff Position 106-1, issued in January 2004, allows for, but does not require,
deferral of the accounting for the effects of the Medicare Act. TXU Corp. has elected not to defer accounting for
the federal subsidy under the Medicare Act and recognized a $1.9 million net reduction in SG&A expense in the
2003 financial statements. See Note 13 for discussion of the impact on the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation and postretirement benefit costs. Specific authoritative guidance on the accounting for the federal
subsidy is pending. Once that guidance is issued, it could require TXU Corp to change previously reported

information.
See discussion of FIN 46 under “Basis of Presentation™ above.

2. CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The following summarizes the effect on results for 2003 for changes in accounting principles effective
January 1, 2003:

Charge from rescission of EITF 98-10, net of tax effect of $34 million $ (63)
Credit from adoption of SFAS 143, net of tax effect of $3 million............... 3
TOAl NEE CHATER .......oveeecvceerseesremaes e aees s sacess e ssss s stssssesesasres st eness 3.(58)
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On October 25, 2002, the EITF, through EITF 02-3, rescinded EITF 98-10, which required mark-to-market
accounting for all trading activities. Pursuant to this rescission, only financial instruments that are derivatives
under SFAS 133 are subject to mark-to-market accounting. Financial instruments that may not be derivatives
under SFAS 133, but were marked-to-market under EITF 98-10, consist primarily of gas transportation and
storage agreements, power tolling, full requirements and capacity contracts. This new accounting rule was
effective for new contracts entered into after October 25, 2002. Non-derivative contracts entered into prior to
October 26, 2002, continued to be accounted for at fair value through December 31, 2002; however, effective
January 1, 2003, such contracts were required to be accounted for on a settlement basis. Accordingly, a charge
of $97 million:($63 million after-tax) was reported as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principles in
the first quarter of 2003.- Of the total, $75 million reduced net commodity contract assets and liabilities and $22
million reduced inventory that had previously been marked-to-market as a trading position. The cumulative
effect adjustment represents the net gains previously recognized for these contracts under mark-to-market
accounting. ‘ ‘ : -

SFAS 143 became effective on January 1, 2003. SFAS 143 requires entities to record the fair value of a
legal liability for an asset retirement ‘obligation in the period of its inception. For TXU Corp., such liabilities
primarily relate to nuclear generation plant decommissioning, land reclamation related to lignite mining and
removal of lignite plant ash treatment facilities. The liability is recorded at ifs net present value with a
corresponding increase in the carrying value of the related long-lived asset. The liability is accreted each periad,
representing the time value of money, and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the
related asset. .

As the new accounting rule required retrospective application to the inception of the liability, the effects of
the adoption reflect the accretion and depreciation from the liability inception date through December 31, 2002.
Further, the effects of adoption take into consideration liabilities of $215 million (previously reflected in
accumulated depreciation) TXU Corp. had previously recorded as depreciation expense and $26 million
(reflected in other noncurrent liabilities) of unrealized net gains associated with the decommissioning trusts.

The following table summarizes the impact as of January 1, 2003 of adopting SFAS 143:

Increase in property, plant and equipment — NEt..........c.ccoocerrevniieneinn. $488
Increase in other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits ................... (528)
Increase in accumulated deferred income taxes 3
Increase in regulatory assets — DEt.......o...crcenererereenrions 48
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principles...........ccovevvvreane. 3 5

The asset retirement liability at December 31, 2003 was $599 million, comprised of a $554 million liability
as a result of adoption of SFAS 143, $36 million of accretion during the twelve months of 2003 and $2 miilion in
new asset retirement obligations, reduced by $19 million in reclamation payments. The asset retirement
obligations were adjusted upward by $26 million, or 5%, due to revisions in estimated cash flows.

With respect to nuclear decommissioning costs, TXU Corp. believes that the adopfion of SFAS 143 results
primarily in timing differences in the recognition of asset retirement costs that TXU Energy is currently
recovering through the regulatory process.

On a pro forma basis, assuming SFAS 143 had been adopted at the beginning of the period, earnings for
2002 would have increased by $6.5 million after-tax, and the liability for asset retirement obligations as of
December 31, 2001 and 2002 would have been $522 million and $554 million, respectively. Earnings for the
year ended December 31, 2001 would not have been impacted by the adoption of SFAS 143,
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3 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The following summarizes the historical consohdated fmanmal information of the various businesses
reported as discontinued operations-or businesses to be sold:

Strategic
Retail
Telecom  Mexico Services " Europe (a) Total

2003 ‘
Operating IeVenues ............co.eomururieens e $__162 $ 95 3 __ 60 $ - $ 317
Operating costs and expenses ......... 146 97 60 - 303,
Other deductions (income) — net... 15 (3) 11 5 ] 28
Interest income ................... e (6) - m - 0
Interest expense and related charges... 61 ; i 1 - , 63
Loss before income taxes................ 4 o= (1D 5) 70)
Income tax benefit ..........ccovorerrorerrecafonnriivennienns (11’ . - “) . 1) (16)
Charge related to exit (after-tax) ........cco.ocevecerennene 4b) . - 9 — 43

Income (loss) from discontinued operations...... §_ (a7 $ - 3346 3 _©® 3 (9D
OPErating TEVENUES ........cvvvverricenmraenrcenreriorariesinene $ - $ .91 $ 47 - $_40352 $ 4,190
Operating costs and EXPenses .......c....cvcerircrreerans - ) ] 122 3,852 4,070
Other deductions (income) — net.... - 5) - 6 1
Interest inCOme .......cooovvvvreere s - [¢)) - (15) co (16)
Interest expense and related charges... - - 1 i 1 - 255 257 -
Loss before income taxes..........coovevevvervreenarnieenrnnes - - (76) (46) (122)
Income tax benefit....o.cviiiieinnininimecasmisannenns - (€3] 2N (38) (66)
Charge related to exit (after-tax)...........coocvsrcnvincn - 15 - 4,187 4,202

Income (loss) frorn discontinued operations...... pI—— T O U:)) 849 304195 3 (4.258)
OPELAting TEVENUES ..........oovovereererriensnssesssnsassens $ - $ 104 $ 54 . 812719 $12.877
Operating costs and expenses ..... - ' 107 94 12,299 12,500
Other deductions (mcome) —net.. - Co (<)) 2 - 45 : 44
Interest iNCOME ........ccocoviiecreiaiiinn, - : ) - 99) - (101)
Interest expense and related charges o 1 1 579 581
Income (loss) before income taxes...... = 1 (43) (105) 147)
Income tax benefit...........cooocovvnviionriannriann, - = as 29 (312)

Income (loss) frofn discontinued operations...... 3 — 3 1

$ (28 319 $_$165

(a) Reflects operations through September 30, 2002.
(b) Includes an income tax charge of $23 million for the difference between book and tax basis of the investment in the business.

The strategic retail services operations were previously reported in the Energy segment. The
telecommunications and Mexico operations were previously reported in corporate and other activity. The
Europe operations were previously reported in the former International segment.

TXU Europe — In October 2002, TXU Europe sold a significant portion of its operations to Powergen, a
unit of Germany’s E.ON AG, for approximately $2.1 billion (£1.37 billion) in cash. The operations sold
included the retail electric and gas business in the UK, consisting of 5.3 million residential and business
customers, and three power plants representing a total of 2.9 gigawatts of coal-fired generation and a combined
heat and power plant, all in the UK. Operations retained by TXU Europe after the sale consisted principally of
its energy trading assets and liabilities, retail and wholesale energy businesses in Germany and Scandmavxa, and
two energy plants and several long-term power purchase agreements in the UK.

In November 2002, TXU Europe’s‘principal UK subsidiaries entered into formal administration processes
in the UK (similar to bankruptcy proceedings in the US). All remaining operations of TXU Europe are being
managed by the administrators for the benefit of the creditors of TXU Europe and its subsidiaries, consistent
with UK law. The sales proceeds discussed above, as well as any proceeds related to operations retained by
TXU Europe were not and will not be available to TXU Corp. Since the above events, TXU Corp. has not
funded, and will not fund, the operations or any obligations of TXU Europe.
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Results of discontinued operations related to TXU Europe include a charge of $4.2 billion in the fourth
quarter of 2002, which consisted primarily of the write-off of TXU Corp.’s investment in TXU Europe of $3.9
billion and included $168 million of foreign currency cumulative translation loss. The total charge also included -
the write-off of receivables due from TXU Europe, as well as certain anticipated income tax and other
obligations related to the exiting of the European operations. This charge is before consideration of any income
tax benefit, aggregating up to $983 million, related to the write-off of TXU Corp.’s investment in TXU Europe.
Any tax benefit related to the write-off of the investment will be recognized in income in accordance with SFAS
109 as uncertainties are resolved. '

On its federal income tax return for calendar year 2002, TXU Corp. claimed a deduction related to the
worthlessness of TXU Corp.’s investment in TXU Europe. While TXU Corp. believes that its tax reporting of
the write-off was proper, there is a risk that the IRS could challenge TXU Corp.’s position regarding this
deduction. The issue is currently under examination by the IRS, and it is uncertain whether the IRS will
challenge TXU Corp.’s position. If TXU Corp.’s position is sustained, TXU Corp. would recogmze the $983
mllllon tax benefit in income with a correspondmg increase in shareholders’ equity.

A portion of the 2002 worthlessness deduction related to TXU Corp.’s investment in TXU Europe will
reverse due to the forgiveness of TXU Europe’s debt, which is expected to occur upon final resolution of the UK
administration process. Reported earnings will not be affected by this reversal as a deferred tax liability was
previously recorded; however, an estimated $200 million in taxes is expected to be paid in 2005 as a result of the
debt forgiveness. The timing of the tax payment assumes the UK administration proceedings are resolved in
2004.

Telecommunications — In May 2003, TXU Corp. acquired, for $150 million in cash, its joint venture
partner’s interest in a holding company (Pinnacle), the principal asset of which is the stock of a
telecommunications business (TXU Communications) that consists primarily of two regulated rural telephone
companies in Southeast Texas. (See Note 17 for additional discussion). The acquisition of the interest was
under a put/call agreement that had been executed in late February 2003. Also in May 2003, TXU Corp.
finalized a formal plan to dispose of TXU Communications by sale. Accordingly, results of Pinnacle and TXU
Communications since March 1, 2003 are reported as discontinued operations. TXU Corp. had used the equity
method of accounting for its investment until March 1, 2003 when Pinnacle and TXU Communications were
consolidated as a result of the execution of the put/call agreement. Accounting rules provide that businesses
accounted for under the equity method should not be reported as discontinued operations; therefore, results prior
to March 1, 2003 are reported in other deductions in the statement of income, consistent with prior reporting.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, TXU Corp. recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $17 million ($11
million after-tax), reported in results of discontinued operations (other deductions) to reflect the fair value of
TXU Communications as determined by a sales agreement entered into in January 2004, Under the agreement,
the stock of the business will be sold for $524 million in cash (before transaction costs and other adjustments)
and $3 million in assumed debt. The sale is expected to be completed in the first half of 2004, pending approval
by the Federal Communications Commission. Estimated net cash proceeds from the sale of approximately $515
million will be applied to the repayment of $560 million of Pinnacle’s notes payable.

In connection with the decision to sell the telecommunications business, an income tax charge of $23
million, reported in results of discontinued operations, was recorded in 2003 to establish a deferred tax liability
for the excess of the carrying value over the tax basis of the investment in the business.

Strategic Retail Services — In December 2003, TXU Corp. approved a plan to sell its strategic retail
services business, which is engaged principally in providing energy management services to businesses and other
organizations. Results of discontinued operations reflect a charge in the fourth quarter of 2003 of $13.1 million
($8.5 million after-tax) to impair long-lived assets and accrue liabilities under operatmg leases from which there
will be no future benefit as a result of the decision to exit the business.

Mexico — In January 2004, TXU Corp. completed the sale of its majority-owned gas distribution

operations in Mexico for $11 million. Results of discontinued operations (other deductions) reflect a charge in
2002 of $23 million ($15 million after-tax) to impair goodwill and long-lived assets.
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Balance sheet — The following details the assets and liabilities held for sale as of December 31, 2003:

December 31, 2003
Strategic
Retail
Telecom Mexico Services Total
CUITENT BSSELS...vvvceenserrerersiereretesereaees v vt ceenas $ 2t $ 25 $ 3 $ 49
INVESUDENLS. ........veieieieiece et 35 - 4 39
GOOdWill......corrererereceec b 299 - - 299
Property, plant and equipment...............ccccccconvenne 232 31 5 268
Other NONCUITENE ASSELS...........oirvererreeriereriireserrennes 3 ¥ - 2 5
Assets held forsale ............ooovvvvivvivreciceeenne $ 59 $ 36 $ 14 $___660
Current liabilities .ooooooerieriricirccr e $ 37 $ .25 $ - $ 62
Accumulated deferred income taxes.. 14 - ) - 14
Noncurrent Habilities ...........ccooevvirierieeiicreconenns 48 19 - 67
Liabilities held forsale.........c.occoocvvevvennvcenee. § 99 $§ 4 $_ - $ 143

The following details the assets and liabilities of Pinnacle as of December 31, 2003:

INVESTMENTS (@) .eveveerriirrriiveeiercieenine s eevenas SETUURU PP $ 91
ODEE ASSEES ..vvoverereconieneeiesiesaessents e e resessensenasesss st s ss st enbaeseneaies — 19

" Assets of telecommunications holding company............cccco......... ‘ 3§ 10
Notes payable of PInNacle (8)........u.v..eeurevrcnnmnrirnsrnsseserarssscns $ 3560
Notes payable of TXU Communications..............ccoevvrvvererrerereeerninnrnee 16
Oher HADIHEES ........vvcerooereecerrrcenriineesessseernsieseresessesersesessesressssnces —2

Liabilities of telecommunications holding company .................... § 603

(a) Represents a trust established to fund interest payments on notes payable of Pinnacle. The notes payable outstanding totaled $810
million at December 31, 2002 and $560 million at December 31, 2003. The trust’s assets consist of TXU Corp. debt (reported in
long-term debt due currently). Upon sale of TXU Communications, expected to occur in the first half of 2004, the remaining
notes outstanding will be repaid and the remaining. TXU Corp. debt and the trust will be canceled. During 2003, TXU Corp.
repurchased $250 million of the notes payable and made scheduled payments of $86 million on the debt held by the trust.

4. EXTRAORDINARY LOSS

As a result of the implementation of SFAS 145, losses related to early extinguishment of debt that were
previously reported as extraordinary items have been reclassified (see Note 1 under Losses on Extinguishments
of Debt).

In the fourth quarter of 2001, TXU Corp. and the Commission reached agreement on the Settlement Plan,
which resolved a number of issues related to transition to retail competition. As a result, TXU Corp. recorded an
extraordinary loss of $57 million (net of income tax benefit of $63 million). The loss was classified as an
extraordinary item in accordance with SFAS No. 101, ‘Regulated Enterprises — Accounting for the
Discontinuance of the Application of FASB Statement No. 71.” The Settlement Plan addressed, among other
items, unrecovered fuel cost, stranded costs and other generation-related regulatory assets, and the above-market
pricing of certain power purchase contracts. See also Note 16.

The Settlement Plan also addressed the issuance of securitization bonds to recover regulatory asset stranded
costs. The Commission’s financing order related to the bonds was appealed by certain non-settling parties. In
January 2003, the appeals were settled and the financing order became final and non-appealable. The financing
order authorized the issuance of securitization bonds with a principal amount of up to $1.3 billion. As a result of
the appeals being settled, in the fourth quarter of 2002, TXU Corp. recorded an extraordinary loss of $134
million (net of income tax benefit of $72 million) principally to write down the regulatory assets to $1.7 billion
to reflect lower estimated cash flows to be recovered from REPs to service the principal and interest of the
bonds.
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5. INVESTMENTS

The following information is a summé.ry of the investment balance as of December 31, 2003 and 2002:

December 31,

2003 2002

NuclearidecOmMMISSIONIAG TUSE......cc.cviiriiminiiirien e cnssess s $ 323 $ 266
Equity method investments in business entities.............ocecneee 67 © 35
Common equity investments in subsidiary trusts (see Note 10). 30 31
T 1T SO OO OO OO OO O YUY ST R UTSUPPSPOTTN 89 90
Assets related to employee benefit plans:

Life insurance policies................ re e e 116 91

Marketable securities and others. 34 . 31
Notes receivable ........ccccooevvrrecrane. 3 153
Miscellaneous other ... 43 27

Total investments....... $ 705 $ 724

Nuclear Decommissioning Trust — Deposits in a trust fund for costs to decommission the Comanche Peak
nuclear-powered generation plant are carried at fair value, with the cumulative increase in fair value recorded as a
liability. (Also see Note 18 under Nuclear Decommissioning). Decommissioning costs are being recovered from
Oncor’s customers as a transmission and distribution charge over the life of the plant and deposited in the trust
fund. Activity in the trust fund was as follows:

December 31, 2003
Cost Unrealized gain Unrealized (loss) Fair market value
Debt securities'..........ccooeocervceenaee $ 139 $ 6 $ 2 $ 143
Equity SECUMiti€s..........cocerevriennee 126 66 (12) 180
December 31, 2002 .
Cost Unrealized gain Unrealized (loss) Fair market value
Debt securities ........cvvcovevervenena. $ 128 $ 10 $ (1) $ 137
Equity securities..............ccooeennnne 111 37 1% 129
§ 239 $ 4

§ Q20 . 8266

Debt securities held at December 31, 2003 mature as follows: $56 million in one to five years, $51 million
in five to ten years and $36 million after ten years.

Equity Investments — The equity-method investments in business entities is comprised almost entirely of a
one-third interest ($65 million and $31 million at December 31, 2003 -and 2002, respectively) in an Australian
pipeline company (SEA Gas). ' ‘ '

" Assets Related to Employee Benefit Plans — The majority of these assets represent cash surrender values
of life insurance policies that are purchased to fund liabilities under deferred compensation plans. TXU Corp.
pays the premiums and is the beneficiary of these life insurance policies. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002,
the face amount of these policies was $533 million and $527 million, and the net cash surrender value was $116
million and $91 million, respectively. Changes in cash surrender value are netted against premiums paid. Other
investment assets held to satisfy deferred compensation liabilities are recorded at market value. Unrealized
changes in marketable securities are reflected in other income.
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Analysis of Certain Investments with Unrealized Losses at December 31, 2003:

Investments That Have Been in a Continuous Unrealized Loss Position for:

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Description of Securities . Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Nuclear Decommissioning Trust:
Debt Securities..........ccooccorverereirennes . $12 $ - $19 $ @) $31 $ 2
Equity securities.... 4 _( _24 _an _28 _(12)
TOtal ..o, . $.16 X)) 343 2039 $59 $(04)

The assets that have experienced unrealized losses are all high-quality securities that are part of the long-
term investment strategy and are expected to recover within a reasonable period of time. Therefore they are not
deemed to be other-than-temporary impairments,

6. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

" With the implementation of SFAS 142 in 2002, amortization of goodwill ceased. Assuming that SFAS 142
had been in effect in the 2001 period, income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles and net income would have been $612 million and $698
million, respectively, and the related earnings per share amounts would have been $2.27 and $2.68, respectively.

SFAS 142 also requires additional disclosures regarding intangible assets other than goodwill:

As of December 31, 2003 As of December 31, 2002
Gross - Gross
Carrying  Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
i Araount  Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Intangible assets subject to amortization v

included in property, plant and equipment: . .
Capitalized software.............cococnrecrrinenenens $634 $315 $319 $540 $217 $323
Land easements .........oooovrvnricimecrniiinne . 192 74 118 ‘ 195 68 127
Mineral rights and other.... . _3t _22 _9 _3 _21 _11

TOLAL...covrvcrceecn e $857 - 8411 $446 $767 3306 8461

Aggregate TXU Corp. amortization expense for intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001 was $95 million, $91 miltion and $53 million, respectively. At December 31, 2003, the weighted
average useful lives of capitalized software, land easements and mineral rights and other were 6 years, 68 years
and 40 years, respectively. Estimated amounts of amortization expense for the next five years are as follows:
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Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated amortization) for the year ended
December 31, 2003, are as follows:

Energy
Energy Delivery Australia Total
Balance at December 31, 2001 $ 65 $ 799 $ 656 $ 1,520
Goodwill transferred.........ccooiveerrvenne 468 (468) - -
Foreign currency translation effects .... - - —t 68 68
Balance at December 31,2002 ..........cccveeen. 533 331 724 1,588
Foreign currency translation effects ... - - 241 241
Balance at December 31,2003 ..o $ 533 $ 331 $ 965 3 1.829

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, goodwill was stated net of accumulated amortization of $242 million and
$189 million, respectively.

7. SHORT-TERM FINANCING

Short-term Borrowings — At December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. had outstanding short-term borrowings
consisting of bank borrowings of approximately $58 miilion and commercial paper of $39 million (all in
Australia). At December 31, 2002, TXU Corp. had outstanding short-term borrowings consisting of bank
borrowings of:approximately $2.3 billion (predominantly in the US) at a weighted average interest rate of 2.6%
and commercial paper of $18 million (in Australia).

Credit Facilities — At December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. and its subsidiéries had credit facilities (some of
which provide:for long-term borrowings) as follows:

At December 31, 2003
: Authorized Facility Letters of Cash
‘Facility Expiration Date Borrowers Limit Credit Borrowings  Availability
Five-Year Revolving Credit Facility " February 2005 US Holdings - $ 1,400 $ 4 $ - $1,356
Revolving Credit Facility February 2005 TXU Energy, Oncor 450 - - 450
Three-Year Revolving Credit Facility May 2005 US Holdings (a) 400 C = - ‘ 400
Five-Year Revolving Credit Facility August 2008 TXU Corp. ‘ 500 . 422 - - . 78
Total US ’ $ 2750 $_466 $_— $2.284
Senior Facility (b) October 2004 TXU Australia $ 899 $ - $ 693 $ 186
Working Capital Facility October 2004 TXU Australia 74 - 23 51
Standby Facility (b) December 2004 TXU Australia 19 - - =
Total Australia . ‘599 $ = 3 716 3 237

(a) Previously TXU Corp. ) ‘ :
(b) Commercial paperlborrowings totaling $39 million at December 31, 2003 were supported by the Standby Facility and the Senior Facility. -

In the fourth quarter of 2003, TXU Australia reduced its Senior Facility by approximately $375 million and
cash borrowings declined $238 million. In February 2004, TXU Australia replaced the Senior Facility with a
$412 million facility maturing in February 2007 and a second $412 million facility maturing in February 2009.
The Working: Capital Facility rolled forward in February 2004 to a $56 million facility, maturing in February
2005.

In August 2003, TXU Corp. entered into a $500 million 5-year revolving credit facility with LOC 2003
Trust, a special purpose, wholly-owned subsidiary of TXU Corp. (LOC Trust). LOC Trust, in turn, entered into
a $500 million 5-year secured credit facility with a group of lenders. TXU Corp. capitalized LOC Trust with
approximately $525 million of cash, which the lenders have invested in permitted investments as directed by
LOC Trust. LOC Trust’s assets, including the investments, constitute collateral for the benefit of the lenders to
secure issuances of letters of credit or loans, and are owned by LOC Trust. During the term of the facility, LOC
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Trust is required to maintain collateral in an amount equal to 105% of the commitments under the secured
facility. TXU Corp. may request up to $500 million of letters of credit or up to $250 million of loans from LOC
Trust, subject in the aggregate to its $500 million commitment, for the benefit of TXU Corp. and its subsidiaries,
which may be provided through issuances of letters of credit or loans by the lenders. LOC Trust’s assets are not
available to satisfy claims of creditors of TXU Corp. or its subsidiaries. However, LOC Trust may terminate all
or a portion of the secured facility at any time and request the release of any collateral not required to secure
outstanding letters of credit or loans, if any, from the lenders. LOC Trust is included in the consolidated financial
statements of TXU Corp. solely to comply. with US GAAP. :

In April 2003, TXU Energy and Oncor entered into a joint $450 million revolving credit facility to be used
for working capital and other general corporate purposes. Up to $450 million of letters of credit may be issued
under the facility.

The $1.4 billion facility provides for up to $1.0 billion in letters of credit.

The US Holdings, TXU Energy and Oncor facilities provide back-up for any future issuance of commercial
paper by TXU Energy and Oncor. At December 31, 2003, there was no such outstanding commercial paper.

The US facilities listed above are also available for general corporate and working capital purposes,
including provision of collateral support for TXU Energy’s hedging and risk management activities.

Sale of Receivables — TXU Corp. has established an accounts receivable securitization program. The
activity under this program is accounted for as a sale of accounts receivable in accordance with SFAS 140.
Under the program, US subsidiaries of TXU Corp. (originators) sell trade accounts receivable to TXU
Receivables Company, a consolidated wholly-owned bankruptcy remote direct subsidiary of TXU Corp., which
sells undivided interests in the purchased accounts receivable for cash to special purpose entities established by
financial institutions (the funding entities). As of December 31, 2003, the maximum amount of undivided
interests-that could be sold by TXU Receivables Company was $600 million. -

All new trade receivables under the program generated by the orlglnators are contmuously purchased by
TXU Receivables Company with the proceeds from collections of receivables previously purchased. Changes in
the amount of funding under the program, through changes in the amount of undivided interests sold by TXU
Receivables Company, are generally due to scasonal variations in the level of accounts receivable and changes in
collection trends. TXU Receivables Company has issued subordinated notes payable to the originators for the
difference between the face amount of the uncollected accounts receivable purchased, less a discount, and cash
paid to the originators that was funded by the sale. of the undivided interests. The balance of the subordinated
notes payable was $511 rmlhon at December 31, 2003.

The discount from face amount on the purchase of receivables principally funds program fees paid by TXU
Receivables Company to the funding entities, as well as a servicing fee paid by TXU. Receivables Company to
TXU Business Services Company, a direct subsidiary of TXU Corp. The program fees (losses on sale), which
consist primarily of interest costs on the underlying financing, were $12' million and $22 million for 2003 and
2002, respectively, and approximated 2.6% and 3.7% for 2003 and 2002, respectively, of the average funding
under the program on an annualized basis; these fees represent the net incremental costs of the program to the
originators and are reported in SG&A expenses. The servicing fee, which totaled $7 million and $9 million for
2003 and 2002, respectively, compensates TXU Business Services Company for its services as collection agent,
including maintaining the detailed accounts receivable collection records.

The December 31, 2003 balance sheet reflects $1.1 billion face amount of trade accounts receivable of
TXU Energy, TXU Gas and Oncor, reduced by $600 million of undivided interests sold by TXU Receivables
Company. Funding under the program increased $129 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, primarily.
due to the effect of improved collection trends at TXU Energy. Funding under the program for the year ended
‘December 31, 2002 decreased $29 million. Funding increases or decreases under the program are reflected as
operating cash flow activity in the statement of cash flows. The carrying amount of the retained interests in the
accounts receivable approximated fair value due to the short-term nature of the collection period.
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Activities of TXU Receivables Company for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 were as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002
(millions of dollars)

Cash collections on accounts reCeivable ...........oociiviiiieiiniiee e e et nes . $ 8,538 $ 6,778
Face amount of new receivables purchased ..o, (8,143) (7,491)

Discount from face amount of purchased receivables............... e eeeseesmreemn s eeenneen 19 ’ 31
Program fees Paid ..ot st (12) ‘ 22)
Servicing fees Paid........covv i e s O N 9
Increase (decrease) in subordinated notes payable...........ccocccvvnieemivnncnreccviniccnnne : 524 __ 742
TXU Corp.’s operating cash flows (provided) used under the program............. $ _(_1_2_9_) $__29

Activity for 2001 is not shown in the table above since the current sale of receivables program began in
August 2001 and information for the full year is not available.

Upon termination of the program, cash flows to TXU Corp. would be delayed as collections of sold
receivables would be used by TXU Receivables Company to repurchase the undivided interests sold instead of
purchasing new receivables. The level of cash flows would normalize in approximately 16 to 31 days.

In June 2003, the program was amended to provide temporarily higher delinquency and defauit compliance
ratios and temporary relief from the loss reserve formula,” which allowed for increased funding under the
program. The June amendment reflected the billing and collection delays previously experienced as a result of
new systems and processes in TXU Energy and ERCOT for clearing customers’ switching and billing data upon
the transition to competition. In August 2003, the program was amended to extend the term to July 2004, as well
as to extend the period providing temporarily higher delinquency and default compliance ratios through
December 31, 2003. The higher delinquency and default compliance ratios were not extended after December
31, 2003 as no relief from program delinquency and default compliance ratios is expected to be required.

Contingencies Related to Sale of Receivables Program — Although TXU Receivables Company expects
to be able to pay its subordinated notes from the collections of purchased receivables, these notes are
subordinated to the undivided interests of the financial institutions in those receivables, and collections might not
be sufficient to pay the subordinated notes. The program may be terminated if either of the following events
occurs:

1) all of the originators cease to maintain thelr requlred fixed charge coverage ratio and debt to capital
(leverage) ratio;

2) the delinquency ratio (delinquent for 31 days) for the sold receivables, the default ratio (delinquent for 91
days or deemed uncollectible), the dilution ratio (reductions for discounts, disputes and other allowances)
or the days collection outstanding ratio exceed statéd thresholds and the financial institutions do not waivo
such event of termination. The thresholds apply to the entire portfolio of sold receivables, not separately
to the receivables of each originator.

The delinquency and dilution ratios exceeded the relevant thresholds during the first four months of 2003,
but waivers were granted. These ratios were affected by issues related to the transition to competition. Certain
billing and collection delays arose due to implementation of new systems and processes within TXU Energy and
ERCOT for clearing customers’ switching and billing data. The billing delays have been largely resolved.
Strengthened credit and collection policies and practlces have brought the ratios into consistent compliance with
the program requirement.
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Under terms of the receivables sale program, all the originators are required to maintain specified fixed
charge coverage and leverage ratios (or supply a parent guarantor that meets the ratio requirements). The failure
by an originator or its parent guarantor, if any, to maintain the specified financial ratios would prevent that
originator from selling its accounts receivable under the program. If all the originators and the parent guarantor,
if any, fail to maintain the specified financial ratios so that there are no eligible originators, the facility would
terminate. Prior to the August 2003 amendment extending the program, originator eligibility was predicated on
the maintenance of an investment grade credit rating.

8. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-Term Debt — At December 31 2003 and 2002, the long-term dcbt of TXU Corp. and its

consolidated subsidiaries consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,

' 2003 2002

TXU Energy '

Pollution Control Revenue Bonds:
Brazos River Authority: -
Floating Taxable Series 1993 due June 1, 2023 ... eirecetnin s ersse s siesnns $ — $ 44
3.000% Fixed Series 1994 A due May 1, 2029, remarketing date May 1, 2005(a) .. 39 39
5.400% Fixed Series 1994B due May 1, 2029, remarketing date May 1, 2006(a) .. 39 39
5.400% Fixed Series 1995A due April 1, 2030, remarketing date May 1, 2006(a) 50 50
5.050% Fixed Series 1995B due June 1, 2030, remarketing date June 19, 2006(2) .....coovvovvvrecrrrrrinrnnns 118 118
7.700% Fixed Series 1999A due April 1, 2033 ... 111 111
6.750% Fixed Series 1999B due September 1, 2034, remarketing date April 1, 2013(a)......c...oooceveennee 16 16
7.700% Fixed Series 1999C due March 1, 2032 .......ccc.oviiiieninesie e nsesereerniecnies s srasesssessnas 50 50
4.950% Fixed Series 2001 A due October 1, 2030, remarketing date Apnl 1,2004(a)......cconvvcnreirirnrrnns 121 121
4.750% Fixed Series 2001B due May 1, 2029, remarketing date November 1, 2006(a).............cccoovnnvcns 19 19
5.750% Fixed Series 2001C due May 1, 2036, remarketing date November 1, 2011(a).......cccoovvvercrirnnnn. 274 274
1.250% Floating Series 2001D due May 1, 2033 .......ocoorvirriiriiririennieeeinmserenmennnrssrssnssesessssseesssesenens 271 2N
Floating Taxable Series 2001F due December 31, 2036...0.c.ccmiiiioiiciiirirs e sicen — 39
Floating Taxable Series 2001G due December 1, 2036 .........ccvcviviies et rs e en — 72
Floating Taxable Series 2001H due December 1, 2036 .........c.leeeecinvenriiene et sas v ees —_ 31

" 1.180% Floating Taxable Series 20011 due December 1, 2036(b) .......ccccoouviirnmicicninsinsinns 63 63
1.250% Floating Series 2002A due May 1, 2037(0) o.vccveuevenriireieeecrecmrrestreenmmvensesesssessasesansees 61 61
6.750% Fixed Series 2003 A due April 1, 2038, remarketing date April 1, 2013(a).........cccoeimcrrecnninns 44 —_
6.300% Fixed Series 2003B due July 1, 2032 ......ccoriiiiiiiiiiiinerenicee et e e 39 —
6.750% Fixed Series 2003C due OCtober 1, 2038.......ccovieiieiiiricisienieerereteee e ereere s ereesss e sns s s e 72 —
5.400% Fixed Series 2003D due October 1, 2029, remarketing date October 1, 2014(a) .. 31 —

Sabine River Authority of Texas:
6.450% Fixed Series 2000A due JUne 1, 2021 ....c.cccovvieivinricircrinnnicconeineinreinieessieenis e senneccsnsnsssseces 51 ‘ 51

5.500% Fixed Series 2001 A due May 1, 2022, remarketing date November 1, 2011(a) 91 91
5.750% Fixed Series 2001B due May 1, 2030, remarketing date November 1, 2011(a) 107 107
4.000% Fixed Series 2001C due May 1, 2028, remarketing date November 1, 2003(a).... — 70
Floating Taxable Series 2001D due December 31, 2036 ........cc..coovvierenieniinnncenieninns - 12
Floating Taxable Series 2001E due December 31, 2036........c..coovvirinrriirnncnniimcnnncessesinsecen — 45
5.800% Fixed Series 2003A due July 1, 2022.......coovviiieiinicneei e 12 —
6.150% Fixed Series 2003B due August 1, 2022 ...ccocovvimvnrrnionninnn, et sy e 45 C -
Trinity River Authority of Texas: _
6.250% Fixed Series 2000A due May 1, 2028........coccoiorinnecnieirvereeeneenees 14 14
5.000% Fixed Series 2001 A due May 1, 2027, remarketing date November 1, 2006(a) 37 37
Other: . . .
7.000% Fixed Semor Notes - TXU Mining due May 1, 2003........ccoovmmrenmnccmerenncinnensenssnnseneronens — 72
6.875% Fixed Senior Notes - TXU Mining due August 1, 2005.........ccoveruieeiriinirnvrriineoncersersnieees 30 - 30
9.000% Fixed Exchangeable Subordinated Notes due November 22, 2012........cocovvoverieiienerinirereeseerenns S —_ 750
6.125% Fixed Senior Notes due March 15, 2008.........c....criiniieriiiiircomneise s asasasssses s seeens 250 - —
7.000% Fixed Senior Notes due March 15, 2013 (€) ..o reeemeienierecnseessetsessasasssssesenens 1,000 —_
Capital 18as€ ODLBALIONS ... ....cc.cevieiieririr e ierii et sae e aseb s ss et ebsns s s e b s sansstnrnsceo 13 10
ORI .ttt ettt e bk e eh e e b b e bR bR e ee e bbbt e b e e nee e e 8 8
Unamortized premium and discount and fair valite adjustments............ccoovvomecnnnmecronsnnienrinsensesssconn: 9 _(1o
TOtAl TXU ENEIZY .vovvvveiiiiiere st seisist e s e et b sttt esntenns e tas 3,085 2,605
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. December 31, December 31,

2003 2002
Oncor ‘
9.530% Fixed Medium Term Secured Notes due January 30, 2003.........ccooviiiiicniinmniccnicennes $ — $ 4
* 9.700% Fixed Medium Term Secured Notes due February 28, 2003. . —_ 11
6.750% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due March 1, 2003................ . — 133
6.750% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due April 1, 2003... — . 70
8.250% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due April 1, 2004.... . 100 100
6.250% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due October 1, 2004 ...t e 121 121
6.750% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due July 1, 2005 ... 92 92
7.875% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due March 1, 2023..... — 224
8.750% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due November 1, 2023 .. . — 103
7.875% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due April 1, 2024....... . —_ ‘ 133
7.625% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due July 1, 2025 ..... . 215 - 215
7.375% Fixed First Mortgage Bonds due October 1, 2025 .........cccooiiiiinniiccniiicne et 178 178
6.375% Fixed Senior Secured Notes due May 1, 2012 ...t 700 700
7.000% Fixed Senior Secured Notes due May 1, 2032 ..o 500 500
6.375% Fixed Senior Secured Notes due January 15, 2015 ..o e seaeranes 500 500
7.250% Fixed Senior Secured Notes due January 15, 2033 ..o s 350 350
5.000% Fixed Debentures due September 1, 2007 ..ot e seeenenene 200 200
7.000% Fixed Debentures due September 1, 2022.........occviiiiricnicnniiiieriiie e ceeesareeeereses 800 800
Unamortized premium and dISCOUNT..........coorvicereceninernenommirieternees et ireseseessiesnersasesnassesesessasassescasesis (30) (35)
Oncor Electric Delivery Transition Bond Company LLC (h) .
2.260% Fixed Series 2003 Bonds due in bi-annual installments through February 15, 2007 103 —
4,030% Fixed Series 2003 Bonds due in bi-annual installments through February 15, 2010 122 —
4.950% Fixed Series 2003 Bonds due in bi-annual installments through February 15, 2013.... 130 —
5.420% Fixed Series 2003 Bonds due in bi-annual instaliments through August 15, 2015.... 145 —
TOUAL OMCOT ........ovvocvemasreersriests e sesssescasessesss e s s e b ess e beee e e bbb st b e abs s banen 4,226 4,399
US Holdings )
7.170% Fixed Senior Debentures due August 1, 2007 ........cooooiiiiiimiiinnni e 10 10
9.580% Fixed Notes due in bi-annual installments through December 4, 2019 .........ccocoocincericcinncnns 70 73
8.254% Fixed Notes due in quarterly installments through December 31, 2021................. 67 68
1.910% Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures, Series D due January 30, 2037(d) .. . 1 1
8.175% Fixed Junior Subordinated Debentures, Series E due January 30, 2037........c.cccovvvicinivcnncnnnncnns 8 8
TOtal US HOLTINGS ....cvviveirceceriereniiiinieiemeienstiemeis st corstinseses st seiem e mmsass st evsns et e cans e serenecnss 156 160
IXU Gas
6.250% Fixed Notes due January 1, 2003 ..o csersnsssaes — 125
6.375% Fixed Notes due February 1, 2004 ..ot nssssrensssisessiensscscesmosasensisssssenss 150 150
7.125% Fixed Notes due June 15, 2005 ..o e canss et esnassessssasessesesbeseensmens 150 . 150
6.564% Fixeéd Remarketed Reset Notes due January 1, 2008 (2)......ccoooiiiiciniiiniininnicnnenr oo 125 125
Unamortized fair value adjustments...........coocmiiioiiiiii et erenn 1 1
TOAE TXU GAS ....ovoveeevseoieeieemseeacna s ccrnsissssseresstsssssses s ssss st sssee s s st sssssscassssssaess e ssansesssssss 426 551
TXU Australia
Floating Notes due October 30, 2003 ........cooiiciirccriinnieni e esreter it aanse s e seessecsasensessens — 17
5.928% Floating Notes due September 21, 2007(€) ......cccrverirririirrieneeiereieeemcetrecesnissesessessessssssssssessasnes 206 155
6.395% Flodting Note, Tranche A Facility due October 26, 2004(¢).. 75 23
6.318% Floating Note, Tranche A Facility due October 26, 2004(e) .. 93 142
6.395% Floating Note, Tranche B Facility due October 26, 2004(e) 150 113
6.395% Floating Note, Tranche B Facility due October 26, 2004(e) 37 34
6.395% Flodting Note, Tranche B Facility due October 26, 2004(e) .. 187 62

Floating Note, Tranche B Facility due October 26, 2004................ . — 73

Floating Note, Tranche C Facility due October 26, 2004................ — 311
6.600% Floating Note, Tranche C Facility due October 26, 2004(e) .. 150 113
7.000% Fixed Medium Term Notes due September 22, 2005......... . 150 113
6.090% Fixed Senior Notes due December 1, 2006(8) () ... ceovriienrniieriinieiniinninniceesciesese e 250 250
6.340% Fixed Senior Notes due December 1, 2016(8) .....cccrevrrvrrienricenrireoierriersminnnnscertsrnsesnrseamecesnees - 100 100
6.150% Fixed Senior Notes due December 1, 2013(g) ..... y 57 —
6.150% Fixed Senior Notes due December 1, 2013(g) (e)....... . 243 —
Unamortized premium and discount and fair value adjUSIMENLS .............orrvvrecenerrrerensiienssnsesessessessennees 17 : 2

Total TXU AUSITAIIA......c.ooiiriiiririiiries ettt et et bbb bt e beeanenstenene 1,715 1,528
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December 31, December 31,

2003 . 2002
TXU Corp. ‘ - - :
6.375% Fixed Senior Notes Series B due October 1, 2004 il : . 175 175
6.375% Fixed Senior Notes Series C due January 1, 2008.... . 200 200
5.520% Fixed Senior Notes Series D due August 16, 2003 .. - 323
4.050% Fixed Senior Notes Series E'due August 16, 2004... A 2 2
6.375% Fixed Senior Notes Series J due JURE 15, 2006...............ic..rvevesiiionsessesensossssssnnssssssnsessessnsssssonss 800 800
4.750% Fixed Senior Notes Series K due November 16, 2006 rema.rketmg date August 16, 2004(f)....... - 500 500
5.450% Fixed Senior Notes Series L due November 16, 2007 remarketing date- August- 16, 2005(f) ....... - 500 500
5.800% Fixed Senior Notes Series M due May 16, 2008 remarketing date February 16, 2006(f)............. 440 440
6.000% Fixed Pinnacle Overfund Trust Debt due bi-annually through August 15, 2004 (see Note 3) ..... } 91 178
8.820% Building Financing due bi-annually through February 171, 2022 . 130 140
2.650% Floating Convertible Senior Notes due July 15, 2033(d) ....oovniennnnns R TS PRSI . . 525 —
Unamortized premium and discount and fair value adjustments.. . .30 30
TOtAl TXU COIP....vovovvcrecvreeimmiennseeiomiassesasssesssisesss s e sssesss s bresescosscesseceisenesssssssensssersssons S o 3393 3,308
Total TXU Corp. consolidated ... ..c.cov.ovnnnee et er bbb et b e R bR e A 13,001 12,551
Less amount due currently ..........occoviicniinnicniccsnceend ettt ettt bt 677 958
Total IoNG-term dEbE........cooiiiiiiic e e $12.324 $11,593

(a) These series are in the multiannual mode and are subject tomandatory tender prior to maturity on the mandatory remarketing date. On
such date, the interest rate and interest rate period will be reset for the bonds.

(b) Interest rates in effect at December 31, 2003. These series are in a flexible or weekly rate mode and are classified as long-term as rhey
are supported by long-term irrevocable letters of credit. Series in the flexible mode will be remarketed for periods of less than 270 days.

(c) Interest rates swapped to floating on $500 million principal amoum

(d) Interest rates in effect at December 31, 2003.

(e) Interest rates fixed by swaps.

(f) Equity-linked.

(g) US Dollar denominated debt. Interest rates swapped to ﬂoatmg through a cross-currency fair value hedge in Australia.

(h) Bond principal amounts total $500 million, and the bonds are nonrecourse to Oncor.

New Debt Issuances in 2003.

In December 2003, TXU Australia issued $300 million of senior notes due 2013 in a private placement to
US and offshore institutional investors. Proceeds from the senior notes were used to pay down the senior credit
facility. (See Note 7 for discussion of TXU Austraha credit facﬂlty activity.)

In August 2003, Oncor issued $500 rrulllon aggregate principal amount of transition (securmzanon) bonds
in accordance with the Settlement Plan. The bonds were issued in four classes that require bi-annual interest and
principal installment payments beginning in 2004 through specified dates in 2007 through 2015. The bonds bear
interest at fixed annual rates ranging from 2.26% to 5.42%. A second issuance of approx1mately $79O million is
expected to be completed in the first half of 2004. :

In July 2003, TXU Corp. issued $525 million of floating rate convertible senior notes due 2033 in a private
placement with registration rights. The notes bear regular interest at an annual floating rate equal to 3-month
LIBOR, determined quarterly, plus 150 basis points, and are payable in arrears quarterly commencing October
15, 2003. The initial interest rate was 2.606%. The notes will bear additional contingent interest during periods
after July 15, 2008 if the average trading price of the notes for a specified period exceeds 120% of the principal
amount of the notes. The notes will have an initial conversion rate of 28.9289 shares of TXU Corp. common
stock per $1,000 principal amount of notes, which equates to an initial conversion price of $34.5675 per share.
The conversion rate is subject to adjustments in certain circumstances, including a change in the amount of
quartetly cash dividends per share ‘on TXU Corp. common stock from the current rate of $0.125 per share. The
notes will be convertible at the conversion rate, as adjusted, until maturity if (1) during any fiscal quarter the
market price of TXU Corp. common stock is above $41.481 per share for a specified period; (2) TXU Corp. calls
the notes for redemption; (3) the trading price of the notes falls below 95% of the conversion value of the notes
for a specified period; or (4) certain specified corporate transactions occur. Should the holders elect to convert
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the notes, TXU Corp. has the option to settle the conversion in cash, common stock or a combination of both.
The notes will be redeemable by TXU Corp. at par, plus accrued and unpaid interest and contingent interest, if
any, beginning July 15, 2008. The holders will be entitled to require TXU Corp. to purchase the notes at par, plus
accrued and unpaid interest and contingent interest, if any, on July 15, 2008, July 15, 2013, July 15, 2018, July
15, 2023 and July 15, 2028. Other than on July 15, 2008, upon a holder’s election to require a repurchase, TXU
Corp. may elect to pay the purchase price in cash, common stock, or a combination of both. With certain
exceptions, the holders will be entitled to require TXU Corp. to repurchase the notes if a person or group
acquires more than 50% of TXU Corp.’s common equity or if there is a merger, sale of assets or other
transaction that results in TXU Corp.’s common stockholders owning less than 50% of the surviving entity.
TXU Corp. intends to settle any conversion or purchase in cash. ‘

In March 2003, TXU Energy issued $1.25 billion aggregate principal amount of senior unsecured notes in
two series in a private placement with registration rights. One series in the amount of $250 million is due March
15, 2008, and, bears interest at the annual rate of 6.125%, and the other series in the amount of $1 billion is due
March 15, 2013, and bears interest at the annual rate of 7%. In August 2003, TXU Energy entered into interest
rate swap transactions through 2013, which are being accounted for as fair value hedges, to effectively convert
$500 million of the notes to floating interest rates.

Debt Repayments in 2003

In September 2003, Oncor redeemed the $224 million aggregate principal amount of its 7 7/8% First
Mortgage Bonds due March 1, 2023 and $133 million prmc:pal amount of its 7 7/8% First Mortgage Bonds due
April 1, 2024,

In August 2003, TXU Corp. redeemed the $323 million principal amount of its 5.52% Series D Senior
Notes, at the maturity date, for par value plus accrued interest. :

In May 2003, $72 million pr1n01pa1 amount of the 7% TXU Mmmg fixed rate senior notes were repaid at
maturity. .

In April 2003, Oncor repaid the $70 million principal amount of its First Mortgage Bonds, 6.75% Series, at
the maturity date for par value plus accrued interest. A restricted cash deposit of $72 million was utilized to fund
the matunty

In March 2003, Oncor repaid the $133 million principal amount of its First Mortgagc Bonds, 6.75% Series,
at the maturity date for par value plus accrued interest. A restricted cash deposit of $138 million was utilized to
fund the maturity.

In March 2003, Oncor redeemed $103 nﬁllion principal amount of its First Mortgage and Collateral Trust
Bonds, 8.75% Series due November 1, 2023, at 104.01% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to
the redemption date.

Oncor’s $4 million and $11 million medium term secured notes were repaid in January and February 2003,
respectively, at maturity for par value plus accrued interest.

In January 2003, TXU Gas redeemed, at par value plus accrued mterest $125 million principal amount of
its 6.25% Notes at maturity. ‘

Debt Remarkétings and Other Activity:

In November 2003, the Brazos River Authority Series 2001D pollution control revenue bonds (aggregate
principal amount of $271 million) were remarketed and converted from a multiannual mode to a weekly rate
mode, and the Sabine River Authority Series 2001C pollution control revenue bonds (aggregate principal amount
of $70 million) were purchased upon mandatory tender. TXU Corp. intends to remarket these bonds in the first
half of 2004.

A-90



In October 2003, the Brazos River Authority issued $72 million aggregate principal amount of Series
2003C poilution control revenue bonds and $31 million aggregate principal amount of Series 2003D poilution
control revenue bonds for TXU Energy. The Series 2003C bonds will bear interest at an annual rate of 6.75%
until maturity in 2038. The -Series 2003D bonds will bear interest at an annual rate of 5.40% until their
mandatory tender date in 2014, at which time they will be remarketed. Proceeds from the issuance of the Series
2003C and Series 2003D bonds were used to refund the $72 million aggregate principal amount of Brazos River
Authority Taxable Series 2001G and the $31 million aggregate principal amount of Series 2001H variable rate
pollution control revenue bonds, both due December 1, 2036. The Sabine River Authority also issued $45
million aggregate principal amount of Series 2003B pollution control revenue bonds for TXU Energy. The
Series 2003B bonds will bear interest at an annual rate of 6.15% until maturity in 2022, however they become
callable in 2013. Proceeds from the issuance of the Series 2003B bonds were used to refund the $45 million
aggregate principal amount of Sabine River Authority Taxable Series 2001E variable rate pollution control
revenue bonds due December 1, 2036.

In July 2003, the Brazos River Authority issued $39 million aggregate principal amount of Series 2003B
pollution control revenue bonds for TXU Energy. The bonds will bear interest at an annual rate of 6.30% until
maturity in 2032. Proceeds from the issuance of the bonds were used to refund the $39 million aggregate
principal amount of Brazos River Authority Taxable Series 2001F variable rate pollution control revenue bonds
due December 31, 2036. The Sabine River Authority also issued $12 million aggregate principal amount of
Series 2003A pollution control revenue bonds for TXU Energy. The bonds will bear interest at an annual rate of
5.80% until maturity in 2022. Proceeds from the issuance of these bonds were used to refund the $12 million
aggregate principal amount of Sabine River Authorlty Taxable Series 2001D pollution control revenue bonds
due December 31, 2036.

In May 2003, the Brazos River Authority Series: 1994A and the Trinity River Authority Series 2000A
pollution control revenue bonds (aggregate principal amount of $53 million) were purchased upon mandatory
tender. In July 2003, the bonds were remarketed and converted from a floating rate mode to a multiannual mode
-at an annual rate of 3.00% and 6.25%, respectively. The rate on the 1994A bonds will remain in effect until their
mandatory remarketing date of May 1, 2005. The rate on the 2000A bonds will remain in effect until their
maturity in 2028.

In April 2003, the Brazos River Authority Series 1999A pollution control revenue bonds, with an aggregate
principal amount of $111 million, were remarketed. The bonds now bear interest at a fixed annual rate of 7.70%
and are callable beginning on April 1, 2013 at a price of 101% until March 31, 2014 and at 100% thereafter.

In March 2003, the Brazos River Authority Series 1999B and 1999C pollution control revenue bonds
(aggregate principal amount of $66 million) were converted from a floating rate mode to a multiannual mode at
an annual rate of 6.75% and a fixed rate of 7.70%, respectively. The rate on the 1999B bonds will remain in
effect until 2013 at which time they will be remarketed. The rate on the 1999C bonds is fixed to maturity in
2032, however they become callable in 2013.

In March 2003, the Brazos River Authority issued $44 million aggregate principal amount of pollution
control revenue bonds Series 2003A for TXU Energy. The bonds will bear interest at an annual rate of 6.75%
until the mandatory tender date of April 1, 2013. On April 1, 2013, the bonds will be remarketed. Proceeds
from the issuance of the bonds were used to repay the $44 million priricipal amount of Brazos River Authority
Series 1993 pollution control revenue bonds due June 1, 2023

The pollution control series variable rate debt of TXU Energy requires periodic remarketing. Because TXU
Energy intends to remarket these obligations, and has the ability and intent to refinance if necessary, they have
been classified as long-term debt.
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- Equity-Linked Debt Securities — At December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. had outstanding equity-linked
securities consisting of the following: .

Senior Notes Stock Purchase Contract
‘ Price per share Number of Shares
Annual(1) Annual(1)
Stated Interest Contract
Security Amount Rate Adjustment Minimum. Maximum Minimum Maximum
Issued 2001: . . . ‘
Series K due 2006  $ 500 4.750%(2) 3.650%(3) $45.64 $55.68 8,980,000 10,956,000
Series L due 2007 500 - 5.450%(4) 3.300%(5) $45.64 $55.68 8,980,000 10,956,000
Issued 2002: )
Series M due 2008 449 5.800%(6) 2.325%(7) $51.15 $62.91 6.993,600 8.602.00Q
Total $1.440 : 24,953,600 30,514,000

(1) . Payable quarterly

(2) Payable until August 16, 2004, after which the annual interest rate is expected to be reset in a remarketing

(3)  Applied to the par value of $50, and payable until the stock purchase contract settlement date of November 16, 2004
(4)  Payable until August 16, 2005, after which the annual interest rate is expected to be reset in a remarketing

(5)  Applied to the par value of $25 and payable from November 16, 2004 until November 16, 2005 )
(6)  Expected to be remarketed between November 16, 2005 and February 16, 2006, at which time the rate may change.
(7)  Payable until the stock purchase contract settlement date of May 16, 2006.

Equity-linked debt securities consist of (i) senior notes and (ii) a stock purchase contract that obligates the
holder to purchase TXU Corp. common stock on a future settlement date. The number of shares issuable upon
settlement of stock purchase contracts represents the stated value of the notes divided by an average of the
market price'of TXU Corp. common stack immediately preceding the settlement date. The calculation of shares
issuable is subject to a minimum price, which is typically the market price of common stock at the time of
initial issuance of the equity-linked debt securities, and a maximum price, which includes a premium over the
minimum price that was negotiated in connection with the pricing of the offering.

To the extent the market price of TXU Corp. common stock is below the minimum price on the applicable
settlement date, holders of equity-linked debt securities would be required to purchase TXU Corp. common
stock at a price higher than the market price at that time. The market price of TXU Corp.’s common stock is
currently below the minimum price for the currently outstanding series of equity-linked debt securities.

At the time of issuance of the securities, TXU Corp. recorded a liability for the present value of the contract
adjustment payments with an offsetting reduction to common stock equity. The total maximum number of
shares of TXU Corp. common stock issuable in connection with the stock purchase contracts have been reserved.’

In addition to interest, holders receive contract adjustment payments through the contract settlement dates,
which are generally two years prior to the maturity of the debt securities. On the contract settlement date, the
holder must purchase the common stock at the calculated price, and may elect to participate in a remarketing of
the senior notes to fund such purchase, or settle the purchase contract in cash and continue to hold the senior
notes. If the remarketing of the senior notes is not successful, the holders have the right to put the notes to TXU
Corp. for the calculated number of shares of common stock. ’

TXU Corp. has the right to defer the contract adjustment payments on these equity-linked debt securities,
but any such election would subject TXU Corp. to restrictions on the payment of dividends on and redemption of
outstanding shares of its common stock. TXU Corp. currently has no plans to defer these contract adjustment
payments.

A92




The following equity-linked securities issued in 1998 were settled in 2002 and 2001:

Senior Notes ' Stock Purchase Contract
Stated _ Settled Notes Put - Sr. Notes
Security Amount Date Settled in Cash for Shares Retained Shares Issued
Series E due 2004 $350 ‘August 16, 2002 $100 - $238 T %2 8,365,133

- Series D due 2003 $350 August 16, 2001 $351 ° $— $— 7,488,395

Debt Issuances and Retirements in 2002:

In 2002, TXU Corp. and its consolidated subsidiaries issued $4.6 billion of long-term debt including $2.0
billion of senior secured notes, $1.0 billion of fixed rate debentures, $750 million of exchangeable subordinated
notes, which were exchanged in July 2003 for exchangeable preferred membership interests in TXU Energy,
$440 million of equity-linked debt securities and $327 million of other debt. ‘TXU Corp. retired $3.6 billion of
long-term debt during 2002, including $1.5 billion of floating rate debentures, $1.0 billion of first mortgage
bonds, $200 million putable asset term securities, $109 million of equity-linked debt securities and $768 million
of other debt.

Maturities — Sinking fund and maturity requirements for all long-term debt instruments, excluding capital
lease obligations, in effect at December 31, 2003, were as follows:

Thereafter.........coovivvcenriricniicennans et e e 8,168
Unamortized premium and discount and fair value adjustments ... '
Capital lease ObHZAtONS. .......cooevvieuriirrsieeicereeseemesee s sereeerns rerereverees 13

9. PREFERRED SECURITIES OF SUBSIDIARIES .

Preferred interests of consolidated subsidiaries consist of the following:

Décember 31,
2003 2002

Exchangeable preferred membership interests of TXU Energy, net of
$104 unamortized discount,
Preferred Stock of TXU Gas ......ccooevrveemvenncnivarsceeeseesersssansensecies 75 75

3
[

;
Bk

Exchangeable Preferred Membership Interests of TXU Energy — In July 2003, TXU Energy exercised
its right to exchange its $750 million 9% Exchangeable Subordinated Notes issued in November 2002 and due
November 2012 for exchangeable preferred membership interests with identical economic and other terms. The
preferred membership interests bear distributions at the annual rate of 9% and permit the deferral of such
distributions. The preferred membership interests may be exchanged at the option of the holders, subject to
certain restrictions, at any time for up to approximately 57 million shares of TXU Corp. common stock at an
exchange price of $13.1242 per share. The number of shares of TXU Corp. common stock that may be issuable
upon the exercise of the exchange right is determined by dividing the aggregate liquidation value of preferred
membership interests to be exchanged by the exchange price. The exchange price and the number of shares to
be issued are subject to anti-dilution adjustments. At issuance of the notes that were exchanged for the preferred
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membership interests, TXU Corp. recognized a discount on the securities of $111 million, which represented the
excess of the market value of TXU Corp. common stock on the transaction date over the exchange price applied
to the number of issuable shares. This discount is being amortized to interest expense and related charges over
the term of the securities. As a result, the effective distribution rate on the preferred membership interests is
11.5%. At the time of any exchange of the preferred membership interests for common stock, the unamortized
discount will be proportionately written off as a charge to earnings. If all the membership interests had been
exchanged into'common stock on December 31, 2003, the pre-tax charge would have been $104 million. These
preferred membership interests are considered not to be mandatorily redeemable under SFAS 150 because of the
exchangeability provision.

The original purchasers of the notes that were exchanged for the preferred membership interests were
granted the right to nominate one member to the board of directors of TXU Corp., and such nominee has been
elected to fill a vacancy. The original purchasers forfeit this right if they cease to hold at least 30% of their
original investment in the form of common stock and/or preferred membership interests. In any event, this right
expires on the later of (i) November 2012 or, (ii) the date no membership interests remain outstanding. The
holders of the preferred membership interests are restricted from actions that would increase their control of
TXU Corp. ‘

Preferred Stock of TXU Gas — At December 31, 2003, TXU Gas had 75,000 shares of Adjustable Rate
Series F Preferred Stock outstanding (2,000,000 total shares authorized) which is entitled upon liquidation to the
stated value of $1,000 per share. The preferred stock series is the underlying preferred stock for depositary
shares that were issued to the public. Each depositary share of $25 per share, represents one-fortieth of a share
of underlying preferred stock. The dividend rate is determined quarterly, in advance, based on US Treasury rates
and was 4.61% at December 31, 2003.

Preferred Stock of US Holdings — At December 31, 2003, US Holdings had 379,000 shares of
cumulative, preferred stock without par value outstanding with dividend rates ranging from $4.00 to $5.08 per
share. The preferred stock can be redeemed at prices ranging from $101.70 per share to $112.00 per share. In
July 2003, US Holdings redeemed all of the shares of its $7.98 series, $7.50 series and $7.22 series of preferred
stock, which were not subject to mandatory redemption, and the shares of its $6.98 series of preferred stock
subject to mandatory redemption for an aggregate principal amount of $91 million. In September 2003, US
Holdings called all of its $6.375 mandatorily redeemable preferred stock for redemption, and on October 1, 2003
all of these shares were redeemed for an aggregate principal amount of $7 million.

The holders of preferred stock of TXU Gas and US Holdings have no voting rights except for changes to
the articles of incorporation that would change the rights or preferences of such stock, authorize additional shares
of stock or create an equal or superior class of stock. They have the right to vote for the election of directors
only if certaindividend arrearages exist.
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10. LONG-TERM DEBT HELD BY SUBSIDIARY TRUSTS

Statutory business trusts have been established as wholly-owned financing subsidiaries of TXU Corp. and
TXU Gas. The assets of the trusts consist solely of Junior Subordinated Debentures issued by TXU Corp. or
TXU Gas, and the trusts have issued preferred interests, as presented below:

. Trust Assets (Long-Term Debt of
Trust Preferred Interests TXU Corp. or TXU Gas)

December 31, December 31, December 31, .  December 31,
© 2003 2002 2003 2002
TXU Corp.
Capital I Trust . . .
(9.2 million units of 7.25% Series due 2029)....... 8 223 $ 223 $ 237 $ 237
Capital I Trust  ~ : ' : »
(6.0 million units of 8.70% Series due 2034)......, 145 145 154 154
Total.....cceveiinnnne eSO 368 368 391 391
TXUGas
Capital I Trust
(150 thousand units of Floating Rate Series due ' ‘ »
2028(2) v, e 147 147 155 . 155
TOtRL oot e s sis $_sis $___546 $__546

(a) Interest rate swaps effectively fixed the rate on $100 million and $50 million of the preferred interests at 6.629% and 6.444%,
respecuvely, to July 1, 2003, These swaps were not renewed and the payments are now based on the three-month LIBOR rate plus a
margin of 135 basis points.

TXU Corp. and TXU Gas, as the parent companies, own the subsidiary trusts’ common interests, which are
reported in investments in the balance sheet, and each has effectively issued a full and unconditional guarantee
of its trusts’ preferred interests.

As a result of the adoption of FIN 46 in the fourth quarter of 2003 the subsrdrary trusts have been
deconsolidated. Accordmgly, TXU Corp.’s balance sheet reflects $546 million of long-term debt held by the
trusts and an investment in the trusts of approximately $30 million, instead of the former presentation of $515
million of preferred interests of subsidiaries. The balance sheet at December 31, 2002 also reflects the
deconsolidation. The income statement was unaffected by the deconsolidation.

11. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock Equity — Under Texas law, TXU Corp. may only declare dividends out of surplus, which
is statutorily defined as total shareholders’ equity less the book valué of common stock and preferred stock
(stated capital). The write-off in 2002 of TXU Corp:’s investment in TXU Europe resulted in negative surplus as
of December 31, 2002. Texas law permits, subject to the receipt of shareholder approval, the reclassification of
stated capital into surplus, TXU Corp. received such shareholder approval of this reclassification in a special
meeting of shareholders held February 14, 2003. Surplus at December 31, 2003 was $5.6 billion (reflecting the
$8.0 billion reclassification made in February 2003).

Additional paid-in capital at December 31, 2003 and 2002 includes $111 million related to the discount at
issuance on the 9% Exchangeable Subordinated Notes of TXU Energy. These notes were exchanged into
preferred membershrp interests of TXU Energy in July 2003 (see Note 9) and continue to be exchangeable into
TXU Corp. common stock.
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The Board of Directors of TXU Corp., at its February 2004 meeting, declared a quarterly dividend of
$0.125 a share, payable April 1, 2004, to shareholders of record on March 5, 2004. Future dividends may vary
depending upon TXU Corp.’s profit levels, operating cash flows and capltal requirements as well as financial
and other business conditions existing at the time.

TXU Corp. has a Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment (DRIP) Plan and an employee savings
plan (Thrift Plan) (see Note 11). During 2003, 2002, and 2001, $10 million, $40 million and $12 million in
common stock-of TXU Corp. were allocated to these plans, respectively. Shares are purchased on the open
market or from the LESOP trustee for the Thrift Plan. TXU Corp. has been issuing new shares for the DRIP
since mid-August 2001.

At December 31, 2003, the Thrift Plan had an obligation of $235 million outstanding in the form of a note
that TXU Corp. had purchased from a third-party lender in 1990 and recorded as a reduction to common equity.
The note had been issued in connection with purchases of TXU Corp. common stock on the open market by the
Thrift Plan trustee to satisfy future matching requirements under the Thrift Plan. At December 31, 2003, the
Thrift Plan trustee held 3,868,756 shares of TXU Corp. common stock, valued at $23.72 per share, under the
leveraged employee stock ownership provision of the Thrift Plan. These shares (LESOP Shares) are held by-the
trustee until allocated to Thrift Plan participants when required to meet TXU Corp.’s obligations under terms of
the Thrift Plan. The Thrift Plan uses dividends on the LESOP Shares held and contributions from TXU Corp., if
required, to repay interest and principal on the note. TXU Corp. contributed $25 million in 2003, recorded as a
charge to earnings, to service the note. Allocations of LESOP Shares to participants’ accounts increased
common stock:equity by $4 million in 2003, $8 million in 2002 and $9 million in 2001,

At December 31, 2003, authorized but unissued common shares of TXU Corp. were reserved for issuance
pursuant to the following;

DRIP Plaf ..cc.oocccovrcnccane SO OY ST TRRRN 2,759,578
Thrift Plan (including LESOP) ........ocovecirvcnncnnciine 6,914,596
TXU Corp. long-term incentive compensation plan....... 6,768,437
Equity-linked debt securities............covcoervcenmnicnrrinenniaens " 30,514,000
Exchangeable subordinated membership interests ......... 57,146,340
. — 1026781

105.120.73

- During 2002, TXU Corp. issued a total of 46,800,000 shares in two separate public offerings and also
issued 8,365,133 shares related to equity-linked debt.

During 2001, TXU Corp. had two equity purchase agreements with separate financial institutions to
purchase shares of TXU Corp.’s common stock. In April 2001, TXU Corp. purchased 1,252,500 shares of its
common stock for $44 million under one of the equity purchase agreements. Following that purchase, TXU
Corp. terminated both contracts without purchasing addmonal shares Settlement of these agreements had no
effect on earnings.

Stock-based Compensation Plans — Effective with the 1997 merger of ENSERCH Corporation (now
TXU Gas) and TXU Corp., outstanding options for ENSERCH Corporation common stock were exchanged for
options for 532,913 shares of TXU Corp.’s common stock (TXU Gas Stock Option Plan). At December 31,
2003, 23,674 of these options remained outstanding and exercisable at prices ranging from $20.93 to $28.83 per
share. No further options have been, or will be, granted under this plan.

The Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan is a comprehensive, stock-based incentive compensation
plan, providing for discretionary awards (Awards) of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance units, bonus stock
and other stock-based awards. The maximum number of shares of common stock for which Awards may be
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granted under the plan is 10,000,000, of which 6,654,266 shares remain authorized and available for award.
During 2003, 2002, and 2001, the Board of Directors granted the award of shares of restricted common stock,
which were issued subject to performance and vesting requirements over a two, three or five-year period as
shown below. No stock options have been granted under this Plan.

TXU Australia has an Employee Share Plan, introduced in 2001, which is available to Australia-based
directors and employees of TXU Australia with at least three months of service at the beginning of each six-
month offering period, starting on January 1 and July 1. Employees who elect to participate in this plan enroll
and re-enroll for six-month offer periods, and purchase TXU Corp. common stock at a 15% discount from the
TXU Corp. stock price, based on the lower of the fair market value on the first business day of the offering
period or the fair market value on a nominated date just prior to final contributions for the relevant offering
period. Participants may elect between a tax exempt option or a tax deferred option. At the end of each offering
period, participants may elect to continue, change their contribution amounts or exit the plan. As of December
31, 2003, participants had been granted rights to purchase 28,892 shares of TXU Corp. common stock under the
plan.

At May 19, 2003, participants rights under the TXU Europe Sharesave Plan to purchase TXU Corp. -
Common Stock expired, and all outstanding rights were terminated.
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The following table presents mformatlon about the stock. optlons -and stock grants under various stock
compensation plans at December 31, 2003. :

TXU Long-term
TXU Gas Incentive TXU Australia
Stock Option Compensation Plan Sharesave Plan
Plan : (Stock Grants) (Discount Purchases)
Balance — December 31, 2000...........cc..... 199,370 © 648,700
Granted ... ‘ = Y 593325
e IO (3,165) (40,000)
Exercised........oooovveiirrriireeeesec e (116.755) (32.667)
Balance — December 31, 2001.. 79.450 1,169.358
GIAEA v - 1,002,650 18,065
Lapsed oo (52,105) (277,950) -
EXErcised. ......ccocmvmnenionnireeneceecansennen (1,139) (361,067) _
Balance — December 31, 2002..................... 26206 1,532,991 (18065
Granted - 1,900,600 10,827
Lapsed (2.532) (515,591) -
Exercised - (37.167) —_
Balance — December 31, 2003................... 4 23674 : _2.880.833 28,892
Exercisable/will vest — 2004 .............cccceee, 4,305 407,067 —
Exercisable/will vest — 2005 ........ccooveennne, . 2,343 1,311,566 18,065
Exercisable/will vest — 2006 ........c..cc.ceenne. ‘17,026 1,162,200 © 10,827
Exercisable/will vest — 2007 ..o, — —_— —
Exercisable/will vest — thereafter ................ — — —
Weighted average exercise price — 2003 .
Outstanding — Beginning of year........ 3 2455 — $27.59
Granted .....ccocvoeieiice e $ — — —
Lapsed ..o $ 2508 — —
EXercised.......cconvvieincarnienerees e, $ — — —
Outstanding — End of year................. $ 2450 v — $27.59
Weighted average fair value of awards
granted in:
P40 RO s - S 4412 $ -
- $ 4946 $32.45
$ - $ 1775 $22.90

Compensation expense related to restricted stock issued under the TXU Long-term Incentive Compensation
Plan is measured based on the market price of the stock at the end of the performance period because the number
of shares that will be distributed is not known at the date of grant. Compensation expense must be estimated and
allocated over the performance period, beginning with the period in which it becomes probable that the
performance requirements will be met. Changes in estimates are recorded prospectively. The TXU Long-term
Incentive Compensation Plan increased compensation expense by $9 million in 2001 and by $27 million in 2003
and decreased compensation expense by $17 million in 2002. Had compensation expense for TXU Corp.’s stock
options under the TXU Gas Stock Option Plan, granted to employees in 1992 through 1996, been determined
based upon the fair value methodology prescribed under SFAS 123, TXU Corp.’s net income would not have
been materially different.
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Preference Stock — TXU Corp. has 3,000 shares of Series B preference stock outstanding. The preference
stock has a dividend rate of 7.24% untii June 15, 2005. The dividend rate for subsequent periods will be
determined according to periodic auctions. The Series B preference stock has a liquidation preference of
$100,000 per share. TXU Corp. may not redeem the shares before June 15, 2005. TXU Corp. is authorized to
issue up to 50 million shares of preference stock in one or more series.

Shareholders Rights Plan — In February 1999, the Board of Directors adopted a shareholder rights plan
pursuant to which shareholders were granted rights to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of Series A
Preference Stock (Rights) for each share of TXU Corp.’s common stock held.

In the event that any person acquires more than 15% of TXU Corp.’s outstanding common stock, in a
transaction not approved by the board of directors, the Rights become exercisable, entitling each holder (other
than the acquiring person or group) to purchase that number of shares of securities or other property of TXU
Corp. having a market value equal to two times the exercise price of the Rights. If TXU Corp. were acquired in
a merger or other business combination, each Right would entitle its holder to purchase a number of the
acquiring company’s common shares having a market value of two times the exercise price of the Right. In
either case, TXU Corp.’s Board of Directors may choose to redeem the Rights before they become exercisable.
TXU Corp.’s Board declared a dividend of one Right for each outstanding share of Common Stock. Rights were
distributed to shareholders of record on March 1, 1999.

Dividend Restrictions — Under existing provisions of the TXU Preferred Securities (Preferred Securities),
so long as any Preferred Securities of any series remain outstanding, TXU Corp. shall not declare or pay any
dividend on, or redeem, purchase, acquire or make a liquidation payment with respect to, any of TXU Corp.’s
capital stock, or make any guarantee payments with respect to the foregoing (other than payments under the
guarantee relating to such Preferred Securities) if at such time (a) TXU Corp. shall be in default with respect to
its payment or other obligations under the guaranty relating to such Preferred Securities, (b) there shall have
occurred, and be continuing, a payment default (whether before or after expiration of any grace period) or an
Event of Default under the Preferred Securities, or (¢) TXU Corp. shall have elected to extend any payment
period as provided in the agreement and any such period, or any extension thereof, shall be continuing.

In connection with the issuance of equity-linked debt securities in June-2002 and October 2001 (see Note
8), TXU Corp. is required to make contract adjustment payments to the holders of the equity-linked debt
securities. TXU Corp. has the right to defer the contract adjustment payments, but any such election would
subject TXU Corp. to restrictions on the payment of dividends on and redemption of outstanding shares of
common stock. TXU Corp. has no plans to defer these contract adjustmert payments.

In addition, under borrowing arrangements, TXU Corp. is required to maintain a specified equlty ratio,
which is affected by dividend payments; however, no dividends are presently restricted.

The mortgage of Oncor restricts Oncor’s payment of dividends to the amount of its retained earnings.
Certain other debt instruments and preferred securities of TXU Corp.’s subsidiaries contain provisions that
restrict payment of dividends during any interest or distribution payment deferral period or while any payment
default exists. At December 31, 2003, there were no restrictions on the payment of dividends under these
provisions.

A-99




12. INCOME TAXES
The components of TXU Corp;*s 'provi'sions for income taxes for continuing opérations are as follows:

"Year Ended December 31,

2003 © 2002 2001
Current: .

US Federal......occcccrrusrrerrces OO e T 8291 $ 47 $257
S ST et o 7 41
INOMUS Lttt bbb et 1 _2 _®
TTOAL oottt st et b bR r e n et et b s 303 _i6 _293
7 - 48 (33)
(1) 1 €

27 —20 -2
33 _69 34

22 26 _(23)

8314 $9 $236

Reconciliation of income taxes computed at the US federal statutory rate to provision for income taxes:

Year Ended December 31,
‘ _ 2003 2002 2001
Income from ccsntinuing operations before income taxes, extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles: .
Domestic........... et SE OO OO OO OO TR OUOUOTOTT AURFOPRRORON © $917 $184 $797
NOD-US ..o eoeecenrevevemseerseeeenenmeessmareseonneens e e eeeresereon I oo 134 9 S8
B OO R $1.051 $281 $805
Income taxes at the US federal Statutory 1ate 0f 35% ..o.overeriiieinciien e erereeseeneae $ 368 . $98 $282
Depletion AUOWAIICE oo oese et eeseeenee e ereseesseense s eeseeos e 25) (25) 25)
Amortization of investment tax credits «..........ccoovvvinnninnnceas, OO UP TP OPOT USSR 22) (26) (23)
Amortization (under regulatory accounting) of statutory- rate changes......oocovveriinnen. (8) ‘ (8) ®)
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit...........ccoocoonliti 6 5 25
Amortization of goodwill........cccoieieiiininis Bttt e s - — 11
INONAEAUCHDIE J0SSES ..........orese s veecevcorercrsessesesansreesssessseeevssssssassssssesssessssssmsesssinsosinssens - 53 -
© Other e e e TR S _® 2 _(26)
Provision for INCOME taXES...ovviverirrrriiinriecieseanns OO J— $.314 $9 $236
EffECtiVe taX TAIB........coiiiiiciercrir it et 30% 35% ) 29%

TXU Corp. had net tax benefits from dividend deductions related to LESOP Shares (see Note 11) of $2.7
million and $3.8 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively, which were credited directly to retained earnings.
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Deferred income taxes provided for significant temporary differences based on tax laws in effect at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, balance sheet dates are as follows:

December 31,

2003 : 2002
Total Current Noncurrent  Total Current  Noncurrent

Deferred Tax Assets '

Unamortized investment tax credits .............. $ 164 $ - $ 164 $ 173 $ - $ 173

IMpairment of aSSEtS......... ... vvvrvoerecessnnnnn. 183 - 183 182 - 182

Alternative Minimum tax..........oo.. s vovecevenrns. 613 - - Co613 624 - 624
" Retail clawback fiability ................. oo 61 - -6l 65 - - 65

Employee benefit liabilities 265 6 259 244 5 239

Net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards ....... _ L,516 15 1,501 1,630 14 1,616

NOL valuation allowance..................... s (1,283)- - (1,'283) ’ (1,569) - (1,569)

Nuclear asset retirement obligation ............... 150 - 150 - - -

Excess mitigation credit - - - 60 - 60
' Foreign tax loss ca.rryfowvards 163 - 163 136 - 136

State income taxes ....................................... 7 - 7 4 - 4
 Other . 299 _1o4 195 352 _88 264

Tétal 2138 125 2013 1901 107 1.794
Deferred Tax Liabilities N
. Depreciatign differences and capitalized :

CONSUCTION COSLS......oovevereenraiinaen s 4 544 - 4,544 4,172 - 4,172
Deductions related to TXU Europe ............... 409 - 409 275 - 275
Regulatory assets............. T 616 - 616 615 - 615
State income taxes g 42 . - 42 12 - 12
OheT .o _ 399 _S58 _.341 344 11 _ 327

TOtAl....coovcreeerrcreicnnsr e . 6,010 _58 5952 5418 17 _5401
Net Deferred Tax (Asset) Liability............. $3.872 $(67) $3.939 $3.517 $090) $3.607

December 31,
2003 2002
Net - Net Net - Net . Net Net
Current Current Noncurrent -  Current Current  Noncurrent
. Asset Liability Liability Asset Liability Liability
Summary of Deferred Income Taxes .
US Federal Loo..ecoeerenrncsensesinns $94 $— $3724  §87 $— $3,474
State ..o et ereen et e - - T35 - - 8
AUSIALA ..ovvovereceecees oo - 2 __180 _3 - _125
TTOtAL e e $94 $27 $3.939 $90 3= $3.607

At December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. had $613 million of alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards
(AMT) available to offset future tax payments. The alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards have no
expiration date. At December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. has net operating loss (NOL) carryforwards for U.S. federal
income tax purposes of $4.4 billion that expire as follows: $7 million in 2008, $11 million in 2009, $57 million
in 2010, $129 million in 2011, $32 million in 2012, $3.9 billion in 2022 and $293 million in 2023. The NOL
carryforwards can bé used to offset future taxable income to TXU Corp. TXU Corp. fully expects to utilize all
of its NOL carryforwards prior to their expiration date. TXU Corp. did not utilize any NOL carryforwards in
2003. An NOL valuation allowance of $1.6 ‘billion was established in 2002 for the deduction related to the
worthlessness of TXU Corp.’s investment in TXU Europe (See Note 3 for additional mformatxon) In 2003, the
NOL valuation allowance was adjusted downward to $1.3 billion as a result of the filing of the 2002 federal
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income tax return. At December 31, 2003, TXU Australia had $545 million of tax loss carryforwards that can be
used to offset future taxable income in their respective jurisdictions. These tax loss carryforwards do not have
expiration dates.

The tax effects of the components included in accumulated other comprehensive income for the year ended
December 31, 2003, was a net benefit of $57 million.

TXU Corp.’s income tax returns are subject to examination by applicable tax authorities. The Internal
Revenue Service is currently examining the tax years ended 1993 through 2002. In management’s opinion, an
adequate provision has been made for any future taxes that may be owed as a result of any examination. To the
extent that unfavorable adjustments to income tax accounts of acquired businesses for periods prior to their
acquisition are required as a result of an examination, the adjustment will be charged first to tax reserves and
then to goodwill.

13. RETIREMENT PLANS AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

_ TXU Corp. is the plan sponsor of, and a participating employer in, the TXU Retirement Plan, which
provides benefits to most US employees based on years of service and average earnings. The TXU Retirement
Plan (Retirement Plan), is a defined benefit pension plan qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (Code) and is subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act of 1974, as amended (ERISA). Employees are eligible to participate in the Retirement Plan upon their
completion of one year of service and the attainment of age 21. All benefits are funded by the participating
employers. The Retirement Plan provides benefits to participants under one of two formulas: (i) a cash balance
formula under which participants earn monthly contribution credits based on their compensation and a
combination of their age and years of service, plus monthly interest credits, or (ii) a traditional defined benefit
formula based on years of service and the average earnings of the three years of highest earnings.

All eligible employees hired after January 1, 2002, will participate under the cash balance formula. Certain
employees who, prior to January 1, 2002, participated under the traditional defined benefit formula, continue
their participation under that formula. Under the cash balance formula, future increases in earnings will not
apply to prioriservice costs. It is TXU Corp.’s policy to fund the plans on a current basis to the extent deductible
under existing federal tax regulations. Such contributions, when made, are intended to provide not only for
benefits attributed to service to date, but also those expected to be earned in the future.

In addition, eligible employees of TXU Corp. may participate in a qualified savings plan, the Thrift Plan.
This plan is a participant-directed defined contribution profit sharing plan qualified under Section 401(a) of the
Code, and is:subject to the provisions of ERISA. The Thrift Plan includes an employee stock ownership
component. Under the terms of the Thrift Plan, as amended effective in 2002, employees who do not earn more
than the IRS lthreshold compensation limit used to determine highly compensated employees may contribute,
through pre-tax salary deferrals and/or after-tax payroll deductions, the maximum amount of their regular salary
or wages permitted under law. Employees who earn more than such threshold may contribute from 1% to 16%
of their regular salary or wages. Employer matching contributions are also made in an amount equal to 100% of
the first 6% of employee contributions for employees who are covered under the cash balance formula of the
Retirement Plan, and 75% of the first 6% of employee contributions for employees who are covered under the
traditional defined benefit formula of the Retirement Plan.  Employer matching contributions are invested in
TXU Corp. common stock. TXU Corp.’s contributions to the Thrift Plan, including cash and TXU Corp
common stock aggregated $29 million for 2003, $30 million for 2002, and $16 million for 2001.

Australia Retirement Plans - TXU Australia sponsors various defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans covering the majority of its employees. The assumptions (presented below) related to the
Australian defined benefit plans reflect the local economic environment. The Australia plans’ net periodic
pension costs. included in the table below totaled $4 million in 2003 and $2 million in both 2002 and 2001. At
December 31, 2003, the projected benefit obligation was $119 million and the fair value of plan assets was $102
million. TXU Australia’s contributions to its defined contribution plans were $1.7 million in 2003 and $1.3
million in both 2002 and 2001. Australia has no other postretirement benefit plans.
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Minimum Pension Liability — The minimum pension liability represents the difference between the
excess of the accumulated benefit obligation over the plans’ assets and the liability already recorded. This
additional liability is recorded as a reduction to shareholder’s equity, as a component of accumulated
comprehensive income. Based on the actuarial information at year end 2003 and 2002, an adjustment to the
minimum pension liability for the TXU Corp. US plans of approximately $54 million and $83 million,
respecnvely, net of tax, was recorded. The recording of the liability d1d not affect TXU Corp.’s financial
covenants in any of its credit agreements.

Changes in Assumed Discount Rate — During 2003, TXU Corp. revised the discount rate used to
determine the actuarial benefit obligations to reflect current interest rates. The discount rate of its US plans
declined to 6.25% from 6.75%. In selecting the assumed discount rate, TXU Corp. considered fixed income
security yields for a AA rated portfolio as reported by Moody’s. The revised discount rate applies to both the
pension and other postretirement beneﬁt plans. The effect of the change in TXU Australia’s discount rate in
2003 was not matenal

Year Ended December 31,
. 2003 2002 2001

Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate:

US e e ettt et b es e ete R s et sk e e r e et aresneaenran 6.25% 6.75% 7.50%

AUSIEAIA oo s s eesss et ettt ©550% 5.00% 5.00%
Expected return on pension plan assets

S ettt es e bt e bbb R aR e et e bbb esban et d e ARt e R e eae st e te s anan 8.50% 8.50% 9.00%

AUSHEAHA oottt vt e en s rers e SSTTUSTO PO 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase

US.oierns et b eh Lt e£ b e e LR et e b bt £e s h£a s et bt bbbt e enen 3.95% 395% . 430%

AUSITAHA oo N 400%  4.00% 4.00%
Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31:
Discount rate:

S e b e e s e s b et e bbb b s £ eabb e b et ARt b et s et s te b tobrseon 6.25% 6.75% 7.50%

AUSITAIIA oottt ettt b bttt as bbb bt e e nebne 5.50% 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of compensation increase

S et ba et o ae bbb b b e b et e et ek e bk e ke s s et beran 3.95% 3.95% 4.30%

AUSITALIA e e 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Defined Benefit Plans —Combined information regarding the US and Australia defined benefit pension
plans, based on December 31 measurement dates, follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 . 2002 2001
Components of Net Pension Costs:
SEIVICE COSL.vrvvirnniiniriiiririe e e eceaes et ettt e b s e ae ettt b et re s seenaean $ 53 $ 45 $ 40
Interest COSL.................. . 131 128 121
Expected return On assetS.........ocovrovvvvveereeceorecennone (148) (162) (159)
Amortization of unrecognized net transition asset ... (€3] (¢} -
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost ..... 5 5 5
Amortization of net (gain) 108S ...........cccooverevennene 7 )] (18)
Recognized settlement loss.......... 2 = -
Net Periodic PENSION COSE........vimrcrririercceruieeicarereresnaessieassssanseeessecinsscessecsssssanssasasesssssssas $ 49 § 8 3 _db
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December 31,

2003 2002

Change in Pension Obligation. ) : .

Projected benefit obligation at BEGINMING O YEAT ... .orvreerresierrrrnnssisrsssensssensssaesssessssnrssssssareens . $2,019 $1,771
SEIVICE COSLL...cuniiiiriiiiititt et e sttt e rens 53 45
INEEIESE COSE...ovimiiiiiet ittt st bbb e s 131 128
Participant contributions. 2 2
Plan amendments........ - 6

-Actuarial loss.... 155 148
Benefits paid.......c.ccoecoreeverniionnisiieseirereseersssresssenenes 97) (89)
Currency exchange rate Changes............occcovvererevvriinee 29 8

Projected benefit obligation at end of year $2,292 $2.019

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of Year...........cccovveiiiiiimene i $2.055 $1.794

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of assets at beginning of Year..........ccccooovviiiiniinicie e $1,595 $1,800
Actual return on assets...... 348 (154)
Employer contributions .. . 45 28
Participant CONDULIONS ...........ccorrieieririieciii e eesm e erseseeneersien 2 2
BENefits PAd........ccoooviemiiieniiimiceneriens s ettt e (93) (87)
Currency exchange rate changes... 24 6

Fair value of assets at end Of YEar ..........ccceveieriiinriiinc ettt e ere e te et se e raeaenen $1.921 $1,595

Funded Status: , .

Projected pensidn benefit obligation.............ccoceeeneee SO USSP RO UIPOUSRPPPION $(2,292) $(2,019)

Fair VAIUE OF @SSELS.....c.oureeriecerieieteie et e ssecerieconcceeiecensnsesseeess st eniasesassans st ssesas s essasnssesesesiasses 1,921 1,595

Unrecognized net transition asset 1) 1)

Unrecognized prior service cost..... 29 33

Unrecognized net (gain)/loss ... 287 338

ACCIUEH PEMSION COSL...ovvniiiiiimsieceiricrnriies it e st e n s b en s $__(56 3 _(54)

Amounts Recognized in the Balunce Sheet Consist of:

Accrued benefit Hability ... e $(135) $(208)

INEANGIDIE ASSEL.........c.cveviviiriricerris ittt e sttt cees e e se s et ns ettt ean e naaa b eneni 29 . 10

Accumulated other comprehensive loss. 33 94

Accumulated deferred iNCOME tAKES .......c.erviiriimiieciiiiin s ressins 17 S0
NEt AMOUNUTECOZMZEA .....covvvrveraerecerrcoriaerereranes s isssesssserssesssntsesressesssesesssasnne s snsense $_(56) 3 (54

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the projected benefit obligations exceeded the fair value of plan assets for
all pension plans. ’

Information for Pension Plans with an Accumulated Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets —

December 31,

2003 2002
Projected benefit obligation ...............ocovveereecnncccecnan SO UV OO SOTUUUPOUOTORROI $(1,093) " $(2,019)
Accumulated benefit ObIIZAON .............c.ovevvereeriiere ittt (993) (1,794})
Fair value Of PlAN @SSEIS .....cco.iinmuierrieiieisrernieeeeeieneaeneectrercantes s ies s essaaeserensesenens R, 819 1,595

A-104




-

Asset Allocations - The weighted-average asset allocations of US pension plans at December 31, 2003 and
2002, by asset category are as follows:

) Target Expected
‘ ' Allocation of Plan Assets Allocation Long-term
Asset Type 2003 2002 Ranges Returns
US €QUILY ....ooconirinrercanieicrncevr e sese e censes 52.3% 50.7% 40%-75% 9.3%
International equity .. . 13.1% 11.7% 5%-20% 9.5%
Fixed income........ . 31.2%  36.6% 15%-50% 6.7%
REAL ESLALE.....onereoeceriniemerinse e aerreersssnasocrnecnns 34% ' 1.0% 0%-10% 1.5% -
' -1000% 100.0% —850%

Expected Long-term Rate of Return on Assets Assumption — TXU Corp. considered both historical
returns and future expectations for returns of various asset classes in its determination of the expected long-term
rate of return assumption. A key expectation.is that current interest rates will move towards an equilibrium
interest rate that produces a 6% yield on intermediate government bonds. . Expected returns for other asset
classes are based on incremental returns over such expected government bond yield. The expected return for
each asset class is then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of
return assumption for the portfolio. :

Investment Strategy — The investment objective is to provide a competitive return on the assets in each
plan, while at the same time preserving the value of those assets. The strategy is to invest a third of the assets in
fixed income and two thirds in equity, while maintaining sufficient cash to pay benefits and expenses.

The fixed income assets are diversified by sector and security, are intermediate in duration, and maintain an
average quality rating of at least “A” (as determined by a major ratings agency such as Moody’s). The
allocation to fixed income assets also includes an allocation to_core, income producing real estate through
private, unlevered real estate investment trusts. The equity assets are diversified by size, style and location with
a conservative bias toward value securities.

Contributions in 2004 — Estimated funding in 2004 is $60 million for the pension plan and $55‘million
for the other postretirement benefits plan.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions — In addition to the Retirement Plan and the Thrift Plan,
TXU Corp. offers health care and life insurance benefits to eligible employees and their eligible dependents upon
the retirement of such employees. For employees retiring on or after January 1, 2002, the retiree contributions
required for such coverage vary based on a formula depénding on the retiree’s age and years of service.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Assumptic"ns used to determine net periodic benefit cost: _ ‘ )
DISCOUNE TALE.......eevvvv.eeevereereese e e et . 6.25% 6.75% 7.50%
Expected return on plan assets... 8.01% 8.26% 8.34%

Components of Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Costs:

SEIVICE COSL..evrevuuerrnimsietnsierererisssssesssssas st ebte s ss e bbb bbbt $18 $12 $20
Interest cost......... s et an et e a et 63 63 52
Expected refurn on assets.................... . (15) (16) 16
Amortization of unrecognized net transition obligation ............c..cccovceriiiniicniniccnnin ' ' 4 8 9
Amortization of unrecognized Prior SEIVICE COSE .......co.iivcrmminroircninienserecnins 1 6 2
AMOTtIZAION OF NELI0SS.......viieviceiii ittt eeee e ev et er e eebecaer e ebee s et ertsssaseane s arsataens 29 Al 1
Net postretirement DENEfit COSt..........oieurrimoriinir et eceneressnrenrecnens $100 $84 $68
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December 31,

’ 2003 2002

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31:

Discount rate..... ............................................................................................................ 6.25% 6.75%

Change in Postretirement Benefit Obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of Year............cccccoiiviininninecen 31,156 3 914
SErvice COSt......iveuiimvineiinrinrinenns s s 18 12
INEELEST COSL..coiniiininiiiiriici e et 63 63
Participant CORIIDUHONS ..........c.coevieei e . 11 8
Pan AmMeNAMENTS ..o...oeiveeririeevir e cee st ee et et ee e e s se st eresaeste b e st e b et esaesneereenn ) (270) —
ACTANAT 085S ....vviviiiiii e e I 88 218
Benefits PAId ..........coiiririieiierec et (64) _(59)

Benefit obligation at end of year..........c...cooeciniecnnincines e s $1,002 $1.156

Change in Plan Assets:

Fair value of assets at beginning of year $174 3190
ACHIA] TELUIM 0N ASSEYS ..uveureveceroriacriiereriterieieereesessereeaeessesasresnsssaesesssssasaessssseressereens 29 (14)
Employer contributions..........o..coocovrmieniirenecininnreeicenens et bbbt e 54 47
Participant contributions .. 9 7
Benefits PAid:.......ccovuiiiimeeiiiiini i vt e _(60) _(56)

Fair value of assets at end Of Year............ocooociiininiienie e $206 $174

Funded Status:

Benefit OBGAtion .. ..ccooivveiii $(1,002) $(1,156)

Fair value of assets....... e . 206 174

Unrecognized transition obligation ..........ccccocccoeecnicniccnnonen e 17 81

Unrecognized Prior SEIVICE COSL......cureriiomrriiiercomeieorieniirscecrnesenssesaressasmmeessrssssseessrcs (166) 45

Unrecogmzed NEL 0SS ...t et sb e ens : 549 503

Accrued postretirement Benefit COSL...... ... ‘ 8 _(396) 3 (351

The expected increase in costs of future benefits covered by the postretirement benefit plans is projected
using a health care cost trend rate for pre-65 liabilities of 10% for 2004, decreasing by 1% each year until the
ultimate rate of 5% is reached in 2009. For post-65 liabilities, the rate is 11% for 2004, decreasing by 1% each
year until the ultimate rate of 5% is reached in 2010. A one percentage point increase in the assumed health care
cost trend rate in each future year would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at December
31, 2003, by approximately $119 million and other postretirement benefits cost for 2003 by approximately $12
million. A one percentage point decrease in the assumed health care cost trend rate would decrease the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2003, by approximately $98 million and other
postretirement benefits cost for 2003 by approximately $10 million. '

The accumulated postretirement benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets for the postretirement
benefit plans other than pensions with benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $1.0 billion and $206
million, respectively, as of December 31, 2003, and $1.2 billion and $174 million, respectively, as of December
31, 2002. Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of accrued postretirement benefit liabilities of $396
million and $351 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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TXU Corp.’s other postretirement benefit plan weightéd average asset allocations at December 31, 2003
and 2002, by asset category are as follows:

Allocation of Plan Assets
Asset Type 2003 2002
US CGUILY vt rererieen s 57.9% 55.9%
International equity ... 55% 5.0%
Fixed income..... 35.2% 38.7%
Real estate ...coevinniie e, 1.4% 04%

J1000%  1000%

Expected Long-term

Plan - Returns

401(h) accounts 8.5%

Life Insurance VEBA 8.5%
Union VEBA 8.5%
Non-Union VEBA 5.5%
Insurance Continuation Reserve 6.0%
: - 801%

Investment strategy and the basis used to determine the expected long-term return on asséts for
postretirement benefit plans is similar to that discussed above for the pension plans..

Medicare Act —TXU Corp. elected to immediately réflect the financial impact of the recently enacted
Medicare reform legislation in the accounting for other postretirement benefit costs, resulting in a $1.9 million
reduction in expense in 2003 and a reduction in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation of $142
million in accordance with FSP 106-1. The impact of the Medicare Act on the 2003 net periodic postretirement
benefit cost assumed that TXU Corp. is eligible for and elects to receive the 28% federal subsidy each year
beginning in 2006. No changes in future rates of participation in the TXU Corp. ‘prescription drug plan as a
result of the Medicare Act were assumed. ' The resulting reduction in accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation was recognized on an amortized basis in annual expense as a negative prior service cost. In addition,
the assumed claims costs for Medicare-eligible retiree claims decreased $539 per person from $3,335 per person
to $2,796 per person and for Medicare-eligible spouse claims costs decreased $441 per person from $2,762 per
person to $2,321 per person (presented in whole dollar amounts rather than millions). Regulatory guidance on
the Medicare Act, such as how to determine whether the employer’s prescription drug coverage is actuariaily
equivalent to Medicare Part D, and accounting guidance as to whether the federal subsidy will be treated as a
cash credit that is recognized when received or as an offset to future liabilities that is recognized as a reduction in
the benefit obligation, have not been issued and future guidance could change the accounting recognition.
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14. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and related estimated fair values of TXU Corp.’s significant financial instruments
were as follows: '

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value

On balance sheet assets (labilities):

Long-term debt (including current maturities) (a)(c) $(12,988) $(14,240)  $(11,902) $(11,202)

Long-term debt held by subsidiary trusts ...........cocveeerncninecinceicnas (546) (554) (546) (524)
Exchangeablé preferred membership interests of subsidiary, net of discount(b). (646) (1,580) (639) (750)
Preferred stoék of subsidiary subject to mandatory redemption .......................... ‘ - - 1) (15)
LESOP note receivable (568 NOte 11) ... .ooovvorieceorierreceseeereemeceeeeeeee s ’ 235 280 241 294

Off balance sheet assets (liabilities):
Financial GUATANIEES ........cccorercrmeucurieriumrcresieenmssimmneconstiensueesinnceeressasrsraserenssnssries 2) (10) — 33)

(a) Excludes capital leases.
(b) Exchanged for preferred membership interest in 2003. Amount presented is net of discount.
(c) Includes stock purchase contracts related to equity-linked debt.

In accordance with SFAS 133, financial instruments that are derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet
at fair value. o

The fair values of on balance sheet instruments are estimated at the lesser of either the call price or the
market value as determined by quoted market prices, where available, or, where not available, at the present
value of future cash flows discounted at rates consistent with comparable maturities with similar credit risk.

The fair values of each financial guarantee is based on the difference between the credit spread of the entity
responsible for the underlying obligation and a financial counterparty apphed on a net present value basis, to the
notional amount of the guarantee

The carrying amounts for financial assets classified as current assets and the carrying amounts for financial
liabilities classified as current liabilities approximate fair value due to the short maturity of such instruments.
The fair values of other financial instruments for which carrying amounts and fair values have not been
presented are not materially different than their related carrying amounts.

15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

For derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges, TXU Corp. recognized a net unrealized
ineffectiveness gain of $6 million ($4 million after-tax) in 2003 and a net loss of $41 million ($27 million after-
tax) in 2002. The ineffectiveness gains and losses in 2003 and 2002 related to commodity hedges and were
reported as a component of revenues. In 2001, TXU Corp. experienced net hedge ineffectiveness of $4 million
($3 million after-tax), recorded as $1 million in interest expense and a $5 million ($3 million after-tax) increase
in revenues.

The net effect of unrealized mark-to-market ineffectiveness accounting, which includes the above amounts
as well as the effect of reversing unrealized gains and losses recorded in previous periods to offset realized gains
and losses in the current period, totaled $36 million in net gains in 2003 and $41 million in net losses in 2002.
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The maximum length of time TXU Corp. hedges its exposure to the variability of future cash flows for
forecasted energy-related transactions is approximately four years.

In 2002, TXU Corp. entered into-certain cash flow hedges related to future forecasted interest payments.
These hedges were terminated later in 2002, and $133 million ($86 million after-tax) was recorded as a charge to
other comprehensive income. These losses are being amortized to earnings over a period of up to thirty years, as
the forecasted transactions remain probable of occurring.

Cash flow hedge amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive income will be recognized in
earnings as the related forecasted transactions are settled or are deemed to be no longer probable of occurring.
No amounts were reclassified into earnings in 2003, 2002, or 2001 as a result of the discontinuance of cash flow
hedges because of the probability a hedged forecasted transaction would not occur.

‘As of December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. expects that $84 million ($55‘ million after-tax) in other
comprehensive loss will be recognized in earnings over the next twelve months. This amount represents the
projected value of the hedges over the next twelve months relative to what would be recorded if the hedge
transactions had not been entered into. The amount expected to be reclassified is not a forecasted loss
incremental to normal operations, but rather it demonstrates the extent to which volatility in earnings (which
would otherwise exist) is mitigated through the use of cash flow hedges. The following table summarizes
balances currently recognized in accumulated other comprehensive gain/(loss):

Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Gain/ (Loss)
at December 31, 2003
Energy-related All other Total

Dedesignated hedges (amounts fixed).........ccooevvrveiriiririicnicen, v $  (30) $ (95 $ (125
Hedges subject to market price fluctuations........... an 7 (10)
TOUAL. vttt een s et es e en s s et b ene $__(4D $__(88) $__(133)

16. TEXAS ELECTRIC INDUSTRY RESTRUCTURING
Restructuring Legislation

As a result of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation, on January 1, 2002, TXU Corp. disaggregated
(unbundled) its Texas electric utility business into a power generation company, a retail electric provider (REP)
and a transmission and distribution (electricity delivery) utility. Unbundled electricity delivery utilities within
ERCOQT, such as Oncor, remain regulated by the Commission.

Effective January 1, 2002, REPs affiliated with electricity delivery utilities are required to charge “price-to-
beat” rates established by the Commission to residential and small business customers located in their historical
service territories. TXU Energy, as.a REP affiliated with an electricity delivery utility, may not charge prices to
customers in either of those classes in the historical service territory that are different from the price-to-beat rate,
adjusted for fuel factor changes, until the earlier of January 1, 2005 or the date on which 40% of the electricity
consumed by customers in a class is supplied by competing REPs. Thereafter, TXU Energy may offer rates
different from the price-to-beat rate to customers in that class, but it must also continue to make the price-to-beat
rate available for residential and small business customers until January 1, 2007. Twice a year, TXU Energy
may request that the Commission adjust the fuel factor component of the price-to-beat rate up or down based on
changes in the market price of natural gas. In March and August of 2003, the Commission approved price-to-
beat rate increases requested by TXU Energy.

In December 2003, the Commission found that TXU Energy had met the 40% requirement to be allowed to
offer alternatives to the price-to-beat rate for small business customers in the historical service territory.

Also, effective January 1, 2002, power generation companies affiliated with electricity delivery utilities
may charge unregulated prices in connection with ERCOT wholesale power transactions.
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Regulatory Settlement Plan

On December 31, 2001, US Holdings filed a Settlement Plan with the Commission. It resolved all major
pending issues related to US Holdings’ transition to competition pursuant to the 1999 Restructuring Legislation.
The Settlement Plan does not remove regulatory oversight of Oncor’s business nor does it eliminate TXU
Energy’s price-to-beat rates and related fuel adjustments. The Settlement Plan became final and non-appealable
in January 2003.

The major elements of the Settlement Plan are:

Excess Mitigation Credit — Over the two-year period ended December 31, 2003, Oncor implemented a
stranded cost excess mitigation credit in the amount of $389 million (originally estimated to be $350 million),
plus $26 million in interest, applied as a reduction to delivery rates charged to all REPs, including TXU Energy.
The credit was funded by TXU Energy in the form of a note payable to Oncor.

Regulatory Asset Securitization — US Holdings received a financing order authorizing the issuance of
securitization bonds in the aggregate principal amount of up to $1.3 billion to recover regulatory asset stranded
costs and other qualified costs. Accordingly, Oncor Electric Delivery Transition Bond Company LLC, a
bankruptcy remote financing subsidiary of Oncor, issued an initial $500 million of securitization bonds in 2003,
with terms of up to 12 years, (see Note 8) and is expected to issue approximately $790 million in the first half of
2004. The principal and interest payments of the bonds are recoverable through a delivery fee surcharge
(transition charge) to all REPs, including TXU Energy.

Retail Clawback Credit — The Settlement Plan provides that a retail clawback credit will be implemented
unless 40% of the electricity consumed by residential and small business customers in the historical service
territory is supplied by competing REPs after the first two years of competition. This threshold was reached for
small business customers, as discussed above, but not for residential customers. The amount of the credit is
equal to the number of residential customers retained by TXU Energy in the historical service territory as of
January 1, 2004, less the number of new customers TXU Energy has added outside of the historical service
territory as of January 1, 2004, multiplied by $90. The credit, which will be funded by TXU Energy, will be
applied to delivery fees charged by Oncor to REPs, including TXU Energy, over a two-year period beginning
January 1, 2004. In 2002, TXU Energy recorded a charge to cost of energy sold of $185 million ($120 million
after-tax) to accrue an estimated retail clawback liability. In 2003, TXU Energy reduced the liability to $173
million, with a credit to earnings of $12 million ($8 million after-tax) to reflect the calculation of the estimated
liability applicable only to residential customers in accordance with the Settlement Plan. As the amount of the
credit will be based on numbers of customers over the related two-year period, the liability is subject to further
adjustments.

Stranded Costs and Fuel Cost Recovery — TXU Energy’s stranded costs, not including regulatory assets,
are fixed at zero. US Holdings will not seek to recover its unrecovered fuel costs which existed at December 31,
2001. Also, it will not conduct a final fuel cost reconciliation, which would have covered the period from July
1998 until the beginning of competition in January 2002.

See Note 4 for a discussion of extraordinary charges recorded in 2002 and 2001 in connection Wi_th the
Settlement Plan.

17. INVESTMENT IN TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS

In August 2000, TXU Corp. entered into a transaction whereby it contributed its then wholly-owned
telecommunications business, TXU Communications Ventures Company (TXU Communications), to a newly-
formed holding company (Pinnacle). In exchange for the business, TXU Corp. received $600 million in cash
and a 50% interest in Pinnacle. In connection with the transaction, Pinnacle issued $810 millior of 8.83% senior
secured notes due August 15, 2004. The notes are secured by all of Pinnacle’s assets, including its shares of
TXU Communications. The proceeds from the note issuances (net of transaction costs), combined with $150
million received from the joint venture partner, an unaftiliated business trust, funded the cash distribution to
TXU Corp. and a $336 million distribution to a consolidated trust. The trust’s assets, including principal and

A-110




related interest earned, are used to pay interest on the senior secured notes and, until May 2003, distributions to
the joint venture partner. The trust’s assets consist of TXU Corp. debt securities with a principal amount of $91
million at December 31, 2003. The debt securities issued to the trust are reflected in long-term debt (see Note 8).
Interest expense on the note payable totaled $9 million and $15 million for 2003 and 2002, respectively.. During
2003, TXU Corp. funded Pinnacle’s repurchase of $250 million of the senior secured notes, leaving $560 million
outstanding at December 31, 2003,

As discussed in Note 3, in 2003 TXU Corp: acquired the Jjoint venture-partner’s interest and finalized a plan
to sell TXU Communications. Based on a sales agreement entered into in January 2004, the business is expected
to be sold in the first half of 2004 for $527 million. o

Pinnacle’s results since March 1, 2003 are consolidated and reported in discontinued operations (see Note
3). Results for 2003 prior to its consolidation were a loss of $17 million, reported in other deductions in the
statement of income. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, Pinnacle reported revenues of $215
million and $202 million, respectively, and incurred net losses of $180 million and $106 million, respectively,
due largely to impairments of goodwill and other long-lived assets in 2002 of $75 million after-tax, interest
expense on the senior secured notes and distributions to the joint venture partner. TXU Corp. recorded its equity
in Pinnacle’s losses for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, of $104 million and $53 million,
respectlvely, which is reported in other deductions.

As a result of the impairments of goodwﬂl and long-lived assets recorded by the joint venture in 2002,
TXU Corp. evaluated its potential obligations related to the partnership arrangement. TXU Corp. determined
that it was probable, in light of the decline in value of the business, that an economic loss had occurred, and
accordingly recorded a charge of $150 million (without tax benefit) in 2002, reported in other deductions.

. At December 31, 2002, TXU Corp.’s investment: in Pinnacle was negative $392 million, classified in
noncurrent liabilities and other deferred credits in the balance sheet, which included the effect of the $150
million charge. The $392 million represented TXU Corp.’s potential obligation under the partnership agreement,
including retirement of the $810 million in debt and amounts due the partner, net of estimated value realizable
from the business.

Contingencies Related to Pinnacle - In connection with the Pinnacie debt transaction, TXU Corp. issued
810,000 shares of Mandatorily Convertible Single Reset Preference Stock, Series C (Series C Preference Stock)
to Pinnacle One Share Trust, a consolidated trust (Share Trust). The Series C Preference Stock is convertible
into common stock of TXU Corp. in the event of:

a) adefault by Pinnacle in connection with its senior secured notes,

b) a decline in the market price of TXU Corp. common stock below $21.93 per share for ten
consecutive trading days (the market price has declined below this price) coupled with a decline in
the credit rating for TXU Corp.’s unsecured, senior long-term obligations to or below BB by S&P
or Fitch Ratings (Fitch) or Ba2 by Moody’s, or

" ¢) Pinnacle’s inability to raise sufficient cash to repay its senior secured notes 120 days-prior to

" maturity (August 2004) through the sale of its shares of TXU Communications or the sale of assets

of TXU Communications. : : :

. TXU Corp. would be required to sell equity, use available liquidity or otherwise raise proceeds sufficient to
repay Pinnacle’s senior secured notes. If TXU Corp. did not have available liquidity or raise sufficient proceeds,
the Share Trust could be required to sell some or all of the Series C Preference Stock. The dividend rate and
conversion price of the Series C Preference Stock would be reset at the time of sale to generate proceeds
sufficient to redeem the senior secured notes. The market price of TXU common stock at the time of sale of the
Series C Preference Stock would determine the dilutive impact to common stockholders. TXU Corp. expects
that it will have sufficient liquidity, largely represented by the proceeds from the antlclpated sale of TXU
Communications, to sausfy its contingent obligations to repay Pinnacle’s debt.
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18. COMMITMENTS AND OTHER CONTINGENCIES

Reguest from CFTC ~ In October 2003, TXU Corp. received an informal request for information from the
US Commodity: Futures Trading Commission (CFTC) seeking voluntary production of information concerning
disclosure of price and volume information furnished by TXU Portfolio Management Company LP to energy
industry publications. The request seeks information for the period from January 1, 1999 to the present. TXU
Corp. has cooperated with the CFTC, and is in the process of completing its response to such information
request. TXU Corp. believes that TXU Portfolio Management Company LP has not engaged in any reporting of
price or volume information that would in any way justify any action by the CFTC.

Clean Air Act — The Federal Clean Air Act, as amended (Clean Air Act) includes provisions which,
among other things, place limits on SO, and NO, emissions produced by electricity generation plants. TXU
Energy’s capital requirements have not been significantly affected by the requirements of the Clean Air Act. In
addition, all permits required for the air pollution control provisions of the 1999 Restructuring Legislation have
been applied for and TXU Energy has initiated a construction program to install control equipment to achieve the
required reductions. ’

TXU Australia Environmental Liabilities — Through past acquisitions, TXU Australia holds certain
properties that are contaminated. Liabilities totaling $10 million have been recorded for estimated costs of land
reclamation and site restoration at these properties. These costs may change if the extent of contamination is
different than testing indicated at the time of initial limited reviews. The Australia Environmental Protection
Authority has the power to order TXU Australia to incur such costs to remedy the contamination of land. TXU
Australia also recorded a $7 million liability forland remediation costs for its Torrens Island plant.

Power Purchase Contracts — Certain contracts to purchase electricity provide for capacity payments to
ensure availability and provide for adjustments based on the actual power taken under the contracts. Capacity
payments paid under these contracts for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $230 million,
$296 million and $196 million, respectively.

Expected future capacity payments under existing agreements are estimated as follows:

Gas Contracts — TXU Corp. buys gas under various types of long-term and short-term contracts in the
US and Australia and arranges for gas.storage and transportation under various contracts in order to assure
reliable supply to, and to help meet the expected needs of, its generation plants and its wholesale and retail
customers. Some of these contracts require minimum purchases (“take-or-pay”) of gas under which the buyer
agrees to pay for a minimum quantity of gas in a year. At December 31,.2003, TXU Corp. had estimated annual
minimum commitments under long-term gas purchase contracts covering the periods below:

$502
319
351
270
244
1927
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At December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. had commitments for pipeline transportatlon and storage reservation
fees in the US and Australia as shown i in the table below:

On the basis of TXU Corp.’s current expectations of demand from its electricity and gas customers in each
of these regions as compared with its capacity and take-or-pay payments, management does not consider it likely
that any material payments will become due for electricity and gas not taken beyond capacity payments.

Coal Contracts — TXU Corp. has coal purchase agreements and coal transportation agreements.
Comnutments under these contracts for the next five years and thereafter are as follows

$78

R

Leases — TXU Corp. has entered into operating leases covering various facilities and properties including
generation plant facilities, combustion turbines, transportation equipment, mining equipment, data processing
equipment and office space. Certain of these leases contain renewal and purchase options and residual value
guarantees. Lease costs charged to operating expense totaled $230 million, $227 million and $183 million for
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

As of December 31, 2003, future minimum lease payments under both capital leases and operating leases
(with initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year) were as follows:

Capital ‘Operating

Year . S Leases Leases

‘ ' $ 2 $ 102

2 99

3 86

3 86

2 81

5 505

Total future minimum 16ase PAYMERLS ......cc.. i e eennes 17 8959
LesS amounts representing iMtEIEST ..........o.vceurinvrecrromriiiommsemmsreesissmsnssssssesssresersssrsnessssssen 2
Present value of future minimum 1ease PAYMENts .......c..ccvcevierceienniininsineecersennee . 15
Less current portion:............ecccoieerevcnnurmnnserneees 2
Long-term capital lease obligation $_13

Guarantees — TXU Corp. has entered into contracts that contain guarantees to outside parties that could
require performance or payment under certain conditions. These guarantees have been grouped based on similar
characteristics and are described in detail below. -
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Project development guarantees — In 1990, US Holdings repurchased an electric co-op’s minority
ownership interest in the Comanche Peak nuciear generation plant and assumed the co-op’s indebtedness to the
US government for the facilities. US Holdings is making principal and interest payments to the co-op in an
amount sufficient for the co-op to make payments on its indebtedness. US Holdings guaranteed the co-op’s
payments, and in the event that the co-op fails to make its payments on the indebtedness, the US government
would assume the co-op’s rights under the agreement, and such payments would then be owed directly by US
Holdings. At December 31, 2003, the balance of the indebtedness was $136 million with maturities of principal
and interest extending to December 2021. The indebtedness is secured by a lien on the purchased facilities.

Residual value guarantees in operating leases — TXU Corp. is the lessee under various operating leases,
entered into prior to January 1, 2003 that obligate it to guarantee the residual values of the leased facilities. At
December 31, 2003, the aggregate maximum amount of residual values guaranteed was approximately $286
million with an estimated residual recovery of approximately $172 million. The average life of the lease
portfolio is approximately six years. ‘

Shared saving guarantees — As part of the operations of the strategic retail services business, which TXU
Energy intends to sell, TXU Energy has guaranteed that certain customers will realize specified annual savings
resulting from energy management services it has provided. In aggregate, the average annual savings have
exceeded the annual savings guaranteed. The maximum potential annual payout is approximately $8 million and
the maximum total potential payout is approximately $56 million. The fair value of guarantees issued during the
year ended December 31, 2003 was $1.8 million with a maximum potential payout of $42 million. The average
remaining life of the portfolio is approximately nine years. These guarantees will be transferred or eliminated as
part of expected transactions for the sale of strategic retail services operations.

Letters of credit — TXU Corp. has entered into various agreements that require letters of credit for
financial assurance purposes. Approximately $403 million of letters of credit were outstanding at December 31,
2003 to support existing floating rate pollution control revenue bond debt of approximately $395 million. The
letters of credit are available to fund the payment of such debt obligations. These letters of credit have expiration
dates in 2008. ’

. TXU Energy has outstanding letters of credit in the amount of $37 million to support hedgihg and risk
management margin requirements in the normal course of business. As of December 31, 2003, approximately -
82% of the obligations supported by these letters of credit mature within one year, and substantially all of the
remainder mature in the next six years.

TXU Corp. has an outstanding letter of credit in the amount of $19 million as support for a subordinated
loan to the SEA Gas joint venture pipeline project in Australia. The obligation expires on January 31, 2005.

TXU Australia has outstanding letters of credit in the amount of approximately $100 million, of which $86
million is to iallow for participation in the electricity and gas spot markets, $13 million is to provide credit
support for the shipping of gas and $1 million is for miscellaneous credit support requirements. Although the
average life of these guarantees is for approximately one year, the obligation to provide guarantees is ongoing
based on TXU Australia’s continued participation in the electricity and gas spot markets and its ability to ship
gas on the SEA Gas pipeline.

Surety bonds — TXU Corp. has outstanding surety bonds of approximately $55 million to support
performance under various subsidiary contracts and legal obligations in the normal course of business. The term
of the surety bond obligations is approximately one year. In addition, a $35 million bond has been filed with the
RRC in connection with the state-wide TXU Gas rate case, which is pending approval by the RRC. ‘

Other — US Holdings has entered into contracts with public agencies to purchase cooling water for use in
the generation of electric energy and has agreed, in effect, to guarantee the principal, $12 million at December
31, 2003, and interest on bonds issued by the agencies to finance the reservoirs from which the water is supplied.
The bonds mature at various dates through 2011 and have interest rates ranging from 5.50% to 7%. US Holdings
is required to'make periodic payments equal to such principal and interest, including amounts assumed by a third
party and reimbursed to US Holdings. In addition, US Holdings is obligated to pay certain variable costs of
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operating and maintaining the reservoirs. US Holdings has assigned to a municipality all its contract rights and
obligations in connection with $8 million remaining principal amount of bonds at December 31, 2003, issued for
similar purposes, which had previously been guaranteed by US Holdmgs US Holdings is, however, contingently
liable in the event of default by the municipality.

In 1992, a discontinued engineering and construction business of TXU Gas completed construction of a
plant, the performance of which is warranted by TXU Gas through 2008. The ‘maximum contingent liability
under the guarantee is approximately $103 million. No claims have been asserted under the guarantee and none
are anticipated. :

Income Tax Contingencies — On its US federal income tax return for calendar year 2002, TXU Corp.
claimed a deduction related to the worthlessness of TXU Corp.’s investment in TXU Europe, the tax benefit of
which is estimated to be $983 million (assuming the deduction is sustained on audit). While TXU Corp. believes
that its tax reporting for the TXU Europe ‘write-off was proper, there is a risk that the IRS could challenge TXU
Corp.’s position regarding this deduction. Accordingly, TXU Corp. has not recognized in book income any tax
benefit for the TXU Europe deduction. In the first quarter of 2003, TXU Corp. received a cash refund of $527
million related to the deduction, which may be repaid in the future, with interest, should TXU Corp. not prevail
in its position. This issue is currently under examination by the IRS. At this time, it is uncertain whether the IRS
will challenge TXU Corp.’s position. (Also see Note 3.)

Nuclear Insurance — With regard to liability coverage, the Price-Anderson Act (Act) provides financial
protection for the public in the event of a significant nuclear power plant incident. The Act sets the statutory
limit of public liability for a single nuclear incident at $10.6 billion currently and requires nuclear power plant
operators to provide financial protection for this amount. The Act is being considered by the United States
Congress for modification and extension. The terms of a modification, if any, are not presently known and
therefore TXU Corp. is unable, at this time, to determine any impact it may have on nuclear liability coverage. As
required, TXU Corp. provides this financial protection for a nuclear incident at Comanche Peak resulting in
public bodily injury ‘and property damage through a combination of private insurance and industry-wide
retrospective payment plans. As the first layer of financial protection, TXU Corp. has $300 million of liability
insurance from American Nuclear Insurers (ANI), which provides such insurance on behalf of a major stock
insurance company' pool, Nuclear Energy Liability Insurance Association. The second layer of financial
protection is provided under an industry-wide retrospective payment program called Secondary Financial
Protection (SFP).

Under the SFP, each operating licensed reactor in the US is subject to an assessment of up to $100.6
million, subject to increases for inflation every five years, in the event of a nuclear incident at any nuclear plant
in the US. Assessments are limited to $10 million per operating licensed reactor per year per incident. All
assessments under the SFP are sub_]ect to a 3% insurance premium tax, Wthh is not mcluded in the above
amounts. »

With respect to nuclear decontamination and property damage insurance, NRC regulations require that
nuclear ‘plant license-holders maintain not less than $1.1 billion of such insurance and require the proceeds
thereof to be used to place a plant in a safe and stable condition, to decontaminate it pursuant to a plan submitted
to and approved by the NRC before the proceeds can be used for plant repair or restoration or to provide for
premature decommissioning. TXU Corp. maintains nuclear decontamination and property damage insurance for
Comanche Peak in the amount of $3.4 billion, above which TXU Corp. is self-insured. The primary layer of
coverage of $500 million is provided.by Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL), a nuclear electric utility
industry mutual insurance company. The remaining coverage includes premature decommissioning coverage
and is provided by NEIL in the amount of $2.25 billion and $610 million from other insurance markets and
foreign nuclear insurance pools. TXU Corp. is subject to a maximum annual assessment from NEIL of $26.7
million. ‘
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- TXU Corp. maintains Extra Expense Insurance through NEIL to cover the additional costs of obtaining
replacement power from another source if one or both of the units at Comanche Peak are out of service for more
than twelve weeks as a result of covered direct physical damage. The coverage provides for weekly payments of
$3.5 million for the first fifty-two weeks and $2.8 million for the next 110 weeks for each outage, respectively,
after the initial twelve-week period. The total maximum coverage is $490 million per unit. The coverage
amounts applicable to each unit will be reduced to 80% if both units are out of service at the same time as a
result of the same accident. Under this coverage, TXU Corp. is subject to a maximum annual assessment of $8.6
million.

There have been some revisions made to the nuclear property and nuclear liability insurance policies
regarding the maximum recoveries available for multiple terrorism occurrences. Under the NEIL policies, if
there were multiple terrorism losses occurring within a one-year time frame, NEIL would make available one
industry aggregate limit of $3.24 billion plus any amounts it recovers from other sources up to the limits for each
claimant. If terrorism losses occurred beyond the one-year period, a new set of limits and resources would
apply. Under the ANI liability policy, the liability arising out of terrorist acts will be subject to one industry
aggregate limit of $300 million which could be reinstated at ANI's option depending on prevailing risk
circumstances and the balance in the Industry Credit Rating Plan reserve fund. Under the US Terrorism Risk
Insurance Act of 2002, the US government provides reinsurance with respect to acts of terrorism in the US for
losses caused by an individual or individuals acting on behalf of foreign parties. In such circumstances, the
NEIL and ANIiterrorism aggregates would not apply.

Nuclear Decommissioning — Through December 31, 2001, decommissioning costs were recovered from
consumers based upon a 1992 site-specific study through rates placed in effect under TXU Corp.’s January 1993
rate increase request. Effective January 1, 2002, decommissioning costs are recovered through a tariff charged to
REPs by Oncor based upon a 1997 site-specific study, adjusted for trust fund assets, as a component of delivery
fees effective under TXU Corp.’s 2001 Unbundled Cost of Service filing. Amounts recovered through regulated
rates are deposited in external trust funds (see Note 5 under Investments). With the adoption of FAS 143, the
liability for the decommissioning costs was recorded at discounted net present value.

See Note 1 (under Changes in Accounting Standards) for a discussion of the impact of SFAS 143 on
accounting for nuclear decommissioning costs.

Legal Proceedings — On October 9, 2003, a lawsuit was filed in the Supreme Court of the State of New
York, County of New York, against TXU Corp., by purported beneficial owners of approximately 39% of
certain TXU Corp. equity-linked securities issued in October 2001. The common stock purchase contracts that
are a part of these securities require the holders to purchase TXU Corp. common stock on specified dates in 2004
and 2005 at prices that are above the current market price of TXU Corp. common stock. The plaintiffs seek a
declaratory judgment that (a) a termination event has occurred under the common stock purchase contract as a
result of the administration of TXU Europe and, therefore, that plaintiffs are not required to purchase TXU Corp.
common stock pursuant to the contracts and (b) an event of default has occurred under the indenture for the
senior notes that constitute a part of these equity linked securities. Plaintiffs also seek an injunction requiring
TXU Corp. to give notice that a termination event under the common stock purchase contract has occurred.
TXU Corp. disputes plaintiffs’ allegations and believes that plaintiffs’ interpretation of the common stock
purchase contract and indenture is inconsistent with the clear language of these agreements and is contrary to
applicable law. Therefore, TXU Corp. believes the claims are completely without merit and intends to
vigorously defend the lawsuit. On November 13, 2003, TXU Corp. filed a motion to dismiss the action, and oral
argument was held on January 26, 2004. The court has not yet ruled on the motion, therefore, TXU Corp. is
unable to estimate any possible loss or predict the outcome of this action. .

On July 7, 2003, a lawsuit was filed by Texas Commercial Energy (TCE) in the United States District
Court for the Southern District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division, against TXU Energy and certain of its
subsidiaries, as well as various other wholesale market participants doing business in ERCOT, claiming
generally that defendants engaged in market manipulation, in violation of antitrust and other laws, primarily
during the period of extreme weather conditions in late February 2003. An amended complaint was filed on
February 3, 2004 that joined additional, unaffiliated defendants. Three retail electric providers have filed

A-116




‘

motions for leave to intervene in the action alleging claims substantially identical to TCE’s. In addition,
approximately 25 purported former customers of TCE have filed a motion. to intervene in the action alleging
claims substantially identical to TCE’s, both on their own behalf and on behalf of a putative class of all former
customers’ of TCE. 'TXU Corp. believes that it has not committed any. violation of the antitrust laws and the
Commission’s investigation of the market conditions in late February 2003 has not resulted in any findings
adverse to TXU Energy. Accordingly, TXU Corp. believes that TCE’s and the intervenors’ claims against TXU
Energy and its subsidiary companies are without merit and TXU Energy and its subsidiaries intend to vigorously
defend the lawsuit. TXU Corp. is unable to estimate any possible loss or predict the outcome of this action.

On. April 28, 2003, a lawsuit was filed by a former employee of TXU Portfolio Management in the United
States Distriet Court for the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division, against TXU Corp., TXU Energy and
TXU. Portfolio- Management. Plaintiff asserts claims under Section 806 of Sarbanes-Oxley arising from
plaintiff’s employment termination and claims for breach of contract relating to payment of certain bonuses.
Plaintiff seeks back pay, payment of bonuses and ‘alternatively, reinstatement or future compensation, including
bonuses. TXU Corp. believes the plaintiff’s claims are without merit. The plaintiff was terminated as the result
of a reduction in force, not.as a.reaction to any concerns the plaintiff-had expressed, and plaintiff was not in a
position with. TXU Portfolio Management such that he had knowledge or information that would qualify the
plaintiff-to evaluate TXU Corp.’s financial statements or "assess the adequacy of TXU Corp.’s financial
disclosures. Thus, TXU Corp. does not believe that there is any merit to the plaintiff's claims under Sarbanes-
Oxley. Accordingly, TXU Corp., TXU Energy and TXU Portfolio Management intend to vigorously defend the
litigation .While TXU Corp., TXU Energy and TXU Portfolio Management dispute the plaintiff’s claims, TXU
Corp 1s unable to predrct the outcome of this htlgatxon or the p0551b1e loss in the event of an adverse judgment.

. In November 2002 and February and March 2003, three lawsurts were filed in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Texas asserting claims under. the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
(ERISA) on behalf of a putative class of participants-in and beneficiaries of various employee benefit plans of
TXU Corp. These ERISA lawsuits have been consolidated, and a consolidated complaint was filed on February
3, 2004 against TXU Corp., the directors of TXU Corp., Erle Nye, Peter B. Tinkham, Kirk R. Oliver, Biggs C.
Porter, Diane J. Kubin, Barbara B. Curry and Richard Wistrand. - The plaintiffs seek to represent a class of
participants in such employee benefit plans during the period between April 26, 2001 and July 11, 2002. While
TXU Corp. believes the claims are without merit and intends to vigorously defend the lawsuit, it'is unable to

.estimate any possible loss or predict the outcome of this consolidated action. ‘

On March 10, 2003, a lawsuit was-filed by Kimberly P. Killebrew in the United States District Court for
the Eastern District of Texas, Lufkin Division; against TXU Corp. and TXU Portfolio Management, asserting
generally that defendants engaged in manipulation of the wholesale electric market, in violation of antitrust and
other laws. This case has been transferred to the Beaumont Division of the Eastern District of Texas. This
action is brought by an individual, alleged to be a'retail consumer of electricity, on behalf of herself and as a
proposed representative of a putative class of retail purchasers of electricity that are similarly situated. On
September 15, 2003, defendants filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit and a motion to transfer the case to the
Northern District of  Texas, Dallas Division. TXU Corp. believes that the plaintiff lacks standing to assert any
antitrust claims against TXU Corp. or TXU Portfolio Management, and that defendants have not violated
antitrust laws or other laws.as claimed by the plaintiff. Therefore, TXU Corp. believes that plaintiff’s claims are
without merit and plans to vigorously defend the lawsuit. TXU Corp. is unable to estimate any possible loss or
predlct the outcome of this action. ,

On October 23,2002, a denva'uve lawsmt was ﬁled by a purported shareholder on behalf of TXU Corp. in
the 116™ Judicial District Court of Dallas County, Texas, against TXU Corp., Erle Nye, Michael J. McNally,
David W. Biegler; J.S. Farrington, William M. Griffin, Kerney Laday, Jack E. Little, Margarét N. Maxey, J.E.
Qesterreicher, Charles R. Perry and Herbert H. Richardson. The plaintiff alleges breach of fiduciary duty, abuse
of control, mismanagement, waste of corporate assets, and breach of the duties of loyalty and good faith. The
named -individual defendants are current or former officers and/or directors of TXU Corp. No amount of
damages has been specified. Furthermore, plaintiffs in such suit have failed to make a demand upon the
directors as is required by law, and this case is currently stayed. Therefore, TXU Corp. is unable to estimate any
possible loss or predict the outcome of this action.
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In October, November and December 2002 and January 2003, a number of lawsuits were filed in, removed
to or transferred to the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas against TXU Corp., and
certain of its officers. These lawsuits have all been consolidated and lead plaintiffs have been appointed by the
Court. On July 21, 2003, the lead plaintiffs filed an amended consolidated complaint naming Erle Nye, Michael
J. McNally, V.J. Horgan and Brian N. Dickie and directors Derek C. Bonham, J.S. Farrington,” William M.
Griffin,” Kerney Laday, Jack E. Little, Margaret N. Maxey, J.E. Oesterreicher, Herbert H. Richardson and
Charles R. Perry, as defendants. The plaintiffs seek to represent classes of certain purchasers of TXU Corp.
common stock and equity-linked debt securities during a proposed class period from April 26, 2001 to October
11, 2002. No class or classes have been certified. The complaint alleges violations of the provisions of Sections
10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder,
and Sections 11 and 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (Securities Act), relating to alleged materially
false and misleading statements, including statements in prospectuses related to the offering by TXU Corp. of its
equity-linked debt securities and common stock in May and June 2002. On September 24, 2003, TXU Cotp. and
its officer and director defendants filed a motion to-dismiss to plaintiffs’ Amended Complaint. The plaintiffs
have filed their response to the motion and the defendants have filed their reply brief, however, the court has not
yet ruled on the motion to dismiss. The named individual defendants are current or former officers and/or
directors of TXU Corp While TXU Corp. believes the claims are without merit and intends to v1gorously
defend this lawsuit, it is unable to estimate any pos51ble loss or predlct the outcome of this action. .

Other Contingencies — In October 2003, the former directors and officers of TXU Europe Limited and
subsidiaries that are now in administration (coliectively TXU Europe), who inciude current and former officers
of TXU Corp. and subsidiary companies, received notices from certain creditors and the administrators of TXU
Europe of various claims or potential claims relating to losses incurred by creditors, including claims for alleged
omissions from a securities offering document and alleged breaches by directors of their English law duties-as
directors of these companies in failing to minimize the potential losses to the creditors of TXU Europe. Under
the terms of the indemnification agreements and bylaw. and charter provisions that provide for indemnification of
corporate officers and directors, TXU Corp. or one of its subsidiaries will be obligated to indemnify these
persons from these and similar claims, unless it is determined that the corporate officer’s acts were committed in
bad faith, were the result of active and deliberate dishonesty or that the corporate officer personally gained a
financial profit to which he was not legally entitled. Similar ¢laims have been asserted directly against TXU
Corp., as well. TXU Corp. believes that these claims are without merit and intends to vigorously defend any
such claims if they are ultimately asserted.

Open-Access Transmission — At the state level, the Texas Public Utility Regulatory Act, as amended,
requires owners or operators of transmission facilities'to provide open access wholesale transmission services to
third parties at rates and terms that are non-discriminatory and comparable to the rates and terms of the utility’s
own use of its system. The Commission has adopted rules implementing the state open access requirements for
utilities that are subject to the Commission’s jurisdiction over transmission services, such as Oncor.

On January 3, 2002, the Supreme Court of Texas issued a mandate affirming the judgment of the Court of
Appeals that held that the pricing provisions of the Commission’s open access wholesale transmission rules;
which had mandated the use of a particular rate setting methiodology, were invalid because they exceeded the
statutory authority of the Commission. On January 10, 2002, Reliant Energy Incorporated and the City Public
Service Board of San Antonio each filed lawsuits in the Travis County, Texas, District Court against the
Commission and each of the entities to whom they had made payments for transmission service under the
invalidated pricing rules for the period January 1, 1997, through August 31, 1999, seeking declaratory orders
that, as a result of the application: of the invalid pricing rules, the defendants owe unspecified amounts. US
Holdings and TXU SESCO Company are-named defendants in both suits. Effective as of October 3,.2003, a
global settlement among all parties to these lawsuits was reached. The settlement was not material to TXU
Corp.’s financial position or results of operation, and requires that these suits be dismissed with prejudice.

General — In addition to the above, TXU Corp. and its US and Australian subsidiaries are involved in
various other legal and administrative proceedings in the normal course of business the ultimate resolution of
which, in the opinion of each, should not have a material effect upon their financial position, results of
operations oricash flows.
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'19. SEGMENT INFORMATION

TXU Corp.’s operations are aligned into three reportable segments: Energy, Energy Delivery and Australia.
In October 2002, TXU Corp. discontinued its operations in Europe (see Note 3 to Financial Statements). The
segments are managed separately because they are either strategic business units that offer different products or
services or are geographically differentiated.

Energy - consists of operations of TXU Energy, which are principally in the competitive Texas market,
involving power production (electricity generation), retail and wholesale energy sales and portfolio management,
which includes hedging and risk management activities.

Energy Delivery — consists of operations of Oncor and TXU Gas, which are largely regulated, involving
the transmission and distribution of electricity and the purchase, transportation, dlsmbutlon and sale of natural
gas in Texas.

Australia — consists of operations, principally in Victoria and South Australia, involving the generation of
electricity, wholesale sales of energy, retail energy sales and services in largely competitive markets, portfolio
management and gas storage, as well as regulated electricity and gas distribution.

Corporate and Other - Remaining non-segment operations consisting primarily of general corporate
expenses, equity earnings or losses of unconsolidated affiliates and interest on debt at the TXU Corp. level.

The 2001 financial information for the Energy segment and the electricity delivery operations included in
the Energy Delivery segment includes information derived from the historical financial statements of US
Holdings. Reasonable allocation methodologies were used to disaggregate the financial statements of US
Holdings between its generation and electricity delivery operations. Allocation of revenues reflected
consideration of return on invested capital, which continues to be regulated for the electricity delivery
operations. US Holdings maintained expense accounts for each of its component operations. Costs of energy
sold, operating costs and depreciation and amortization, as well as assets, such as property, plant and equipment,
materials and supplies and fuel, were specifically identified by component operation and disaggregated. Various
allocation methodologies were used to disaggregate common expenses, assets and liabilities between US
Holdings’ generation and electricity delivery operations. Further, certain financial information was deemed to
be not reasonably allocable because of the changed nature of TXU Energy’s and Oncor’s operations subsequent
to the opening of the market to competition, as compared to US Holdings' previous operations. Such activities
and related financial information consisted primarily of costs related to retail customer support activities,
including billing and related bad debts expense, as well as regulated revenues associated with these costs.
Financial information related to these activities was reported in electricity delivery results of operations for the
2001 period. Interest and other financing costs were determined based upon debt allocated. Allocations
reflected in the financial information for 2001 did not necessarily result in amounts reported in individual line
items that are comparable to actual results in 2002 and 2003. Had the unbundled operations of US Holdings
actually existed as separate entities in-a deregulated environment, their results of operations could have differed
materially from those included in the historical financial statements included herein.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. TXU Corp. evaluates performance based on income from continuing operations before
extraordinary items and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles. TXU Corp. accounts for
_intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, that is, at current market prices.

Certain of the business segments provide services or sell products to one or more of the other segments.
Such sales are made at prices comparable with those received from nonaffiliated customers for similar products
or services. No customer provided more than 10% of consolidated revenues.

Effective with reporting for 2003, results for the Energy segment exclude expenses incurred by the US

Holdings parent company in order to present the segment on the same basis as the results of the business are
evaluated by management. Prior year amounts are presented on this revised basis.
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Enpergy
Energy Delivery
Operating Revenues
2003 oo $7,995  §3,429
2002 oo, 7691 2973
P20 7404 3542
— 3,429
—_ 2,973
7,044 3,542
24 1,505
40 1,605
8 1,767
Depreciationiand Amortization — Including
Goodwill Amortization
409 372
450 332
409 313.
Equity in Earnings (Losses) of
- Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
(1) —
(2) 2
2001 s ) —
Interest Income :
2003 oo 8 54
2002 e SR 10
2001 .o 38 19
Interest Expense and Other Charges S
2003 oo 323 346
2002 /1o 215 331
2000 e 224 347
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) :
2003 s ©229 146
2002 ..o 117 110
2001 .ot 242 12§
Income from Continuing Operations
Before Extraordinary Loss and Cumulative Effect -
Of Changes in Accounting Principles
2003 .o 493 299
2002 .o ' 319 228
P10} SOOI ' s7T 225
1 —
3. —
7 —
Total Assets )
14,609 11,602
15,807 11,329
18205 13,729
163 658
285 621
327 825
’?Assets by segment exclude investments in affiliates.
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Discontinued  Corp.
Operations and
Australia Europe Other _ Eliminations

$1,103 $— $15 $(1,534)

860 — 17 (1,645)

700 — 20 (1,776)

112 — — —

76 — —_ —

65 — — —

— —_ 5 (1,534)

—_ —_ - (1,645)

- —_ 1 (1,776)

86 — 19 —

67 — 19 —

79 —_— 23 —

- - (10) _

— —_— (105) —

_ —_ (49) —

5 — 72 (95)

1 — 90 (118)

— — 86 61)
151 — 250 95)

129 _ 324 117y

126 — 329 (61)

28 —_ (89) —

19 — (147) —

3 — (134) —

102 — (157) —

74 — (439) —

19 — (252) -

65 — 1 —

31 —_ (391) —

— — (130). —

4,272 — 3,522 (2,319)

3,297 — 4,059 (3,087)

2,703 14,875 3,040 (9,954)

120 — 15 —

82 — 15 —

65 — 26 —

Consolidated

$11,008
9,896
9,890

3,541
3,049
10,651

886
868
824

(1
(105)
(53)

31
82

975
882
965

314
99
236

37
182
569

67
(357)
(123)

31,686
31,405
42,598

956
1,003
1,243




20. . SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION .

Regulated Versus Unregulated 0peratwns —

. ) ) Year Ended December 31, .

2003 2002 2001

Operating revenues o o
. REGUIBEG .......ovoveorvenciretriarean ot ssesesesssssssensseesreseerins $ 3,541 $ 3,049  $10,651
: " 9,001 8,492 1,015
(1,507 (1,607) (1,771)
{ Qn (38) (&1}
Total Operating revenles .........o...ccevmvceernrcenrinreerersinerecens : _11,008 _9.896 9890
Costs and operating expenses : . ‘
Cost of energy sold and delivery fees — regulated™®....................... 817 517 3,775
Cost of energy sold and delivery fees - unregulated* .................... 4,130 3,570 359
Operating costs — regulated.................ooovvvrevvrerirenrones 901 842 1,454
Operating costs — unregulated 764 750 36
Depreciation and amortization, other than goodwill - regulated.... 431 378 722
Depreciation and amortization, other than goodwill — unregulated 455 490 59
Selling, general and administrative expenses — regulated............... 312 319 431
Selling, general and administrative expenses - unregulated. .“ 79 894 509
Franchise and revenue-based taxes — regulated................. . 316 1322 509
Franchise and revenue-based taxes — unregulated.. 140 156 20
Goodwill amortization — regurlated.........ccovevrerrrerninnerninnrenen. - - 10
Goodwill amortization — unregulated...............oo....... R - - 33
Oher INCOME .....ovvveernriereererins ' (82) (51 (46)
Other déductions .. 46 577 331
- Interest income.....: (44) 31 (82)
Interest expense and other charges 975 882 965
. Total costs and eXPenses............ovvoovricvvvcisnvriinisnnssisnn. 9.957 9.615 9,085
Income from continuing operations before income taxes, extraordinary
loss and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles............ $ 1051 g 281 $ 805

*Includes cost of fuel consumed of $1,523 million (unregulated) in 2003, $1,378 million (unregulated) in 2002 and $1,900 miltion (largely
regulated) in 2001, respectively. The balance represents energy purchased for resale and delivery fees.

_ The operauons of the Energy segment are included above as unregulated as the Texas market is now open to
competmon However, retail pricing to residential customers in the historical service territory continues to be

subject to certain price controls as discussed in Note 16.

Other Income and Deductions —

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 - 2001
Other income : -
Net gain on sale of properties and busmesses ................................ $ 46 $ 35 $ 9
" Unrealized foréign exchange gain on Austrahan dollar
" denominated note receivable...l. 23 - -
Equity portion of allowance for funds used during construction.... S 3 4
Settlement of legal proceedings related to a gas contract............... - - 18
3 13 15
3 82 $ 351 3 __46
Other deductions - . . : .
Loss on sale of propemes ............................................................... $ 3 $ 3 $ 12
Equity losses of unconsolidated subsidiaries.. 17 105 54
Loss related to telecommunications parthership. - 150 -

Loss on retirement of debt ......... [RRTPR 4 63 ' 149

Regulatory asset write-off ..........coeeviirinrccen - - 95
Asset impairment-generation construction projects .. - 237 -
Expenses related to impaired construction projects............coo.coovene. 6 1 7
Premium on redemption of preferred SLOCK oo ‘ 3 - -
OHhET B e 3 12 14

§__ 46 $ 577 $ 331

Credit Risk — Credit risk relates to the risk of loss associated with non-performance by counterparties. TXU
Corp. maintains credit risk policies with regard to its counterparties to minimize overall credit risk. These policies
require an evaluation of a potential counterparty’s financial condition, credit rating, and other quantitative and
qualitative credit criteria and specify authorized risk mitigation tools, including but not limited to use of
standardized agreements that allow for netting of positive and negative exposures associated with a single
counterparty. TXU Corp. has standardized documented processes for monitoring and managing its credit exposure,
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including methodologies to analyze counterparties’ financial strength, measurement of current and potential future
credit exposures and standardized contract language that provides rights for netting and set-off. Credit
enhancements such as parental guarantees, letters of credit, surety bonds and margin deposits are also utilized. -
Additionally, individual counterparties and credit portfolios are managed to preset limits and stress tested to assess
potential credit exposure. This evaluation results in establishing credit limits or collateral requirements prior to
entering into an agreement with a counterparty that creates credit exposure to TXU Corp. Additionally, TXU Corp.
has established controls to determine and monitor the appropriateness of these limits on an ongoing basis. Any
prospective material adverse change in the payment history or financial condition of a counterparty or downgrade of
its credit quality will result in the reassessment of the credit limit with that counterparty. This process can result in
the subsequent reduction of the credit limit or a request for additional financial assurances.

Gross Credit Exposure — TXU Corp.’s regional gross exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2003, is as
follows:

Region Credit Exposure
USeeeroremeeeseesesseeeseessesesessren $2,274
AUSEEHA ..o 539
Consolidated...........ovecorneveerreerrenrenren. $2.813

TXU Corp.’s gross exposure to credit risk represents trade accounts receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts receivable of $60 million), as well as commodity contract assets and other derivative assets
that arise primarily from hedging activities. Credit is coordinated between regions to reduce exposure on a
consolidated basis, to provide transparency between regions with respect to economic, regulatory, weather and other
conditions, and to communicate objectives and processes through various risk committees and forums, .

A large share of gross assets subject to credit risk represents accounts receivable from the retail sale of
electricity and gas to residential and small business customers. The risk of material loss (after consideration of
allowances) from non-performance by these customers is unlikely based upon historical experience. Allowances for
uncollectible accounts receivable are established for the potential loss from non-payment by these customers based
on historical experience and market or operational conditions. In addition, Oncor has exposure to credit risk as a
result of non-performance by nonaffiliated REPs.

Most of the remaining trade accounts receivable are with large business customers and hedging counterparties.
These counterparties include major energy companies, financial institutions, gas and electric utilities, independent
power producers, oil and gas producers and energy trading companies.

The exposure to credit risk from these customers and counterparties, excluding credit collateral, as of December
31, 2003, is $1:3 billion net of standardized master netting contracts and agreements that provide the right of offset
of positive and negative credit exposures with individual customers and counterparties. When considering collateral
currently held by TXU Corp. (cash, letters of credit and other security interests), the net credit exposure is $1.0
billion. Of this amount, approximately 87% of the associated exposure is with investment grade customers and
counterparties, as determined using publicly available information including major rating agencies’ published ratings
and TXU Corp.’s internal credit evaluation process. Those customers and counterparties without an S&P rating of at
least BBB- or similar rating from another major rating agency are rated using internal credit methodologies and
credit scoring models to estimate an S&P equivalent rating. TXU Corp. routinely monitors and manages its credit
exposure to these customers and counterparties on this basis. ‘

TXU Corp. had no exposure to any one customer or counterparty greater than 10% of the net exposure of $1.0
billion at December 31, 2003. Additionally, approximately 67% of the credit exposure, net of collateral held, has a
maturity date of two years or less. TXU Corp. does not anticipate any material adverse effect on its financial
position or results of operations as a result of non-performance by any customer or counterparty.
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Interest Expense and Related Charges —

Year Ended December 31,
2003 ’ 2002 2001
TOEEESE cccovvvvveveveerceslcermsesesssssesssses e sss st s snsss s e e $ 901 $ 808 $ 835
Interest on long-term debt held by SUbSIAIALY trUST .......covrvceerrecercrrsceroens 38 40 101
Preferred stock dividends Of SUBSIQHALIES .......c......rversecrrerssrrvrernn S 9 13 14
Amortization of debt discounts, premiums and issuance cost 39 33 36
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction
and capitalized INterESE ... eeecerreerined e e eeeeeseessoneraen 1z an 21
Total interest expense and other related Charges........cocccmmcceirereaneces 3 975 $_882 £ 965
FIN 46 and SFAS 150 have affected the balance sheet presentation of mandatorily redeemable securities.
However, there has been no -effect on the presentation of related interest charges on the income statement as the
effect was not material.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities —

December 31,
2003 2002
Regulatory Assets )
Generation-related regulatory assets recoverable by securitization bonds.........c.ccoevvinnicniinnnne $1,654 $1,652
Securities reaCQUISIHON COSLS ...........overrriiricemnirnee et re e cre st seeabsesse e res s nsebesessensens 121 124
Recoverable deferred INCOME tAXES — NEL......corivieriirriirrrininiisiin e bbb s 96 76
Other TEZUIALOTY GSSELS..covevivrerienrririer e ree ettt e se e e b e b s s s s ve e s sa e eba e 207 21
Total regulatory assets 2078 _2.069
Regulatory Liabilities
Liability related t0 excess mitigation CIEdIt ... ...ccoiiimiiiiiciire e iaens e ensasectsos - 170
Asset retirement obligations — remMOVal COST ..c.iciienviiciinin e 129 118
Investment tax credit and protected excess deferred taXes ... .ot 89 99
OBRET ...ttt e et bbb bbbt 23 28
Total regulatory Habilities............coc.cvervivereinicienieiesres et sn e sennen 241 415
INEE TEGUIBLOLY ASSELS ... cvsceerecesireceririeres e s ceesatae e e e sseten e resben st e bicons s bonss s $1.837 $1.654

Included in net regulatory assets are assets of $1.9 billion.and $1.8 billion at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, that were not earning a return. These amounts consist primarily of the. assets recoverable through the
issuance of securitization bonds, which will be amortized to expense over the term of the bonds. (See Note 16). All
other regulatory assets have a remaining recovery period of 13 to 47 years.

Included in other regulatory assets as of December 31, 2003 was $29 million related to nuclear
decommissioning liabilities.

Restricted Cash — At December 31, 2003, TXU Corp. had a $525 million .investment in LOC Trust,
accounted for as restricted cash, representing collateral to support a new $500 million credit facility (see Note 7).
The remaining restricted cash reported in investments on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2003 included $44
million held as collateral for letters of credit issued and $13 million principally related to payment of fees associated
with the securitization bonds. At December 31, 2003, the Oncor Electric Delivery Transition Bond Company LLC
had $12 million of restricted cash, représenting collections from customers, that secure its securitization bonds and
may be used only to service its debt and pay its expenses. As of December 31, 2003, all of the restricted cash of
$210 million from the net proceeds of Oncor’s issuance of senior secured notes in December 2002 had been used to
pay the interest and principal of Oncor’s first mortgage bonds due March 1 and April 1, 2003.
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Related Party Transactions — See discussion in Note 5 under “Investments in Unconsolidated Entities.”

Accounts Receivable — At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, accounts receivable of $1.4 billion
and $1.7 billion are stated net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $60 million and $82 million, respectively.
During 2003, bad debt expense was $133 million, account write-offs were $142 million and other activity decreased
the allowance for uncollectible accounts by $13 million. During 2002, bad debt expense was $168 million, account
write-offs were $123 million and other activity increased the allowance for uncollectible accounts by $3 million.
Allowances related to receivables sold are reported in cuitent hablhtles and totaled $42 million and $20 million at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Accounts receivable included $625 million and $644 million of unbilled revenues at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. L

Commodity Contracts — At December 31, 2003 and 2002, current and noncurrent commodity contract assets
totaling $1.3 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively, are stated net of applicable credit (collection) and performance
reserves totaling $18 million and $44 million, respectively. Performance reserves are provided for direct,
incremental costs to settle the contracts.

Inventories by Major Category —

December 31,

2003 2002

Materials and supplies $ 269 %2719
FUEL STOCK. ...ttt e : 08 . . 91
Gas stored Underground..........c.ceeovveerveonseieness s s sseseesssens 222 175
TOtAl INVEILOTIES ..v.ecevavevenirieieii ettt cerrren et ce et enasen ‘ 8 .599 : $ 543

Inventories reflect a $22 million reduction as a result of the rescission of EITF 98-10 as discussed in Note 1.

Property, Plant and Equipment —

December 31,

2003 2002
Energy: . } .
GENELALION. .....oveiiiri et iee ettt e sesn e U SR OT U POOPT . $15900 $15,675
Nuclear fuel (net of accumulated amortization of $934 and $847) 131 137
OB GSSELS ... ceiriciritreri e reerrerese e s cambee b eera et e s st na st ab ket saaseseanensanenasnansssesestobannasgesnins 739 . 460
Energy Delivery:
TransSmiSSION — ElECITICITY .....cvovviverriririislieeresiessscsnsnee s et ae st se s essessesas e siaseesaressensces . 2,349 2,176
Distribution — leCtIiCItY....cc.veer it ettt 6,676 . 6,376
Gas distribution and pipeline.... L 1,883 1,782
OHRETIASSEIS ..o et vb e et bbb e s as bbb e s sanais 506 483
Corporate ANA OTHEL.......cc..eiieniieniicreecrrcne et it s et ss e saete s esesas b es st caa b cae e nescamsrenaseseasasesserraees 202 182
Total...ocoocrenee et e b ekt R e ke CR R ARt At ekt 28,386 - 27,271
Less accumiulated depreCiation. ....... ..ot eicstenstsesirc st saes s sessornasstasne 10,303 - 9.503
Net of accumulated depreciation.. 18,083 17,768
ConStruction WOIK il PTOZTESS . .....ccveiarviirmieerreiiienirieecreseeaeesessrersinessacerasensesenssessnssessenss i - 441 434
Net US property, plant and equipment ..........ccoeeercorercricnnerancnecnnns FTOOURORRURN 18,524 18,202
Australia: ' e !
Electric and gas distribution and generation (net of accumulated depremauon . ‘
of $597 and $369) ... ' 239 1779
" Net property, plant and equipment $20920 319981
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As of December 31,2003, substantially all of Oncor’s electric utility property, plant and equipment fwith a net
book value of $6.3.billion) is pledged as collateral on Oncor’s first mortgage bonds and senior secured notes.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information —
- Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Cash payments (receipts):
Interest (net of amounts capitalized) ......c..c.coovieiiviiniinnic s $ 884 $ 813 $ 971

INCOIME TAXES ..vovvvvvecreriiieriesesceressinis st essreessstesse e ssebssess s ss st snsssnsasresenaas $. (597 s an $ 130
Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Note receivable from sale Of SSELS .....cc.vvrrercrereiiniiirrccieens s $ - $ - $ 186
EQUity purchase COMITACES .......ovveeciviirrerreriseecneniseecne e coriesnrssssiennsiesneas $ - $ - - $(190)
Equity-linked securities surrendered to meet obligations under related

common stock purchase contracts ..............ccocovveivinienicnrcceiiie e $ - $ 238 3 -
Discount related to exchangeable preferred membership interests recorded

10 Paid-In-CaPIal............cooviirrccrmresrccnn e e _ ' 3. - $ 1Y $ -

The consolidation of Pinnacle was a noncash activity.
See Note 2 for the effects of adopting“SFAS 143, which were noncash in nature.

See Note 9 for discussion of the exchange of TXU Energy subordinated notes for preferred membership
interests, which was a noncash transaction. .

Quarterly Information (unaudited) — The results of operations by quarter are summarized below and reflect
the discontinuance of the telecommunications, Mexico and strategic retail service businesses operations
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In the opinion of TXU Corp., all other adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a
fair statement of such amounts have been made. Quarterly results are not necessarily indicative of a full year's
operations because of seasonal and other factors.

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
2003:
OPEIatiNg TEVENUES ....cvvviviisivienmniancisissstess s crnasise s sebs st abas et sns $ 2,760 $ 2,617 $ 3,104 $ 2,527
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles $ 115 $ 178 $ 372 $ 72
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect............cooevivvninn $ 12 $ (6D $ 25 3 43
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of tax benefit ................ $ (58) s - $ - .3 -
Net income before preference stock dividends ..o, $ 45 $ 111 $ 397 $ 29
Net income available for common StOCK ... $ 40 $ 105 $ 392 $ 23
Basic per share of common stock: :
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles after provision for preference dividends................... $ 34 $ 54 $ 114 $ 20
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect $ (04 $ (2D $ .08 $  (13)
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of tax benefit ......... $ G 17) $ - $ - $ -
Net income available for COMMON SIOCK .....vcvrivviriveerimriinennernieeeriensessreceses $ 13 $ 33 $ 122 $ .07
Diluted per share of common stock:
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles after provision for preference dividends.................... $ 34 $ 49 $ Lot $ .20
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect .........cooceerveevries 3 (04 $ (.18) $ .06 $  (13)
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles, net of tax benefit ......... $ D $ - $8 - $ -
Net income available for cOmmON SEOCK .....vvvevecrrie s $ .13 $ 31 $ 107 $ 0
2002:
OPETALING TEVEMUES .....rrreeoreeeoesrvcossoersoooseeessoeeseess e seess s $ 2421 $ 2471 $ 2,887 $ 2,117
Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting pAnciples............cccovcvvcrviriinnvin, $ 261 $ 192 $ 270 $ (541)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect............c.coecneiinne $ 6) 3 9 $ 59 $ (4,202)
Extraordinary 10ss, net of tax effect ..c......o.oviicmvvcrrrrcmmivenmirnninnrenscneccsneniens s 3 - 8 - $ - $ (139)
Net income (loss) before preference stock dividends.........cocoovnccnnicnicrincne $ 255 $ 201 $ 211 $ (4,877)
Net income (loss) lavailable for cOmMmON S1OCK .......cooiricrinenreneiirirneeeeer e $ 250 $ 195 $ 206 $ (4,883)
Basic per share oficommon stock:
Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary loss after
provisioni for preference dividends ... $ 97 $ .70 $ 94 $ (1.84)
Income (loss)|from discontinued operations, net of tax effect ..........c..cccovveneee $ (02 $ 03 $ (21 $ (14.15)
Extraordinary 10ss, net of tax effect .......c.ccvriiriceiinnienenencmesiieenins $ - $8 - $ - $ (45
Net income (loss) available for common StOCK...........ovoveveierreviimeicniererereeeennens $ 95 $ 73 $ 73 $ (16.44)
Diluted per share of common stock:
Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary loss after
provision for preference dividends $ 9 $ 69 $ % $ (1.84)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect .......ccoo..coevrievree. $ (02 $ .03 $ (21 $ (14.15)
Extraordinary 108s, net of taX €ffECt .......c.vvirrcorinmmiccicnneesrerinrecerssamcceresenes $ - $ - $ - $ (45
Net income (loss) available for common stock.. .....coooioinvniciicnecniceneane $ A $ 2 $ 73 $ (16.44)
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Included in fourth quarter 2003 income from discontinued operations were impairment and other exit charges
totaling $30 million ($20 million after-tax). Included in fourth quarter 2002 results of continuing operations were a
$185 million ($120 million after-tax) accrual for regulatory-related retail clawback $187 million ($174 million after-
tax) in impairment charges related to the telecommunications investments, and a $237 million ($154 million after-
tax) writedown of an investment in generation plant construction projects. (See Notes 3 and 16.)

Reconciliation of Previously Reported Quarterly Information — The following table presents the changes to
previously reported quarterly amounts, to reflect discontinued operations (see Note 3). Net income was not affected
by these changes.

Quarter Ended
March 31 June30  Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Increase (Decrease) from Previously Reported
2003: i
Revenues —~ from discontinued operations .........cc...ccovenrvcrveren. e $ (55) $ (55) $ (32) $ -

Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary loss and
cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles $ 9 % 1 3 m $ -

$ ®» $ O $ 1 & -

income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax effect ........

2002:
Revenues — from discontinued OPEIALONS. ....coivvreci et $ 32). $ G4 - 8. @3B $ 4D
Income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary loss

and cumulative effect of changes in accounting principles
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax effect ............... RO $ 4)

A%

14 ay % (s

]
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S Exhibit 31(a)
TXU CORP. ‘
Certificate Pursuant to Section 302
of Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002
CERTIFICATION OF CEO

I, C. John Wilder, President and Chief Executive of TXU Corp., certify thaf:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TXU Corp.;

Based on my khbwledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or

. omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this -
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash '
flows of thé registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
for the registrant and have:

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls.and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

s a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2004 : /s/ C. John Wilder _

Signature: C. John Wilder
Title: President and Chief Executive




Exhibit 31(b)
TXU CORP.
Certificate Pursuant to Section 302
of Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002
CERTIFICATION OF CFO

I, H. Dan Farell, Executivé Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of TXU Corp., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TXU Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
for the registrant and have: ‘

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared; :

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this repert our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and '

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2004 /s/ H. Dan Farell
Signature: H. Dan Farell
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32(a)

TXU CORP.
Certificate Pursuant to Section 906
of Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002
CERTIFICATION OF CEO

The :undersigned, C. John Wilder, President and Chief Executive of TXU Corp. (the
“Company”), DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this instrument to be
executed this 12th day of March, 2004.

/s/ C. John Wilder
Name: C. John Wilder
Title; President and Chief Executive

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to TXU Corp. and will be
retained by TXU Corp. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




Exhibit 32(b)

TXU CORP.
Certificate Pursuant to Section 906
of Sarbanes — Oxley Act of 2002
CERTIFICATION OF CFO

. The undersigned, H. Dan Farell, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of TXU Corp. (the “Company”), DOES HEREBY CERTIFY that:

1. The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2003 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. Information contained in the Report fairly pr'esents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

IN ‘WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has caused this instrument to be
executed this 12th day of March, 2004. :

/s/ H. Dan Farell
Name: H. Dan Farell
Title: Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to TXU Corp. and will be
retained by TXU Corp. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.




SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Information About Stock-Related Subjects. TXU’s Shareholder Services is the transfer agent, registrar, dividend-paying
agent and Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan administrator for TXU Corp. common stock. If you need
information about stock-related subjects, contact Shareholder Services. The address and telephone numbers are on this page.
Our automated voice telephone system can provide you information about your individual account and the following:

+ Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment Plan
« Quarterly financial results

» Securities transfer and change in registration

+ Lost or stolen certificates

+ Dividend payments

+ Income tax information concerning dividends

« Address changes

« Financial and operating reports

You may also speak to a shareholder account representative about these or other stock-related subjects.

Common Stock Dividends. The company has declared common stock dividends payable in cash in each year since its
incorporation in 1945. At its February 2004 meeting, the board of directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.125 per
share. This regular quarterly dividend is payable April 1, 2004, to shareholders of record on March 5, 2004.

Dividends are paid in cash to shareholders who are not participating in the Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend
Reinvestment Plan. Dividends in 2003 were non-taxable distributions, or returns of capital. We recommend that you contact
your tax advisor if you have questions about how this impacts your taxes.

2004 Annual Meeting. The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the company will be held at 9:30 a.m. on Friday, May 21,
2004, at the Fort Worth Convention Center, Ballroom B, 1201 Houston Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102. Shareholders are
cordially invited to be present at the annual meeting. Whether or not you will be able to attend, vote your shares so that
you will be represented at the meeting. The notice of the meeting, proxy statement and form of proxy are being mailed or
given to shareholders on or about April 5, 2004. In addition to mailing your proxy, you may now vote by telephone or the
Internet. Complete instructions are included on your proxy card.

Directory Stock Exchange Listings
Tim Hogan New York Stock Exchange, Inc.
Director of Investor Relations New York, New York

214-812-4641
The Chicago Stock Exchange, Inc.

Shareholder Services Chicago, llinois

P.O. Box 130059

Dallas, Texas 75313-0059 The Pacific Stock Exchange, Inc.

Local 214-812-8100 Los Angeles and San Francisco, California
Toll free 1-800-828-0812

shareholder@txu.com Ticker symbol: TXU
WWW.tXucorp.com ’

Additional Shareholder Information. This annual report has been prepared for the purpose of providing shareholders
with information concerning the company and not in connection with any sale or purchase of or any offer or solicitation
with an offer to buy or sell any securities.

TXU also prepares an annual report on its environmental programs and will provide you a copy of it or other shareholder
information on request. Please direct requests to Shareholder Services or via www.txucorp.com. Our Web site also offers
reports and shareholder information.

Quarterly Market Price Ranges and Dividends Paid per Share of Common Stock

Price Range Dividends Paid
2003 2002 2003 2002
Quarter Ended High Low High Low
March 31 $20.37 $15.00 $55.20 $46.27 $0.125 $0.60
June 30 22.87 17.54 57.05 48.81 0.125 0.60
September 30 23.70 19.58 51.85 33.65 0.125 0.60
December 31 23.96 20.87 40.99 10.10 0.125 0.60
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